AGENDA
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING
June 8, 2015
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
CALL TO ORDER 5:00 p.m., Board Room, District Office

15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California
ROLL CALL Directors Matheis, Reinhart, Swan, Withers and President LaMar

Douglas Reinhart will participate via conference call.
Agenda posted at: 100 Nohea Kai Drive, Marriott Vacation
Club-Lahaina - Maui, Hawaii

NOTICE

If you wish to address the Board on any item, including Consent Calendar items, please file
your name with the Secretary. Forms are provided on the lobby table. Remarks are limited to
five minutes per speaker on each subject. Consent Calendar items will be acted upon by one
motion, without discussion, unless a request is made for specific items to be removed from the
Calendar for separate action.

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD

1 A. Written:

B. Oral:

2 TO BE
Recommendation: Determine that the need to discuss and/or take immediate action on
item(s)

PRESENTATIONS Resolution No. 2015-13

3. SCIENCE FAIR WINNERS

Each year, IRWD presents awards to local students for their water-related
projects entered in the Irvine Unified School District Science Fair.

4. MID-BASIN INJECTION DEMONSTRATION PROJECT OVERVIEW

The Orange County Water District staff will provide an overview of the Mid-
Basin Injection Demonstration Project.



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
June 8, 2015
Page 2

WORKSHOP

5. FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 CAPITAL BUDGET

Recommendation: That the Board adopt a resolution approving the District’s Reso. No. 2015-
Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-16.

CONSENT CALENDAR Items 6-12

6 MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the May 26, 2015 Regular
Board meeting be approved as presented.

7 RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT
MEETINGS AND EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board ratify/approve meetings and events for Steven
LaMar, Mary Aileen Matheis and Douglas Reinhart.

8. PROPOSED SALARY GRADE CHANGES FOR FY 2015-16

Recommendation: That the Board adopt a resolution rescinding Resolution Reso. No. 2015-
No. 2015-8 and establishing a Revised Schedule of Positions and Salary Rate
Changes.

9 BAKER PIPELINE CATHODIC PROTECTION SYSTEM UPGRADES
PROJECT FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Recommendation: That the Board accept construction of the Baker Pipeline
Cathodic Protection System Upgrades, project 11802 (5530); authorize the
General Manager to file a Notice of Completion; and authorize the payment of
the retention 35 days after the date of recording the Notice of Completion.

10. BUREAU OF RECLAMATION WATERSMART DROUGHT RESILIENCY
PROJECT GRANT APPLICATION

Recommendation: That the Board adopt a resolution authorizing submission of a Reso. No. 2015-
grant application for the Irvine Lake North Pipeline Conversion project to the
Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, Policy and Administration.



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
June 8, 2015
Page 3

CONSENT CALENDAR - Continued Items 6-12
11. 2015 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

Recommendation: That the Board adopt a “CONCERNED” position on AB
1390 (Alejo) and SB 225 (Pavley) and authorize staff to engage with
stakeholders to protect IRWD's interests related to groundwater adjudications

12. 2014-2015 ORANGE COUNTY GRAND JURY REPORT RESPONSE

Recommendation: That the Board agree with Finding F.4 contained in the 2014-
2015 Orange County Grand Jury Report—*“Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-
Win for Orange County”and authorize the General Manager to notify the
presiding judge in writing of the Board’s agreement.

ACTION CALENDAR

13. Y AND

Recommendation: That the Board adopt a resolution receiving the District’s Reso. No. 2015-
Cost of Service Study subject to nonsubstantive changes.

14.  WATERSMART SOFTWARE VARIANCE NO. 2

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute
Variance No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement between IRWD and
WaterSmart Software Inc. in the amount of $215,693.

15. WATER CONSERVATION PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the
Water Conservation Participation Agreement between the Municipal Water
District of Orange County and Irvine Ranch Water District, subject to non-
substantive changes, for specified rebate programs with $1,060,000 in funding
for FY 2015-16.

OTHER BUSINESS

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, members of the Board of Directors or staff may ask
questions for clarification, make brief announcements, make brief reports on his/her own activities.
The Board or a Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual
information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or direct staff
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. Such matters may be brought up under the General
Manager’s Report or Directors’ Comments.



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
June 8, 2015
Page 4

OTHER BUSINESS - Continued

16.  A. General Manager’s Report

B. Directors’ Comments

C. CLOSED SESSION:

1) CONFERENCE with Labor Negotiators relative to Government Code
Section 54957.6:
Agency Designated Representatives: Paul Cook and Jenny Roney
Employees’ Organization: Irvine Ranch Water District Employees Association

2) CONFERENCE with Real Property Negotiator relative to Government Code
Section 54956.8:
Property: OCSD Service Area 7 Sewer Infrastructure
Agency Negotiator: Paul Cook, General Manager
Purpose of Negotiations: Proposed Acquisition of Property - Price and Terms, and

D. Open Session

E. Adjourn

L T S . S % k% ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk 3k

Availability of agenda materials: Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all or a
majority of the members of the Irvine Ranch Water District Board of Directors in connection with a matter subject to
discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the Board of Directors are available for public inspection in the District’s
office, 15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California (“District Office”). If such writings are distributed to members of the
Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available from the District Secretary of the District Office at the
same time as they are distributed to Board Members, except that if such writings are distributed one hour prior to, or during,
the meeting, they will be available at the entrance to the Board of Directors Room of the District Office.

The Irvine Ranch Water District Board Room is wheelchair accessible. If you require any special disability-related
accommodations (e.g., access to an amplified sound system, etc.), please contact the District Secretary at (949) 453-5300
during business hours at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled meeting. This agenda can be obtained in
alternative format upon written request to the District Secretary at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled
meeting.



WORKSHOP

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 CAPITAL BUDGET
SUMMARY:

The projected expenditures for the FY 2015-16 Capital Budget are $150.2 million. Staff
recommends that the Board adopt a resolution approving the FY 2015-16 Capital Budget. A
final Capital Budget notebook will be distributed following adoption.

BACKGROUND:

The projected capital expenditures for the upcoming fiscal year are presented annually to the
Engineering and Operations Committee and Board for review. The presentation, attached as
Exhibit “A”, includes an update on FY 2014-15 budget-to-actual capital expenditures and
projected FY 2015-16 capital expenditures.

In the current fiscal year, FY 2014-15, budgeted expenditures were originally estimated at
$153.7 million. Actual expenditures are projected at approximately $141.4 million (equating to
92% of projected expenditures) through the end of the current fiscal year.

Staff estimates that capital expenditures for FY 2015-16 will be approximately $150.2 million;
three projects (the MWRP Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facility, Baker Water Treatment
Plant, and OCSD CORF / Equity) make up 70% of the projected expenditures.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The following table shows the major projects for FY 2015-16. The FY 2015-16 Capital Budget,
attached as Exhibit “B”, provides details on all the capital projects projected to have
expenditures in FY 2015-16.

Project FY 2(.)1:5'16
$ Million
Solids Handling 53.9
Baker Water Treatment Plant 38.9
OCSD Capital Outlay Revolving Fund and Equity Adjustment 12.2
Water Banking 7.1
Planning Area 51 (Great Park Neighborhoods) 6.9
Peters Canyon Channel Water Capture and Reuse Pipeline 54
Annual Distribution System Repair and Rehabilitation 3.7
Replacement - Business Software 2.1
ILP North Conversion 1.4
Rattlesnake Sodium Hypochlorite Storage and Feed 1.4
Subtotal $133.0
Total All Projects $150.2

ea FY 15-16BrdCapital Budget.docx



Workshop: Fiscal Year 2015-16 Capital Budget
June 8, 2015
Page 2

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not required.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed at the Engineering and Operations Committee on May 19, 2015. The
draft FY 2015-16 Capital Budget summary presented to the Committee was $149.2 million.
Three projects have changed:

e Project 11812 — Rosedale Drought Relief Project Facilities: An overall $1.9 million
budget increase was approved at the May 26 Board of Directors Meeting. This
increased the projected FY 2015-16 expenditures by approximately $1.0 million;

e Project 30573 — Lake Forest RW Opportunity Area Zone “C” Conversion: This project
was added in the amount of $997,800; and

e Project 31562 — Lake Forest RW Opportunity Areas: This project was reduced by
$997,600 to offset Project 30573.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD ADOPT THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 —

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT, ORANGE COUNTY
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE DISTRICT’S CAPITAL

BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-16

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — FY 2015-16 Capital Budget Presentation
Exhibit “B” — FY 2015-16 Capital Budget Book
Exhibit “C” — Resolution



EXHIBIT "A"

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Capital
Budget

Board of Directors Workshop
June 8, 2015

Capital Budget Presentation Outline

» Review Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 budget
» Update on expenditures for FY 2014-15

* Review changes since the E&O Committee

» Present proposed FY 2015-16 budget
* FY 2015-16 Capital Budget Summary
» Review Long-Term Capital Program
* Review Flagged Projects




FY14-15 Budgeted vs. Actual Expenditures

Budgeted Projected Actual
Description Expenditures Expenditures
($ Million) ($ Million)
Top 10 project groups $126.2 $122.6
Other projects $27.5 $18.8
FY 2014-15 Total $153.7 $141.4

Ivine Ranch \Water [District

FY 2014-15 Top 10 Budgeted vs Projected Expenditures

Budgeted Projected
Description Expenditures | Expenditures
($ Million)* | (S Million)*

1 MWRP - Solids Handling 53.8 48.8
2 Baker WTP 38.8 38.7
3 Development - PA51 (Great Park Neighborhoods) 8.6 12.7
4 Business Software (CC&B, Enterprise Asset Mgmt) 7.4 3.8
5 Development - PA18 (Hidden Canyon) 4.3 5.1
6 OPAWEell 3.5 6.2
7 0OCSD/CORF 27 27
8 Peters Canyon Water Capture 26 0.9
9 Water Banking 2.4 1.2
10 Santiago Canyon DW Improvements 2.1 24

Subtotal $126.2 $122.6

Other Projects $27.5 $18.8

[ * Excludes capltal offsets Total  $153.7 si14 [

A-2



Development Projects

FY 2014-15 Development Activity
+ Estimated FY 2014-15 releases (based on data through May) are
5,500 dwelling units

+ Focused on multi-family units in areas with existing infrastructure
« Baker Ranch
» Orchard Hills and Portola Springs
» Great Park Neighborhoods (District 8)
» Cypress Village and Stonegate

. FY 2015-16 Development Activity

Projected releases = Similar to 2014-15

+ Multi-family and single family dwelling units continue to be developed
in: Orchard Hills, Portola Springs, Stonegate, Cypress Village, Great
Park Neighborhoods (District 1), Baker Ranch, and Hidden Canyon.

Invine Ranch ¥Watser Distnct

High Activity
Development Areas
— _
Orchard Hills ""\_\

(Neighborhoods 1 and 2)
PA1 B
\ Orchasd Hilly

lial\gh Y
f b

Stonegate

Great Park Area

© ressvlllae : -im-a
s : ; ' ] 5 (District 1)

- LR
FY 2014-15 Condos —
1% Quarter i £\ sobeun
2 Quarter 4 2
31 Quarter
4" Quarter

Totals

Portola Springs

ELGHS
Ranch




Changes from Engineering and

Operations Committee Meeting

* Project 11812 — Rosedale Drought Relief Project
Facilities
* May 26, 2015 Board approved $1.9 million budget
increase
* Project 30573 — Lake Forest RW Opportunity Area
Zone C Conversion
» Added project and reduced Project 31562 LF RW
Opportunity Areas (onsite project) by equal
amount.

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Projected Expenditure

* FY 2015-16 projected expenditures = $150.2 M
« Domestic water expenditures = $58.2 M
» Sewer expenditures = $92.0 M

« Top 10 Project Groups = $133.0 M

» Other Projects = $17.2 M

Iivine Ranch Water District




FY 2015-16 Top 10 Projects Groups

= Est. FY15-16 Exp.
Description ($ Million)*

1 Solids Handling 53.9
2 Baker Water Treatment Plant 38.9
3 OCSD Capital Outlay Revolving Fund and Equity 12.2
4  Water Banking 71
5 Planning Area 51 (Great Park Neighborhoods) 6.9
6 Peters Canyqn Qhannel Water Capture 5.4
and Reuse Pipeline
7 Annual Distribution System Repair and Rehabilitation 3.7
8 Replacement - Business Software 2.1
9 ILP North Conversion 1.4
10 Rattlesnake Sodium Hypochlorite Storage and Feed 1.4
Subtotal $133.0
Other Projects $17.2
* Excludes capltal offsets Total $150.2

Capital Budget Funding Sources

Domestic Water Projects ($ Million)

50.0
' @2015/16 DW ($58.2)
40.0 398
30.0
;|
200 il
11.5

10.0 | Vi

0.0 . : T .

New Development Replacement Fund Developed IDs

Irvime Ranch Water Disoict




Capital Budget Funding Sources

Sewer/Recycled Water Projects ($ Million)

60.0

W 2015/16 Sewer ($92.0)

50.0

38.4

40.0 37.2

30.0

200

10.0 1

0.0 -
New Development Replacement Fund Developed IDs

Capital Program Summary ($ Million)

* The Long-Term Capital Program (LTCP) includes every
active, and proposed project, beyond 7/1/15

» Estimated remaining LTCP expenditures = $666.9

* Proposed increase to the LTCP is $117.7
+ = $3.0 to Replacement IDs
+ = $75.2 to Developed IDs
« = $39.5 to Developing IDs




Proposed Increases to the Long-Term Capital Program

Increases Including

Project Groups Offsets ($Million)

OCSD CORF / Equity $117.4
EOLV / EOAI Reduced Development ($38.6)
Future DATS Well Lease Payments $10.8
Repair and Rehabilitation Projects $13.0

Development Projects $4.7

Water Banking $6.8

Other Increases / Decreases $3.6
Total $117.7

Ivine Ranch Water Uistrict

LTCP Summary ($ Million)

Estimated Eoaated
U ded Mid-Year Estimated Proposed | Remaining
"el’_‘Tpg: €d|  Approved FY 14-15 LTCP  |Unexpended
(07/01/14) Increases |Expenditures| Increases LTCP
(07/01/15)
Replacement | il
Developed IDs  $285.0 + $11.0 - $254 + $752 = $3458
Developing IDs $179.3 + $3.3 - $135 + $395 = $208.6
Total $601.3 + $145 - $66.6 + $117.7 = $666.9

Irtvine Ranch Water Distiict




Fiscal Year 2015-16 Flagged Projects*®

11881 — Tustin Legacy Redhill Well Acquisition
15051 — Wells 51/52/53 Treatment Alternatives Study
30382 — Syphon Reservoir Expansion

*All projects with start dates beyond the fiscal year 2015-16 are presented to the board prior to any expenditures




EXHIBIT "B"

CAPITAL BUDGET

FISCAL YEAR 2015/16

DRAFT
June 8, 2015

Irvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
Irvine, CA 92618



06/08/15 DRAFT

FISCAL YEAR 2015/16
CAPITAL BUDGET

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TAB DESCRIPTION

1. PROJECT EXPENDITURES BY PROJECT NUMBER

2x FLAGGED PROJECTS

S TOP TEN PROJECT GROUPS

4. WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ALLOCATIONS

5. SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ALLOCATIONS

6. PROJECT EXPENDITURES BY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND SOURCE OF FUNDS

(A REFERENCE MAPS

» WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS
= SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS



EPMS No.

10394
10517
11057
11116
11275
11378
11379
11434
11469
11560
11562
11598
11605
11613
11619
11645
11660
11665
11668
11671
11672
11673
11679
11687
11692
11694
11696
11697
11698
11699
11702
11704
11711

5/29/2015

EBS No.

1437
1798
1804
1264
1363
1038
1047
1414
1520
1181
1189
1336
1346
1354
3566
3766
3977
4130
4153
4261
4327
4268
4401
4409
4441
5493
5494
4387
5297
5484
5468
4423
4394

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
2015/16 Capital Budget

Project Expenditures by Project Number

Project Title EY Direct
DATS & WELL 77 LEASE PAYMENT 16/17 37,100
LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS REPLACEME! 66,300
ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 DW 198,000
ASSET OPTIMIZATION - LAKE FOREST DEVELOPMENT 887,300
OCWD ANNEXATION FEE 15/16 439,400
TUSTIN LEGACY MASTER DW FACILITIES 500
TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH ROAD 1,400
SAND CANYON 16" DW PIPELINE ANODE REPLACEMENT 1,700
GREAT PARK COORDINATION AND SAMP UPDATE 11,200
LAKE FOREST DW OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS 700
LAKE FOREST DW OPPORTUNITY AREAS 2,400
HQ LIGHTING RETROFIT & CEILING REPLACE 45,400
PA40 PH2 DW FACILITIES 300
PAl 16" Z5 PIPE, 5-4 PRVS NEIGHBORHOOD 3 11,000
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION 473,300
STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD EQUIPPING 1,377,600
PA51 TRABUCO RD, SR133 TOLY ST DW 3,300
SIM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD REMEDIATION 1,000
PA51 MARINE WAY DW ZN3 192,200
PAS51 RIDGE VALLEY, TRABUCO TO IRVINE BLVD - DW 35,400
DRWF WELL NO. 3 REHAB 387,400
PAS51 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO TRABUCO - DW 39,500
WELL REHAB NO. 2 (DW) 228,700
CHLORAMINE BOOSTER STATIONS AT 2 DW RESERVOIRS 1,089,500
WELL MAINTENANCE AND REHABILITATION 15/16 165,000
1" TO 2" METER REPLACEMENT-DW 15/16 139,000
CSR METER REPLACEMENT-DW 15/16 213,200
GEN SYS MODS-DW 15/16 190,300
RAISE DW SYSTEM VALVES 15/16 UNDER RA 115,500
RESIDENTIAL METER REPLACEMENT-DW 15/16 336,600
SERVICE LINE, VALVE & MAIN REPLACEMENT-DW 15/16 1,246,900
MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - DW 15/16 660,000
ID CONSOLIDATION PROJECT ACCOUNTING IMPLEMENTAT 501,600

FY Dir + GA
37,100
84,800

346,000
887,300
439,400
1,400
1,400
4,300
17,400
1,800
6,600
66,800
300
29,400
683,200
1,438,300
3,300
1,000
223,200
39,800
451,000
43,800
284,100
1,144,700
165,000
163,800
222,500
231,100
124,800
360,700
1,265,400
660,000
723,600

Total Direct
487,200
319,000
198,000

6,500,000
439,400
1,495,200
990,900
243,100
99,000
962,500
3,686,600
225,000
238,700
1,237,500
2,432,100
4,744,900
156,200
369,600
332,200
723,800
401,500
486,200
401,500
2,501,200
165,000
139,000
213,200
190,300
115,500
336,600
1,246,900
660,000
1,254,000

Total Dir + GA Flag

487,200
430,000
346,000

6,685,000
439,400

1,676,500

1,083,200
308,000
154,500

1,094,000

4,278,600
331,500
285,000

1,367,100

3,264,700

5,179,700
207,200
395,600
415,600
890,300
475,600
560,300
475,600

2,695,500
165,000
163,800
222,500
231,100
124,800
360,700

1,265,400
660,000

1,809,000

Project Expenditures by Number -

No
No

1



EPMS No,
11714
11716
11717
11719
11721
11723
11739
11746
11747
11752
11754
11755
11764
11765
11779
11781
11785
11787
11789
11791
11796
11797
11801
11804
11805
11806
11808
11809
11812
11814
11819
11838
11839

5/29/2015

EBS No.

4366
4510
4512
4620
4645
4650
4680
4988
5027
5453
5473
5410
5500
5499
5406
5443
5405
5411
5433
5404
5436
5338
5519
5756
5761
5816
6013
6016
6023
6049
6171
6213
6214

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
2015/16 Capital Budget

Project Expenditures by Project Number

Eroject Title EY Direct
TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH, BARRANCA, ARMSTRONG 800
TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER - LEGACY TO TUSTIN RANCH DW 400
PASB PHASE 1A 12" ZONE 3 DW 27,900
PA51 LN STFROM CSTTOLY ST DW 11,800
PA51 CSTFROMLQ ST TO O ST DW 10,500
PAS51LY ST FROM LQ ST TO IRVINE BLVD DW 3,100

PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 12" DW 900

TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER FROM ARMSTRONG TOLEGACYI 10,700
BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT 38,868,400
WELLS 12 AND 13 ROOF HATCHES REPLACEMENT 282,200
WELLS 11 AND 15 SURGE TANK REPLACEMENT 304,300
COASTAL ZN2 PRV MODIFICATION (DPR16) 2,000
WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16 242,400
STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY CAPACITY 10,500
EL MODENA INLET MODIFICATION 1,000
PORTABLE DIESEL GENERATOR REPLACEMENT - DW 293,900
EL MODENA NTS POND INFILTRATION 1,000
COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS MOTOR FUEL 34,700
GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - DOMESTIC 60,000
LAKE FOREST Z2-2RA PRV AT COMMERCENTRE 59,200
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 DW 44,000
MARSH MITIGATION CREDIT INVENTORY 17,000
EAST IRVINE ZONE 1 TO 3 BPS PIPE/METER 168,200
PA51 "B" ST FROM SOCIABLE TO IRVINE BLV 12" ZN 4 125,000

ZONE 1 RESERVOIR INTERIOR RECOATING 500

PAS51 ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS 12" DW 103,300
WATER SUPPLY AND SYSTEM RELIABILITY MODEL 228,200
PAS5T IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 12" DW 19,000
ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT FACILITIES 3,407,800
2015 IRVINE ANNUAL ST REHAB, DW 431,200
WELLS 76 & 77 PUMP/MOTOR REPLACEMENT 275,400
IDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM 166,400
PDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM 4,200

EY Dir + GA
800

400
33,600
13,900
13,400

4,900

900

13,000

39,863,300
329,800
345,600
4,700
612,900
29,000
2,300
293,900
2,300
36,600
94,200
63,900
62,500
21,300
211,500
151,900
1,300
120,500
270,700
22,800
3,682,700
468,200
275,400
217,100
11,200

Total Direct

343,200
196,900
132,000
172,700
161,700

51,700
315,700
60,500

96,852,000
340,500
627,600
187,100
484,000

1,590,800
156,200
880,000
321,200

68,300
60,000
337,700
44,000
36,300
198,600
176,000

2,748,500
177,100
496,900

34,100

6,133,600
431,200
550,000

1,905,900

2,430,900

Total Dir + GA Flag
417,300 No
252,500 No
174,600 No
219,100 No
217,400 No

88,900 No
399,100 No
77,300 No
99,331,000 No
400,700 No
716,400 No
228,500 No
1,224,000 No
1,609,300 No
184,100 No
880,000 No
349,100 No
72,500 No
94200 No
374,800 No
62,500 No
45,600 No
250,400 No
235,300 No
2,833,700 No
225,200 No
589,400 No
45300 No
6,568,400 No
468,200 No
550,000 No
2,137,200 No
2,662,200 No
Project Expenditares by Number -

2



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

2015/16 Capital Budget
Project Expenditures by Project Number
EPMSNo. EBS No. Project Title EY Direct EY Dir + GA Total Direct TotalDir + GA Flag
11842 6086 PA51 MARINE WAY FROM ALTON TO BARRANCA 12" DW ZN 187,100 220,400 238,700 301,600 No
11849 6160 CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP 1,800 4,400 170,000 211,600 No
11866 6109 TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE & MOFFETT DR 12" DW 58,700 82,200 162,800 214,700  No
11867 6246 WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16 115,500 208,000 115,500 208,000 No
11874 6249 STOCKDALE WEST WELL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT 1,804,500 1,866,100 2,711,500 2,804,000 No
11875 6145 STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES 126,300 163,300 2,557,500 2,650,100 No
11876 6212 NTS INFILTRATION STUDY 64,900 77,900 64,900 77,900 No
11877 6166 NTS SEDIMENT REMOVAL 7,300 11,200 365,200 411,600 No
11878 6168  SAN JOAQUIN MARSH IMPROVEMENTS 13,200 19,700 541,200 633,900 No
11879 6121 VAULT LID REPLACEMENT - DW 3,300 8,500 315,200 409,700 No
11881 6215 TUSTIN LEGACY REDHILL WELL ACQUISITION 269,500 306,500 269,500 306,500 Yes
11882 6165 DRWF SURGE TANKS 1,700 4,300 198,600 250,400 No
11884 6158 TURTLE ROCK ZONE 3-4 BOOSTER PUMP STATION RETROFI" 189,200 234,300 2,747,900 2,960,700 No
11885 6210 ASSET OPTIMIZATION - SAND CANYON PROFESSIONAL CTR 59,600 64,200 17,624,300 17,670,600 No
11886 6398 NEWPORT COAST JOINT BONDING PHASE 2 148,300 166,900 148,300 166,900 No
11887 6208 PA-51 MARINE WAY: SR133 TO RIDGE VALLEY 12" ZONE 3 113,100 149,000 162,800 214,700 No
11889 6181 BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE SOFTWARE UPGRADE 84,200 127,300 126,500 191,300 No
11890 6304 PA 51 BENCHMARK, BOSQUE TO 550'E/O BOSQUE 12" Z4R 113,100 149,000 162,800 214,700 No
11891 6401 ZONE 1 RESERVOIR 210,700 244,600 316,300 367,200 No
15051 1402 WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY 10,600 13,500 133,100 170,100  Yes
19411 1466 PA51 MASTER DW FACILITIES 1,800 4,800 5,680,500 6,568,500 No
20115 1552 OCSD CORF 14/15 705,000 705,000 3,502,000 3,502,000 No
20116 1554 OCSD CORF 15/16 4,785,200 4,785,200 5,988,000 5,988,000 No
20374 1642 PA51 MASTER SS FACILITIES 300 800 1,028,500 1,195,100 No
20589 1508 OCSD EQUITY 14/15 2,194,000 2,194,000 6,546,000 6,546,000 No
20593 1516 OCSD EQUITY 15/16 4,561,100 4,561,100 6,854,000 6,854,000 No
20813 1420  OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16 1,391,000 1,391,000 1,391,000 1,391,000 No
20915 4439 MWRP SYS REPLACEMENTS 15/16 332,200 335,900 332,200 335,900 No
21011 4418 LAWRP SYSTEM REPLACEMENTS 15/16 132,000 132,000 132,000 132,000 No
21057 1377 ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 SEWER 171,600 312,200 171,600 312,200 No
21119 3750 SOCWA ETM PROTECTION - TRAIL BRIDGE CROSSING 87,600 96,800 951,500 979,300 No
21141 4267 PAS51 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO TRABUCO - SEWER 50,000 50,000 1,064,300 1,277,600  No
21142 4467 MWRP MISCELLANEQUS REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT 170,000 281,000 3,076,600 3,307,900 No
5/29/2015 Project Expenditures by Number- 3



EPMS No.

21146
21151
21156
21158
21159
21163
21165
21167
21168
21169
21170
21171
21181
21182
21183
21188
21191
21205
21213
21216
21217
21219
21234
21235
21287
21288
21378
21379
21469
21560
21562
21598
21619

5/29/2015

EBS No,
4286
5491
4648
4653
4824
4985
5016
5469
5470
5450
5186
5456
5174
5448
5301
5427
5409
5520
5535
5788
6010
6048
6167
6067
6400
6402
1062
1066
1167
1436
1445
1549
3567

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
2015/16 Capital Budget

Project Expenditures by Project Number

Project Title EY Direct
MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES 52,512,700
SEWER LATERAL & MAIN REPLACEMENT 15/16 218,900
PA5SI LQ STFROM O STTOLY ST SEWER 17,000
PAS1 CST FROM TRABUCO RD TO LQ ST SEWER 16,500
PAS1 LV ST FROM RIDGE VALLEY TOLY ST 18" SEWER 20,100
PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE 5,438,200
PA51 CST FROM LV ST TO TRABUCO SEWER 24,400
MWRP FPS 2 ROOF REPLACEMENT 210,200
NEWPORT COAST SLS AND FM RECOATING 244,200
CULVER DRIVE SMH IMPROVEMENTS 328,700
SJM SLS UPGRADE 1,200
SEWER GEN SYS MODS 15/16 330,000
MAIN ST DIVERSION STRUCTURE GROUND SETTLING 1,800
PLANO LIFT STATION FORCE MAIN RELOCATION (SMWD) 291,900
RAISE MANHOLES TO GRADE 15/16 UNDER RA 110,000
WATER RECYCLING PLANT MASTER PLAN UPDATE 202,800
OPS DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 173,700
MAINTENANCE ACCESS FOR FOUR SEWER REACHES 1,400
PA51 LQ ST FROM BOSQUE TO Z ST 12" SEWER 647,000
PAS51 ALTON PKWY SS RELOCATION 12" AND 18" 1,321,800
TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE FROM JAMBOREE TO VICTORY £ 36,700
PAS51 MARINE WAY, ALTON TO BARRANCA 18" SS 911,200
OPS CENTER PERMANENT GENERATOR 3,400
WOODHOLLOW SEWER REPLACEMENT 3,400
NEWPORT COAST SLS IMPROVEMENTS 291,100
MBR BLOWER ROOM SAFETY PLATFORM 11,100
TUSTIN LEGACY MASTER SEWER FACILITIES 400
TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH ROAD 1,600
GREAT PARK COORDINATION AND SAMP UPDATE 11,200
LAKE FOREST SEWER OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS 1,400
LAKE FOREST SEWER OPPORTUNITY AREAS 900
HQ LIGHTING RETROFIT & CEILING REPLACE 45,400
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION 473,300

FY Dir + GA
54,043,700
237,400
19,100
16,500
24,400
5,565,200
30,100
250,400
304,300
373,800
3,100
330,000
4,400
291,900
110,000
271,000
187,600
3,300
739,000
1,623,900
42,900
1,050,000
8,600
8,600
353,300
12,100
1,000
1,600
17,400
3,700
2,500
66,800
683,200

Total Direct

196,465,500
218,900
255,200
403,700
310,200

10,959,800
370,700
256,000
552,200
368,000
153,500
330,000
191,400
583,000
110,000
550,000
346,500
368,000

1,510,300
1,832,300
64,900
1,424,500
618,800
398,200
574,200
144,000
1,115,400
1,090,400
99,000
3,280,200
1,647,800
225,000
2,432,100

Total Dir + GA

202,200,500
237,400
310,800
524,000
421,200

11,446,400
491,000
306,900
691,100
437,200
194,900
330,000
241,400
583,000
110,000
735,000
374,300
409,400

1,880,300
2,461,300
83,500
1,776,000
729,900
490,800
731,600
157,000
1,208,000
1,180,600
154,500
3,905,500
1,903,300
331,500
3,264,700

Project Expenditures by Number -

Flag
No
No

4



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

2015/16 Capital Budget
Project Expenditures by Project Number
EPMS No. EBS No. Project Title FY Direct FY Dir + GA Total Direct Total Dir + GA Flag
21660 3980 PAS1 TRABUCO RD, SR133 TOLY ST SEWER 3,600 3,600 161,700 212,700 No
21671 4263  PAS51 RIDGE VALLEY, TRABUCO TO IRVINE BLVD - SS 21,300 24,600 436,700 557,000 No
21704 4433 MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - SEWER 15/16 440,000 440,000 440,000 440,000 No
21711 4395 ID CONSOLIDATION PROJECT ACCOUNTING IMPLEMENTAT 501,600 723,600 1,254,000 1,809,000 No
21723 4651 PAS51LY ST FROM LQ ST TO IRVINE BLVD SEWER 134,900 148,600 1,662,200 1,958,200 No
21748 5412 SCSMP UPDATE AND LONG-TERM FLOW MONITORING 578,400 763,700 1,155,000 1,525,000 No
21781 5445 PORTABLE DIESEL GENERATOR REPLACEMENT - SEWER 293,900 293,900 880,000 880,000 No
21789 5435  GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - SEWER 60,000 94,200 60,000 94,200 No
21796 5438 HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 SEWER 44,000 62,500 44,000 62,500 No
21806 5817 PAS51 ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS SS RELOCATIO! 819,100 880,600 1,326,300 1,474,300  No
21809 6017 PA51 IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 16" SS 15,300 19,100 28,600 39,800 No
21814 6053 2015 IRVINE ANNUAL ST REHAB, SEWER 233,200 251,700 233,200 251,700  No
21826 6204  GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 16/17 - SEWER 60,000 94,200 60,000 94,200 No
21849 6161 CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP 1,800 4,400 170,000 211,600 No
21866 6110 TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE & MOFFETT DR 16" & 15" SS 58,700 82,200 162,800 214,700 No
21879 6122 VAULT LID REPLACEMENT - SEWER 1,700 4,300 96,300 146,300 No
21889 6184 BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE SOFTWARE UPGRADE 84,200 127,300 126,500 191,300 No
30245 1716 PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NEIGHBORHOOD 3 2,700 7,300 326,700 391,600 No
30246 1722 PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NEIGHBORHOOD 4 16,400 16,400 566,500 640,600 No
30280 1762 PA9B PHASE 5 GATEWAY PARK RW PIPES 6,400 8,200 506,100 620,900 No
30331 1813 SANTIAGO DAM & OUTLET TWR SEISMIC STABILITY 86,400 110,600 282,700 384,500 No
30366 1015 TECHNOLOGY DR AND LAGUNA CANYON RD RW ZONE B 3,400 3,400 3,223,500 3,556,500 No
30381 3780 SAN JOAQUIN RESERVOIR LINER REPLACEMENT 35,000 96,400 2,625,000 2,717,500 No
30382 3808 SYPHON RESERVOIR EXPANSION 88,100 140,300 60,169,200 61,020,200  Yes
30388 4147 PA51 MARINE WAY RW ZNB 206,900 244,100 365,200 467,100 No
30394 4278 PAS51 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO TRABUCO - RW 38,600 42,900 464,200 538,300 No
30402 4328 WELL REHAB PROGRAM RW 13/14 THRU 15/16 11,500 13,100 930,300 1,070,900 No
30403 4402 WELL REHAB NO. 1 (RW) 228,700 284,100 401,500 475,600 No
30406 5498 1" TO 2" METER REPLACEMENT-RW 15/16 140,300 154,200 140,300 154200 No
30408 4388 REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE A TO SYPHON 90,100 186,700 2,989,500 3,285,600 No
30409 4457 REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE B 38,900 87,300 2,532,700 2,791,800  No
30410 4400 REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE C 98,100 194,700 3,624,700 3,920,800 No
30415 4396 CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR GAP PIPE SEGMENT 58,800 72,800 352,000 413,100 No
5/29/2015 Project Expenditures by Number- 5§



EPMS No.
30416
30420
30421
30424
30426
30427
30428
30430
30435
30445
30447
30449
30453
30455
30461
30482
30487
30495
30496
30501
30502
30503
30508
30512
30513
30516
30517
30530
30534
30552
30560
30561
30569

5/29/2015

EBS No.

4318
4514
4515
4528
4557
4647
4717
4753
4959
1056
4984
4990
5156
5153
5154
5503
5168
5476
5407
5243
5522
5758
5763
5785
5823
5919
1096
6055
6056
6216
6242
6243
6244

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
2015/16 Capital Budget

Project Expenditures by Project Number

Project Title EY Direct
PA40 PH3B RW CAPITAL FACILITIES 300
PAS5SB PHASE 1A AND 1B 36" RW 414,900
PASB IRVINE BLVD 8" ZONE B RW 83,300
PA40 NEIGHBORHOOD 2G BACKBONE RW FACILITIES 200
PA6 PHASE 1 NEIGHBORHOOD 3 ZONE C RW 133,800
PA51 LY ST FROM TRABUCO RD TO LQ ST RW 15,600
PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NH 2 - 6" ZNB & 6" ZNC RW 800
PAS5SB PHASE 2 6" RW 38,600
RATTLESNAKE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEE 1,403,800
PA39 PHASE 1 RW PIPELINES 200
TUSTIN LEGACY ARMSTRONG ZONE A & WARNER ZONE AR 133,500
PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NEIGHBORHOOD 2, 6" ZNC RW 500
LAGUNA CANYON RD RW PIPELINE CORROSION REPLACE 2,000
SJIR ACTUATOR REPAIR/REPLACEMENT 23,900
SJR SEISMIC EVALUATION (DSOD) 1,100
WELL 78 SPARE PUMP AND MOTOR PURCHASE 138,300
PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 36" RW PIPELINE 6,200
REG RW - RATTLESNAKE BPS PUMP UPGRADE 40,500
ILP NORTH CONVERSION - RESERVOIR 703,800
PA6 NEIGHBORHOOD 4B 6" RW ZONE D 288,700
WEIR CANYON VALVE VAULT PLC UPGRADE 2,200
PA51 SOCIABLE ST FROMZ TOB ST 12" & 16" ZONE B 137,400
PA6 NEIGHBORHOOD 5A RW ZONE D 76,700
TUSTIN LEGACY BARRANCA FROM ARMSTRONG TO ASTON 247,000
ILP NORTH CONVERSION - PIPELINES 724,900
PA1 ORCHARD HILLS, NEIGHBORHOOD 1, 16" ZONE C 185,200
LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS REPLACEME! 22,900
SYPHON RESERVOIR SLIDE GATE REPLACEMENT 114,500
PA40 8TH ST RIDGE VALLEY TO C ST CAPITAL 6" RW 109,100
REG RW - NORTHWOOD ZONE B BPS UPGRADE 64,900
RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 15/16 82,500
RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 16/17 82,500
RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 17/18 82,500

FY Dir + GA
300
445200
100,000
200
152,500
19,900
800
42,800
1,490,500
200
155,800
500
4,600
29,000
2,800
138,300
6,200
58,900
798,600
347,700
3,400
155,900
88,500
297,800
850,600
222,600
41,400
125,100
122,700
92,500
99,500
99,500
99,500

Total Direct
165,000
1,769,400
100,100
108,900
315,700
205,700
238,700
57,200
2,430,900
180,400
773,300
84,700
588,500
254,700
150,700
276,100
2,103,200
990,000
6,108,500
526,900
108,900
240,900
132,000
344,300
7,494,600
294,800
168,300
238,700
136,400
2,588,500
82,500
82,500
82,500

Total Dir + GA Flag

200,200 No
1,936,000 No
131,700 No
144,100 No
380,600 No
289,000 No
322,000 No
68,400 No
2,662,200 No
221200 No
976,800 No
95900 No
644,100 No
310,200 No
215,500 No
276,100 No

2,380,700 No
1,054,900 No
6,487,800 No

649,100 No
127,500 No
296,500 No
159,800 No
455,500 No
8,096,000 No
389,300 No
297,800 No
286,900 No
164,200 No
2,681,200 No
99,500 No
99,500 No
99,500 No
Project Expenditures by Number -

6



EPMS No.

30570
30571
30572
30573
30797
31057
31156
31159
31213
31378
31379
31562
31598
31605
31640
31660
31671
31696
31697
31698
31702
31704
31714
31716
31717
31719
31721
31723
31739
31746
31781
31789
31796

5/29/2015

EBS No.

6198
6197
6298
6470
1308
1611
4649
4825
5536
1101
3435
1517
1257
1229
3735
3983
4264
5496
5486
5304
5477
4430
4368
4511
4513
4621
4646
4652
4681
4989
5444
5434
5437

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
2015/16 Capital Budget

Project Expenditures by Project Number

Project Title FY Direct
REG RW -IIC ZONE B BPS UPGRADES 69,500
REG RW - 20"ZN B PIPE CONSTRUCTION & CONVERSION 49,500
PIEZOMETER ACCESS AT RATTLESNAKE SYPHON & SAND CY 4,400
LAKE FOREST RW OPP AREA ZONE C CONVERSION. 800
PA6 RW PIPELINES 300
ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 RW 176,000
PA51 LQSTFROM O ST TOLY STRW 5,100
PAS1 LV ST FROM RIDGE VALLEY TOLY ST 12" RW 20,900
PAS51 LQ ST FROM BOSQUE TO Z ST 12" RW 226,700
TUSTIN LEGACY MASTER RW FACILITIES 600
TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH ROAD 1,800
LAKE FOREST RW OPPORTUNITY AREAS 1,400
HQ LIGHTING RETROFIT & CEILING REPLACE 10,400
PA40 PH2 RW FACILITIES 300
PA39 PH2 RW FACILITIES 3,600
PA51 TRABUCORD, SRI133TOLY ST RW 12,100
PA51 RIDGE VALLEY, TRABUCO TO IRVINE BLVD - RW 9,400
CSR METER REPLACEMENT-RW 15/16 112,200
GEN SYS MODS-RW 15/16 101,800
RAISE RW SYSTEM VALVES 15/16 UNDER RA 38,500
SERVICE LINE, VALVE & MAIN REPLACEMENT-RW 15/16 515,800
MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - RW 15/16 484,000
TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH, BARRANCA, ARMSTRONG 1,600
TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER - LEGACY TO TUSTIN RANCH RW 500
PASB PHASE 1A AND 1B 6" & 8" RW 156,500
PAS1 LN STFROM CSTTOLY ST RW 6,900
PAS1 CSTFROM LQ STTO O ST RW 18,300
PA5S1 LY STFROMLQ ST TO IRVINE BLVD RW 73,000
PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 6" & 8" RW 900
TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER FROM ARMSTRONG TO LEGACY I 47,100
PORTABLE DIESEL GENERATOR REPLACEMENT - RW 293,900
GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - RECYCLED 60,000
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 RW 44,000

FY Dir + GA
80,500
75,300
11,500

2,100
300
287,000
6,100
25,200
275,900
1,600
1,800
3,600
16,200
300
5,400
12,100
11,100
115,900
124,100
47,800
534,300
484,000
1,600
500
178,800
8,600
21,200
88,500
900
56,400
293,900
94,200
62,500

Total Direct

1,606,100
3,152,600
242,100
997,800
620,500
176,000
78,100
321,200
383,900
1,544,900
1,210,700
2,137,900
50,000
216,700
226,600
480,700
194,700
112,200
101,800
38,500
515,800
484,000
689,700
207,900
298,200
105,600
266,200
938,300
315,700
282,700
880,000
60,000
44,000

Total Dir + GA Flag

1,650,500 No
3,238,600 No
297,700 No
1,164,500 No
697,300 No
287,000 No
104,100 No
423,000 No
485,700 No
1,733,600 No
1,331,000 No
2,459,900 No
78,700 No
263,000 No
261,800 No
591,200 No
250,300 No
115,900 No
124,100 No
47,800 No
534,300 No
484,000 No
800,700 No
263,500 No
363,100 No
140,800 No
331,100 No
1,252,800 No
399,100 No
375,300 No
880,000 No
94200 No
62,500 No
Project Expenditures by Number -

7



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
2015/16 Capital Budget

Project Expenditures by Project Number

EPMSNo.  EBS No. Eroject Title, EY Direct EY Dir + GA Zotal Direct Total Dir + GA  Flag
31804 5757 PA51"B" ST FROM SOCIABLE TO IRVINE BLV 16" ZN C 176,300 200,100 240,900 296,500 No
31806 5818 PAS51 ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS 16" RW 207,000 238,200 344,300 418,300 No
31809 6018 PAS51 IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 20" RW 346,600 395,300 609,400 757,400 No
31814 6054 2015 IRVINE ANNUAL ST REHAB, RW 97,400 111,300 97,400 111,300 No
31842 6087 PAS51 MARINE WAY, ALTON TO BARRANCA 16" RW ZN B 223,300 260,400 281,600 352,100 No
31866 6111 TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE & MOFFETT DR 16" & 6" RW 58,700 82,200 162,800 214,700 No
31879 6123  VAULT LID REPLACEMENT - RW 1,700 4,300 195,300 245,300 No
31886 6399 NEWPORT COAST JOINT BONDING PHASE 2 80,500 99,100 80,500 99,100 No
31887 6209 PA-51 MARINE WAY: SR133 TO RIDGE VALLEY 6" ZONE B 113,100 149,000 162,800 214,700 No
31890 6306 PA 51 BENCHMARK, BOSQUE TO 550'E/O BOSQUE 6" ZC 113,100 149,000 162,300 214,700 No
39410 1103  PA51 MASTER RW FACILITIES 1,500 3,900 4,893,000 5,633,000 No

Grand Total: WQO $159,479,000 w $627,096,900
5/29/2015 Project Expenditures by Number- 8

B-10



5/29/2015

EPMS No.

11881
15051
30382

&
(2]
z

6215
1402
3808

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
2015/16 Capital Budget
Flagged Projects

Project Title

TUSTIN LEGACY REDHILL WELL ACQUISITION
WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY
SYPHON RESERVOIR EXPANSION

Flag - 1



Rank
by FY 15/16
Expenditure

O 0 13 N i W N =

—
o

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

FY 2015/16 Capital Budget

Top 10 Project Groups

Name of Group

Solids Handling

Baker Water Treatment Plant

OCSD / CORF

Water Banking

Planning Area 51 (Great Park Neighborhoods)
Peters Canyon Channel Water Capture and Reuse
Annual Distribution System Repair and Rehabilitation
Replacement - Business Software

ILP North Conversion

Rattlesnake Sodium Hypochlorite Storage and Feed
Subtotal for Top 10 Project Groups

Total All Projects

B-12

FY15/16
Projected
Expenditures
($ Millions)
53.9
38.9
12.2
7.1
6.9
54
3.7
2.1
1.4
1.4
$133.0
$150.2

Expended
to Date
($ Millions)

68.6
30.0
0.0
0.5
4.4
0.9
0.0
0.3
0.1
0.3
$105.1

Projected
Future Project Total
Expenditures ($ Millions)
($ Millions)

75.4 197.9
28.0 96.9
10.7 22.9
10.7 18.3
20.1 31.4
4.7 11.0
0.0 3.7
5.2 7.6
12.1 13.6
0.7 24
$167.6 $405.7



Project Group Name: MWRP Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities

Project Description

Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project
Fiscal Year 2015/16

2016.

The project includes the construction of facilities for sludge thickening, acid-phase anaerobic
digestion, dewatering, drying and pelletization, energy generation using micro-turbines, and use of
pellets as a fertilizer or e-fuel. It will also include a solids receiving station to allow processing of
dewatered sludge from the Los Alisos Water Recycled Water Plant (LAWRP). A FOG receiving
station is included to increase methane production by the digesters and energy production
capabilities. IRWD will cease conveyance of MWRP residuals to the OCSD system by December

!"‘ 3
< A
S s
N - sy ,/‘
L) [MWRP Biosolids Handling & |
7 - r‘,; Energy Recovery Facilities
{ . / Ny :
{ =
o S

FY 2015/16 Key Milestones:

Date - ]
Continue MWRP Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities Construction Dec-16 MWRP Biosolids Handling
Start-up sludge thickening, digestion, and dewatering facilities. Dec-16 = e e S i = S T—= £
| 2013 2014 2015 2016
B Year -
Project Group Budget, Source of Funds, and Offset § Y
New Capital Replacement  Enhancement Total Comments

Total Budget $ 15,030,286 | § 113,024,549 | $ 69,801,665 | § 197,856,500

Existing Offsets $ - $ - $ - $ -

Potential Future Offsets $ - $ - $ - $ -

Net Amounts $ 15,030,286 [ § 113,024,549 | $ 69,801,665 | § 197.856,500

Number 1



Oracle No.

4286
1420

Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Fiscal Year 2015/16
. . . . Projected Future Expended to Date
Project Proj Total Dir FY15-16 Dir Exnenditure
MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES 3 196,465,500 § 52,512,700 s 75392690 $ 68.560.110
OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16 $ 1,391,000 $ 1391000 § $
TOTAL $ 197,856,500 $ 53,903,700 $ 75,392,650 $ 68,560,110

Status

March, 2013, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contract to Filance Balfour Beatty Joint Venture. Construction is ongoing

the MWRP Biosolids Facilities in operation by December 2016

Number 1



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project
Fiscal Year 2015/16

Project Group Name: Baker Water Treatment Plant

Project Description

\The Baker Water Treatment Plant (Baker WTP) will treat up to 28 mgd of imported untreated water
from Metropolitan Water District to drinking water standards to supply potable water to IRWD and
other participating water agencies in southern Orange County. Raw water from Irvine Lake can also
be supplied to the plant during emergencies or when excess local runoff water is available in the lake.
The raw water conveyance system consists of the Baker Pipeline and a raw water pump station near
|Peters Canyon Reservoir. The new treatment plant will consist of chlorine dioxide pre-treatment (for
Irvine Lake water), pressurized membrane filtration, ultraviolet disinfection, and chloramination for
residual disinfection. Product water will be stored in two existing 16 MG reservoirs at the site and
|pumped by a new product water pump station to participating agencies via the South County
Pipeline. IRWD will receive its share of treated water directly from the 16 MG reservoirs through
the existing distribution system. The project is being constructed under two separate contracts - one
for the water treatment plant and one for the raw water pump station.

FY 2015/16 Key Milestones:
Construction award - Raw Water Pump Station and WTP
Construction complete - RWPS

Date
January 6, 2014
June 30, 2015

Construction complete - WIP

April 5, 2016

Phase

| Bal&-}r Water Treatment Plant

Baker Water Treatment Plant

Construction - WTP

Construction - RWPS

2013

2014 2015

Year
Project Group Budget, Source of Funds, and Offset Summary
New Capital Replacement  Enhancement Total Comments

Total Budget $ 18,789,288 | $ - $ 78,062,712 | § 96,852,000

Existing Offsets $ (14,091,966)| $ $ (58,547,034)| $ (72,639,000)

Potential Future Offsets $ - $ $ - $ -

Net Amounts $ 4697322 | $ - $ 19,515,678 | § 24,213,000

2016

Number 2

2017



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Fiscal Year 2015/16
Orade No. Project Proj Total Dir FY15-16 Dir P’;’x‘::?t?u":" Expended to Date
5027 BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT s 96,852,000 § 38868400 g 27967110 S 30,016,490
TOTAL § 96,852,000 $ 38868400 S 27,967,110 § 30,016,490

Construction contracts were awarded for the Baker WTP and the Raw Water Pump Station in January 2014. Completion of the raw water
station is anticipated in June 2015 and completion of the WTP is anticipated for April 2016.

‘Number 2



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project
Fiscal Year 2015/16

Project Group Name: OCSD CORF and Equity

OCSD's Capital Outlay Revolving Fund (CORF) funds OCSD projects such as plant upgrades for
secondary treatment and the Groundwater Replenishment System (GWRS).

) Y
T P

0CSD CORF|

X - (8
| OCSD CORF and Equity
|
| ocspcons/ Bty T ——
|
2015 2016 2017
Year
Project Group Budget, Source of Funds, and Offset Summary
New Capital Replacement  Enh ment Total Comments
Total Budget $ 4,055,586 | $ - $ 18834414 |8 22,890,000
Existing Offsets $ - $ = $ = $ -
Potential Future Offsets $ - $ $ - $ -
Net Amounts $ 4,055.586 | $ - $ 18.834.414 | $ 22.890.000

Number 3

2018



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Fiscal Year 2015/16
jected Fu
Oracle No. Project Proj Total Dir FY15-16 Dir P’;’:’:’; Cigure  Expended (o Date
1552 JCSD CORF 14/15 8 3502000 § 705,000 § 2797000 §
1508 JCSD EQUITY 14/15 $ 6,546,000 $ 2,194,000 § 4352000 §
1554 JCSD CORF 15/16 $ 5988000 § 4,785,200 § 1202800 §
1516 JCSD EQUITY 15/16 $ 6,854,000 $ 4561.100 s 2292900 $
TOTAL § 22,890,000 § 12,245,300 § 10,644,700
Status
invoices IRWD on a quarterly basis for RWD's share of funding OCSD construction. IRWD will continue to pay a portion of the
on an annual basis.

FY 14/15 CORF payments, staff expects to pay 80% in FY14/15 and 20% in FY 15/16. For FY 15/16 CORF payments, staff expects to
80% in FY 15/16 and will carryover 20% to FY 16/17.

Number 3



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project
Fiscal Year 2015/16

Project Group Name: Water Banking

Water Banking projects provide IRWD with contingency water storage in Kem County to augment
[RWD supply during dry-year periods This group includes the following projects and features:

Interim Strand Ranch Recharge Project - 125 acres of recharge facilities

Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project - 502 acres of recharge facilities, 50,000 af of storage,

up to 40 cfs of recovery capacity

Strand Ranch - Cross Valley Canal Turnout Construction - Two 100 cfs turnouts

Cross Valley Canal Capacity Purchase - 5 cfs capacity

‘Water Bank Expansion - Purchase of Stockdale West Ranch (323 acres)

Jackson Ranch — 884 acres, 1749 AF Table A State Water Project entitlement, 9,495 AF minimum
storage and 6,330 AF annual recovery in Kern Water Bank

Stockdale West — 269 acres of recharge facilities constructed; CEQA, design and construct 3 future
recovery wells, pipelines and tur-in facilities

Strand Ranch Well Optimization & Monitoring Project - Lowering of pumps in Strand Ranch

to increase pumping at lower groundwater levels and install wellhead monitoring and remote telemetry
equipment for monitoring

Stockdale West Turnout Facilities Project - Design and construct one future 100 cfs turnout from
Cross Valley Canal to Stockdale West and Strand Ranch recharge basins

Rosedale Drought Relief Project Design and Well Const- Cost Share in the design and construction
of six joint use wells and conveyance facilities to increase recovety capacity by up to 16 cfs
Stockdale Storage for Recovery Capacity - Future long term lease of 50,000 AF of storage capacity

FY 2015/16 Key Milestones Date

Design Stockdale West wellhead equipping and conveyance facilities Jul-15

Design Stockdale West Turnout facilities Aug-15

Stockdale Storage for Recovery Capacity Aug-15

Rosedale Drought Relief Project Facilities wellhead design and construction Aug-15

Begin construction of three Stockdale West wells Sep-15

Begin construction of wellhead equipping and conveyance facilities Nov-15

Construct Stockdale West Tumout facilities Nov-15

Source of
New Capital Replacement

Total Budget $ 3,557,533 $
Existing Offsets $ $
Potential Future Offsets $ $
Net Amounts § 3557533 §%

Water Banking

Ketn Comnty

Orangs County

Water Banking Projects

Construct Stockdale West Wells
Construct Wellhead & Conv. Facilities

Construct Stockdale Turnout Facilitics

2014 2015 2016
Year
and Offset
Enhancement Total Comments
$ 14,780,267 $ 18,337,800
$ $
$ $
$ 14.780.267 $ 18.337.800

Number 4

2017



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Fiscal Year 2015/16
Oracle No. Project Proj Total Dir FY15-16 Dir P'}‘;‘x":z‘;ﬁ::" Expended to Date

5499 STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY CAPACITY 5 1,590,800 $ 10,500 § 1580300 $
6246 WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16 $ 115500 8§ 115500 § s
6145 STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES s 2,557,500 $ 126300 § 2431200 §
5500 WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16 8 484000 8 242,400 5 20979 § 31.804
3766 STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD EQUIPPING $ 4744900 8§ 1,377,600 s 2860413 § 506,887
6249 STOCKDALE WEST WELL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT s 2711500 § 1,804.500 § 907.000
6023 ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT FACILITIES s 6,133,600 § 3,407,800 2725800 §

TOTAL $ 18,337,800 § 7,084,600 § 10,714,508 $ 538,692

Status
EIR for Stockdale Integrated Banking Project (Stockdale West Wellhead Equipping)
three wells on Stockdale West property (Stockdale West Well Construction Project)
equipping for three wells, pipelines and turn-ins and begin construction on Stockdale West property (Stockdale West Wellhead Equipping)
lease of 50,000 AF storage from Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District and construct two wells as part of storage lease (Stockdale Storage for
Capacity)
in the Rosedale Drought Relief Project by completing design review to construct and equip six recovery wells and conveyance pipelines (Rosedale

to Stockdale and Strand Ranch recharge basins (Stockdale West Turnout Facilities)
long term program agreements with water banking partners (Water Banking Agreements)
potential water supply/exchenge opportunities, expand of Water Rights Inventory and additional property search (Water Banking Planning)

Number 4



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project
Fiscal Year 2015/16

Project Group Name: Planning Area 51 (Great Park Neighborhoods) Development

Project Deseription

The Fiscal Year 2015/16 development activities for the Planning Areas 30 and 51 include the
infrastructure required to support the Great Park Neighborhoods "District 1", “District 3", and
“District 4", The primary capital facilities planned for this year include:

"District 1" Pipelines: 12-inch domestic water pipelines, 12-inch and 18-inch sewer, and 6-inch to
16-inch recycled water pipelines throughout various "District 1" backbone streets,

"District 3" Pipelines: 12-inch domestic water pipelines, 18-inch sewer, and 10-inch to 16-inch
teeyeled water pipelines in future Marine Way and Alton Parkway.

"District 4" Pipelines: 12-inch domestie water pipelines, 12-inch sewer, and 6-inch to 12-inch

o PASOS PAST Facies
%08 PAS1 Faciies

Fiasaing drma 00 |

veled water pipelt ehout "District 47 ‘-
3 e
L - .;_“-‘_' : reoae :‘- ." A
‘_ ,a:"" i SO, '
FY 2015/16 Key Milestones Date Planning Area 51 o
"District 1" Pipelines Sep-15 1 -~ -
"District 3" Pipelines Sep-16 “"District 1" Pipelines | I==—T"1]
"District 4" Pipelines Sep-16 5 1
& "Diserict3" Pipelines I =——=—————=]
=
B 1
"District 4" Pipellnes | f_—————_ ——1
2014 2018 2016 2017
Year
Project Group Budget, Source of Funds, and Offset Summary
New Capital Replacement  Enhancement Total Comments
Total Budget $ 31,370,700 | $ - s - $ 31,370,700
Existing Offscts 3 - $ - s 3 .
Potential Fulure Offects 3 - $ - b - 3 -
Net Amounts $ 31370,700 | § - $ - $ 31.370.700

Number 5



Oracle No.

1103
1167
1466
1642
1977
3980
3583
4147
4153
4261

Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Fiscal Year 2015/16
Project Proj Total Dir

2A5| MASTER RW FACILITES s 4.893 000
SREAT PARK COORDINATION AND SAMP UPDATE $ 99,000
2A51 MASTER DW FACILITES H 5,680,500
A51 MASTER S8 FACILITEES 3 1,028,500
2A51 TRABUCO RD. SR133 TO LY STDW $ 156 200
2451 TRABUCO RD. SR133 TO LY ST SEWER H 161,700
2451 TRABUCO RD, SR133 TO LY STRW s 480,700
?AS| MARINE WAY RW ZNB $ 365,200
2A51 MARTNE WAY DW ZN3 $ 332,200
?A51 RIDGE VALLEY. TRABUCO TO IRVINE BLVD - DW $ 723800
PASI RIDGE VALLEY. TRABUCO TO IRVINE BLVD - 88 8 436700
PA51 RIDGE VALLEY, TRABUCO TO IRVINE BLVD - RW 3 194,700
PAS1 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO TRABUCO - SEWER s 1,064,800
PAS1 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO TRABUCO - DW § 486.200
PAS1 RIDGE VALLEY. MARINE WAY TO TRABUCO - RW s 464200
PAS1 LNSTFROMC STTO LY STDW 3 172.700
PA51 LNSTFROM C STTO LY STRW s 105,600
PAS1 C STFROM LQ ST TO O ST DW 3 6 70
PAS51 C STFROMLO ST TO O STRW $ 266200
PAS1 LY ST FROM TRABUCO RD TO LO STRW b3 205,700
PAS1LQ STFROM O STTO LY ST SEWER $ 255,200
PA51 LQ STFROM O STTOLY STRW $ 78,100
PA5S1LY STFROM LQ ST TO RVINE BLVD DW $ 51700
PAS) LY STFROM LO ST TO RVINE BLVD SEWER § 1662200
PAS1LY STFROMLO ST TO RVINE BLVD RW s 938 300
PAS1 C ST FROM TRABUCO RD TO LQ ST SEWER $ 403,760
PASI LV STFROM RIDGE VALLEY TOLY ST 18" SEWER 5 310,200
PA5L LV STFROM RIDGE VALLEY TOLY ST 12" RW 5 321200
PA51 C STFROM LV 8T TO TRABUCO SEWER $ 370,700
PAS1 LQ STFROM BOSQUE TO Z ST 12" SEWER. $ 1,510 200
PAS1 LQ STFROM BOSQUE TO Z ST 12 RW $ 383,900
PAS? “B" ST FROM SOCIABLE TO [RVINE BLV 12" ZN 4 $ 176 000
PAS! "B" ST FROM SOCIABLE TO [RVINE BLV 16" ZNC % 240 900
PA5] SOCIABLE STFROM Z TO B ST 12" & 16" ZONE B EY 240900
PA51 ALTON PKWY 8§ RELOCATION 12" AND 18" by 1,832,300
’A51 ALTON. TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS 12’ DW 5 177100
PAS] ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS 5§ RELOCATION $ 3
PA51 ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS 16" RW b3 3H,300
PASY IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 12 DW 3 34,100
PAS1 IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 16" 88 S 28.600
PA51 IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 20" RW b 609400
PAS] MARINE WAY, ALTON TO BARRANCA 18" SS S 1,424,500
PAS1 MARINE WAY FROM ALTON TO BARRANCA 12" DW ZN 3 s 238 700
’A51 MARINE WAY, ALTON TO BARRANCA 16" RW ZN B 5 281 600
>A-51 MARINE WAY: S8R133 TO RIDGE VALLEY 12" ZONE 3 $ 162.800
>A-51 MARINE WAY: SR133 TO RIDGE VALLEY 6" ZONE B 3 162,800
PA 51 BENCHMARK, BOSQUE TO 550'E/O BOSQUE 12" Z4R $ 162 800
PA 51 BENCHMARK. BOSOUE TO 550°E/Q BOSOUE §" ZC $ 162 800

Status

1n backbone sireets is scheduled to be complete in September 2015. Construction of "District 3" and

I R I B R I I I I )

I R I R L R B I

FY15-16 Dir

1500
11,200
1,800
300
3300
3600
12,100
206,900
192,200
35.400
21300
9,400
50,000
39 500
38,600
11,800
6,900
10,500
18300
15,600
17,000
5,100
3.100
134 900
73,000
16,500
20,100
20.900
24,400
647,000
226,700
125.000
176,300
137,400
1,321,800
103 300
819100
207,000
19,000
15300
346 600
911,200
187,100
223,300
113 100
300
300
113 100

4 scheduled to be complete in September 2016.

0 P @B om o e & » IR

» E )

-

3

P L R )

Projocted Future

Fxnen

re
4 891 500
77945
5678 700
1,028,200
49361
9040
154238
158 300
140,000
92 7N7
106 709
181 891
311,981
192 NR9
425 600
017
96 468
45,515
145 458
190100
51486
72,657
21967
710227
865300
198,833
88,854
1134
315874
863300
157200
S1.000
64600
103 500
510,500
73 H00
507.200
137.300
15100
13300
262800
313300
51.600
58,300
49 700
49.700
49.700
49,700

A I N N

L I S R R R N I S

Y

@ o

R R R R I

Expended to Date

9855

103539
119059
314362

595 683
308.691

3409
702.819
254 611

130.783

2232
105,685
102 442

186.714
343
27633
817.073

188,367
201,248
18% 94§

426

Number 5



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project
Fiscal Year 2015/16

Project Group Name: Peters Canyon Channel Water Capture and Reuse Pipeline

County of Orange, Orange County Flood Control District (OC Flood), City of Irvine, City of
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), and Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD)
collectively proceeding with the Peters Canyon Channel Wash Water Capture and Reuse Pipeline
for the disposal of Peters Canyon Channel flows that contain high nitrate and selenium
The purpose of the project is to divert these high selenium nuisance flows from
locations within the Cities of Irvine and Tustin and to deliver these flows to the Orange
Sanitation District’s (OCSD) sewer system for treatment and reuse. The project begins at the
Caltrans Groundwater Treatment Facility on Walnut, with three diversion structures along
pipeline alignment at Como Channel, Edinger, and Moffett Ave., ultimately connecting to the
IRWD sewer that discharges to an OCSD trunk sewer in Main Street. Per the cooperative
among the project partners executed on December 12, 2013, IRWD will be reimbursed for
capital costs during design and construction IRWD will have responsibility for operation and
of the completed project for the term of the agreement and will contribute annual
and maintenance costs up to a maximum amount of $60,000 per year

FY 2015/16 Key Milestones Date
Notice to Proceed - Construction Jun-15
Construction Complete Aug-16
New Capital
Total Budget $ 1,941,826
Existing Offsets $ (1,941,826
Potential Future Offsets $
Net Amounts $ 0

5
amcrer
T S
Peters Canyon Construction
b3
<
=
By
2015 2016
Year
Source of and Offset
Replacement  Enhancement Total Comments

$ 9017974 § 10,959,800
$ (9,017,974) $ (10,959,800)
$ $

@ s n A

$ $

Number 6

2017



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Fiscal Year 2015/16
Oracle No. Project Proj Total Dir FYI5-16 Dir P’;"’md Future  Expended to Date
xpenditure
4985 PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE s 10,959,800 § 5438200 § 4604271 § 917,330
TOTAL $ 10,959,800 § 5438200 § 4604271 8 917,330

Status
project was advertised for bids February 9, 2015, and bids were opened March 12, 2015. The construction Notice of Award was issued
2015. The construction duration is 450 calendar days, and construction completion is anticipated for August, 2016.

Number 6



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Project Group Name: Annual Distribution System Repair and Rehabilitation

Fiscal Year 2015/16

This series of projects is used for system repair and replacement projects, Examples of these projects include
pipeline repairs, distribution system valve replacements, and treatment plant equipment repairs

Sewer Collection System

Q ——————e—
172}
<
i Recycled Water System ] I
‘ Potable Water System /V-"—7————
| 2015 2016 2017
| Year |
Project Group Budget, Source of Funds, and Offset Summary
New Capital Repl t Enh ment Total Comments
Total Budget $ - $ 3,697,600 | $ - 3 3,697,600
Existing Offsets $ - $ - $ $ -
Potential Future Offsets $ $ - $ 3 -
Net Amounts $ - $ 3,697,600 | $ - $  3,697.600
Number 7



Oracle No.
4418
4423
4430
4433
5468
5477
5491

Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Project
LAWRP SYSTEM REPLACEMENTS 15/16
MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - DW 15/16
MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - RW 15/16
MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - SEWER 15/16
SERVICE LINE, VALVE & MAIN REPLACEMENT-DW 15/16
SERVICE LINE, VALVE & MAIN REPLACEMENT-RW 15/16
SEWER LATERAL & MAIN REPLACEMENT 15/16

Status

Fiscal Year 2015/16

Proj Total Dir

T I B T R ]

TOTAL

132,000
660,000
484,000
440,000

1,246,900
515,800
218,900

3,607,600

series of projects are ongoing and are budgeted for on an annual basis.

W A B P B AW »

FY15-16 Dir

132,000
660,000
484,000
440,000
1,246,900
515,800
218,900
3,697,600

LI I B - I IS T )

Projected Future
Exnenditure

[ TR R I I I ]

Expended to Date

‘Number 7



Project Group Name: Business Software

Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project
Fiscal Year 2015/16

Project Description 1 l Oracle and Software Replacement
e o e 1 -
The ID Consolidation Project Accounting implementation will focus on implementing changes to the Oracle Oratnier 473 ¥ !,:_ — ]
Financial system to accomodate the recent consolidation of Improvement Districts (ID's) and simplify the project { e z - | e =y -
accounting structure. The changes will include implementing the Project Management software module 3 at
The Business Intelligence Software Upgrade will focus on upgrading the system used for data analytics and ELLLEEL LR ~ >
reporting. Both the Oracle Financial and Customer Care and Billing systems use the Business Intelligence system, it .
i® m TeRresemery Diaviier VEY
The Enterprise Asset Management software (EAMS) implementations will focus on upgrading the many system -
currently used to track and maintain District assets. Activties during the next fiscal year will be focused on the pre- - i
implementation phase and include asset management strategic planning, EAMS enterprise standards, asset data x &e
definition, asset criticality rating, data collection, business process development, staffing analysis, and performance
metrics I 'S o]
18 - R el \masavamens OIaTsIer 130
.- o tmpisvement Y
- b ) / Owspeimy 179 4
FY 2015/16 Key Milestones Date Business Software Replacement o
Begin ID Consolidation & Project Accounting Implementation Jul-15 -
ID Consolidation Project Accounting Completion Dec-17 Enterprise Asset Management Implementation ==
Begin Business Intelligemce Software Upgrade Jul-15 °
Business Intelligence Software Upgrade Completion Dec-16 &  Business Intelligence Software Upgrade i—————
Begin Enterprise Asset Management Implementation Jun-16 i [
Enterprise Asset Management Completion Dec-17 ID Consolidation and Project Accounting [———
Implementation
2615 2016 2017 2618
Year
Project Group Budget, Source of Funds, and Offset Summary
New Capital Replacement  Enhancement Total Comments
Total Budget $ 902,740 | $ 2,761,000 | $ 3,961,460 | $ 7,625,200
Existing Offsets $ - $ - $ - $ -
Potential Future Offsets $ - $ - $ - $ -
Net Amounts 3 902,740 | $ 2,761,000 | $  3.961,460 | $ 7,625,200

Number 8



Oracle No.

3566
3567
43%4
4395
6181
6184

Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Fiscal Year 2015/16
Project Proj Total Dir

ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION s 2,432,100
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION $ 2,432,100
ID CONSOLIDATION PROJECT ACCOUNTING IMPLEMENTATION ~ § 1,254,000
'D CONSOLIDATION PROJECT ACCOUNTING IMPLEMENTATION ~ § 1,254,000
3USINESS INTELLIGENCE SOFTWARE UPGRADE $ 126,500
BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE SOFTWARE UPGRADE [ 126,500
TOTAL § 7,625,200

Status

FY15-16 Dir

473,300
473,300
501,600
501,600

84,200
84,200
2,118,200

Projected Future
Exnenditure

741710
1.832,99
752.400
752.400
42300
42,300
5,164,106

L I I - B I

Expended to Date

217.090
125,804

342,894

Enterprice Assett Management software implementation is currently in the pre-implmentation phase with an anticipated completion date of

2016

ID Consolidation and Project Accounting implermnentation is currently scheduled to start in July 2015 with an anticipated completion date of approximately

2017

Business Intelligence Software Upgrade is currently scheduled to start in July 2015 with an anticipated completion date of approximately December 2016

‘Number 8



Project Group Name: Irvine Lake Pipeline North Conversion

Project Description

Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Fiscal Year 2015/16

pump station (BPS).

The project includes converting the northern portion of the Irvine Lake Pipeline (ILP) from untreated
water to recycled water through the construction of a new Zone C+ Reservoir and associated
facilities. The project also includes modifications at the Rattlesnake Complex and Zone A-C booster

The project is being designed and constructed under two separate projects. One project will design
and construct the proposed Zone C+ reservoir and the modifications at the Rattlesnake Complex and
the Zone A-C BPS. A second project will design and construct the offsite pipelines primarily
consisting of the reservoir inlet and outlet piping. Both projects are being executed in parallel.

FY 2015/16 Key Milestones Date ILP North Conversion Project '
Design complete December-15 1 : —— — — ‘
Advertise for bidding January-16 Reservoir Design I_ |
Bid opening Febuangl6 @ Reservoir Construction | b
Construction award March-16 ] | |
Construction complete May-17 = Pipcline Deign —
Pipeline Construction i=———7——————] |
2015 2016 2017 2018
Year [
Project Group Budget, Source of Funds, and Offset Summary
New Capital Replacement  Enhancement Total Comments
Total Budget $ 3,622,047 | § - $ 9,981,053 | § 13,603,100
Existing Offsets $ - $ - $ - $ -
Potential Future Offsets $ - $ $ - $ -
Net Amounts $ 3,622,047 | § - $ 9,981,053 | $§ 13,603,100
Number 9



Oracle No.

5823
5407

Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Fiscal Year 2015/16
Project Proj Total Dir FY15-16 Dir P';’ij‘:::d;h‘l’r"e"e Expended to Date
(LP NORTH CONVERSION - PIPELINES 5 7494600 S 724900 s 6766749 $ 2951
[LPNORTH CONVERSION - RESERVOIR $ 6,108500 § 703,800 § 534018 $ 64514
TOTAL § 13,603,100 § 1,428,700 S 12,106935 § 67,465

Status

contracts were awarded for the design of the reservoir and pipelines in November 2014. Design completion for both the reservoir and

is scheduled for December 2015.

Number 9



Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Project Group Name: Rattlesnake Sodium Hypochlorite Storage and Feed

Fiscal Year 2015/16

|Non-potable water discharged from the Rattlesnake Reservoir is disinfected at the
[Rattlesnake Chlorination Facility to control biological growth in the recycled water
|distribution system and to control odors downstream of the Zone A North tank. This
|project will replace the existing chlorine gas system and related appurtenances with
Isodium hypochlorite storage and feed facilities.

FY 2015/16 Key Milestones
Construction complete

Project Group Budget, Source of Funds, and Offset Summary

Date
December-15

Sodium Hypochlorite
Implementation

Rattlesnake Sodium Hypochlorite Storage and Feed

Rattlesnake Sodium Hypochlorite Storage
and Feed

2014

2015

Year

New Capital Repl t _Enh t Total Comments
Total Budget $ 647,267 | $ - $ 1,783,633 | $ 2,430,900
Existing Offsets $ - $ $ - $ -
Potential Future Offsets $ - $ - $ - $ -
Net Amounts $ 647,267 | $ - $ 1,783,633 | § 2,430,900

2016




Irvine Ranch Water District
Capital Improvement Project

Fiscal Year 2015/16
j E:
Oradle No. Project Proj Total Dir FY15-16 Dir Froete pore Kxpeaded fo Date
4959 RATTLESNAKE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE ANDFEED  § 2430900 § 1,403,800 § 709068 $ 318032
TOTAL § 2,430,900 S 1,403,800 S 709,068 § 318,082

Construction completion is scheduled for December 2015

Number 10



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2015/16
Water Improvement District (ID) Allocation

Improvement District (ID) Allocation - % of Project Budget

EBS EPMS Project Title Fiscal Year Total Direct Split 101 110 112 113 125 153 154 185 188
No. No. Direct Description

1038 11378 TUSTIN LEGACY MASTER DW FACILITIES $500 $1,495,200 Local 100.0%

1047 11379 TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH ROAD $1,400 $990,900 Local 100.0%

1181 11560 LAKE FOREST DW OFFSITE $700 $962,500 Regional 32.6% 3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1% 0.4% 1.6% 0.5%
1189 11562 LAKE FOREST DW OPPORTUNITY AREAS $2,400 $3,686,600 Local 100.0%

1264 11116 ASSET OPTIMIZATION - LAKE FOREST $887,300 $6,500,000 Replacement  100.0%

1336 11598 HQ LIGHTING RETROFIT & CEILING $45,400 $225,000 Replacement  100.0%

1346 11605 PA40 PH2 DW FACILITIES $300 $238,700 Local 100.0%

1354 11613 PA1 16" Z5 PIPE, 5-4 PRVS $11,000 $1,237,500 Local 100.0%

1363 11275 OCWD ANNEXATION FEE 15/16 $439,400 $439,400 Regional 32.6% 3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1% 0.4% 1.6% 0.5%
1402 15051 WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT $10,600 $133,100 Regional 32.6% 3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1% 0.4% 1.6% 0.5%
1414 11434 SAND CANYON 16" DW PIPELINE $1,700 $243,100 Replacement  100.0%

1437 10394 DATS & WELL 77 LEASE PAYMENT $37,100 $487,200 Regional 32.6% 3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1% 0.4% 1.6% 0.5%
1466 19411 PAS1 MASTER DW FACILITIES $1,800 $5,680,500 Sub-Regional 77.7% 22.3%

1520 11469 GREAT PARK COORDINATION AND $11,200 $99,000 Local 100.0%

1798 10517 LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND $66,300 $319,000 Replacement  100.0%

1804 11057 ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 $198,000 $198,000 Regional 32.6% 3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1% 0.4% 1.6% 0.5%
3566 11619 ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE $473,300 $2,432,100 Regional 32.6% 3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1% 0.4% 1.6% 0.5%
3766 11645 STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD $1,377,600 $4,744,900 Regional 32.6% 3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1% 0.4% 1.6% 0.5%
3977 11660 PAS1 TRABUCO RD, SR133 TO LY ST DW $3,300 $156,200 Local 100.0%

4130 11665 SJM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD $1,000 $369,600 Regional 50.0% 16.3% 1.7% 1.5% 23.8% 5.6% 0.2% 0.8% 0.3%
4153 11668 PAS51 MARINE WAY DW ZN3 $192,200 $332,200 Local 100.0%

B-3



EBS
No.

4261

4268

4327

4366

4387

4394

4401

4409

4423

4441

4510

4512

4620

4645

4650

4680

4988

5027

5243

5297

5338

5404

5405

5406

EPMS
No.

11671

11673

11672

11714

11697

11711

11679

11687

11704

11692

11716

11717

11719

11721

11723

11739

11746

11747

30501

11698

11797

11791

11785

11779

Project Title

PA51 RIDGE VALLEY, TRABUCO TO
PA51 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO
DRWF WELL NO. 3 REHAB

TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH,

GEN SYS MODS-DW 15/16

ID CONSOLIDATION PROJECT

WELL REHAB NO. 2 (DW)
CHLORAMINE BOOSTER STATIONS AT
MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - DW
WELL MAINTENANCE AND

TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER - LEGACY TO
PASB PHASE 1A 12" ZONE 3 DW

PAS51 LN ST FROM CSTTO LY ST DW
PA51 C ST FROM LQ ST TO O ST DW
PAS51 LY ST FROM LQ ST TO IRVINE
PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 12" DW
TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER FROM
BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT
PA6 NEIGHBORHOOD 4B 6" RW ZONE
RAISE DW SYSTEM VALVES 15/16
MARSH MITIGATION CREDIT

LAKE FOREST Z2-2RA PRV AT

EL MODENA NTS POND INFILTRATION

EL MODENA INLET MODIFICATION

Fiscal Year
Direct

$35,400
$39,500
$387,400
$800
$190,300
$501,600
$228,700
$1,089,500
$660,000
$165,000
$400
$27,900
$11,800
$10,500
$3,100
$900
$10,700
$38,868,400
$288,700
$115,500
$17,000
$59,200
$1,000

$1,000

Total Direct

$723,300
$486,200
$401,500
$343,200
$190,300
$1,254,000
$401,500
$2,501,200
$660,000
$165,000
$196,500
$132,000
$172,700
$161,700
$51,700
$315,700

$60,500

$96,852,000

$526,900
$115,500
$36,300
$337,700
$321,200

$156,200

Split
Description

Local
Local
Replacement
Local
Regional
Replacement
Replacement
Regional
Replacement
Replacement
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Regional
Local
Replacement
Regional
Local
Regional

Regional

B-34

101

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

110

32.6%

32.6%

32.6%

32.6%

32.6%

32.6%

112 113 125 153
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1%
3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1%
100.0%
3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1%
3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1%
3.3% 3.0% 47.5% 11.1%

154

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

185

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

100.0%

1.6%

1.6%

188

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%



EBS
No.

5410

5411

5433

5436

5443

5453

5468

5473

5484

5493

5494

5499

5500

5519

5756

5761

5816

6013

6016

6023

6086

6109

6121

EPMS
No.

11755

11787

11789

11796

11781

11752

11702

11754

11699

11694

11696

11765

11764

11801

11804

11805

11806

11808

11809

11812

11814

11842

11866

11879

Project Title

COASTAL ZN2 PRV MODIFICATION
COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS MOTOR
GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 -
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 DW
PORTABLE DIESEL GENERATOR

WELLS 12 AND 13 ROOF HATCHES
SERVICE LINE, VALVE & MAIN

WELLS 11 AND 15 SURGE TANK
RESIDENTIAL METER REPLACEMENT-
1" TO 2" METER REPLACEMENT-DW
CSR METER REPLACEMENT-DW 15/16
STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY
WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16
EAST IRVINE ZONE 1 TO 3 BPS

PA51 "B" ST FROM SOCIABLE TO
ZONE 1 RESERVOIR INTERIOR

PA51 ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO
WATER SUPPLY AND SYSTEM

PAS51 IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 12"
ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT
2015 IRVINE ANNUAL ST REHAB, DW
PA51 MARINE WAY FROM ALTON TO
TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE & MOFFETT

VAULT LID REPLACEMENT - DW

Fiscal Year Total Direct
Direct
$2,000 $187,100
$34,700 $68,800
$60,000 $60,000
$44,000 $44,000
$293,900 $880,000
$282,200 $340,500
$1,246,900 $1,246,900
$304,300 $627,600
$336,600 $336,600
$139,000 $139,000
$213,200 $213,200
$10,500 $1,590,800
$242,400 $484,000
$168,200 $198,600
$125,000 $176,000
$500 $2,748,500
$103,300 $177,100
$228,200 $496,900
$19,000 $34,100
$3,407,800 $6,133,600
$431,200 $431,200
$187,100 $238,700
$58,700 $162,800
$3,300 $315,200

Split 101 110
Description
Local
Regional 32.6%
Regional 32.6%
Regional 32.6%
Replacement  100.0%
Replacement  100.0%
Replacement  100.0%
Replacement  100.0%
Replacement  100.0%
Replacement  100.0%
Replacement  100.0%
Regional 32.6%
Regional 32.6%
Replacement  100.0%
Local
Replacement  100.0%
Local
Regional 32.6%
Local
Regional 32.6%
Replacement  100.0%
Local
Local
Replacement  100.0%

B-35

112

3.3%

3.3%

3.3%

3.3%

3.3%

100.0%

100.0%

3.3%

100.0%

3.3%

100.0%

113

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

100.0%

125

100.0%

47.5%

47.5%

47.5%

47.5%

47.5%

47.5%

47.5%

153

11.1%

11.1%

11.1%

11.1%

11.1%

11.1%

11.1%

154

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

185

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

188

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%



EBS
No.

6145

6158

6160

6165

6166

6168

6171

6181

6208

6210

6212

6213

6214

6215

6246

6249

6304

6398

6401

EPMS
No.

11875

11884

11849

11882

11877

11878

11819

11889

11887

11885

11876

11838

11839

11881

11867

11874

11890

11886

11891

Project Title

STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES
TURTLE ROCK ZONE 3-4 BOOSTER
CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT
DRWF SURGE TANKS

NTS SEDIMENT REMOVAL

SAN JOAQUIN MARSH IMPROVEMENTS
WELLS 76 & 77 PUMP/MOTOR
BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE SOFTWARE
PA-51 MARINE WAY: SR133 TO RIDGE
ASSET OPTIMIZATION - SAND CANYON
NTS INFILTRATION STUDY

IDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE
PDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

TUSTIN LEGACY REDHILL WELL

WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16
STOCKDALE WEST WELL

PA 51 BENCHMARK, BOSQUE TO
NEWPORT COAST JOINT BONDING

ZONE 1 RESERVOIR

Total

Fiscal Year
Direct

$126,300
$189,200
$1,800
$1,700
$7,300
$13,200
$275,400
$84,200
$113,100
$59,600
$64,900
$166,400
$4,200
$269,500
$115,500
$1,804,500
$113,100
$148,300

$210,700

$58,187,700

Total Direct

$2,557,500
$2,747,900
$170,000
$198,600
$365,200
$541,200
$550,000
$126,500
$162,800
$17,624,300
$64,900
$1,905,900
$2,430,900
$269,500
$115,500
$2,711,500
$162,800
$148,300

$316,300

$188,035,200

Split
Description

Regional
Replacement
Regional
Regional
Replacement
Regional
Replacement
Replacement
Local
Replacement
Regional
Regional
Regional
Local
Regional
Regional
Ltocal
Local

Regional

101

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

$7.1

110

32.6%

32.6%

32.6%

32.6%

32.6%
32.6%

32.6%

32.6%

32.6%

32.6%

$16.1

112 113
3.3% 3.0%
3.3% 3.0%

3.3% 3.0%

3.3% 3.0%

100.0%
3.3% 3.0%
3.3% 3.0%
3.3% 3.0%
100.0%
3.3% 3.0%
3.3% 3.0%
100.0%
3.3% 3.0%
$2.6 S1.8

125

47.5%

47.5%

47.5%

47.5%

47.5%
47.5%

47.5%

47.5%

47.5%

100.0%

47.5%

$235

153

11.1%

11.1%

11.1%

11.1%

11.1%
11.1%

11.1%

11.1%

11.1%

11.1%

$5.8

154

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%
0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

0.4%

$0.2

185

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%
1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

1.6%

$0.8

188

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%
0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

$0.2



EBS
No.

4267

4648

4653

4824

5016

5535

5788

6010

6048

6400

1062

1066

1167

1436

1445

3980

4263

4651

5817

6017

6110

1716

1722

EPMS
No.

21141

21156

21158

21159

21165

21213

21216

21217

21219

21287

21378

21379

21469

21560

21562

21660

21671

21723

21806

21809

21866

30245

30246

Project Title

PA51 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO
PAS51LQ ST FROM O ST TO LY ST SEWER
PA51 C ST FROM TRABUCO RD TO LQ ST
PAS51 LV ST FROM RIDGE VALLEY TO LY ST
PA51 C ST FROM LV ST TO TRABUCO SEWER
PA51LQ ST FROM BOSQUETO Z ST 12"
PA51 ALTON PKWY SS RELOCATION 12" AND
TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE FROM JAMBOREE
PA51 MARINE WAY, ALTON TO BARRANCA
NEWPORT COAST SLS IMPROVEMENTS
TUSTIN LEGACY MASTER SEWER FACILITIES
TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH ROAD
GREAT PARK COORDINATION AND SAMP
LAKE FOREST SEWER OFFSITE

LAKE FOREST SEWER OPPORTUNITY AREAS
PA51 TRABUCO RD, SR133 TO LY ST SEWER
PAS51 RIDGE VALLEY, TRABUCO TO IRVINE
PAS1 LY ST FROM LQ ST TO IRVINE BLVD
PA51 ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS
PAS1 IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 16" S5
TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE & MOFFETT DR
PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NEIGHBORHOOD 3

PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NEIGHBORHOOD 4

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Fiscal Year 2015/16

Sewer Improvement District (ID) Allocation

Fiscal Year
Direct

$50,000
$17,000
$16,500
$20,100
$24,400
$647,000
$1,321,800
$36,700
$911,200
$291,100
$400
$1,600
$11,200
$1,400
$900
$3,600
$21,300
$134,900
$819,100
$15,300
$58,700
$2,700

$16,400

Improvement District (ID) Allocation - % of Project Budget

Total Direct Split 201 210 212 213 225 240 253 256 285
Description
$1,064,800 Local 100.0
$255,200 Local 100.0
$403,700 Local 100.0
$310,200 Local 100.0
$370,700 Local 100.0
$1,510,300 Local 100.0
$1,832,300 Local 100.0
$64,900 Local 100.0
$1,424,500 Local 100.0
$574,200 Local 100.0
$1,115,400 Local 100.0
$1,090,400 Local 100.0
$99,000 Local 100.0
$3,280,200 Local 100.0
$1,647,800 Local 100.0
$161,700 Local 100.0
$436,700 Local 100.0
$1,662,200 Local 100.0
$1,326,300 Local 100.0
$28,600 Local 100.0
$162,800 Local 100.0
$326,700 Local 100.0
$566,500 Local 100.0

B-37

288



EBS
No.

1762

4147

4278

4318

4515

4528

4557

4647

4717

4753

1056

4984

43990

5758

5763

5785

5919

6056

6470

1308

4649

4825

5536

1101

3435

1517

1229

EPMS
No.

30280

30388

30394

30416

30421

30424

30426

30427

30428

30430

30445

30447

30449

30503

30508

30512

30516

30534

30573

30797

31156

31159

31213

31378

31379

31562

31605

Project Title

PA9B PHASE 5 GATEWAY PARK RW PIPES
PA51 MARINE WAY RW ZNB

PA51 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO

PA40 PH3B RW CAPITAL FACILITIES

PASB IRVINE BLVD 8" ZONE B RW

PA40 NEIGHBORHOOD 2G BACKBONE RW
PA6 PHASE 1 NEIGHBORHOOD 3 ZONE C RW
PA51 LY ST FROM TRABUCO RD TO LQ ST RW
PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NH 2 - 6" ZNB & 6" ZNC
PASB PHASE 2 6" RW

PA39 PHASE 1 RW PIPELINES

TUSTIN LEGACY ARMSTRONG ZONE A &

PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NEIGHBORHOOD 2, 6"
PA51 SOCIABLE ST FROM Z TO B ST 12" & 16"
PA6 NEIGHBORHOOD 5A RW ZONE D
TUSTIN LEGACY BARRANCA FROM

PA1 ORCHARD HILLS, NEIGHBORHOOD 1, 16"
PA40 8TH ST RIDGE VALLEY TO C ST CAPITAL
LAKE FOREST RW OPP AREA ZONE C

PA6 RW PIPELINES

PAS1LQ ST FROM O ST TO LY ST RW

PA51 LV ST FROM RIDGE VALLEY TO LY ST
PA51 LQ ST FROM BOSQUE TO Z ST 12" RW
TUSTIN LEGACY MASTER RW FACILITIES
TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH ROAD

LAKE FOREST RW OPPORTUNITY AREAS

PA40 PH2 RW FACILITIES

Fiscal Year
Direct

$6,400
$206,900
$38,600
$300
$83,300
$200
$133,800
$15,600
$800
$38,600
$200
$133,500
$500
$137,400
$76,700
$247,000
$185,200
$109,100
$800
$300
$5,100
$20,900
$226,700
$600
$1,800
$1,400

$300

Total Direct

$506,100
$365,200
$464,200
$165,000
$100,100
$108,900
$315,700
$205,700
$238,700
$57,200
$180,400
$773,300
$84,700
$240,900
$132,000
$344,300
$294,300
$136,400
$997,800
$620,500
$78,100
$321,200
$383,900
$1,544,900
$1,210,700

$2,137,900

Split
Description

Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local

Local

$216,7OOB -38 Local

201 210 212 213 225 240

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

253

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

256

285

100.0

100.0

288



EBS
No.

3735

3983

4264

4368

4511

4513

4621

4646

4652

4681

4989

5757

5818

6018

6087

6111

6399

6209

6306

1552

1554

1508

1516

1420

1377

4286

45985

EPMS
No.

31640

31660

31671

31714

31716

31717

31719

31721

31723

31739

31746

31804

31806

31809

31842

31866

31886

31887

31890

20115

20116

20589

20593

20813

21057

21146

21163

Project Title

PA39 PH2 RW FACILITIES

PA51 TRABUCO RD, SR133 TO LY ST RW
PAS51 RIDGE VALLEY, TRABUCO TO IRVINE
TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH, BARRANCA,
TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER - LEGACY TO
PASB PHASE 1A AND 1B 6" & 8" RW

PA51 LN ST FROM C ST TO LY ST RW

PA51 CSTFROM LQ ST TO O ST RW

PA51 LY ST FROM LQ ST TO IRVINE BLVD RW
PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 6" & 8" RW
TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER FROM

PA51 "B" ST FROM SOCIABLE TO IRVINE BLV
PA51 ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS
PAS1 IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 20" RW
PAS1 MARINE WAY, ALTON TO BARRANCA
TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE & MOFFETT DR
NEWPORT COAST JOINT BONDING PHASE 2
PA-51 MARINE WAY: SR133 TO RIDGE

PA 51 BENCHMARK, BOSQUE TO 550'E/O
OCSD CORF 14/15

OCSD CORF 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 14/15

OCSD EQUITY 15/16

OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16
MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY

PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND

Fiscal Year
Direct

$3,600
$12,100
$9,400
$1,600
$500
$156,500
$6,900
$18,300
$73,000
$900
$47,100
$176,300
$207,000
$346,600
$223,300
$58,700
$80,500
$113,100
$113,100
$705,000
$4,785,200
$2,194,000
$4,561,100
$1,391,000
$171,600
$52,512,700

$5,438,200

Total Direct

$226,600
$480,700
$194,700
$689,700
$207,900
$298,200
$105,600
$266,200
$938,300
$315,700
$282,700
$240,500
$344,300
$609,400
$281,600
$162,800
$80,500
$162,800
$162,800
$3,502,000
$5,988,000
$6,546,000
$6,854,000
$1,391,000
$171,600

$196,465,500

Split
Description

Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Local
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional

Regional

$10,959,8(B 3gegiona|

201

57.1

57.1

210

33.1

33.1

33.1

14.2

33.1

14.2

33.1

212

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

34

34

34

3.4

1.5

3.4

15

3.4

213 225 240 253 256 285

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
34 48.5 9.6 0.3 13
34 48.5 9.6 0.3 13
34 48.5 9.6 0.3 13
34 48.5 9.6 0.3 13
15 20.8 4.1 0.1 0.6
34 48.5 9.6 0.3 13
1.5 20.8 4.1 0.1 0.6
34 48.5 9.6 0.3 13

288

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.3

0.1

0.3



EBS
No.

5186

5427

5409

6167

6402

3567

5412

5435

5438

6204

6161

1813

1015

3808

4388

4396

4514

4959

5154

5168

5407

5823

1096

6242

6243

6244

6298

EPMS
No.

21170

21188

21191

21234

21288

21619

21748

21789

21796

21826

21849

30331

30366

30382

30408

30415

30420

30435

30461

30487

30496

30513

30517

30560

30561

30569

30572

Project Title

SJM SLS UPGRADE

WATER RECYCLING PLANT MASTER PLAN
OPS DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
OPS CENTER PERMANENT GENERATOR
MBR BLOWER ROOM SAFETY PLATFORM
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE
SCSMP UPDATE AND LONG-TERM FLOW
GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - SEWER
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 SEWER

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 16/17 - SEWER
CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP
SANTIAGO DAM & OUTLET TWR SEISMIC
TECHNOLOGY DR AND LAGUNA CANYON RD
SYPHON RESERVOIR EXPANSION

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE A TO
CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR GAP PIPE
PASB PHASE 1A AND 1B 36" RW
RATTLESNAKE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

SJR SEISMIC EVALUATION (DSOD)

PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 36" RW PIPELINE
ILP NORTH CONVERSION - RESERVOIR

ILP NORTH CONVERSION - PIPELINES

LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS
RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 15/16
RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 16/17
RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 17/18

PIEZOMETER ACCESS AT RATTLESNAKE

Fiscal Year
Direct

$1,200
$202,800
$173,700
$3,400
$11,100
$473,300
$578,400
$60,000
$44,000
$60,000
$1,800
$86,400
$3,400
$88,100
$90,100
$58,800
$414,900
$1,403,800
$1,100
$6,200
$703,800
$724,900
$22,900
$82,500
$82,500
$82,500

$4,400

Total Direct

$153,500
$550,000
$346,500
$618,800
$144,000
$2,432,100
$1,155,000
$60,000
$44,000
$60,000
$170,000
$282,700
$3,223,500
$60,169,200
$2,989,500
$352,000
$1,769,400
$2,430,900
$150,700
$2,103,200
$6,108,500
$7,494,600
$168,300
$82,500
$82,500

$82,500

Split

Description

Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional

Regional

$242,IOOB _ 46egional

210

33.1

331

33.1

33.1

33.1

33.1

33.1

33.1

33.1

33.1

33.1

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

14.6

33.1

212

34

34

34

34

34

3.4

34

34

34

3.4

34

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

10.7

34

213

34

3.4

34

3.4

3.4

3.4

34

3.4

34

34

34

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

3.4

225

48.5

48.5

43.5

48.5

48.5

48.5

48.5

48.5

48.5

48.5

48.5

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

48.5

240

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

7.7

253

9.6

9.6

9.6

9.6

9.6

9.6

9.6

9.6

9.6

9.6

9.6

10.3

10.3

10.3

103

10.3

10.3

10.3

10.3

10.3

10.3

10.3

10.3

10.3

10.3

103

9.6

256

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

285

13

1.3

1.3

13

13

1.3

13

13

13

13

13

15

15

1.5

15

1.5

1.5

15

15

15

15

1.5

1.5

1.5

15

15

13

288

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

03



EBS
No.

1611

5486

5434

5437

4439

4418

3750

4467

5491

5469

5470

5450

5456

5174

5448

5301

5520

6067

1549

4433

4395

5445

6053

6122

6184

3780

4328

EPMS
No.

31057

31697

31789

31796

20915

21011

21119

21142

21151

21167

21168

21169

21171

21181

21182

21183

21205

21235

21598

21704

21711

21781

21814

21879

21889

30381

30402

Project Title

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 RW
GEN SYS MODS-RW 15/16

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 -
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 RW

MWRP SYS REPLACEMENTS 15/16

LAWRP SYSTEM REPLACEMENTS 15/16
SOCWA ETM PROTECTION - TRAIL BRIDGE
MWRP MISCELLANEOUS REPAIR AND
SEWER LATERAL & MAIN REPLACEMENT
MWRP FPS 2 ROOF REPLACEMENT
NEWPORT COAST SLS AND FM RECOATING
CULVER DRIVE SMH IMPROVEMENTS
SEWER GEN SYS MODS 15/16

MAIN ST DIVERSION STRUCTURE GROUND
PLANO LIFT STATION FORCE MAIN

RAISE MANHOLES TO GRADE 15/16 UNDER
MAINTENANCE ACCESS FOR FOUR SEWER
WOODHOLLOW SEWER REPLACEMENT
HQ LIGHTING RETROFIT & CEILING REPLACE
MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - SEWER
ID CONSOLIDATION PROJECT ACCOUNTING
PORTABLE DIESEL GENERATOR

2015 IRVINE ANNUAL ST REHAB, SEWER
VAULT LID REPLACEMENT - SEWER
BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE SOFTWARE

SAN JOAQUIN RESERVOIR LINER

WELL REHAB PROGRAM RW 13/14 THRU

Fiscal Year
Direct

$176,000
$101,800
$60,000
$44,000
$332,200
$132,000
$87,600
$170,000
$218,900
$210,200
$244,200
$328,700
$330,000
$1,800
$291,900
$110,000
$1,400
$3,400
$45,400
$440,000
$501,600
$293,900
$233,200
$1,700
$84,200
$35,000

$11,500

Total Direct

$176,000
$101,800
$60,000

$44,000

$332,200
$132,000
$951,500

$3,076,600
$218,900
$256,000
$552,200
$368,000
$330,000
$191,400
$583,000
$110,000
$368,000
$398,200
$225,000
$440,000
$1,254,000

$880,000
$233,200
$96,300

$126,500

$2,625,000

Split
Description

Regional
Regional
Regional
Regional
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement

Replacement

$930,3008 &erlacement

201

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

210

14.6

14.6

33.1

14.6

212

10.7

10.7

34

10.7

213

4.1

4.1

34

4.1

225

51.0

51.0

48.5

51.0

240

7.7

1.7

7.7

253

10.3

10.3

9.6

10.3

256

03

285

15

1.5

13

15

288

0.3



EBS
No.

4402

5498

5156

5153

5503

5476

5522

6055

1257

5496

5304

5477

4430

5444

6054

6123

1642

4457

4400

6216

6198

6197

1103

EPMS
No.

30403

30406

30453

30455

30482

30495

30502

30530

31598

31696

31698

31702

31704

31781

31814

31879

20374

30409

30410

30552

30570

30571

39410

Project Title

WELL REHAB NO. 1 (RW)

1" TO 2" METER REPLACEMENT-RW 15/16
LAGUNA CANYON RD RW PIPELINE

SIR ACTUATOR REPAIR/REPLACEMENT

WELL 78 SPARE PUMP AND MOTOR

REG RW - RATTLESNAKE BPS PUMP UPGRADE
WEIR CANYON VALVE VAULT PLC UPGRADE
SYPHON RESERVOIR SLIDE GATE

HQ LIGHTING RETROFIT & CEILING REPLACE
CSR METER REPLACEMENT-RW 15/16

RAISE RW SYSTEM VALVES 15/16 UNDER RA
SERVICE LINE, VALVE & MAIN REPLACEMENT-
MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - RW 15/16
PORTABLE DIESEL GENERATOR

2015 IRVINE ANNUAL ST REHAB, RW

VAULT LID REPLACEMENT - RW

PAS1 MASTER SS FACILITIES

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE B

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE C

REG RW - NORTHWOOD ZONE B BPS

REG RW - IC ZONE B BPS UPGRADES

REG RW - 20"ZN B PIPE CONSTRUCTION &

PA51 MASTER RW FACILITIES

Total

Fiscal Year
Direct

$228,700
$140,300
$2,000
$23,900
$138,300
$40,500
$2,200
$114,500
$10,400
$112,200
$38,500
$515,800
$484,000
$293,900
$97,400
$1,700
$300
$38,900
$98,100
$64,900
$69,500
$49,500

$1,500
$92,026,200

Total Direct

$401,500
$140,300
$588,500
$254,700
$276,100
$990,000
$108,900
$238,700
$50,000
$112,200
$38,500
$515,800
$484,000
$880,000
$97,400
$195,300
$1,028,500
$2,532,700
$3,624,700
$2,588,500
$1,606,100
$3,152,600

$4,893,000
$403,193,800

Split
Description

Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Replacement
Sub-Regional
Sub-Regional
Sub-Regional
Sub-Regional
Sub-Regional
Sub-Regional

Sub-Regional

201

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

$37.1

210 212

81.3
54.2
50.5
54.2
54.2
54.2

93.5
$14.7 $8.0

213 225

23.1
27.8
23.1
23.1

23.1

$2.2 $22.9

240

$0.7

253

18.7
22.7
21.7
22.7
22.7
22.7

6.5
$5.4

256

$0.1

285

$0.6

288

$0.1



ID
101 - Rep

EPMS No.

11702
11116
11704
11711
11814
11672
11699
11754
11781
11752
11819
11679
11696
11884
11801
11692
11694
11698
11889
10517
11885

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2015/2016
Allocation of FY Project Expenditures by Improvement District

Project Title

SERVICE LINE, VALVE & MAIN REPLACEMENT-DW 15/16
ASSET OPTIMIZATION - LAKE FOREST DEVELOPMENT
MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - DW 15/16

ID CONSOLIDATION PROJECT ACCOUNTING IMPLEMENTATION

2015 IRVINE ANNUAL ST REHAB, DW
DRWF WELL NO. 3 REHAB

RESIDENTIAL METER REPLACEMENT-DW 15/16

WELLS 11 AND 15 SURGE TANK REPLACEMENT

PORTABLE DIESEL GENERATOR REPLACEMENT - DW

WELLS 12 AND 13 ROOF HATCHES REPLACEMENT

WELLS 76 & 77 PUMP/MOTOR REPLACEMENT

WELL REHAB NO. 2 (DW)

CSR METER REPLACEMENT-DW 15/16

TURTLE ROCK ZONE 3-4 BOOSTER PUMP STATION RETROFIT
EAST IRVINE ZONE 1 TO 3 BPS PIPE/METER

WELL MAINTENANCE AND REHABILITATION 15/16

1" TO 2" METER REPLACEMENT-DW 15/16

RAISE DW SYSTEM VALVES 15/16 UNDER RA

BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE SOFTWARE UPGRADE

LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS REPLACEMENT
ASSET OPTIMIZATION - SAND CANYON PROFESSIONAL CTR

Alloc

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

FY Direct

$1,246,900

$887,300
$660,000
$501,600
$431,200
$387,400
$336,600
$304,300
$293,900
$282,200
$275,400
$228,700
$213,200
$189,200
$168,200
$165,000
$139,000
$115,500
$84,200
$66,300
$59,600

FY Direct+GA

$1,265,400
$887,300
$660,000
$723,600
$468,200
$451,000
$360,700
$345,600
$293,900
$329,800
$275,400
$284,100
$222,500
$234,300
$211,500
$165,000
$163,800
$124,800
$127,300
$84,800
$64,200

Page 1 of 32



ID
101 - Rep

110

EPMS No.

11598
11877
11879
11434
11665
11805

11747
11812
11874
11645
11687
11619
11275
11764
11808
11891
11057
11697
11838
11875
11867
11876

Project Title

HQ LIGHTING RETROFIT & CEILING REPLACE

NTS SEDIMENT REMOVAL

VAULT LID REPLACEMENT - DW

SAND CANYON 16" DW PIPELINE ANODE REPLACEMENT
SIM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD REMEDIATION

ZONE 1 RESERVOIR INTERIOR RECOATING

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT

ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT FACILITIES
STOCKDALE WEST WELL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD EQUIPPING

CHLORAMINE BOOSTER STATIONS AT 2 DW RESERVOIRS
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
OCWD ANNEXATION FEE 15/16

WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16

WATER SUPPLY AND SYSTEM RELIABILITY MODEL

ZONE 1 RESERVOIR

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 DW

GEN SYS MODS-DW 15/16

IDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES

WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16

NTS INFILTRATION STUDY

Alloc

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
50.0%

100.0%

32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%

FY Direct

$45,400
$7,300
$3,300
$1,700
$500
$500

$7,094,400

$12,671,098

$1,110,943
$588,267
$449,098
$355,177
$154,296
$143,244
$79,022
$74,393
$68,688
$64,548
$62,038
$54,246
$41,174
$37,653
$21,157

FY Direct+GA

$66,300
$11,200
$8,500
$4,300
$500
$1,300

$7,835,800

$12,995,436
$1,200,560
$608,349
$468,886
$373,172
$222,723
$143,244
$199,805
$88,248
$79,740
$112,796
$75,339
$70,775
$53,236
$67,808
$25,395

Page 2 of 32



ID
110

112 ET

EPMS No.

11789
11796
10394
11787
11797
11878
15051
11765
11839
11849
11882
11785
11779
11560
11665

11747
11668
11842
11804
11887
11890
11812

Project Title

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - DOMESTIC
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 DW

DATS & WELL 77 LEASE PAYMENT 16/17
COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS MOTOR FUEL

MARSH MITIGATION CREDIT INVENTORY

SAN JOAQUIN MARSH IMPROVEMENTS

WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY
STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY CAPACITY
PDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP

DRWF SURGE TANKS

EL MODENA NTS POND INFILTRATION

EL MODENA INLET MODIFICATION

LAKE FOREST DW OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS

SIJM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD REMEDIATION

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT
PA51 MARINE WAY DW ZN3

PA51 MARINE WAY FROM ALTON TO BARRANCA 12" DW ZN 3

PA51 "B" ST FROM SOCIABLE TO IRVINE BLV 12" ZN 4
PA-51 MARINE WAY: SR133 TO RIDGE VALLEY 12" ZONE 3
PA 51 BENCHMARK, BOSQUE TO 550'E/O BOSQUE 12" Z4R
ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT FACILITIES

Alloc

32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
32.6%
16.3%

3.3%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

3.3%

FY Direct

$19,560
$14,344
$12,095
$11,312
$5,542
$4,303
$3,456
$3,423
$1,369
$587
$554
$326
$326
$228
$163

$16,052,631

$1,282,657

$192,200
$187,100
$125,000
$113,100
$113,100
$112,457

FY Direct+GA

$30,709
$20,375
$12,095
$11,932
$6,944
$6,422
$4,401
$9,454
$3,651
$1,434
$1,402
$750
$750
$587
$163

$16,896,580

$1,315,489
$223,200
$220,400
$151,900
$149,000
$149,000
$121,529

Page 3 of 32



ID EPMS No. Project Title Alloc FY Direct FY Direct+GA

112 ET
11806 PA51 ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS 12" DW 100.0% $103,300 $120,500
11874 STOCKDALE WEST WELL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT 3.3% $59,549 $61,581
11645 STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD EQUIPPING 3.3% $45,461 $47,464
11673 PAS51 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO TRABUCO - DW 100.0% $39,500 $43,800
11687 CHLORAMINE BOOSTER STATIONS AT 2 DW RESERVOIRS 3.3% $35,954 $37,775
11671 PA51 RIDGE VALLEY, TRABUCO TO IRVINE BLVD - DW 100.0% $35,400 $39,800
11809 PAS51 IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 12" DW 100.0% $19,000 $22,800
11619 ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION 3.3% 515,619 $22,546
11275 OCWD ANNEXATION FEE 15/16 3.3% $14,500 $14,500
11719 PA51 LN ST FROM CSTTO LY ST DW 100.0% $11,800 $13,900
11721 PA51 C ST FROM LQ STTO O ST DW 100.0% $10,500 $13,400
11764 WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16 3.3% $7,999 $20,226
11808 WATER SUPPLY AND SYSTEM RELIABILITY MODEL 3.3% $7,531 $8,933
11891 ZONE 1 RESERVOIR 3.3% $6,953 $8,072
11057 ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 DW 3.3% $6,534 $11,418
11697 GEN SYS MODS-DW 15/16 3.3% $6,280 $7,626
11838 IDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM 3.3% $5,491 $7,164
11875 STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES 3.3% $4,168 $5,389
11867 WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16 3.3% $3,812 $6,864
11660 PA51 TRABUCO RD, SR133 TO LY ST bW 100.0% $3,300 $3,300
11723 PA51 LY ST FROM LQ ST TO IRVINE BLVD DW 100.0% $3,100 $4,900
11876 NTS INFILTRATION STUDY 3.3% $2,142 $2,571
11789 GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - DOMESTIC 3.3% $1,980 $3,109
11796 HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 DW 3.3% $1,452 $2,063
19411 PA51 MASTER DW FACILITIES 77.7% $1,399 $3,730
Page 4 of 32



iD
112 ET

113 TU

EPMS No.

10394
11787
11797
11878
15051
11765
11839
11849
11882
11785
11779
11560
11665

11747
11881
11812
11866
11874
11645
11687
11619
11275

Project Title

DATS & WELL 77 LEASE PAYMENT 16/17
COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS MOTOR FUEL

MARSH MITIGATION CREDIT INVENTORY

SAN JOAQUIN MARSH IMPROVEMENTS

WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY
STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY CAPACITY
PDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP

DRWF SURGE TANKS

EL MODENA NTS POND INFILTRATION

EL MODENA INLET MODIFICATION

LAKE FOREST DW OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS

SJM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD REMEDIATION

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT

TUSTIN LEGACY REDHILL WELL ACQUISITION

ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT FACILITIES

TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE & MOFFETT DR 12" DW
STOCKDALE WEST WELL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD EQUIPPING

CHLORAMINE BOOSTER STATIONS AT 2 DW RESERVOIRS
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
OCWD ANNEXATION FEE 15/16

Alloc

3.3%
3.3%
3.3%
3.3%
3.3%
3.3%
3.3%
3.3%
3.3%
3.3%
3.3%
3.3%
1.7%

3.0%
100.0%
3.0%
100.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%

FY Direct

$1,224

$1,145
$561
$436
$350
$347
$139
$59
$56
$33
$33
$23
$17

$2,582,758

$1,166,052
$269,500
$102,234

$58,700
$54,135
$41,328
$32,685
$14,199
$13,182

FY Direct+GA

$1,224
$1,208
$703
$650
$446
$957
$370
$145
$142
$76
$76
$59
$17

$2,870,020

$1,195,899
$306,500
$110,481
$82,200
$55,983
$43,149
$34,341
$20,496
$13,182

Page 5 of 32



ID
113 TU

EPMS No.

11469
11746
11764
11808
11891
11057
11697
11838
11875
11867
11876
11789
11379
11796
10394
11787
11714
11797
11378
11716
11878
15051
11765
11839
11849

Project Title

GREAT PARK COORDINATION AND SAMP UPDATE

TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER FROM ARMSTRONG TO LEGACY DW
WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16

WATER SUPPLY AND SYSTEM RELIABILITY MODEL

ZONE 1 RESERVOIR

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 DW

GEN SYS MODS-DW 15/16

IDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES

WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16

NTS INFILTRATION STUDY

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - DOMESTIC

TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH ROAD

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 DW

DATS & WELL 77 LEASE PAYMENT 16/17

COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS MOTOR FUEL

TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH, BARRANCA, ARMSTRONG DW
MARSH MITIGATION CREDIT INVENTORY

TUSTIN LEGACY MASTER DW FACILITIES

TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER - LEGACY TO TUSTIN RANCH DW
SAN JOAQUIN MARSH IMPROVEMENTS

WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY
STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY CAPACITY

PDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP

Alloc

100.0%
100.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
100.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
100.0%
3.0%
100.0%
100.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%

FY Direct

$11,200
$10,700
$7,272
$6,846
$6,321
$5,940
$5,709
$4,992
$3,789
$3,465
$1,947
$1,800
$1,400
$1,320
$1,113
$1,041
$800
$510
$500
$400
$396
$318
$315
$126
$54

FY Direct+GA

$17,400
$13,000
$18,387
$8,121
$7,338
$10,380
$6,933
$6,513
$4,899
$6,240
$2,337
$2,826
$1,400
$1,875
$1,113
$1,098
$800
$639
$1,400
$400
$591
$405
$870
$336
$132

Page 6 of 32



ID
113TU

EPMS No.

11882
11785
11779
11560
11665

125-DeviD_Potable

11747
11812
11874
11645
11687
11619
11275
11886
11764
11808
11891
11057
11697
11838
11875
11867
11876

Project Title

DRWF SURGE TANKS

EL MODENA NTS POND INFILTRATION

EL MODENA INLET MODIFICATION

LAKE FOREST DW OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS
SIJM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD REMEDIATION

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT

ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT FACILITIES
STOCKDALE WEST WELL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD EQUIPPING

CHLORAMINE BOOSTER STATIONS AT 2 DW RESERVOIRS
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
OCWD ANNEXATION FEE 15/16

NEWPORT COAST JOINT BONDING PHASE 2

WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16

WATER SUPPLY AND SYSTEM RELIABILITY MODEL

ZONE 1 RESERVOIR

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 DW

GEN SYS MODS-DW 15/16

IDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES

WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16

NTS INFILTRATION STUDY

Alloc

3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
3.0%
1.5%

47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
100.0%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%

FY Direct

$51
$30
$30
s21
$15

$1,830,436

$18,462,490

$1,618,705
$857,138
$654,360
$517,513
$224,818
$208,715
$148,300
$115,140
$108,395
$100,083
$94,050
$90,393
$79,040
$59,993
$54,863
$30,828

FY Direct+GA

$129
$69
$69
S54
$15

$1,978,000

$18,935,068
$1,749,283
$886,398
$683,193
$543,733
$324,520
$208,715
$166,900
$291,128
$128,583
$116,185
$164,350
$109,773
$103,123
$77,568
$98,800
$37,003

Page 7 of 32



ID EPMS No.

125-DeviD_Potable
11789
11796
10394
11787
11797
11878
15051
11765
11755
11839
11849
11882
11785
11779
11560
11665

153-FutDevID_Potable
11747
11812
30501
11874
11645
11687

Project Title

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - DOMESTIC
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 DW

DATS & WELL 77 LEASE PAYMENT 16/17
COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS MOTOR FUEL

MARSH MITIGATION CREDIT INVENTORY

SAN JOAQUIN MARSH IMPROVEMENTS

WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY
STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY CAPACITY
COASTAL ZN2 PRV MODIFICATION (DPR16)

PDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM

CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP
DRWF SURGE TANKS

EL MODENA NTS POND INFILTRATION

EL MODENA INLET MODIFICATION

LAKE FOREST DW OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS
SJM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD REMEDIATION

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT

ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT FACILITIES

PA6 NEIGHBORHOOD 4B 6" RW ZONE D

STOCKDALE WEST WELL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD EQUIPPING

CHLORAMINE BOOSTER STATIONS AT 2 DW RESERVOIRS

Alloc

47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
100.0%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
47.5%
23.8%

11.1%
11.1%
100.0%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%

FY Direct

$28,500
$20,900
$17,623
$16,483
$8,075
$6,270
$5,035
$4,988
$2,000
$1,995
$855
$808
$475
$475
$333
$238

$23,539,870

$4,314,392

$378,266
$288,700
$200,300
$152,914
$120,935

FY Direct+GA

$44,745
$29,688
$17,623
$17,385
$10,118
$9,358
$6,413
$13,775
$4,700
$5,320
$2,090
$2,043
$1,093
$1,093
$855
$238

$24,790,850

$4,424,826
$408,780
$347,700
$207,137
$159,651
$127,062

Page 8 of 32



ID EPMS No.

153-FutDevID_Potable
11619
11275
11717
11764
11808
11891
11057
11697
11838
11875
11867
11613
11876
11789
11796
10394
11787
11797
11878
15051
11765
11739
11839
19411
11605

Project Title

ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
OCWD ANNEXATION FEE 15/16

PASB PHASE 1A 12" ZONE 3 DW

WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16

WATER SUPPLY AND SYSTEM RELIABILITY MODEL

ZONE 1 RESERVOIR

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 DW

GEN SYS MODS-DW 15/16

IDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES

WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16

PA1 16" Z5 PIPE, 5-4 PRVS NEIGHBORHOOD 3

NTS INFILTRATION STUDY

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - DOMESTIC
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 DW

DATS & WELL 77 LEASE PAYMENT 16/17

COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS MOTOR FUEL

MARSH MITIGATION CREDIT INVENTORY

SAN JOAQUIN MARSH IMPROVEMENTS

WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY
STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY CAPACITY

PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 12" DW

PDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
PA51 MASTER DW FACILITIES

PA40 PH2 DW FACILITIES

Alloc

11.1%
11.1%
100.0%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
100.0%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
100.0%
11.1%
22.3%
100.0%

FY Direct

$52,536
$48,773
$27,900
$26,906
$25,330
$23,388
$21,978
$21,123
$18,470
$14,019
$12,821
$11,000
$7,204
$6,660
$4,884
$4,118
$3,852
$1,887
$1,465
$1,177
$1,166
$900
$466
$401
$300

FY Direct+GA

$75,835
$48,773
$33,600
$68,032
$30,048
$27,151
$38,406
$25,652
$24,098
$18,126
$23,088
$29,400
$8,647
$10,456
$6,938
$4,118
$4,063
$2,364
$2,187
$1,499
$3,219
$900
$1,243
$1,070
$300

Page 9 of 32



ID

153-FutDeviD_Potable

154

EPMS No.

11849
11882
11779
11785
11560
11665

11747
11812
11874
11645
11687
11619
11275
11764
11808
11891
11057
11697
11838
11875
11867
11876

Project Title

CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP
DRWF SURGE TANKS

EL MODENA INLET MODIFICATION

EL MODENA NTS POND INFILTRATION

LAKE FOREST DW OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS
SJM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD REMEDIATION

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT

ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT FACILITIES
STOCKDALE WEST WELL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD EQUIPPING

CHLORAMINE BOOSTER STATIONS AT 2 DW RESERVOIRS
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
OCWD ANNEXATION FEE 15/16

WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16

WATER SUPPLY AND SYSTEM RELIABILITY MODEL

ZONE 1 RESERVOIR

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 DW

GEN SYS MODS-DW 15/16

IDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES

WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16

NTS INFILTRATION STUDY

Alloc

11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
5.6%

0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%

FY Direct

$200
8189
$111
$111
$78
$56

$5,794,975

$155,474
$13,631

57,218
$5,510
$4,358
$1,893
$1,758
$970
$913
$843
$792
$761
$666
$505
$462
$260

FY Direct+GA

$488
$477
$255
$255
$200

$56

$6,166,100

$159,453
$14,731
$7,464
$5,753
$4,579
$2,733
$1,758
$2,452
$1,083
$978
$1,384
$924
$868
$653
$832
$312

Page 10 of 32



ID
154

185-LF_OSA

EPMS No.

11789
11796
10394
11787
11797
11878
15051
11765
11839
11849
11882
11779
11785
11560
11665

11747
11791
11812
11874
11645
11687
11619

Project Title

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - DOMESTIC
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 BW

DATS & WELL 77 LEASE PAYMENT 16/17
COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS MOTOR FUEL

MARSH MITIGATION CREDIT INVENTORY

SAN JOAQUIN MARSH IMPROVEMENTS

WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY
STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY CAPACITY
PDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP

DRWF SURGE TANKS

EL MODENA INLET MODIFICATION

EL MODENA NTS POND INFILTRATION

LAKE FOREST DW OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS

SIM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD REMEDIATION

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT

LAKE FOREST Z2-2RA PRV AT COMMERCENTRE
ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT FACILITIES
STOCKDALE WEST WELL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD EQUIPPING

CHLORAMINE BOOSTER STATIONS AT 2 DW RESERVOIRS
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION

Alloc

0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.4%
0.2%

1.6%
100.0%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%

FY Direct

$240
$176
$148
$139
$68
$53
$42
$42
$17
s7
s7
$4
s4
$3
S2

$196,965

$621,894
$59,200
$54,525
$28,872
$22,042
$17,432
$7,573

FY Direct+GA

$377
$250
$148
$146
$85
$79
$54
$116
$45
518
$17
$9
$9
$7
$2
$207,320

$637,813
$63,900
$58,923
$29,858
$23,013
$18,315
$10,931

Page 11 of 32



ID
185-LF_OSA

EPMS No.

11275
11764
11808
11891
11057
11697
11838
11562
11875
11867
11876
11789
11796
10394
11787
11797
11878
15051
11765
11839
11849
11882
11785
11779
11560

Project Title

OCWD ANNEXATION FEE 15/16

WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16

WATER SUPPLY AND SYSTEM RELIABILITY MODEL
ZONE 1 RESERVOIR

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 DW

GEN SYS MODS-DW 15/16

IDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
LAKE FOREST DW OPPORTUNITY AREAS

STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES

WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16

NTS INFILTRATION STUDY

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - DOMESTIC
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 DW

DATS & WELL 77 LEASE PAYMENT 16/17
COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS MOTOR FUEL

MARSH MITIGATION CREDIT INVENTORY

SAN JOAQUIN MARSH IMPROVEMENTS

WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY
STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY CAPACITY
PDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP

DRWF SURGE TANKS

EL MODENA NTS POND INFILTRATION

EL MODENA INLET MODIFICATION

LAKE FOREST DW OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS

Alloc

1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
100.0%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%

FY Direct

$7,030
$3,878
$3,651
$3,371
$3,168
$3,045
$2,662
$2,400
$2,021
$1,848
$1,038
$960
$704
$594
$555
$272
$211
$170
$168
$67
$29
$27
$16
$16
$11

FY Direct+GA

$7,030
$9,806
$4,331
$3,914
$5,536
$3,698
$3,474
$6,600
$2,613
$3,328
$1,246
$1,507
$1,000
$594
$586
$341
$315
$216
$464
$179
$70
$69
$37
$37
$29

Page 12 of 32



ID
185-LF_OSA

188

EPMS No.

11665

11747
11812
11874
11645
11687
11619
11275
11764
11808
11891
11057
11697
11838
11875
11867
11876
11789
11796
10394
11787
11797

Project Title

SIM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD REMEDIATION

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT

ROSEDALE DROUGHT RELIEF PROJECT FACILITIES
STOCKDALE WEST WELL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
STOCKDALE WEST WELLHEAD EQUIPPING

CHLORAMINE BOOSTER STATIONS AT 2 DW RESERVOIRS
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
OCWD ANNEXATION FEE 15/16

WATER BANKING AGREEMENTS 14/16

WATER SUPPLY AND SYSTEM RELIABILITY MODEL

ZONE 1 RESERVOIR

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 DW

GEN SYS MODS-DW 15/16

IDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
STOCKDALE WEST TURNOUT FACILITIES

WATER BANKING PLANNING 15/16

NTS INFILTRATION STUDY

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - DOMESTIC
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 DW

DATS & WELL 77 LEASE PAYMENT 16/17

COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS MOTOR FUEL

MARSH MITIGATION CREDIT INVENTORY

Alloc

0.8%

0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%

FY Direct

$8

$849,459

$194,342
$17,039

$9,023
$6,888
$5,448
$2,367
$2,197
$1,212
$1,141
$1,054
$990
$952
$832
$632
$578
$325
$300
$220
$186
$174
$85

FY Direct+GA

$8
$899,780

$199,317
$18,414
$9,331
$7,192
$5,724
$3,416
$2,197
$3,065
$1,354
$1,223
$1,730
$1,156
$1,086
$817
$1,040
$390
$471
$313
$186
$183
$107

Page 13 of 32



ID
188

201-Rep

EPMS No.

11878
15051
11765
11839
11849
11882
11779
11785
11560
11665

21146
20813
31702
21711
31704
21704
20915
21171
21169
21781
31781
21182

Project Title

SAN JOAQUIN MARSH IMPROVEMENTS

WELLS 51/52/53 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES STUDY
STOCKDALE STORAGE FOR RECOVERY CAPACITY

PDF SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM
CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP

DRWF SURGE TANKS

EL MODENA INLET MODIFICATION

EL MODENA NTS POND INFILTRATION

LAKE FOREST DW OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS

SJM BUILDING CAMPUS MOLD REMEDIATION

MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES
OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16
SERVICE LINE, VALVE & MAIN REPLACEMENT-RW 15/16

ID CONSOLIDATION PROJECT ACCOUNTING IMPLEMENTATION

MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - RW 15/16

MECH & ELEC SYS REPLACEMENT - SEWER 15/16

MWRP SYS REPLACEMENTS 15/16

SEWER GEN SYS MODS 15/16

CULVER DRIVE SMH IMPROVEMENTS

PORTABLE DIESEL GENERATOR REPLACEMENT - SEWER
PORTABLE DIESEL GENERATOR REPLACEMENT - RW
PLANO LIFT STATION FORCE MAIN RELOCATION (SMWD)

Alloc

0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.5%
0.3%

57.1%
57.1%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

FY Direct

$66
$53
$53
$21
$9
$9
S5
$5
$4
S3

$246,206

$29,984,752

$794,261
$515,800
$501,600
$484,000
$440,000
$332,200
$330,000
$328,700
$293,900
$293,900
$291,900

FY Direct+GA

$99
$68
$145
$56
$22
$22
$12
$12
$9
$3

$259,150

$30,858,953
$794,261
$534,300
$723,600
$484,000
$440,000
$335,900
$330,000
$373,800
$293,900
$293,900
$291,900

Page 14 of 32



ID
201-Rep

EPMS No.

21168
21814
30403
21151
21167
21142
30406
30482
21011
30530
31696
21183
31814
21119
21889
21598
30495
31698
30381
30455
30402
31598
21235
30502
30453

Project Title

NEWPORT COAST SLS AND FM RECOATING

2015 IRVINE ANNUAL ST REHAB, SEWER

WELL REHAB NO. 1 (RW)

SEWER LATERAL & MAIN REPLACEMENT 15/16
MWRP FPS 2 ROOF REPLACEMENT

MWRP MISCELLANEOUS REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT
1" TO 2" METER REPLACEMENT-RW 15/16

WELL 78 SPARE PUMP AND MOTOR PURCHASE
LAWRP SYSTEM REPLACEMENTS 15/16

SYPHON RESERVOIR SLIDE GATE REPLACEMENT

CSR METER REPLACEMENT-RW 15/16

RAISE MANHOLES TO GRADE 15/16 UNDER RA

2015 IRVINE ANNUAL ST REHAB, RW

SOCWA ETM PROTECTION - TRAIL BRIDGE CROSSING
BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE SOFTWARE UPGRADE

HQ LIGHTING RETROFIT & CEILING REPLACE

REG RW - RATTLESNAKE BPS PUMP UPGRADE

RAISE RW SYSTEM VALVES 15/16 UNDER RA

SAN JOAQUIN RESERVOIR LINER REPLACEMENT

SIR ACTUATOR REPAIR/REPLACEMENT

WELL REHAB PROGRAM RW 13/14 THRU 15/16

HQ LIGHTING RETROFIT & CEILING REPLACE
WOODHOLLOW SEWER REPLACEMENT

WEIR CANYON VALVE VAULT PLC UPGRADE
LAGUNA CANYON RD RW PIPELINE CORROSION REPLACE

B-57

Alloc

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

FY Direct

$244,200
$233,200
$228,700
$218,900
$210,200
$170,000
$140,300
$138,300
$132,000
$114,500
$112,200
$110,000
$97,400
$87,600
$84,200
$45,400
$40,500
$38,500
$35,000
$23,900
$11,500
$10,400
$3,400
$2,200
$2,000

FY Direct+GA

$304,300
$251,700
$284,100
$237,400
$250,400
$281,000
$154,200
$138,300
$132,000
$125,100
$115,900
$110,000
$111,300
$96,800
$127,300
$66,800
$58,900
$47,800
$96,400
$29,000
$13,100
$16,200
$8,600
$3,400
$4,600

Page 15 of 32



ID
201-Rep

210

EPMS No.

21181
21879
31879
21205

21146
21163
20116
20593
20589
20115
30435
20813
21748
21619
30513
30496
21188
30420
21191
21057
31057
21826

Project Title

MAIN ST DIVERSION STRUCTURE GROUND SETTLING
VAULT LID REPLACEMENT - SEWER

VAULT LID REPLACEMENT - RW

MAINTENANCE ACCESS FOR FOUR SEWER REACHES

MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES
PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE
OCSD CORF 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 14/15

OCSD CORF 14/15

RATTLESNAKE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED
OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16

SCSMP UPDATE AND LONG-TERM FLOW MONITORING
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
ILP NORTH CONVERSION - PIPELINES

ILP NORTH CONVERSION - RESERVOIR

WATER RECYCLING PLANT MASTER PLAN UPDATE

PASB PHASE 1A AND 1B 36" RW

OPS DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 SEWER

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 RW

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 16/17 - SEWER

Alloc

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

14.2%
33.1%
33.1%
33.1%
33.1%
33.1%
14.6%
14.2%
33.1%
33.1%
14.6%
14.6%
33.1%
14.6%
33.1%
33.1%
14.6%
33.1%

FY Direct

$1,800
$1,700
$1,700
$1,400

$37,132,113

$7,456,751
$1,800,044
$1,583,901
$1,509,724
$726,214
$233,355
$204,955
$197,521
$191,450
$156,662
$105,835
$102,755
$67,127
$60,575
$57,495
$56,800
$25,696
$19,860

FY Direct+GA

$4,400
$4,300
$4,300
$3,300

$38,835,414

$7,674,151
$1,842,081
$1,583,901
$1,509,724
$726,214
$233,355
$217,613
$197,521
$252,785
$226,139
$124,188
$116,596
$89,701
$64,999
$62,096
$103,338
$41,902
$31,180

Page 16 of 32



ID
210

212 ET

EPMS No.

21789
31789
31697
21796
30408
30382
30331
30560
30569
30561
30415
31796
21288
30517
30572
21234
30487
21849
30366
21170
30461

21216

Project Title

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - SEWER

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - RECYCLED

GEN SYS MODS-RW 15/16

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 SEWER

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE A TO SYPHON
SYPHON RESERVOIR EXPANSION

SANTIAGO DAM & OUTLET TWR SEISMIC STABILITY

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 15/16

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 17/18

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 16/17

CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR GAP PIPE SEGMENT
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 RW

MBR BLOWER ROOM SAFETY PLATFORM

LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS REPLACEMENT
PIEZOMETER ACCESS AT RATTLESNAKE SYPHON & SAND CYN
OPS CENTER PERMANENT GENERATOR

PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 36" RW PIPELINE

CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP

TECHNOLOGY DR AND LAGUNA CANYON RD RW ZONE B
SJM SLS UPGRADE

SJR SEISMIC EVALUATION (DSOD)

PA51 ALTON PKWY SS RELOCATION 12" AND 18"

Alloc

33.1%
33.1%
14.6%
33.1%
14.6%
14.6%
14.6%
14.6%
14.6%
14.6%
14.6%
14.6%
33.1%
14.6%
33.1%
33.1%
14.6%
33.1%
14.6%
33.1%
14.6%

100.0%

FY Direct

$19,860
$19,860
$14,863
$14,564
$13,155
$12,363
$12,614
$12,045
$12,045
$12,045
$8,585
$6,424
$3,674
$3,343
$1,456
$1,125
$905
$596
$496
$397
$161

$14,727,797

$1,321,800

FY Direct+GA

$31,180
$31,180
$18,119
$20,688
$27,258
$20,484
$16,148
$14,527
$14,527
$14,527
$10,629
$9,125
$4,005
$6,044
$3,807
$2,847
$905
$1,456
$496
$1,026
$409

$15,346,870

$1,623,900

Page 17 of 32



ID
212 ET

EPMS No.

21219
21806
21146
21213
31809
31213
31842
31806
30388
21163
31804
20116
20593
30435
30503
21723
31887
31890
30513
30496
20589
31723
21141
30410
30420

Project Title

PAS51 MARINE WAY, ALTON TO BARRANCA 18" SS

PA51 ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS SS RELOCATION
MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES
PA51 LQ ST FROM BOSQUE TO Z ST 12" SEWER

PAS51 IRVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 20" RW

PA51 LQ ST FROM BOSQUE TO Z ST 12" RW

PAS51 MARINE WAY, ALTON TO BARRANCA 16" RW ZN B
PA51 ALTON, TECHNOLOGY TO MUIRLANDS 16" RW
PA51 MARINE WAY RW ZNB

PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE
PA51 "B" ST FROM SOCIABLE TO IRVINE BLV 16" ZN C
OCSD CORF 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 15/16

RATTLESNAKE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED
PA51 SOCIABLE ST FROM ZTO B ST 12" & 16" ZONE B
PA51 LY ST FROM LQ ST TO IRVINE BLVD SEWER

PA-51 MARINE WAY: SR133 TO RIDGE VALLEY 6" ZONE B
PA 51 BENCHMARK, BOSQUE TO 550'E/0 BOSQUE 6" ZC
ILP NORTH CONVERSION - PIPELINES

ILP NORTH CONVERSION - RESERVOIR

OCSD EQUITY 14/15

PAS51 LY ST FROM LQ ST TO IRVINE BLVD RW

PA51 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO TRABUCO - SEWER
REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE C

PASB PHASE 1A AND 1B 36" RW

Alloc

100.0%
100.0%
1.5%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
3.4%
100.0%
3.4%
3.4%
10.7%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
10.7%
10.7%
3.4%
100.0%
100.0%
50.5%
10.7%

FY Direct

$911,200
$819,100
$765,950
$647,000
$346,600
$226,700
$223,300
$207,000
$206,900
$184,899
$176,300
$162,697
$155,077
$150,207
$137,400
$134,900
$113,100
$113,100
$77,564
$75,307
$74,596
$73,000
$50,000
$49,541
$44,394

FY Direct+GA

$1,050,000
$880,600
$788,281
$739,000
$395,800
$275,900
$260,400
$238,200
$244,100
$189,217
$200,100
$162,697
$155,077
$159,484
$155,900
$148,600
$149,000
$149,000
$91,014
$85,450
$74,596
$88,500
$50,000
$98,324
$47,636

Page 18 of 32



ID
212 ET

EPMS No.

30394
30570
30552
30571
21165
20115
21671
30409
31159
20813
21159
21748
31057
31721
21156
21158
21619
30427
21809
31660
31697
30408
30382
31671
30331

Project Title

PA51 RIDGE VALLEY, MARINE WAY TO TRABUCO - RW
REG RW - 1IC ZONE B BPS UPGRADES

REG RW - NORTHWOOD ZONE B BPS UPGRADE

REG RW - 20"ZN B PIPE CONSTRUCTION & CONVERSION
PA51 C ST FROM LV ST TO TRABUCO SEWER

OCSD CORF 14/15

PAS1 RIDGE VALLEY, TRABUCO TO IRVINE BLVD - SS
REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE B

PA51 LV ST FROM RIDGE VALLEY TO LY ST 12" RW
OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16

PA51 LV ST FROM RIDGE VALLEY TO LY ST 18" SEWER
SCSMP UPDATE AND LONG-TERM FLOW MONITORING
ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 RW

PA51 CSTFROM LQ STTO O STRW

PA51 LQ ST FROM O ST TO LY ST SEWER

PAS51 C ST FROM TRABUCO RD TO LQ ST SEWER
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
PA51 LY ST FROM TRABUCO RD TO LQ ST RW

PA51 [RVINE BLV LAMBERT TO Z ST 16" SS

PAS1 TRABUCO RD, SR133 TO LY STRW

GEN SYS MODS-RW 15/16

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE A TO SYPHON
SYPHON RESERVOIR EXPANSION

PAS51 RIDGE VALLEY, TRABUCO TO IRVINE BLVD - RW
SANTIAGO DAM & OUTLET TWR SEISMIC STABILITY

B - 61

Alloc

100.0%
54.2%
54.2%
54.2%

100.0%

3.4%

100.0%
54.2%
100.0%

1.5%
100.0%
3.4%
10.7%

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

3.4%

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
10.7%
10.7%
10.7%
100.0%
10.7%

FY Direct

$38,600
$37,669
$35,176
$26,829
$24,400
$23,970
$21,300
$21,084
$20,900
$20,289
$20,100
$19,666
$18,832
$18,300
$17,000
$16,500
$16,092
$15,600
$15,300
$12,100
$10,893
$9,641
$9,427
$9,400
$9,245

FY Direct+GA

$42,900
$43,631
$50,135
$40,813
$30,100
$23,970
$24,600
547,317
$25,200
$20,289
$24,400
$25,966
$30,709
$21,200
$19,100
$16,500
$23,229
$19,900
$19,100
$12,100
$13,279
$19,977
$15,012
$11,100
$11,834

Page 19 of 32



ID
212 ET

EPMS No.

30560
30561
30569
31719
21188
30415
21191
21057
31156
31796
21660
30517
31789
21826
21789
21379
21796
39410
30487
21288
30366
20374
30572
30461
21234

Project Title

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 15/16

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 16/17

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 17/18

PAS1 LN ST FROM CSTTO LY ST RW

WATER RECYCLING PLANT MASTER PLAN UPDATE
CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR GAP PIPE SEGMENT

OPS DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 SEWER

PAS51 LQ ST FROM O ST TO LY ST RW

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 RW

PA51 TRABUCO RD, SR133 TO LY ST SEWER

LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS REPLACEMENT
GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - RECYCLED

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 16/17 - SEWER

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - SEWER

TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH ROAD

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 SEWER

PA51 MASTER RW FACILITIES

PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 36" RW PIPELINE

MBR BLOWER ROOM SAFETY PLATFORM

TECHNOLOGY DR AND LAGUNA CANYON RD RW ZONE B
PA51 MASTER SS FACILITIES

PIEZOMETER ACCESS AT RATTLESNAKE SYPHON & SAND CYN
SJR SEISMIC EVALUATION (DSOD)

OPS CENTER PERMANENT GENERATOR

Alloc

10.7%
10.7%
10.7%
100.0%
3.4%
10.7%
3.4%
3.4%
100.0%
10.7%
100.0%
10.7%
3.4%
3.4%
3.4%
100.0%
3.4%
93.5%
10.7%
3.4%
10.7%
81.3%
3.4%
10.7%
3.4%

FY Direct

$8,828
$8,828
$8,828
$6,900
$6,895
$6,292
$5,906
$5,834
$5,100
$4,708
$3,600
$2,450
$2,040
$2,040
$2,040
$1,600
$1,496
$1,403
$663
$377
$364
$244
$150
$118
$116

FY Direct+GA

$10,647
$10,647
$10,647
$8,600
$9,214
$7,790
$6,378
$10,615
$6,100
$6,688
$3,600
$4,430
$3,203
$3,203
$3,203
$1,600
$2,125
$3,647
$663
$411
$364
$650
$391
$300
$292

Page 20 of 32



ID
212 ET

213 TU

EPMS No.

21849
21170

21146
30512
21163
20116
20593
30447
20589
31866
21866
30435
31746
21217
30513
30496
20115
20813
21748
30420
21619
21469

Project Title

CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP
SJM SLS UPGRADE

MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES
TUSTIN LEGACY BARRANCA FROM ARMSTRONG TO ASTON RW
PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE
OCSD CORF 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 15/16

TUSTIN LEGACY ARMSTRONG ZONE A & WARNER ZONE A RW
OCSD EQUITY 14/15

TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE & MOFFETT DR 16" & 6" RW
TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE & MOFFETT DR 16" & 15" SS
RATTLESNAKE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED
TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER FROM ARMSTRONG TO LEGACY RW
TUSTIN LEGACY PARK AVE FROM JAMBOREE TO VICTORY SS
ILP NORTH CONVERSION - PIPELINES

ILP NORTH CONVERSION - RESERVOIR

OCSD CORF 14/15

OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16

SCSMP UPDATE AND LONG-TERM FLOW MONITORING

PASB PHASE 1A AND 1B 36" RW

ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
GREAT PARK COORDINATION AND SAMP UPDATE

Alloc

3.4%
3.4%

1.5%
100.0%
3.4%
3.4%
3.4%
100.0%
3.4%
100.0%
100.0%
4.1%
100.0%
100.0%
4.1%
4.1%
3.4%
1.5%
3.4%
4.1%
3.4%
100.0%

FY Direct

$61
$41

$8,022,863

$765,950
$247,000
$184,899
$162,697
$155,077
$133,500
$74,596
$58,700
$58,700
$57,556
$47,100
$36,700
$29,721
$28,856
$23,970
$20,289
$19,666
$17,011
$16,092
$11,200

FY Direct+GA

$150
$105

$9,248,797

$788,281
$297,800
$189,217
$162,697
$155,077
$155,800
$74,596
$82,200
$82,200
$61,111
$56,400
$42,900
$34,875
$32,743
$23,970
$20,289
$25,966
$18,253
$23,229
$17,400

Page 21 of 32



ID
213TU

EPMS No.

31057
21188
21191
21057
31697
30408
30382
30331
30561
30569
30560
30415
31789
21789
21826
31796
31379
31714
21796
30517
31378
31716
21378
21288
30487

Project Title

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 RW
WATER RECYCLING PLANT MASTER PLAN UPDATE
OPS DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 SEWER
GEN SYS MODS-RW 15/16

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE A TO SYPHON
SYPHON RESERVOIR EXPANSION

SANTIAGO DAM & OUTLET TWR SEISMIC STABILITY
RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 16/17

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 17/18

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 15/16
CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR GAP PIPE SEGMENT
GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - RECYCLED
GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - SEWER

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 16/17 - SEWER
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 RW

TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH ROAD

TUSTIN LEGACY TUSTIN RANCH, BARRANCA, ARMSTRONG RW

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 SEWER

LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS REPLACEMENT

TUSTIN LEGACY MASTER RW FACILITIES

TUSTIN LEGACY WARNER - LEGACY TO TUSTIN RANCH RW

TUSTIN LEGACY MASTER SEWER FACILITIES
MBR BLOWER ROOM SAFETY PLATFORM
PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 36" RW PIPELINE

Alloc

4.1%
3.4%
3.4%
3.4%
4.1%
4.1%
4.1%
4.1%
4.1%
4.1%
4.1%
4.1%
3.4%
3.4%
3.4%
4.1%
100.0%
100.0%
3.4%
4.1%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
3.4%
4.1%

FY Direct

$7,216
$6,895
$5,906
$5,834
$4,174
$3,694
$3,612
$3,542
$3,383
$3,383
$3,383
$2,411
$2,040
$2,040
$2,040
$1,804
$1,800
$1,600
$1,496
$939
$600
$500
$400
$377
$254

FY Direct+GA

$11,767
$9,214
$6,378
$10,615
$5,088
$7,655
$5,752
$4,535
$4,080
$4,080
$4,080
$2,985
$3,203
$3,203
$3,203
$2,563
$1,800
$1,600
$2,125
$1,697
$1,600
$500
$1,000
$411
$254

Page 22 of 32



ID EPMS No. Project Title Alloc FY Direct FY Direct+GA

213 TU
30572 PIEZOMETER ACCESS AT RATTLESNAKE SYPHON & SAND CYN 3.4% $150 $391
30366 TECHNOLOGY DR AND LAGUNA CANYON RD RW ZONE B 4.1% $139 $139
21234 OPS CENTER PERMANENT GENERATOR 3.4% 5116 $292
21849 CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP 3.4% S61 $150
30461 SJR SEISMIC EVALUATION (DSOD) 4.1% $45 5115
21170 SJM SLS UPGRADE 3.4% $41 $105
$2,219,154 $2,445,582
225-DeviD_Potable
21146 MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES 20.8% $10,926,055 $11,244,602
21163 PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE 48.5% $2,637,527 $2,699,122
20116 OCSD CORF 15/16 48.5% $2,320,822 $2,320,822
20593 OCSD EQUITY 15/16 48.5% $2,212,134 $2,212,134
20589 OCSD EQUITY 14/15 48.5% $1,064,090 $1,064,090
30435 RATTLESNAKE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED 51.0% $715,938 $760,155
30513 ILP NORTH CONVERSION - PIPELINES 51.0% $369,699 $433,806
30496 ILP NORTH CONVERSION - RESERVOIR 51.0% $358,938 $407,286
20115 OCSD CORF 14/15 48.5% $341,925 $341,925
20813 OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16 20.8% $289,418 $289,418
21748 SCSMP UPDATE AND LONG-TERM FLOW MONITORING 48.5% $280,524 $370,395
21619 ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION 48.5% $229,551 $331,352
30420 PA5B PHASE 1A AND 1B 36" RW 51.0% $211,599 $227,052
21188 WATER RECYCLING PLANT MASTER PLAN UPDATE 48.5% $98,358 $131,435
31057 ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 RW 51.0% $89,760 $146,370
21191 OPS DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 48.5% $84,245 $90,986
Page 23 of 32



iD EPMS No.

225-DeviD_Potable
21057
31697
30408
30382
30331
30560
30561
30569
30415
21789
21826
31789
30410
31796
21796
30570
30552
30517
30571
30409
21288
30487
30572
30366
21234

Project Title

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 SEWER

GEN SYS MODS-RW 15/16

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE A TO SYPHON
SYPHON RESERVOIR EXPANSION

SANTIAGO DAM & OUTLET TWR SEISMIC STABILITY

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 15/16

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 16/17

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 17/18

CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR GAP PIPE SEGMENT

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - SEWER

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 16/17 - SEWER

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - RECYCLED

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE C

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 RW

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 SEWER

REG RW - lIC ZONE B BPS UPGRADES

REG RW - NORTHWOOD ZONE B BPS UPGRADE

LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS REPLACEMENT
REG RW - 20"ZN B PIPE CONSTRUCTION & CONVERSION
REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE B

MBR BLOWER ROOM SAFETY PLATFORM

PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 36" RW PIPELINE

PIEZOMETER ACCESS AT RATTLESNAKE SYPHON & SAND CYN
TECHNOLOGY DR AND LAGUNA CANYON RD RW ZONE B
OPS CENTER PERMANENT GENERATOR

Alloc

48.5%
51.0%
51.0%
51.0%
51.0%
51.0%
51.0%
51.0%
51.0%
48.5%
48.5%
48.5%
27.8%
51.0%
48.5%
23.1%
23.1%
51.0%
23.1%
23.1%
48.5%
51.0%
48.5%
51.0%
48.5%

FY Direct

$83,226
$51,918
$45,951
$44,931
$44,064
$42,075
$42,075
$42,075
$29,988
$29,100
$29,100
$29,100
$27,272
$22,440
$21,340
$16,055
$14,992
$11,679
$11,435
$8,986
$5,384
$3,162
$2,134
$1,734
$1,649

FY Direct+GA

$151,417
$63,291
$95,217
$71,553
$56,406
$50,745
$50,745
$50,745
$37,128
$45,687
$45,687
$45,687
$54,127
$31,875
$30,313
$18,596
$21,368
$21,114
$17,394
$20,166
$5,869
$3,162
$5,578
$1,734
$4,171

Page 24 of 32



ID

EPMS No.

225-DeviD_Potable

240

21849
21170
30461

21287
30435
31886
30513
30496
30420
31057
31697
30408
30382
30331
30569
30560
30561
30415
31796
30517
30487
30366

Project Title

CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP
SIM SLS UPGRADE
SIR SEISMIC EVALUATION (DSOD)

NEWPORT COAST SLS IMPROVEMENTS

RATTLESNAKE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED
NEWPORT COAST JOINT BONDING PHASE 2

ILP NORTH CONVERSION - PIPELINES

ILP NORTH CONVERSION - RESERVOIR

PA5B PHASE 1A AND 1B 36" RW

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 RW

GEN SYS MODS-RW 15/16

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE A TO SYPHON

SYPHON RESERVOIR EXPANSION

SANTIAGO DAM & OUTLET TWR SEISMIC STABILITY

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 17/18

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 15/16

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 16/17

CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR GAP PIPE SEGMENT
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 RW

LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS REPLACEMENT
PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 36" RW PIPELINE

TECHNOLOGY DR AND LAGUNA CANYON RD RW ZONE B

Alloc

48.5%
48.5%
51.0%

100.0%
71.7%
100.0%
7.7%
7.7%
71.7%
7.7%
7.7%
7.7%
1.7%
7.7%
7.7%
7.7%
1.7%
7.7%
7.7%
7.7%
7.7%
7.7%

FY Direct

$873
$582
$561

$22,894,461

$291,100
$108,093

$80,500
$55,817
$54,193
$31,947
$13,552
$7,839
$6,938
56,784
$6,653
$6,353
$6,353
$6,353
$4,528
$3,388
$1,763
$477
$262

FY Direct+GA

$2,134
$1,504
$1,428

$24,075,788

$353,300
$114,769
$99,100
$65,496
$61,492
$34,280
$22,099
$9,556
$14,376
$10,803
$8,516
$7,662
$7,662
$7,662
$5,606
$4,813
$3,188
$477
$262

Page 25 of 32



ID EPMS No.

240
30461

253-FutDevID_Sewer
21146
21163
20116
20593
20589
30516
31717
30435
30426
30534
30421
30508
30513
30496
20115
20813
21748
21619
30420
30430
30410

Project Title

SJR SEISMIC EVALUATION (DSOD)

MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES
PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE
OCSD CORF 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 14/15

PA1 ORCHARD HILLS, NEIGHBORHOOD 1, 16" ZONE C
PAS5B PHASE 1A AND 1B 6" & 8" RW

RATTLESNAKE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED

PA6 PHASE 1 NEIGHBORHOOD 3 ZONE C RW

PA40 8TH ST RIDGE VALLEY TO C ST CAPITAL 6" RW
PASB IRVINE BLVD 8" ZONE B RW

PA6 NEIGHBORHOOD 5A RW ZONE D

ILP NORTH CONVERSION - PIPELINES

ILP NORTH CONVERSION - RESERVOIR

OCSD CORF 14/15

OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16

SCSMP UPDATE AND LONG-TERM FLOW MONITORING
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
PASB PHASE 1A AND 1B 36" RW

PASB PHASE 2 6" RW

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE C

Alloc

7.7%

4.1%
9.6%
9.6%
9.6%
9.6%
100.0%
100.0%
10.3%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
10.3%
10.3%
2.6%
4.1%
9.6%
9.6%
10.3%
100.0%
21.7%

FY Direct

585
$692,975

$2,162,683

$522,067
$459,379
$437,866
$210,624
$185,200
$156,500
$144,591
$133,800
$109,100
$83,300
$76,700
$74,665
$72,491
$67,680
$57,287
$55,526
$45,437
$42,735
$38,600
$21,288

FY Direct+GA

$216
$831,332

$2,225,736
$534,259
$459,379
$437,866
$210,624
$222,600
$178,800
$153,522
$152,500
$122,700
$100,000
$88,500
$87,612
$82,256
$67,680
$57,287
$73,315
$65,587
$45,856
$42,800
$42,250

Page 26 of 32



ID EPMS No.

253-FutDevID_Sewer
21188
31057
21191
21057
30246
30570
30552
30571
31697
30408
30382
30331
30409
30569
30561
30560
30280
30415
31789
21789
21826
31796
21796
31640
30245

Project Title

WATER RECYCLING PLANT MASTER PLAN UPDATE
ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 RW

OPS DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 SEWER
PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NEIGHBORHOQD 4

REG RW - lIC ZONE B BPS UPGRADES

REG RW - NORTHWOOD ZONE B BPS UPGRADE

REG RW - 20"ZN B PIPE CONSTRUCTION & CONVERSION

GEN SYS MODS-RW 15/16

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE A TO SYPHON
SYPHON RESERVOIR EXPANSION

SANTIAGO DAM & OUTLET TWR SEISMIC STABILITY
REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE B

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 17/18

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 16/17

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 15/16

PASB PHASE 5 GATEWAY PARK RW PIPES
CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR GAP PIPE SEGMENT
GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - RECYCLED
GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - SEWER

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 16/17 - SEWER
HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 RW

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 SEWER

PA39 PH2 RW FACILITIES

PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NEIGHBORHOOD 3

Alloc

9.6%
10.3%
9.6%
9.6%
100.0%
22.7%
22.7%
22.7%
10.3%
10.3%
10.3%
10.3%
22.7%
10.3%
10.3%
10.3%
100.0%
10.3%
9.6%
9.6%
9.6%
10.3%
9.6%
100.0%
100.0%

FY Direct

$19,469
$18,128
$16,675
$16,474
$16,400
$15,777
$14,732
$11,237
$10,485
$9,280
$9,074
$8,899
$8,830
$8,498
$8,498
$8,498
$6,400
$6,056
$5,760
$5,760
$5,760
$4,532
$4,224
$3,600
$2,700

FY Direct+GA

$26,016
$29,561
$18,010
$29,971
$16,400
$18,274
$20,998
$17,093
$12,782
$19,230
$14,451
$11,392
$19,817
$10,249
$10,249
$10,249
$8,200
$7,498
$9,043
$9,043
$9,043
$6,438
$6,000
$5,400
$7,300

Page 27 of 32



ID EPMS No. Project Title Alloc FY Direct FY Direct+GA

253-FutDevID_Sewer

30517 LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS REPLACEMENT 10.3% 52,359 $4,264
21288 MBR BLOWER ROOM SAFETY PLATFORM 9.6% $1,066 $1,162
31739 PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 6" & 8" RW 100.0% $900 $900
30428 PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NH 2 - 6" ZNB & 6" ZNC RW 100.0% $800 $800
30487 PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 36" RW PIPELINE 10.3% $639 $639
30449 PA1 ORCHARD HILLS NEIGHBORHOOD 2, 6" ZNC RW 100.0% $500 $500
30572 PIEZOMETER ACCESS AT RATTLESNAKE SYPHON & SAND CYN 9.6% $422 $1,104
30366 TECHNOLOGY DR AND LAGUNA CANYON RD RW ZONE B 10.3% $350 $350
21234 OPS CENTER PERMANENT GENERATOR 9.6% $326 $826
30416 PA40 PH3B RW CAPITAL FACILITIES 100.0% $300 $300
31605 PA4Q PH2 RW FACILITIES 100.0% $300 $300
30797 PA6 RW PIPELINES 100.0% $300 $300
30445 PA39 PHASE 1 RW PIPELINES 100.0% $200 $200
30424 PA40 NEIGHBORHOOD 2G BACKBONE RW FACILITIES 100.0% $200 $200
21849 CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP 9.6% $173 $422
21170 SIM SLS UPGRADE 9.6% $115 $298
30461 SJR SEISMIC EVALUATION (DSOD) 10.3% $113 5288
39410 PA51 MASTER RW FACILITIES 6.5% $98 $254
20374 PA51 MASTER SS FACILITIES 18.7% $56 $150

$5,412,481 $5,817,088

256
21146 MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES 0.1% $67,584 $69,554
21163 PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE 0.3% $16,315 $16,696
20116 OCSD CORF 15/16 0.3% $14,356 $14,356
Page 28 of 32



ID EPMS No.

256
20593
20589
20115
20813
21748
21619
21188
21191
21057
21826
31789
21789
21796
21288
30572
21234
21849
21170

285-LF_OSA_Ssewer
21146
21163
20116
20593

Project Title

OCSD EQUITY 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 14/15

OCSD CORF 14/15

OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16

SCSMP UPDATE AND LONG-TERM FLOW MONITORING
ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION
WATER RECYCLING PLANT MASTER PLAN UPDATE

OPS DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 SEWER

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 16/17 - SEWER

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - RECYCLED

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - SEWER

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 SEWER

MBR BLOWER ROOM SAFETY PLATFORM

PIEZOMETER ACCESS AT RATTLESNAKE SYPHON & SAND CYN
OPS CENTER PERMANENT GENERATOR

CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP

SIM SLS UPGRADE

MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES
PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE
OCSD CORF 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 15/16

Alloc

0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.1%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%

0.6%
1.3%
1.3%
1.3%

FY Direct

$13,683

$6,582
$2,115
$1,790
$1,735
$1,420
$608
$521
$515
$180
$180
$180
$132
$33
$13
$10
S5
$4

$127,962

$292,863
$70,697
$62,208
$59,294

FY Direct+GA

$13,683

$6,582
$2,115
$1,790
$2,291
$2,050
$813
$563
$937
$283
$283
$283
$188
$36
$35
$26
$13
$9

$132,583

$301,402
$72,348
$62,208
$59,294

Page 29 of 32



ID EPMS No.

285-LF_OSA_Ssewer
20589
30435
30513
30496
20115
20813
21748
30420
21619
31057
21188
21191
21057
31697
21560
31562
30408
30382
30331
30569
30561
30560
21562
30415
30573

Project Title

OCSD EQUITY 14/15

RATTLESNAKE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE AND FEED

ILP NORTH CONVERSION - PIPELINES

ILP NORTH CONVERSION - RESERVOIR

OCSD CORF 14/15

OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16

SCSMP UPDATE AND LONG-TERM FLOW MONITORING
PASB PHASE 1A AND 1B 36" RW

ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 RW
WATER RECYCLING PLANT MASTER PLAN UPDATE
OPS DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 SEWER
GEN SYS MODS-RW 15/16

LAKE FOREST SEWER OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS
LAKE FOREST RW OPPORTUNITY AREAS

REG RW - MULTI-ZONE BPS - ZONE A TO SYPHON
SYPHON RESERVOIR EXPANSION

SANTIAGO DAM & OUTLET TWR SEISMIC STABILITY
RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 17/18

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 16/17

RW IMPROVEMENTS FOR OFF-SITE 15/16

LAKE FOREST SEWER OPPORTUNITY AREAS
CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR GAP PIPE SEGMENT
LAKE FOREST RW OPP AREA ZONE C CONVERSION.

B-72

Alloc

1.3%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.3%
0.6%
1.3%
1.5%
1.3%
1.5%
1.3%
1.3%
1.3%
1.5%
100.0%
100.0%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
1.5%
100.0%
1.5%
100.0%

FY Direct

$28,522
$21,057
$10,874
$10,557
$9,165
$7,758
$7,519
$6,224
$6,153
$2,640
$2,636
$2,258
$2,231
$1,527
$1,400
$1,400
$1,352
$1,322
$1,296
$1,238
$1,238
$1,238
$900
$882
$800

FY Direct+GA

$28,522
$22,358
$12,759
$11,979
$9,165
$7,758
$9,928
$6,678
$8,882
$4,305
$3,523
$2,439
$4,059
$1,862
$3,700
$3,600
$2,801
$2,105
$1,659
$1,493
$1,493
$1,493
$2,500
$1,092
$2,100

Page 30 of 32



ID

EPMS No.

285-LF_OSA_Ssewer

288

21789
31789
21826
31796
21796
30517
21288
30487
30572
30366
21234
21849
30461
21170

21146
21163
20116
20593
20589
20115
20813
21748

Project Title

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - SEWER

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - RECYCLED

GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 16/17 - SEWER

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 RW

HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 SEWER

LAKE FOREST CONTROL AND TELEMETRY SYS REPLACEMENT
MBR BLOWER ROOM SAFETY PLATFORM

PA18S HIDDEN CANYON 36" RW PIPELINE

PIEZOMETER ACCESS AT RATTLESNAKE SYPHON & SAND CYN
TECHNOLOGY DR AND LAGUNA CANYON RD RW ZONE B
OPS CENTER PERMANENT GENERATOR

CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP

SIR SEISMIC EVALUATION (DSOD)

SJM SLS UPGRADE

MWRP BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES
PETERS CANYON WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE
OCSD CORF 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 15/16

OCSD EQUITY 14/15

OCSD CORF 14/15

OCSD SOLIDS HANDLING 15/16

SCSMP UPDATE AND LONG-TERM FLOW MONITORING

Alloc

1.3%
1.3%
1.3%
1.5%
1.3%
1.5%
1.3%
1.5%
1.3%
1.5%
1.3%
1.3%
1.5%
1.3%

0.1%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.3%
0.1%
0.3%

FY Direct

$780
$780
$780
$660
$572
$344
$144
$93
$57
$51
$44
$23
$17
$16

$621,606

$67,584
$16,315
$14,356
$13,683
$6,582
$2,115
$1,790
$1,735

FY Direct+GA

51,225
$1,225
$1,225
$938
$813
$621
$157
$93
$150
$51
$112
$57
$42
$40

$660,246

$69,554
$16,696
$14,356
$13,683
$6,582
$2,115
$1,790
$2,291

Page 31 of 32



ID EPMS No. Project Title Alloc FY Direct FY Direct+GA
288

21619 ENTERPRISE ASSET MGMT SOFTWARE IMPLEMENTATION 0.3% $1,420 $2,050
21188 WATER RECYCLING PLANT MASTER PLAN UPDATE 0.3% $608 $813
21191 OPS DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 0.3% $521 $563
21057 ENG PLANNING STUDY RESERVE 15/16 SEWER 0.3% $515 $937
31789 GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - RECYCLED 0.3% $180 $283
21826 GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 16/17 - SEWER 0.3% $180 $283
21789 GIS SUPPORT APPLICATIONS 15/16 - SEWER 0.3% $180 $283
21796 HYDRAULIC MODELING 15/16 SEWER 0.3% $132 $188
21288 MBR BLOWER ROOM SAFETY PLATFORM 0.3% $33 $36
30572 PIEZOMETER ACCESS AT RATTLESNAKE SYPHON & SAND CYN 0.3% $13 $35
21234 OPS CENTER PERMANENT GENERATOR 0.3% $10 $26
21849 CENTRALIZED CONTROL ROOM AT MWRP 0.3% S5 $13
21170 SIM SLS UPGRADE 0.3% S4 S9
$127,962 $132,583
$150,167,072 $159,429,884
Page 32 of 32



5
N
N

)

qc}-’;t. e

.* BN Y

v

A
v
N
AT
SRR
RS
3

., Irvine Ranch Water District
Potable Water System
£2) Improvement District

December 2013

e@{»‘}-ﬁ‘@
\\,?-{‘\(?‘f{ @
NS




Irvine Ranch Water District
Sewer System
Improvement District

== E? ) .
N e
Piona 2 |

Ad ;
I e & NOID =

i
s
¥ 3 srebon o
RESERIVOR

>, " B - 0 Tl

- 2 D _:}" g

r____ | g \
. el
ol o




EXHIBIT “C”

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF IRVINE
RANCH WATER DISTRICT, ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA,
APPROVING DISTRICT’S CAPITAL BUDGET
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-16

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD)
has considered the capital project needs of IRWD for Fiscal Year 2015-16; and

WHEREAS, a Capital Budget, which includes both the capital expenditures
projected for Fiscal Year 2015-16 and entire project budgets for the listed projects, as set forth in
the attached Exhibil “A” has been prepared and reviewed by this Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, during the review of the Capital Budget by the Board of Directors,
the Board “flagged” certain capital expenditures for projects for further review by the Board; and

WHEREAS, Article XIIIB of the Constitution of the State of California provides
that the appropriations of local agencies will be limited each year to those of the previous year,
adjusted for changes in population, cost of living and transfers in sources of funding; and

WHEREAS, Section 8 of Article XIIIB excludes from its limitations user charges
and fees and regulatory fees, to the extent such fees and charges do not produce revenue
exceeding the costs reasonably borne in providing the regulation, product or service, and Section
9 of Article XIIIB excludes from the appropriations subject to limitation an appropriation for a
qualified capital outlay project, defined by statute as an appropriation for a fixed asset (including
land and construction) with a useful life of 10 or more years and a value which equals or exceeds
one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000); and

WHEREAS, the expenditures identified in the Capital Budget are to be funded
entirely from user fees and charges excluded by Article XIIIB, Section 8, and other monies that
are not proceeds of taxes, such as proceeds of bonds or other indebtedness, and/or are
expenditures for qualified capital outlay projects pursuant to Article XIIIB, Section 9.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of IRWD DOES HEREBY
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER as follows:

Section 1. The revenues which have been collected from connection fees and
have been deposited in the capital funds of the Improvement Districts, to the extent not
previously or hereafter committed or appropriated to pay reimbursement, bonding and other
financing or fund-management related costs for capital facilities, are hereby appropriated to pay
costs of the projects shown in the Capital Budget.

Section 2. That relative to appropriations subject to limitation under Article

XIIIB of the Constitution of the State of California, it is hereby determined that IRWD’s Capital
Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-16 is to be funded totally by revenues other than the proceeds of

C-1



taxes, and/or that the expenditures identified in such Capital Budget are for qualified capital
outlay projects, and that the documentation used in making such determination has been on file
in the offices of IRWD for not less than 15 days prior to the date hereof, pursuant to Section
7910 of the Government Code of the State of California.

Section 3. Subject in all respects to prior pledges for debt service requirements,
including those contained in Resolution No. 2002-10, the Treasurer is hereby authorized and
directed to allocate to the Replacement Fund, 28% of the general 1% ad valorem property tax
revenues for the 2015-16 fiscal year, to be expended for qualified capital outlay projects.

Section 4. That IRWD’s Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-16 is in compliance
with the provisions of Article XIIB of the Constitution of the State of California.

Section 5. That IRWD’s Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-16, shown in the
attached Exhibit “A” and by this reference incorporated herein, be and the same is hereby
approved.

Section 6. That the capital expenditures for projects set forth in the attached
Exhibit “A” identified with “Yes” in the Flag column are “flagged” for further review by the
Board of Directors prior to implementation, pursuant to the Policy Regarding Authorization of
Expenditures.

ADOPTED, SIGNED and APPROVED this 8th day of June, 2015.

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
and of the Board of Directors thereof

Assistant Secretary, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
and of the Board of Directors thereof

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

BOWIE, ARNESON, WILES & GIANNONE
Legal Counsel - IRWD

By




June 8, 2015
Prepared and 0
Submitted by: L. Bonkows

Approved by: P. Cook/ ¢, .

CONSENT CALENDAR

MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING

SUMMARY:
Provided are the minutes of the May 26, 2015 Regular Board Meeting minutes for approval.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPILIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 26, 2015 REGULAR BOARD MEETING BE
APPROVED AS PRESENTED.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Minutes

ns-Minutes of Board Meeting



EXHIBIT “A”
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - MAY 26, 2015

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) was
called to order at 5:00 p.m. by President LaMar on May 26, 2015 in the District office, 15600 Sand
Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California.

Directors Present: Withers, Matheis, Reinhart, LaMar and Swan.
Directors Absent: None.

Also Present: General Manager Cook, Executive Director of Engineering and Water Quality
Burton, Executive Director of Finance and Administration Clary, Executive Director of Water
Policy Weghorst, Executive Director of Operations Sheilds, Director of Public Affairs Beeman,
Director of Human Resources Roney, Director of Water Resources Sanchez, Director of Treasury
and Risk Management Jacobson, Assistant Director of Recycling Operations Lee, Legal Counsel
Arneson, Secretary Bonkowski, Ms. Christine Compton, Mr. Christopher Smithson, Ms. Gina
Jackson, Mr. Ray Bennett, Mr. Tan Swift, Mr. Mike Hoolihan, Mr. Matt Veeh, Ms. Rosemary
Riddle, Ms. Sandy Garcia, Mr. Jim Reed, Mr. Bruce Newell, Mr. Pierce Rossum, Mr. Rob
Granthum, and other members of the public and staff.

Written and Oral Communications: None.

Items too late to be agendized: None.

CONSENT CALENDAR

On MOTION by Matheis, seconded and unanimously carried, CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS
3 THROUGH 12 WERE APPROVED AS FOLLOWS:

3 MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the May 11, 2015 Regular Board Meeting and the
May 19, 2015 Adjourned Regular Board Meeting be approved as presented.

4. RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
AND EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board ratify/approve the meetings and events for Steven
LaMar, Mary Aileen Matheis, Douglas Reinhart, and Peer Swan as described.

5 2015 STATE LEG 1LATIVE UPDATE

Recommendation: That the Board authorize staff to work to mitigate SB 992 (2014)’s
impact on homeowners who take steps to substantially reduce outdoor water use during
the drought through communication with homeowner associations and a legislative
solution; and take a “Support” position on AB 1201 (Salas).

A-1



CONSENT CALENDAR (CONTINUED)

6.

10.

11.

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT’S STRATEGIC MEASURES
Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the report.
APRIL 2015 TREASURY REPORTS

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the Treasurer’s Investment Summary
Report, the Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary for April 2015, and Disclosure Report
of Reimbursements to Board members and staff; approve the April 2015 Summary of
Payroll Ach Payments in the total amount of $1,484,635 and approve the April 2015
Accounts Payable Disbursement Summary of Warrants 357376 through 358199,
Workers’ Compensation distributions, wire transfers, payroll withholding distributions
and voided checks in the total amount of $29,372,726.

AUDIT FIRM CHANGE FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 AND
2016

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a new Audit
Services Contract with Davis Farr LLP for the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2015 and
2016 at a cost of approximately $100,000 plus possible single audit fees not to exceed
$2,600 over the two-year period.

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT APARTMENT CONSULTANT — CONTRACT
RENEWAL

Recommendation: That the Board approve the retention of Market-THINK LLC as
apartment consultant for the District’s apartment properties for a period of two years
effective May 1, 2015 for an amount not to exceed $103,080 which includes monthly out-
of-pocket expenses estimated at $50 per month.

ON-CALL DATABASE ADMINISTRATION CONSULTANTS

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an On-Call
Professional Services Agreement with LCS Technologies, Inc. in the amount of
$120,000, for on-call database administration services.

ON-CALL INFORMATION SERVICES PROFESSIONAL PROGRAMMING AND
NETWORK CONSULTANTS

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an On-Call
Professional Services Agreement with Outsource Technical in the amount of $400,000,
for on-call programming, analysis, and network services for miscellaneous projects.



CONSENT CALENDAR (CONTINUED)

12. PUMP
DYER ROAD WELL FIELD WELLS NOS.12 AND 13 ROOF MODIFICATIONS’
DESIGN CONSULTANT SELECTION

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a
Professional Services Agreement for engineering services with Kleinfelder in the amount
of $112,395 for the Michelson Water Recycling Plant Filter Pump Station 2 and the Dyer
Road Well Field Wells Nos. 12 and 13 Roof Modifications, Projects 21167 (5469) and
11752 (5453).

ACTION CALENDAR
COST OF SERVICE STUDY AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

Executive Director of Finance and Administration Clary said that the District’s consultant,
Carollo Engineering, Inc., assisted by staff and legal counsel, has developed the District’s Cost
of Service Study which evaluates the District’s existing rate setting processes and considered rate
structure design components.

Using a PowerPoint presentation, Mr. Pierce Rossum of Carollo Engineering presented an
overview of this study. He reviewed the District’s objectives including: 1) providing water,
sewer, and recycled service at rates that are fair and equitable; 2) charging rates that are
consistent with industry-accepted cost of service principles that satisfy future revenue
requirements and meet all state law requirements (including Proposition 218); and 3) providing
services while fairly and equitably allocating costs appropriately to those benefitting from them.
Mr. Rossum reviewed key elements including: 1) fiscal policies and rate structure; 2) revenue
requirements; 3) cost of service; and 4) rate design. He said that the analysis defines how costs
are incurred and how revenues should be recovered. He said the analysis also confirms that
IRWD’s water rates and its sewer and recycled water systems development process have a strong
financial and equity foundation. He further reviewed policy considerations for 1) water service
charge for low volume users; 2) recycled water’s cost of service nexus; and 3) sewer rate
methodology refinement.

Director Swan reported that this item was reviewed by the Finance and Personnel Committee on
December 9, 2014, January 13, 2015, and February 21, 2015. Following discussion, Director
Reinhart noted that he will be reviewing this document further and will provide any comments to
the General Manager.

B FOR
2015-16

Executive Director of Finance of Administration Clary reported that the recommended proposed
Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 Operating Budget for Irvine Ranch Water District is $140.4 million,
representing an increase of $9.7 million, or 7.5%, over FY 2014-15. Ms. Clary said that the
preliminary proposed Operating Budget presented at the April 27, 2015 Board meeting was

A-3



$139.0 million and that the draft version of the FY 2015-16 Operating Budget presented to the
Board on April 27, 2015 was changed to reflect the costs associated with achieving the revised
State Water Resources Control Board proposed potable water use reduction of 16%. She said
that the $1.3 million or 0.9% recommended increase since the April 27, 2015 Board meeting
reflects the need to incur certain operating costs even with the reduction in sales.

Copies of supplemental pages of the Operating Budget Assumptions were placed before each
Director. Mr. Christopher Smithson explained that the changes related to rate stabilization for
water, sewer and recycled water.

On MOTION by Swan, seconded and unanimously carried, THE BOARD ADOPTED THE
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-12

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT,
ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING DISTRICT’S OPERATING BUDGET FOR

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 AND DETERMINING COMPLIANCE WITH
ARTICLE XIIIB OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

STATI
IN CO

The Newport Coast Lift Station Rehabilitation project will recoat the lift station wet well,
construct a building to house spill containment materials, construct a stairway into the lift station
dry well and rehabilitate the original ductile iron force main. On MOTION by Reinhart,
seconded and unanimously carried, THE BOARD AUTHORIZED A BUDGET INCREASE
FOR PROJECT 21168 (5470) IN THE AMOUNT OF $296,200, FROM $256,000 TO $552,200;
AUTHORIZED THE ADDITION OF PROJECT 21287 (6400) IN THE AMOUNT OF
$574,200 TO THE FY 2014-15 CAPITAL BUDGET; AND AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GHD IN
THE AMOUNT OF $395,677, FOR THE NEWPORT COAST LIFT STATION AND FORCE
MAIN REHABILITATION, PROJECTS 21168 (5470) AND 21287 (6400).

PETERS CANYON WASH CHANNEL WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE
A
AND CONSTRUCTION AWARD

General Manager Cook reported that an amendment to the agreement is necessary to update the
estimated project cost, to adjust each funding Party's respective capital cost contribution, and to
augment and clarify certain provisions with respect to capital and operations and maintenance
costs. He said that this amendment also updates the project schedule, describes the parties' rights
and obligations with respect to suspension of the project operation, and clarifies the rights and
obligations with respect to grant funding.

Executive Director of Water Policy Weghorst reported that Tetra Tech, Inc. submitted Variance
No. 3 in the amount of $27,750 which accounts for additional plan revisions associated with

A-4



comments received from staff and the funding parties after submission of the final design
deliverable and for additional budget associated with extended coordination and project
administration. He said that staff also requested Tetra Tech, Inc. to submit an updated proposal
for engineering support during construction. The updated proposal includes additional budget
for submittals, RFTIs, site visits, record drawings, and construction coordination that more
accurately reflects the requirements associated with the final configuration of the project.

Staff received proposals from Borchard Surveying and Mapping, Inc., Bush & Associates, Inc.,
Guida Surveying, Inc., and Hunsaker & Associates, Inc. to provide construction phase surveying
services. Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a
Professional Services Agreement with Hunsaker for construction phase surveying services.
Additionally, staff received proposals from LGC Geotechnical, Inc., Ninyo & Moore, and NMG
Geotechnical, Inc. to provide construction phase soils and materials testing. Staff recommends
that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with
NMG.

Additionally, the project was advertised for construction February 9, 2015 to a select list of 12
contractors with a bid opening on March 12, 2015 with bids received from CCL Contracting,
Inc., E.J. Meyer Company, Paulus Engineering, Inc., Sully-Miller Contracting, Vido Artukovich
& Sons, Inc., and W.A. Rasic Construction. E.J. Meyer Company is the apparent low bidder.
Staff reviewed E.J. Meyer Company’s bid and has determined that it is responsive. Staff
recommends awarding the construction contract to E.J. Meyer Company in the amount of
$7,877,771.

Director Swan said that this project was reviewed by the Newport Bay Watershed Executive
Committee last week and believes this project to be valuable. On MOTIO by Reinhart,
seconded and unanimously carried, THE BOARD AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL
MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE PETERS CANYON WASH
CHANNEL WATER CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH
THE CITY OF IRVINE, THE CITY OF TUSTIN, ORANGE COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL
DISTRICT, CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AND THE COUNTY
OF ORANGE; AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE VARIANCE
NO. 3, IN THE AMOUNT OF $27,750, WITH TETRA TECH, INC. FOR ADDITIONAL
ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES; AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO
EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT, IN THE AMOUNT OF $222,250,
WITH TETRA TECH, INC. FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION;
AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT, IN THE AMOUNT OF $115,160, WITH HUNSAKER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
FOR SURVEYING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION; AUTHORIZED THE
GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT, IN
THE AMOUNT OF $128,326, WITH NMG GEOTECHNICAL, INC. FOR GEOTECHNICAL
SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION; AND AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER
TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH E.J. MEYER COMPANY IN THE
AMOUNT OF $7,877,777 FOR THE PETERS CANYON WASH CHANNEL WATER
CAPTURE AND REUSE PIPELINE, PROJECT 21163 (4985).

A-5



AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF TUSTIN FOR RELOCATION OF SERVICE
CONNECTION OC-58. MITIGATION OF WELL 21 AND 22 IMPACTS. AND AMENDING

AMP AND
EXCHANGE OF TUSTIN LEGACY WELL SITES

Using a PowerPoint presentation, Principle Engineer Hoolihan reported that staff has been
working with the City of Tustin (Tustin) on an agreement for the relocation of IRWD’s OC-58
facility in the intersection of Redhill Avenue and Warner Avenue. The OC-58 facility was
formerly used to serve both the City of Tustin (Tustin) and El Toro Marine Corps Air Stations
through the 18-inch “Navy” pipeline which has since been abandoned. The agreement will
abandon the existing OC-58 facilities and replace both the 1996 “SAMP/Well Site Exchange
Agreement” and the 2011 “Agreement for Cooperative Implementation of IRWD Well 21 and 22
Groundwater Treatment Project.”

Mr. Hoolihan said that under the new agreement, Tustin will pay for the abandonment of the OC-
58 facility and Well 29H1, a former Irvine Company well currently owned by IRWD. Tustin
will also grant new easements to IRWD and MWD for the relocation of the OC-58 facility,
permanent easement to IRWD for a new well site, and relieve IRWD of all mitigation obligations
from the Well 21 and 22 treatment project. In return, IRWD agrees to pay all costs for the future
relocation of the OC-58 facility, quitclaim all existing OC-58 and Well 29H1 easements, and
relinquish rights to purchase four new well sites on the Tustin Legacy property as identified in
the 1996 SAMP/Well Site Exchange Agreement. Additionally, IRWD will pay Tustin $90,000
for physical modifications to five Tustin wells as identified in the Well 21 and 22 Impact
Analysis.

Mr. Hoolihan said that the easement documents for the new OC-58 site and the new well site
have been finalized. Because the property for the proposed well site is currently owned by the
Department of Navy (DON) and is pending final transfer to Tustin, an interim well site license
agreement is required until Tustin can grant the permanent easement. The license agreement was
reviewed by DON and it imposed a requirement that an impact analysis of its groundwater
cleanup operations be completed before any well is drilled. This requirement will be imposed on
both the proposed license agreement and the final transfer easements. IRWD added language to
the agreement that the City, at no cost to IRWD, would procure an alternative well site for
IRWD if IRWD could not drill a well in a timely manner or properly maintain a well at the park
site due to DON restrictions. Final transfer of the property from the DON to Tustin is expected
to occur sometime in 2017, at which time a permanent well easement and temporary construction
easement for the well site will be executed.

Director Reinhart reported that this item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations
Committee on April 21, 2015. On MOTION by Reinhart, seconded and unanimously carried,
THE BOARD AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE
“AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TUSTIN AND IRVINE RANCH WATER
DISTRICT FOR RELOCATION OF SERVICE CONNECTION OC-58, MITIGATION OF
WELL 21 AND 22 IMPACTS, AND AMENDING AND RESTATING AGREEMENT FOR
THE PREPARATION OF SAMP AND EXCHANGE OF TUSTIN LEGACY WELL SITES,”
SUBJECT TO NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES.

A-6



AND REQUEST FOR BUDGET INCREASE

Executive Director of Water Policy Weghorst reported that the drilling and construction of wells
for the Drought Relief Project is ongoing in the Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District
service area. Mr. Weghorst said that this project will allow IRWD, Rosedale and Castaic Lake
Water Agency (CLWA) to benefit from additional groundwater recovery and conveyance
capacities that will supplement existing and new water banking and exchange programs. He said
that a Cost Sharing Agreement for the project was approved by the Board in February 2015
which covers the drilling and construction of six wells that will be shared by IRWD and CLWA
but did not cover equipping the wells. Amendment No. 1 to the Cost Sharing Agreement has
been prepared to provide the terms for cost sharing the equipping of the six wells.

Mr. Weghorst said that staff and CLW A have evaluated alternatives for equipping the six shared
wells and that design consultants at URS have prepared designs and specifications that are
consistent with IRWD’s standards and will be incorporated into a new project manual for the
well equipping project. Based on estimates provided by URS, IRWD’s share of the cost of the
design and construction to equip the Superior East and West wells will be approximately
$1,682,000. Staff recommends an increase to the FY 2014-15 Capital Budget for Project 11812
(6023) in the amount of $1,904,100 to fund IRWD’s share of the design and construction for
equipping the six wells and associated project management, administration and inspection work.

Director Swan reported that this item was reviewed and approved by the Water Banking
Committee on May 21, 2015. On MOTION by Swan, seconded and unanimously carried, THE
BOARD AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO. 1
TO THE COST SHARING AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES;
AND APPROVE AN INCREASE TO THE FY 2014-15 CAPITAL BUDGET FOR PROJECT
11812 (6023) IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,904,100 TO FUND IRWD’S SHARE OF DESIGN,
CONSTRUCTION, PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AND INSPECTION COSTS FOR
EQUIPPING OF SIX WELLS TO BE SHARED BY IRWD AND CLWA.

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

General Manager Cook reported that the MWD turf replacement was discussed today where it
implemented caps of $2 a square foot for grass removals.

Mr. Cook introduced Mr. Matthew Veeh, the District’s new Public Affairs Manager, who is a
former Public Affairs Director from the Long Beach Water Department.

Mr. Cook presented an award the District received from the Orange County League of
Conservation voters for environmental excellence in 2015.

He further said that he will be participating on a water panel on Thursday hosted by the Orange
County Taxpayers’ Association.

A-7



DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS

Director Reinhart commented on the recent District “Pipelines” and its messaging relative to the
lawns and sprinkler settings for watering. Director Reinhart left the Board room at 6:25 p.m.

Director Swan reported on his attendance at an OCWA lunch meeting and a Newport Bay
Watershed Executive Committee meeting where he was elected Chairman. He said he will be
attending a Southern California Dialogue meeting tomorrow.

Director Matheis noted that she was on the east coast for two weeks and folks are very aware of
the drought conditions in California.

Mr. Jim Reed, the District’s consultant, reported that he attended an ISDOC Executive
Committee meeting, a monthly WACO meeting, a City of Lake Forest Council meeting, and a
Lake Forest Chamber of Commerce meeting. Mr. Bruce Newell, the District’s consultant, said
that he attended an Inter-Canyon League meeting and that they will be inviting the District to
speak on the drought conditions.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, President .aMar adjourned the Board meeting at 6:30 p.m.

APPROVED and SIGNED this 8" day of June, 2015.

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Secretary IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Legal Counsel - Bowie, Arneson,
Wiles & Giannone

A-8



June 8, 2015
Prepared and
Submitted by: N. Savedra

Approved by: P. Co 6 A

CONSENT CALENDAR

RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE AT AND EVENTS

SUMMARY:

Pursuant to Resolution 2006-29 adopted on August 28, 2006, approval of attendance of the following
events and meetings are required by the Board of Directors.

Events/Meetings

Steven LaMar

6/04/15 Coast Meeting at OCFA relative to Nature Reserve of Orange County
6/12/15 ACC-0C 2015 City Infrastructure Summit

6/13/15 IRWD Resident Tour

6/25/15 SCWC Stormwater Workshop-Drought Proof Strategy

7/29-30/15 California Environmental Dialogue Plenary Meeting, Sonoma, CA
Mary Aileen Matheis

6/04/15 South OC Watershed Mgmt Area Executive Committee Meeting
6/11/15 Tustin’s State of the City Address

6/12/15 ACC-0OC 2015 City Infrastructure Summit

6/14-16/15 California Water Law & Policy, San Francisco, CA

6/25/15 SCWC Stormwater Workshop-Drought Proof Strategy

Douglas Reinhart

6/25/15 SCWC Stormwater Workshop-Drought Proof Strategy

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD RATIFY/APPROVE THE MEETINGS AND EVENTS FOR STEVEN LAMAR,
MARY AILEEN MATHEIS, AND DOUGLAS REINHART AS DESCRIBED.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

None

Board Mtgs Events.doc



June 8, 2015
Prepared by:  Gretchen Ronin
Submitted by: Jenny R

Approved by: Paul Co M

CONSENT CALENDAR
PROPOSED SALARY GRADE CHANGES FOR FY 2015-16
SUMMARY:

As a follow-up to the adoption of the District’s FY 2015-16 Operating Budget, staff recommends
the Board approve the proposed changes in the budgeted salary positions and adopt a resolution
revising the Salary Grade Schedule as presented, effective July 1, 2015.

BACKGROUND:

Each year during the process of developing the District’s Operating Budget, staff reviews the
current budgeted positions, salaries, and benefits to determine the necessary staffing levels and to
maintain a competitive compensation package within our industry. Staff’s efforts for the
operating budget were focused on current and future staffing needs. The justifications for
staffing and organizational changes, and the associated costs and cost savings have been
incorporated in the FY 2015-16 Operating Budget adopted by the Board on May 26, 2015.

Staff recommends that three job titles be removed from the Salary Grade Schedule, five job titles
be added for new or re-titled positions, and three job titles be moved to correspond with the
reclassifications adopted in the Operating Budget. Staff recommends the Board approve the
proposed changes to the Salary Grade Schedule, which is attached as Exhibit “A”, and adopt a
resolution revising Salary Grade Schedule, effective July 1, 2015, which is attached as Exhibit
“B”.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The fiscal impacts are included in the FY 2015-16 Operating Budget adopted by the Board on
May 26, 2015.

This item is not a project as defined in the California Environmental Quality Act Code of
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15378.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item is a follow-up to the FY 2015-16 Operating Budget adopted by the Board on May 26,
2015.

2015-16 Salary Grade changes.doc



Consent Calendar: Proposed Salary Grade Schedule Changes for FY 2015-16
June 8, 2015
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE THE PROPOSED CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT’S
BUDGETED SALARY POSITIONS AS OUTLINED IN THE OPERATING BUDGET
ADOPTED BY THE BOARD ON MAY 26, 2015; APPROVE THE REVISED SALARY
GRADE SCHEDULE AS OUTLINED IN EXHIBIT “A” EFFECTIVE WITH THE
APPROVED FY 2015-16 OPERATING BUDGET ON JULY 1, 2015; AND ADOPT THE
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT RESCINDING
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-8 AND ESTABLISHING A

REVISED SCHEDULE OF POSITIONS AND SALARY
RATE RANGES

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” —Proposed IRWD Salary Grade Schedule
Exhibit “B” — Resolution Revising Schedule of Positions and Salary Rate Changes



NON-EXEMPT

SALARY GRADE UlL.N

SALARY GRADE U2.N

SALARY GRADE U3.N

SALARY GRADE U4.N

SALARY GRADE U5.N

SALARY GRADE U6.N

SALARY GRADE U7.N

SALARY GRADE U8.N

SALARY GRADE U9.N

SALARY GRADE U10.N

SALARY GRADE U11.N

SALARY GRADE U12.N

SALARY GRADE U13.N

SALARY GRADE U14.N

SALARY GRADE U15.N

SALARY GRADE U16.N

MINIMUM

$2656

$2714

$2771

$2821

$2885

$2943

$3001

$3067

$3126

$3190

$3252

$3316

$3378

$3454

$3528

$3611
A-1

MAXIMUM

$3293

$3383

$3476

$3577

$3676

$3783

$3888

$4000

$4110

$4222

$4331

$4457

$4585

$4714

$4840

$4975

EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE
TOP OF RANGE

$3457

$3553

$3651

$3756

$3861

$3972

$4083

$4200

$4316

$4432

$4545

$4681

$4815

$4950

$5082

$5223



NON-EXEMPT

SALARY GRADE U17.N

SALARY GRADE U18.N

SALARY GRADE U19.N

SALARY GRADE U20.N

SALARY GRADE U21.N

SALARY GRADE U22.N
Executive Secretary
Human Resources Assistant

SALARY GRADE U23.N

SALARY GRADE U24.N

SALARY GRADE U25.N

SALARY GRADE U26.N
Executive Assistant

SALARY GRADE U27.N

SALARY GRADE U28.N

SALARY GRADE U29.N
Safety & Security Specialist
Administrative Assistant

SALARY GRADE U30.N
Collection Systems Supervisor

SALARY GRADE U31.N
Human Resources Analyst
Cross Connection Supervisor
Water Maintenance Supervisor
Facilities Services Supervisor

$3688

$3769

$3855

$3958

$4070

$4182

$4292

$4414

$4530

$4670

$4805

$4946

$5093

$5247

$5402

$5099

$5237

$5369

$5542

$5710

$5889

$6068

$6258

$6450

$6642

$6837

$7040

$7245

$7459

$7684

EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE

MINIMUM MAXIMUM TOP OF RANGE

$5354

$5499

$5639

$5820

$5997

$6185

$6371

$6571

$6774

$6974

$7179

$7393

$7607

$7833

$8067



NON-EXEMPT
Fleet Supervisor

MINIMUM

EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE
MAXIMUM TOP OF RANGE

SALARY GRADE U32.N $5558
Network Administrator
Mechanical Maintenance Supervisor

$7911 $8307

SALARY GRADE U33.N $5720
Construction Inspection Supervisor

$8141 $8548

SALARY GRADE U34.N $5889
Automation Supervisor
Electrical Supervisor
Instrumentation Supervisor

$8366 $8785

SALARY GRADE U35.N $6067
Operations Supervisor

$8617 $9048




IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

SALARY GRADE SCHEDULE
UNREPRESENTED POSITIONS
JulyApsit 1, 2015
EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE

EXEMPT MINIMUM MAXIMUM TOP OF RANGE
SALARY GRADE UL.E $4271 $5488 $5761
SALARY GRADE U2.E $4413 $5700 $5985
SALARY GRADE U3.E $4555 $5913 $6209
SALARY GRADE U4.E $4697 $6139 $6446
SALARY GRADE U5.E $4840 $6367 $6686
SALARY GRADE U6.E $5006 $6614 $6945
SALARY GRADE U7.E $5167 $6858 $7200
SALARY GRADE US.E $5335 $7126 $7483
SALARY GRADE U%.E $5497 $7387 $7756
SALARY GRADE U10.E $5681 $7667 $8051

Customer Service Supervisor

minisrati :

SALARY GRADE U11.E $5863 $7951 $8349

Senior Accountant

Financial Analyst

Reeyeled-Water-Supervisor
SALARY GRADE U12.E $6054 $8256 $8667
SALARY GRADE UI3.E $6249 $8556 $8982

Senior Human Resources Analyst
Senior Analyst
GIS Supervisor



EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE
EXEMPT MINIMUM MAXIMUM TOP OF RANGE

SALARY GRADE Ul4.E $6453 $8886 $9329
District Secretary
Assistant Facilities/Fleet Manager

SALARY GRADE U15.E $6657 $9218 $9677
Senior Programmer/Analyst
Senior Network Administrator
Applications Analyst
Assistant Field Services Manager
. - on Servicos M

Laboratory Supervisor

SALARY GRADE Ul16.E $6879 $9567 $10045
Assistant Operations Manager
Principal Analyst
Natural Resources Manager
Collection Systems Manager
Laboratory Manager
Water Use Efficiency Manager

SALARY GRADE U17.E $7099 $9918 $10413
District Safety and Security Manager
Customer Service Manager
Purchasing Manager
Construction Inspection Manager
Construction & Field Services Manager
Water Maintenance Manager
Facilities/Fleet Manager

Regulatory-Compliance- Manager

SALARY GRADE U18.E $7328 $10296 $10810
Public Affairs Manager
Human Resources Manager
Treasury Manager
Manager of Contracts Admin & Risk
Senior Applications Analyst

Chief Plant Operator
Water Quality Manager

SALARY GRADE U19.E $7561 $10676 $11211
Operations Manager
Electrical and Automation Manager
Mechanical Services Manager
Recycled Water Development Manager

Water Resources Manager A-5



EXCEPTIONAL

PERFORMANCE

EXEMPT MINIMUM MAXIMUM TOP OF RANGE

GevernmentRelations-Manager
SALARY GRADE U20.E $7796 $11071 $11625

Controller

Manager of Strategic Planning and Analysis

Applications Manager

Networking & Support Manager

Senior Engineer
SALARY GRADE U21.E $8034 $11471 $12045
SALARY GRADE U22.E $8292 $11897 $12494
SALARY GRADE U23.E $8555 $12329 $12946

Governmental Relations Officer

Principal Engineer

Assistant Director of Water Operations

Assistant Director of Recycling Operations

Assistant Director of Maintenance
SALARY GRADE U24.E $8786 $12825 $13466
SALARY GRADE U25.E $9058 $13311 $13975
SALARY GRADE U26.E $9471 $14014 $14715
SALARY GRADE U27.E $9905 $14756 $15494

Director of Public Affairs

Director of Human Resources

Treasurer/Director of Risk Management

Director of Administrative Services

Director of Water Resources
SALARY GRADE U28.E $10360 $15534 $16311
SALARY GRADE U29.E $10832 $16356 $17174
SALARY GRADE U30.E $11333 $17224 $18085

Executive Director of Finance
Executive Director of Engineering & Water Quality
Executive Director of Operations

Executive Director of Water Policy A6



EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE

EXEMPT MINIMUM MAXIMUM TOP OF RANGE

SALARY GRADE U31.E $11896 $18201 $19111

SALARY GRADE U32.E $12493 $19238 $20200

SALARY GRADE U33.E $13114 $20330 $21347

SALARY GRADE U34.E $13772 $21484 $22557
General Manager

| Effective Date 64/0+204507/01/2015



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

SALARY GRADE SCHEDULE
GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ UNIT
JulyApsit- 1, 2015
EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE

NON-EXEMPT MINIMUM MAXIMUM TOP OF RANGE
SALARY GRADE 1.N $2656 $3293 $3457
SALARY GRADE 2.N $2714 $3383 $3553
SALARY GRADE 3.N $2771 $3476 $3651
SALARY GRADE 4.N $2821 $3577 $3756
SALARY GRADE 5.N $2885 $3676 $3861
SALARY GRADE 6.N $2943 $3783 $3972

Office Assistant

Mail Coordinator
SALARY GRADE 7.N $3001 $3888 $4083
SALARY GRADE 8.N $3067 $4000 $4200
SALARY GRADE 9.N $3126 $4110 $4316
SALARY GRADE 10.N $3190 $4222 $4432
SALARY GRADE 11.N $3252 $4331 $4545

Material Control Clerk I

Maintenance Apprentice

Utility Worker
SALARY GRADE 12.N $3316 $4457 $4681
SALARY GRADE 13.N $3378 $4585 $4815

Customer Service Specialist I

Support Specialist

A-8



NON-EXEMPT MINIMUM

SALARY GRADE 14.N $3454

SALARY GRADE 15.N $3528
Office Specialist

Collection Systems Technician I

SALARY GRADE 16.N $3611
Accounting Clerk
Customer Service Field Technician
Metering Systems Technician I
Water Maintenance Technician 1
Laboratory Analyst

SALARY GRADE 17.N $3688
Customer Service Specialist II

SALARY GRADE 18.N $3769
Material Control Clerk IT
Senior Support Specialist

SALARY GRADE 19.N $3855
Senior Office Specialist
Purchasing Coordinator

SALARY GRADE 20.N $3958
Senior Accounting Clerk
Engineering Technician I
Operator I
Collection Systems Technician I

SALARY GRADE 21.N $4070
Customer Service Specialist III
Senior Customer Service Field Technician
Collection Systems CCTV Technician I

SALARY GRADE 22.N $4182
Sr. Purchasing Coordinator
Metering Systems Tech. II
Water Maintenance Technician II
Maintenance Mechanic
Facilities Services Technician
Vehicle/Equipment Mechanic
Recycled Water Specialist

MAXIMUM

$4714

$4840

$4975

$5099

$5237

$5369

$5542

$5710

$5889

EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE
TOP OF RANGE

$4950

$5082

$5223

$5354

$5499

$5639

$5820

$5997

$6185



NON-EXEMPT MINIMUM MAXIMUM
SALARY GRADE 23.N $4292 $6068

Construction Inspector [

SALARY GRADE 24.N $4414 $6258
Buyer
Cross Connection Specialist
Wetlands Specialist
Water Use Efficiency Specialist

SALARY GRADE 25.N $4530 $6450
Engineering Technician I
Senior Collection Systems Technician
Senior Collection Systems CCTV Technician

SALLARY GRADE 26.N $4670 $6642
Metering Systems Tech. It
Water Maintenance Technician I

SALARY GRADE 27.N $4805 $6837
Accountant
Senior Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Mechanic
Senior Facilities Services Technician
Operator I
Senior Maintenance Mechanic
Senior Recycled Water Specialist

SALARY GRADE 28.N $4946 $7040
Construction Inspector II
Automation Technician
Landscape Contracts Administrator
Electrical Technician
Instrumentation Technician
Scientist

SALARY GRADE 29.N $5093 $7245
Payroll Administrator
Senior Buyer
Engineering Technician I
Senior Wetlands Specialist
Operator III
Lead Maintenance Mechanic
Recycled Water Project Specialist
Senior Water Use Efficiency Specialist
Public Affairs Specialist

A-10

EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE
TOP OF RANGE

$6371

$6571

$6774

$6974

$7179

$7393

$7607



NON-EXEMPT

MINIMUM MAXIMUM

EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE
TOP OF RANGE

SALARY GRADE 30.N
Risk Analyst
Senior Electrical Technician
Senior Instrumentation Technician

$5247

$7459

$7833

SALARY GRADE 31.N
Treasury Analyst
Information Services Coordinator
Construction Inspector I1I
Water Use Efficiency Analyst

$5402

$7684

$8067

SALARY GRADE 32.N
Automation Specialist
Senior Scientist

$5558

$7911

$8307

SALARY GRADE 33.N
Operations Coordinator

$5720

$8141

$8548

SALARY GRADE 34N
Electrical/Instrumentation Designer

$5889

$8366

$8785

SALARY GRADE 35.N

$6067

$8617

$90438




IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

SALARY GRADE SCHEDULE
GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ UNIT
JulyAprit 1, 2015
EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE

EXEMPT MINIMUM MAXIMUM TOP OF RANGE
SALARY GRADE 1 .E $4271 $5488 $5761
SALARY GRADE 2.E $4413 $5700 $5985
SALARY GRADE 3.E $4555 $5913 $6209
SALARY GRADE 4.E $4697 $6139 $6446
SALARY GRADE S.E $4840 $6367 $6686
SALARY GRADE 6.E $5006 $6614 $6945
SALARY GRADE 7.E $5167 $6858 $7200
SALARY GRADE 8.E $5335 $7126 $7483
SALARY GRADE 9.E $5497 $7387 $7756
SALARY GRADE 10.E $5681 $7667 $8051

Analyst

Assistant Engineer

Public Affairs Analyst

Resgulatorv Comnliance Analvst
SALARY GRADE 11.E $5863 $7951 $8349
SALARY GRADE 12.E $6054 $8256 $8667

Programmer/Analyst

Energy Analyst

Laboratory QA/QC
SALARY GRADE 13.E $6249 $8556 $8982

Right of Way Agent &Real-Property-Manager

Water Resources Planner

SALARY GRADE 14.E A$6453 $8886 $9329



EXCEPTIONAL

PERFORMANCE

EXEMPT MINIMUM MAXIMUM TOP OF RANGE

Associate Engineer
SALARY GRADE 15.E $6657 $9218 $9677

Automation Programmer
SALARY GRADE 16.E $6879 $9567 $10045
SALARY GRADE 17.E $7099 $9918 $10413

Engineer
SALARY GRADE 18.E $7328 $10296 $10810
SALARY GRADE 19.E $7561 $10676 $11211
SALARY GRADE 20.E $7796 $11071 $11625
SALARY GRADE 21.E $8034 $11471 $12045
SALARY GRADE 22.E $8292 $11897 $12494
SALARY GRADE 23.E $8555 $12329 $12946
SALARY GRADE 24.E $8786 $12825 $13466
SALARY GRADE 25.E $9058 $13311 $13975
SALARY GRADE 26.E $9471 $14014 $14715
SALARY GRADE 27.E $9905 $14756 $15494
SALARY GRADE 28.E $10360 $15534 $16311
SALARY GRADE 29.E $10832 $16356 $17174
SALARY GRADE 30.E $11333 $17224 $18085

SALARY GRADE 31.E As13396 $18201 $19111



EXCEPTIONAL
PERFORMANCE

EXEMPT MINIMUM MAXIMUM TOP OF RANGE
SALARY GRADE 32.E $12493 $19238 $20200
SALARY GRADE 33.E $13114 $20330 $21347
SALARY GRADE 34.E $13772 $21484 $22557

| Effective Date 04/044507/01/2015

A-14



EXHIBIT “B”

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT,
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2015-8 AND
ESTABLISHING A REVISED SCHEDULE OF POSITIONS
AND SALARY RATE RANGES

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Irvine Ranch Water District, by adoption
of Resolution No. 2015-8 on March 23, 2015, established a Schedule of Positions and Salary
Rate Ranges of the Irvine Ranch Water District; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Irvine Ranch Water District has reviewed
the Schedule of Positions and Salary Rate Ranges and desires to make revisions thereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of Irvine Ranch Water District does
hereby resolve, determine and order as follows:

Section 1. That the Schedule of Positions and Salary Rate Ranges adopted by
Resolution No. 2015-8 on March 23, 2015 is hereby rescinded, effective July 1, 2015.

Section 2. That the Schedule of Positions and Salary Rate Ranges for the Irvine
Ranch Water District be and hereby is approved and adopted as more particularly set forth in
Exhibit “A” to this Resolution, attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereto.

Section 3. That the provisions of this Resolution shall be effective July 1, 2015.

ADOPTED, SIGNED and APPROVED THIS 8" day of June 2015.

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
and of the Board of Directors thereof

Secretary, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
and of the Board of Directors thereof

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
BOWIE, ARNESON, WILES & GIANNONE



June 8, 2015

Prepared by: J. Smyt ortez
Submitted by: K. Burt

Approved by: Paul Coo érZ.

CONSENT CALENDAR

BAKER PIPELINE CATHODIC PROTECTION SYSTEM UPGRADES PROJECT
FINAL ACCEPTANCE

SUMMARY:

The Baker Pipeline Cathodic Protection Upgrades Project is complete. The contractor, American
Construction and Supply, Inc., completed the required work and all punch list items. The project
has received final inspection and acceptance of construction is recommended.

BACKGROUND:

The Baker Pipeline Cathodic Protection Upgrades Project replaced three anode beds and added
one anode bed with rectifier and electrical service. The design was completed in July 2014.
American Construction was awarded the construction contract on October 13, 2014 and
completed construction in May 2015. The cathodic protection improvements are fully
operational and the pipe is polarizing to protected levels.

Project Title: Baker Pipeline Cathodic Protection Upgrades
Project No.: 11802 (5530)

Design Engineer: RBF Consulting

Construction Management by: IRWD Staff

Contractor: American Construction and Supply, Inc.
Original Contract Cost: $442,500.00

Final Contract Cost: $440,381.95

Original Contract Days: 170

Final Contract Days: 170

Final Change Order Approved On: May 26, 2015
FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 11802 (5530) is included in the FY 2014-15 Capital Budget. The existing budget is
sufficient to fund the final payment for the project.

js Baker CP Final Acceptance



Consent Calendar: Baker Pipeline Cathodic Protection System Upgrades Project Final
Acceptance

June 8, 2015

Page 2

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as authorized
under the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15301 which provides
exemption for minor alterations of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical
equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that
existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. A Notice of Exemption for the project
was filed with the County of Orange on December 13, 2013.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was not reviewed by a Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD ACCEPT CONSTRUCTION OF THE BAKER PIPELINE CATHODIC
PROTECTION SYSTEM UPGRADES, PROJECT 11802 (5530); AUTHORIZE THE
GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION; AND AUTHORIZE THE
PAYMENT OF THE RETENTION 35 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF RECORDING THE
NOTICE OF COMPLETION.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

None.



CONSENT CALENDAR

BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
WATERSMART DROUGHT RESILIENCY PROJECT GRANT APPLICATION

SUMMARY:

The Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) is accepting applications for drought resiliency
projects to receive grant funding under its 2015 WaterSMART program. Staff recommends that
the District submit an application for the proposed Irvine Lake Pipeline North Conversion
Project (North ILP Project). As part of the application process, Reclamation requires a
resolution adopted by the applicant’s governing body which designates an authorized
representative to submit a proposal for grant funding and to enter into an agreement to receive
the funding. Staff recommends that the Board adopt a resolution authorizing the General
Manager to file an application with Reclamation for WaterSMART Drought Resiliency Project
Grant funding and to execute a related agreement with Reclamation.

BACKGROUND:

Reclamation has announced, through its WaterSMART program, that up to $3 million in grant
funding is available to expedite projects that provide drought resiliency in the Western United
States. The grant program will help agencies to implement projects that will build long-term
resiliency to drought. Grants will be provided up to $300,000 per project with the requirement
that implementation be completed within two years. Applicants are required to provide a
minimum match of at least 50% of project costs. Grant applications are due June 25, 2015 and
awards will be announced in July 2015 or later based on the enactment of FY 2015 federal
budget appropriations.

Staff evaluated several potential projects for grant funding and determined that the North ILP
Project best meets Reclamation eligibility criteria. The North ILP Project is expected to convert
remaining portions of the Irvine Lake Pipeline system from untreated imported water to recycled
water. Currently, the District must purchase untreated water through Metropolitan Water District
of Southern California to serve agricultural and landscape irrigation customers that receive
supply from the north portions of the pipeline. The planned project is expected to result in
imported water savings of up to 3,156 AF per year by converting the pipeline from imported to
recycled water. In addition, the project could potentially serve an additional 300 AF of future
demands in the Santiago Hills area.

As part of the grant application process, Reclamation requires a resolution adopted by the
applicant’s governing body that designates an authorized representative to submit the grant
application and to enter into an agreement with Reclamation to receive the funding. A resolution
for submitting a grant application for the proposed North ILP Project is attached as Exhibit “A”.
The resolution authorizes staff to apply for the WaterSMART grant on behalf of the District,
confirms that the District has the capability to provide at least 50% in cost share funding and

djUSBR Drought Grant 060815.docx

10



Consent Calendar: Bureau of Reclamation WaterSMART Drought Resiliency Project Grant
Application

June 8, 2015

Page 2

acknowledges that the District agrees to meet the established deadlines for entering into a
cooperative agreement.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

The North ILP Project is subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). An
Initial Study/Mitigated Declaration (IS/MND) is being prepared in conformance with the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), California Code of Regulations Title 14, Chapter
3, Article 6. If the project is awarded grant funding, the IS/MND will be revised consistent with
requirements for compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was not reviewed by a Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD ADOPT THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE:
RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - XX

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF
A GRANT APPLICATION FOR THE IRVINE LAKE NORTH PIPELINE CONVERSION
PROJECT TO THE DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, BUREAU OF RECLAMATION,
POLICY AND ADMINISTRATION

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Resolution Authorizing Submission of an Application for WaterSMART:
Drought Resiliency Project Grants for FY 2015



EXHIBIT “A”

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - XX

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF
A GRANT APPLICATION FOR THE IRVINE LAKE PIPELINE CONVERSION PROJECT
TO THE DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, BUREAU OF RECLAMATION, POLICY
AND ADMINISTRATION

WHEREAS the Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, Policy and Administration
(Reclamation) has released a Funding Opportunity Announcement to provide federal grant
funding under the WaterSMART: Drought Resiliency Project Grants for Fiscal Year (FY) 2015;
and

WHEREAS Reclamation is seeking applications from eligible water delivery agencies to cost
share 50 percent or more with Reclamation on projects that increase the reliability of water
supplies; improve water management; facilitate the voluntary sale, transfer, or exchange of
water; provide benefits for fish and wildlife and the environment; and

WHEREAS the Irvine Ranch Water District is eligible to submit an application for grant funding
up to $300,000 for its Irvine Lake Pipeline Conversion project with a cost share of 50 percent or
more of the total project costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE and ORDER as follows:

Section 1. The General Manager of the Irvine Ranch Water District or his/her designee is
hereby authorized to submit an application to Reclamation for grant funding up to $300,000
for the Irvine Lake North Pipeline Conversion project.

Section  The Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District has reviewed and
supports the application for a grant from Reclamation for the construction of Irvine Lake
North Pipeline Conversion project facilities.

Section 3. The Irvine Ranch Water District hereby agrees and further confirms that it has the
capability to provide its cost share funding (50 percent or more of the total project costs) as
specified in the application’s project funding plan.

Section 4. The General Manager or his/her designee is hereby authorized to enter into a
cooperative agreement and any amendments thereto with Reclamation on behalf of the Irvine

Ranch Water District.

Section 5. The General Manager or his/her designee is hereby authorized to work with
Reclamation to meet the established deadlines for entering into a cooperative agreement.

A-1



Section 6. That the Secretary is hereby authorized to certify a copy of this resolution to

accompany the grant application.

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 8" day of June, 2015.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
and the Board of Directors there of

Secretary, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
and the Board of Directors there of

BOWIE, ARNESON, WILES & GIANNONE

Legal Counsel—IRWD

By:

A-2



CONSENT CALENDAR
2015 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE
SUMMARY:

This report provides an update on the 2015-2016 legislative session and IRWD priorities. As
legislation develops, staff will provide updates and recommendations to the Water Resources
Policy and Communications Committee and the Board, as appropriate.

Staff recommends that the Board consider the following actions/position

e AB 1390 (Alejo, D-Salinas)— Groundwater: adjudication and SB 226 (Pavley, D-
Calabasas)— Sustainable Groundwater Management Act: groundwater rights— Adopt a
“CONCERNED” position, and authorize staff to engage with stakeholders to protect
IRWD's interests related to groundwater adjudications.

BACKGROUND:

The last day for fiscal committees to hear and report to the floor any bills introduced in its house
was May 1, 2015, and the house of origin deadline is June 5. Any bill that does not meet the
June 5 deadline and does not contain an urgency clause is now dead or has become a two-year
bill. The next major legislative deadline is June 15, which is the constitutional deadline for
passage of the budget.

A copy of the 2015 State Legislative Matrix is attached as Exhibit “A”

State Budget Update:

April Revenue Numbers:

On May 11, 2015, State Controller Betty Yee released her monthly report on the state’s finances
She announced that the state took in $1.8 billion, or 12.2 percent, more than projections during
the month of April. All three of the state’s top sources of revenues exceeded the projections
contained in the Governor’s proposed Fiscal Year 2015-2016 budget. Personal income tax
revenues alone came in 13.3 percent higher than estimates. Total General Fund revenues, as of
the end of April, were $3.4 billion, or 3.8 percent, above estimates. The State General Fund
outstanding loans were $8 billion or $2.3 billion less than estimates at the end of April.

Governor’s May Revise:

On May 14, 2015, Governor Brown released his May revision to his proposed state budget (the
May Revise). The May Revise proposes $115.3 billion in total expenditures, $116.8 billion in
total revenues and designates $3.46 billion for the Budget Stabilization Account/Rainy Day
Fund.

cc 2015 State Legislative Update- BOARD - June.docx

11



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update
June 8, 2015
Page 2

The increases in revenue and spending included in the May Revise reflect the continued trend of
increased revenues the state has experienced this fiscal year. Overall, the May Revise includes a
net increase in forecasted General Fund revenues of $6.7 billion from the January budget. The
May Revise allocates $5.5 billion of the $6.7 billion for K-12 schools and community colleges as
required by Proposition 98, and allocates $633 million to the Rainy Day Fund and $633 million
to pay down debts and liabilities as required by Proposition 2.

While higher-than-expected revenues have helped the state’s financial situation in the current
fiscal year and are projected to continue aiding the State in Fiscal Year 2015-2016, the proposed
budget notes that spending commitments must remain constrained given the state’s fiscal outlook
over the next few years. Specifically, the May Revise states that “the budget remains
precariously balanced and faces the prospect of deficits in succeeding years. The state has
hundreds of billions of dollars in existing liabilities, such as deferred maintenance on its roads
and other infrastructure and its unfunded liability for future retiree health care benefits for [S]tate
employees and various pension benefits” (2015-16 May Revision, Introduction, Page 1). These
three factors have led Governor Brown to propose a budget that is only 0.7 percent higher than
the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 approved budget.

The May Revise, similar to the Governor’s proposed budget, focuses on paying down budgetary
debts from past years, adding funds to the Rainy Day Fund, and addressing needs in education
and health care. Additionally, the May Revise includes the following proposals:

e Creation of a California Earned Income Tax Credit: The May Revise proposes an earned
income tax credit to assist lower income workers. The credit will provide a refundable
tax credit for wages of households with incomes less than $6,580 if there are no
dependents or $13,870 if there are three or more dependents. The proposed credit would
match 85 percent of the federal credit with a maximum benefit of $2,653 providing an
average estimated household benefit of $460 annually for 825,000 families.

e UC and CSU Tuition Freeze: The May Revise proposes to hold tuition flat at University
of California and California State University campuses for in-state undergraduate
students for two more years by providing increased ongoing funding to the California
State University and temporary assistance to the University of California to pay down its
unfunded pension liability.

e Snecial Service (Cnet Tneraacae Thia tn Chanoec in Fedaral T aw  The May Revise includes
$62 million to provide health care and other safety net services to currently
undocumented immigrants who would have gained Permanent Residence under Color of
Law status under the President’s executive actions. In conjunction with the President’s
executive actions, the May Revise proposes an additional $5 million for direct assistance
for immigrant applicants and temporary workers.

In addition to these proposals, the May Revise contains several items of interest to IRWD. Of
interest to the District are the budget’s proposed Cap-and-Trade Revenue expenditure plan,
emergency drought response plan and water policy proposals. More detail on each of these
proposals is provided below.



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update
June 8, 2015
Page 3

Proposed Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Proposed Cap-and-Trade Expenditures

One of IRWD’s legislative priorities for 2015 is the promotion of policies which encourage
energy reliability in Orange County and energy efficiency in the water and wastewater sectors
without an increase in cost to or mandates on local entities. As part of the District’s advocacy
efforts in this area, IRWD has supported allocating some of the Cap-and-Trade revenues to
projects that reduce the greenhouse gas emissions and energy demands in the water and
wastewater sectors, and has been monitoring the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 budget negotiations
surrounding the Cap-and-Trade revenues.

As part of his proposed budget in January, Governor Brown proposed a $1.002 billion Cap-and-
Trade Expenditure Plan. Since the release of the January budget, Governor Brown issued
Executive Order B 30-15 establishing a new interim statewide greenhouse gas (GHG) emission
reduction target for 2030. The Executive Order sets the new 2030 target at 40 percent below
1990 levels. The May Revise supports the Governor’s 2030 GHG reduction target by including
a $2.2 billion Cap-and-Trade Expenditure Plan, which is $1.2 billion more than was included in
the Governor’s January budget. The increased investment reflects a revised auction proceed
estimate and establishes a reserve to account for potential volatility in future auction proceeds.

Overall, the proposed expenditure plan for the $2.2 billion allocates most of the revenue to
existing programs previously funded with Cap-and-Trade revenues. The additional investment
of $1.2 billion is targeted largely for investments in clean transportation and mass transit, energy
efficiency and renewable energy, waste reduction and ecosystem restoration programs. One
newer program included in the expenditure plan is the Healthy Soils Program. The Healthy Soils
Program will support demonstration projects that increase carbon in soil.

A comparison of the January budget expenditure plan and the May Revise expenditure plans is
provided below:
Cap-and-Trade Expenditure Plan

(Dollars in Millions)
Investment Department Program Amounted Additional Total
Category Included Funds Proposed
in Jan Proposed for
2015 in the inclusion
Proposed May in the FY
Budget Revise 2015-16
Budget
High-Speed Rail Authority  High-Speed Rail $ 250 $ 250 $ 500
Low Carbon Transit Operations $ 50 $ 50 $ 100
. . . Program
Sustainable - State Transit ASSISIIC®  prangit and Intercity Rail Capital $100 $ 165 $ 265
and Clean Program
Transportation Strategic Growth Council Affordable Housing and Sustainable $ 200 $ 200 $ 400
Communities Program
Air Resources Board Low Carbon Transportation $ 200 $ 150 $ 350
Department of Community  Energy Efficiency $ 75 $ 65 $ 140
Energy Services and Development ~ Upgrades/Weatherization
Efficiency and Department of General Energy Efficiency for Public Buildings $ 20 $ 20 $ 40

Clean Energy  Services



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update

June 8, 2015

Page 4
University of Renewable Energy and Energy $ 0O $ 60 $ 60
California/California State  Efficiency Projects
University
Department of Water Water and Energy Efficiency $ 0 $ 60 $ 60
Resources . . i ]
OWRIDepartmentof S0 millon v mied o o
Food and Agriculture earlier this year.
(DFA)
Energy Commission/ DWR  Drought Executive Order- Rebates for $ 0 $ 30 $ 30

Appliances
Energy Commission/ DWR  Drought Executive Order- Water and $ 0 $ 30 $ 30
Energy Technology Program
DFA Agricultural and Operational Efficiency $ 5 $ 20 $ 25
Department of Fish and Wetlands and Watershed Restoration $ 25 $ 40 $ 65
Natural Wildlife
Resources and  Department of Forestry Forest Health $ 42 $ 50 $ 92
Waste and Fire Protection
Diversion DFA Healthy Soils $ O $ 20 $ 20

Cal Recycled Waste Diversion $ 25 $ 35 $ 60

TOTAL $ 992 $1.245 $2,237

Emergency Drought Response:

Since the Governor first declared a state of emergency for the drought in January 2014,
approximately $1.9 billion has been appropriated toward emergency drought response. The May
Revise includes an additional $2.175 billion of one-time resources to continue the state’s
response to the drought. Of the $2.175 billion proposed to be expended for drought response in
Fiscal Year 2015-2016, $1.8 billion will come from Proposition 1, which is significantly higher
than the $532.5 million proposed as part of the Governor’s January budget. The $1.8 billion in
Proposition 1 funds will be available over the next three years.

A summary of the funding proposed for drought response is provided below:

Emergency Drought Response Funding
(Dollars in Millions)

Investment  Department Program Amount Fund Source

Category
State Water Resources Control Board Groundwater Contamination $ 784.0  Proposition 1

Protecting

and ] State Water Resources Control Board Water Recvcling $ 475.0 Proposition 1

Expanding State Water Resources Control Board Safe Drinking Water in $ 180.0  Proposition 1

Local 'Water Disadvantaged Communities

Supplies State Water Resources Control Board Wastewater Treatment Projects $ 160.0  Proposition 1
State Water Resources Control Board Stormwater Management $ 100.0  Proposition 1
Department of Water Resources Groundwater Sustainability $ 600 Proposition 1
Department of Water Resources Desalination Projects $ 50.0 Proposition 1
Department of Water Resources/Energy Urban Water Conservation $ 104.0  Proposition 1/Cap

Water Commission & Trade Revenues

Conservation  Department of Water Resources/Department  Agricultural Water Conservation $ 75.0 Proposition 1/Cap
of Food and Agriculture & Trade Revenues
Department of Water Resources/Energy Make Water Conservation a $ 43.0 Proposition 1/Cap
Commission Way of Life & Trade Revenues
Department of General Services Water Conservation at State $ 23.4  General Fund/

Facilities Special Funds



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update
June 8, 2015

Page 5

Response

Emergency Department of Forestry and Fire Protection Enhanced Fire Protection $ 61.8 General Fund
Office of Emergency Services California Disaster Assistance $ 222  General Fund
Department of Community Services and Farmworker Assistance $ 7.5 General Fund
Development
Department of Housing and Community Rental Relocation Assistance $ 6.0 General Fund
Development
State Water Resources Control Board Executive Order Implementation $ 1.4  General Fund

As part of the funding outlined above, the May Revise includes:

$43 million to implement consumer rebate programs for the replacement of inefficient
water consuming appliances, including dishwashers and toilets, to save water and energy
and to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. $30 million of the $43 million is from Cap-and-
Trade revenues and $13 is from Proposition 1;

$27 million of Proposition 1 funds to replace lawns in underserved communities
throughout the state with water efficient landscaping;

$22 million from the General Fund to remove the emergency salinity batrier the
Department of Water Resources (DWR) installed in the West False River in the Delta.
The barrier slows the tidal push of saltwater from the San Francisco Bay into the Delta
limiting salinity impacts on water quality. The barrier must be removed in November to
avoid potential flood impacts and to prevent harm to migratory fish;

$20 million in Cap-and-Trade revenues for the DWR Water Energy Grant Program to
reduce energy demand and greenhouse gas emissions through local projects that also
support water use efficiency and conservation; and

$10 million in Proposition 1 funds to implement the CalConserve Program which will
enable homeowners and businesses to finance water efficiency upgrades through a
revolving—loan program.

Water Policy Changes Proposed with the May Revise:

Along with the May Revise, the Governor released proposed language for a number of water-
related budget trailer bills. The water-related budget trailer bills deal with:

CEQA Exemption for Drought Mitigation and Water Recycling: This budget trailer bill,
as originally proposed, would provide a CEQA exemption for any project carried out to
mitigate drought conditions if it:

Connects existing residential users facing critical water shortages to a community
water system;

Provides interconnections between existing community water systems to improve
drought resilience for existing residential users;

Involves construction or expansion of stormwater infiltration or recycled water
treatment facilities;



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update

June 8,

Page 6

2015

Involves construction or expansion of recycled water distribution infrastructure
within existing right of way; or

Implements specific directives that the Governor may include in a state of
emergency proclamation.

CEQA Exemption for Groundwater Wells: As proposed, this budget trailer bill would
create a CEQA exemption for the adoption of a city or county ordinance that places
limitations on the drilling of new groundwater wells. It would also create a CEQA
exemption for a city’s or county’s placement of limitations on changes in land use that
would result in new demands on groundwater, including a temporary moratorium. These
exemptions would remain in effect until July 1, 2017, or until the end of the drought
emergency, whichever is later.

Drought- Expanded Local Enforcement Authority: The May Revise proposed legislation
to enhance local enforcement authority related to the drought. The budget trailer bill
would provide all water agencies including wholesale agencies and local governments a
consistent, minimum set of enforcement authorities to achieve water conservation. If
approved, the proposal would grant local agencies the ability to levy a $10,000 base and
$500 per day administrative fine upon persons who violate the emergency regulations
adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) or a conservation
regulation adopted by the local agency. The proposal requires that any penalties obtained
from this enforcement be used for local conservation efforts.

Drought- Monitoring and Reporting: Currently the SWRCB has the ability to fine a
person or entity up to $500 per day for violating an emergency regulation or order
adopted by the board. This proposal would grant the SWRCB the ability to fine a person
or entity up to $500 per day for a violation of any regulation or order adopted by the
board and eliminates all references to the authority only being available to the SWRCB in
critically dry years and drought emergencies. Additionally, the bill would require
monitoring of and annual reporting on water diversions of 10 acre-feet or greater. It
would also grant the SWRCB the ability to adopt emergency regulations to require the
measurement and reporting of water diversions.

Drought- Penalties: The current budget trailer bill language related to drought penalties
would require the SWRCB to deposit any penalties it collects from violations of the
recently-approved emergency urban conservation regulations or other emergency
regulations into a separate fund. Those funds would then be made available for water
conservation activities and programs upon appropriation by the Legislature.

Drought- Stormwater Plans: As proposed, this budget trailer bill would allow the
SWRCB to establish guidance on stormwater resource plans as directed in SB 985 (2014)
more quickly. The guidance will define the types of local agencies and nongovernmental
organizations that need to be consulted in the development of a stormwater resource plan;
the quantitative methods for identifying and prioritizing opportunities for stormwater and
dry weather runoff capture projects; the appropriate geographic scale of watersheds for
stormwater resource planning; and other guidance the SWRCB deems appropriate.



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update

June 8,

Page 7

2015

Drought — Sub-metering: As has been proposed through legislation in years past, the
budget trailer bill on submetering would require the installation of submeters in any new
residential or mixed-use development. Although the proposal provides that a water
purveyor does not have responsibility for the submeters, it does require water purveyors
to take some actions. It requires that water purveyors that “deliver water service to a
newly constructed multiunit residential structure or newly constructed mixed-use
residential and commercial structure, shall require a measurement of the quantity of water
supplied to each individual dwelling unit as a condition of new water service.” The
measurement may be individual meters or submeters.

Drought-Water System Consolidation: As part of the May Revise, a budget trailer bill
has been proposed that would provide the SWRCB with authority to require a public
water system to consolidate with another public water system or a state small system
where the public water system or a state small water system fails to reliably provide an
adequate supply of safe drinking water. It also provides the SWRCB with authority to
require a public water system to extend service to another public water system, a state
small system, or domestic well users in an area that does not have access to an adequate
supply of safe potable water as long as the extension of service is an interim extension of
service in preparation for consolidation. The proposal would also grant the SWRCB with
authority to require a public water system to provide technical, managerial or financial
management assistance to another public water system.

Public Well Logs: This budget trailer bill proposal would require that reports filed with

the DWR upon the completion, alternation, abandonment or destruction of a well be
made available to governmental agencies and the public, upon request.

Safe Drinking Water Program Funding and Fees: As reported to the Board last month,
the SWRCB, as part of the budget process, has asked for an increase in the fees charged
under the Safe Drinking Water Program and for changes in how the fees are set. The
Safe Drinking Water Program was previously operated by the Department of Public
Health but is now being operated by the SWRCB’s Division of Drinking Water given the
transition of the Drinking Water Program to the SWRCB last July. The program ensures
that small and large public water systems meet Safe Drinking Water Act standards.

The Health and Safety Code provides authority for this program and the fees set under it.
Specifically, the Health and Safety Code requires that the program’s fees be charged on a
fee-for-service basis; be based on the actual cost incurred by the SWRCB; caps the total
fees charged to large systems which is defined as those serving 1,000 or more
connections based on a 5 percent annual escalation to Fiscal Year 2001-2002
expenditures of $7,000,000; caps annual increases in the fees at 5 percent; and requires
that changes to the fee amount and its implementing regulations be made under the
Administrative Procedures Act (APA).

The SWRCB has determined that the current fee schedule is not generating sufficient
revenue to fund the program and has asked that the fee structure be changed. The
SWRCB, through the budget process, requested that the:



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update
June 8, 2015
Page 8

Fees be increased to meet current program expenditures;

Fee-for-service approach be abandoned and that the fees be based on a fee
schedule;

SWRCB be authorized to adopt the fee schedule by emergency regulation instead
of the normal APA process; and

Five percent cap on fee increases be removed.

The Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) along with other industry
associations, have proposed alternatives to the SWRCB’s fee proposal, which would have
retained existing provisions in state law but raised the fees to cover existing expenditure
levels. The Administration rejected ACWA’s proposal, but continues to discuss
alternatives with ACWA and IRWD’s industry partners. Staff will provide the
Committee with an oral update on this budget trailer bill proposal.

Staff continues to monitor the budget negotiations and the proposed water-related budget trailer
bills, and engage on the policy issues of interest to the District. As budget negotiations continue
and proposals change, staff will provide the Committee with an oral update on any new
developments.

IRWD 2015 State Legislative Priorities:

Legislative Clarification on Tiered Water Rates:

Since staff’s April 27 presentation to the Board on the Capistrano Taxpayers Association, Inc. v.
City of San Juan Capistrano and the Board’s discussion regarding the need for legislative
clarification on tiered water rates, staff has been working with the District’s industry and
association partners on seeking legislative clarification. Staff will provide the Committee with
an oral update on those efforts.

Updates on 2015 State Legislation of Interest to IRWD:

Proposals on Groundwater Adjudications:

After the adoption of sustainable groundwater management legislation last year, the
Administration and the Legislature indicated their interest in pursuing legislation related to
groundwater adjudications this year. There are currently two proposals related to groundwater
adjudications before the Legislature— AB 1390 (Alejo, D-Salinas) and SB 226 (Pavley, D-
Calabasas).

AB 1390 is sponsored by the California Farm Bureau Federation and other agricultural interests
It has been developed and continues to be shaped with input from ACWA. The bill would
establish special procedures for an adjudication action to determine groundwater extraction
rights within the basin including the right to extract stored water.



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update
June 8, 2015
Page 9

The author states that “The goal of AB 1390 is to clarify court procedures that apply to
comprehensive groundwater adjudications to reduce the time and improve the efficiency of the
process.” The bill would:

Establish special procedures that govern all groundwater adjudication actions, with
exceptions;

e Allow a court to determine all rights in a groundwater basin and to declare the priority,
amount, purpose of use, extraction location, and place of use of the groundwater, together
with other relief or a “physical solution” to conflicts;

e Require the court to hold a preliminary hearing to determine if the adjudication should
proceed; an adjudication would only be permitted if one of the following is met:

There is substantial evidence that declining groundwater levels may cause an
undesirable result in the basin;

The court cannot provide adequate relief among the potential claimants to a
groundwater right unless the adjudication action is completed;

A sufficient number of the parties have agreed to a proposed judgment in the
adjudication action; or

The interests of groundwater rights holders will be expeditiously and effectively
served by the completion of the adjudication action.

e Specify that a plaintiff shall name counties, special districts, public water systems and
small water systems as defendants in an adjudication action and that the plaintiff shall
have the county assessor notify other persons owning land overlying the basin of the
adjudication via a mailing along with their property tax bill;

e Allow any party owning land overlying the basin to become a party to the adjudication
upon application to the court;

e Specify that the initial basin boundaries for purposes of the groundwater adjudication
shall be the Bulletin 118 boundary, but allows the court to adjust the boundaries;

e Require that parties initially and expeditiously disclose specifics regarding their
preceding 10 years of groundwater use and other information;

e Encourage parties to use a Groundwater Sustainability Plan developed pursuant to the
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) as the basis of a stipulated judgment
setting forth a physical solution for basin management; and

e Allow a party, or group of parties, that is more than 50 percent of all named parties in the
adjudication and who hold at least 75 percent of the groundwater rights, to enter into a
proposed stipulated judgment and binds the court to impose any physical solution from
that settlement.



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update
June &, 2015
Page 10

AB 1390 was passed by the Assembly on a 75 to 0 vote. It is currently in the Senate Rules
Committee for assignment to a policy committee. A copy of AB 1390, as amended on May 18,
2015, is attached as Exhibit “B”.

SB 226 has a number of similarities to AB 1390. Both bills would establish special procedures
for groundwater adjudication actions and both require broad public noticing and disclosures of
the adjudication. While both bills would keep groundwater adjudication cases in the courts, SB
226 does not provide for stays to allow a collaborative process to develop a Groundwater
Sustainability Plan through SGMA and does not provide for an initial hearing by the court to
determine if the adjudication is necessary as provided for in AB 1390.

SB 226 would:

e Provide that a court shall use the Code of Civil Procedure for determining rights to
groundwater, except as provided by the special procedures established in the bill;

e Require the boundaries of a basin to be as identified in Bulletin 118, unless other basin
boundaries are established;

e Authorize DWR and the Department of Fish and Wildlife to intervene in an action or
proceeding if they claim an interest relating to the action;

Provide that all unknown defendants shall be served by publication;

e Require a party to provide specified initial disclosures to the other parties, including,
among other disclosures, information relating to expert witnesses; and

Direct a court, in making its determination of rights to groundwater, to avoid undesirable
results as defined in SGMA.

SB 226 was passed by the Senate on a 23-to-14 vote. It is currently in the Assembly for
assignment to a policy committee. A copy of SB 226, as amended on May 5, 20135, is attached
as Exhibit “C”.

Staff has reviewed both AB 1390 and SB 226, and is of the opinion that the proposals may
impact IRWD’s groundwater interests and ability to engage in an adjudication related to those
interests. Staff recommends that the Board adopt a “CONCERNED” position on these bills and
authorized staff to engage with stakeholders to protect IRWD's interests.

Other 2015 State T <lation and Actions
Short-Lived Climate Pollutants:
Last month, the California Air Resources Board (CARB) released a concept paper and held a

workshop on the board’s approach and possible actions related to short-lived climate pollutants.
CARB has defined short-lived climate pollutants as powerful climate forcers that remain in the



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update
June 8, 2015
Page 11

atmosphere for a period of days to up to 10 years. The board has identified the three main
components of short-lived climate pollutants as black carbon, fluorinated gases and methane. To
address these three components CARB has proposed to:

e Reduce black carbon emissions by at least 50 percent below 2012 levels from
transportation sources by 2020, and from all sources by 2030;

¢ Reduce methane emissions by at least 20 percent by 2020, and 40 percent by 2030 below
forecasted emission levels; and

Reduce fluorinated gas emissions by at least 25 percent in 2020, and 50 percent by 2030
below forecasted emission levels.

Wastewater has been identified by CARB as a contributor to the state’s methane emissions.
CARB is considering targeting the emissions from the wastewater sector by maximizing resource
recovery from wastewater treatment facilities. At this point in time, it is unclear how they will
approach this maximization.

Staff will monitor CARB’s actions related to short-lived climate pollutants and will work with
IRWD’s association and industry partners on proposals of interest to the water and wastewater

sectors. Staff will provide updates to the Committee, as appropriate.

A copy of CARB’s “Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Strategy Concept Paper” is
attached as Exhibit “D”.

2015 Federal Legislation and Actions:

“Waters of the United States” Rule: On May 26, 20135, the United States Environmental
Protector Agency and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers finalized the rule on the Definitions of
“Waters of the United States” (WOTUS). The rule, which differs substantially from the
proposed rule, further defines WOTUS and expands the range of waters that fall under federal
jurisdiction. Staff is in the process of evaluating the rule and its impacts on IRWD. Staff will
provide an oral update to the Committee on the rule and its potential impacts on the District.

FISCAL IMPACTS:
Not applicable.
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.



Consent Calendar: 2015 Legislative Update
June 8, 2015
Page 12

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on June
4,2015.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD ADOPT A “CONCERNED” POSITION ON AB 1390 (ALEJO) AND SB
225 (PAVLEY) AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO ENGAGE WITH STAKEHOLDERS TO
PROTECT IRWD'S INTERESTS RELATED TO GROUNDWATER ADJUDICATIONS.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — 2015 IRWD Legislative Matrix

Exhibit “B” — AB 1390 (Alejo): Groundwater: adjudication

Exhibit “C” — SB 226 (Pavley): Sustainable Groundwater Management Act: groundwater rights
Exhibit “D” — CARB’s “Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Strategy Concept Paper”



Bill No.
Author

AB1
Brown (D)

AB2
Alejo (D)

AB 10
Gatto (D)

AB 12
Cooley (D)

AB 14

Waldron (R)

AB21
Perea (D)

Title

Drought: Local
Governments: Fines

Community Revitalization
Authority

Political Reform Act of
1974: Disclosures

State Government:
Administrative Regulations:
Review

Unmanned Aircraft Systems:

Task Force

Global Warming Solutions
Act of 2006: Scoping Plan

IRWD
Position

EXHIBIT “A”
IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

Prohibits a city, county, or city and county from imposing a fine
under any local maintenance ordinance or other relevant ordinance
for a failure to water a lawn or having a brown lawn during a period
for which the Governor has issued a proclamation of a state of
emergency based on drought conditions.

Authorizes certain local agencies to form a community revitalization
authority with a community revitalization and investment area to
carry out provisions of the Community Redevelopment Law in that
area for infrastructure, affordable housing, and economic
revitalization and to provide for the issuance of bonds serviced by
tax increment revenues.

Requires the disclosure of certain behested payments. Increases the
thresholds at which a public official has a disqualifying financial
interest in sources of income in investments in business entities and
in interests in real property. Revises the dollar amounts associated
with the value ranges for reporting the value of economic interests.
Requires certain public officials to disclose information relating to
governmental decisions for which the public official had a
disqualifving financial interest.

Requires each state agency after a noticed public hearing, to review
the agency's regulations, identify any regulations that are
duplicative, overlapping, inconsistent, or out of date, to revise those
identified regulations, and report to the Legislature and Governor.
Creates the Unmanned Aircraft Systems Task Force to research,
develop, and formulate a comprehensive policy for unmanned
aircraft systems. Requires the task force to submit a policy draft and
suggested legislation pertaining to unmanned aircraft systems.

Requires the State Air Resources Board in preparing its scoping plan
for achieving the maximum technologically feasible and cost-
effective reductions in greenhouse gas reduction, to consult with
specified State agencies regarding matters involving energy

Status

05/07/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE.

05/21/2015 - To SENATE
Committees on GOVERNANCE
AND FINANCE and
TRANSPORTATION AND
HOUSING.

04/29/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

05/13/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

04/13/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on TRANSPORTATION
Failed passage.;04/13/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY Committee on
TRANSPORTATION:
Reconsideration granted.

05/18/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
wik#kTo SENATE.



Bill No.
Author

AB 23
Patterson (R)

AB 33
Quirk (D)

AB 45
Mullin (D)

AB 56
Quirk (D)

AB 78
Mathis (R)

Title

Global Warming Solutions
Act of 2006: Compliance

Global Warming Solutions
Act: Climate Council

Household Hazardous Waste

Unmanned Aircraft Systems

Groundwater Basins

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX

Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

efficiency and the facilitation of the electrification of the
transportation sector.

Exempts categories of persons or entities that did not have a
compliance obligation under a market-based compliance mechanism
from being subject to that market-based compliance mechanism.

Establishes the Climate Change Advisory Council. Requires the
Council to develop an analysis of various strategies to achieve the
statewide greenhouse gas emissions limit. Requires the State Air
Resources Board to establish consistent metrics to accurately
quantify reductions in greenhouse gas emissions, quantify public
health benefits, and measure the cost-effectiveness of the various
strategies identified by the Council.

Requires each jurisdiction providing for the residential collection
and disposal of solid waste to increase the collection and diversion
of household hazardous waste in its service area over the baseline.
Provides the increase is to be determined in accordance with
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery regulations.
Authorizes the adoption of a model ordinance for a comprehensive
program for the collection of waste. Requires an annual report to the
Department on progress in achieving compliance.

Prohibits the use of unmanned aircraft systems by public agencies or
the contracting therefor. Exempts law enforcement agencies.
Requires public notice by agencies when intending to deploy such
system. Provides the time frame for destruction of images and data
collected. Prohibits public dissemination of images and data.
Prohibits arming. Relates to surveillance restrictions. Applies to
private entities contracting with agencies. Relates to data and images
subiect to disclosure. Requires public comment.

Makes technical nonsubstantive changes to existing law that requires
the Department of Water Resources to categorize each basin or

A-2

Status

03/23/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES: Failed
passage.;03/23/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES: Reconsideration
granted.

05/06/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

05/20/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

05/26/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
**#%*To SENATE.

01/05/2015 - INTRODUCED.



Bill No.
Author

AB 88
Gomez (D)

AB 149
Chavez (R)

AB 156
Perea (D)

AB 219
Daly (D)

AB 243
Wood (D)

AB 259

Title IRWD
Position
Sales and Use Taxes:
Exemption: Home
Appliances
Urban Water Management Support

Plans

Greenhouse Gas Reduction
Fund: Technical Assistance

Public Works: Concrete
Delivery

Medical Marijuana
Cultivation

Personal Information

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX

Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

subbasin as high-, medium-, low-, or very low priority and to
establish ground water the initial priority for each basin.

Exempts from the sales and use tax laws the gross receipts from the
sale of, and the storage, use, or other consumption in the State of, an
energy or water efficient home appliance purchased by a public
utility that is provided at no cost to a low-income participant in a
federal, state, or ratepayer-funded energy efficiency program for use
by that low-income participant in the energy efficiency program.
Requires each urban water supplier to update and submit a urban
water management plan for a specified year to the State Department
of Water Resources by a specified date. Requires the Department to
submit its urban water management plan report for a specified year
to the Legislature by a specified date.

Requires the State Air Resources Board to establish a comprehensive
technical assistance program, upon the appropriation of moneys
from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund, for eligible applicants
assisting disadvantaged communities and other specified
communities. Requires the Department of Finance to include in a
multi-year investment plan, an allocation to the State Board for the
assistance program.

Expands the definition of public works for purposes of requirements
regarding the payment of prevailing wages for public works projects
to include the delivery of ready-mixed or asphaltic concrete with
respect to contracts involving any State agency or any political
subdivision of the State.

Requires a permit to cultivate medical marijuana. Provides
limitations as to where such product may be grown. Requires indoor
and outdoor medical marijuana cultivation to be conducted in
accordance with state and local laws and best practices related to
land conversion, grading, electricity usage, water usage, agricultural
discharges, and similar matters. Requires each regional water quality
control board to address discharges of waste resulting from medical
marijuana cultivation and associated activities.

Requires an agency, if the agency was the source of the breach and

A-3

Status

05/20/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
second time and amended. Re-referred
to Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS.

05/21/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER.

04/29/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

04/29/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

05/20/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

03/25/2015 - In ASSEMBLY



Bill No.
Author

Dababneh (D)

AB 291
Medina (D)

AB 307
Mathis (R)

AB 308
Mathis (R)

AB 311
Gallagher (R)

AB 327
Gordon (D)

AB 335
Patterson (R)

Title

Privacy

Environmental Quality Act:
Local Agencies: Water

Graywater: Groundwater
Recharge

Graywater: Agricultural Use

Environmental Quality:

Water Quality and Supply

Public Works: Volunteers

Air Quality: Minor
Violations

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

the breach compromised a person's social security number, driver's
license number, or California identification card number, to offer to
provide the person with identity theft prevention and mitigation
services at no cost for not less than 12 months.

Authorizes a local agency, for certain water projects, to file the
notice with the county clerk of the county in which the local
agency's principal office is located in and with the Office of
Planning and Research and to mail a copy of the notice to the county
clerk of the counties in which the project is located. Requires the
notices to be available to for public inspection.

States the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation to explicitly
permit the usage of residential, commercial, and industrial graywater
for the recharge of a groundwater basin or aquifer.

States the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation to explicitly
permit incorporated and unincorporated communities to sell
graywater for agricultural purposes and agriculture to use graywater
for agricultural purposes.

Requires the public agency, in certifying the environmental impact
report and in granting approvals for specified water storage projects
funded, in whole or in part, by Proposition 1, to comply with
specified procedures. Requires the Judicial Council to adopt a rule of
court to establish procedures applicable to actions or proceedings
seeking judicial review of an agency's action in certifying the
environmental impact report and in granting project approval.
Relates to court staying of the projects.

Extends the provisions of existing law that governing public works
does not apply to specified work performed by a volunteer, a
volunteer coordinator, or a member of the California Conservation
COIps Or a community conservation corps.

Requires the State Air Resources Board and air pollution control and
air quality management districts to adopt regulations classifying
minor violations. Requires a representative of those agencies to issue
a notice to comply. Requires the State Air Resources Board to report
to the Legislature regarding implementation of these provisions.

A4

Status

Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

05/14/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY.

02/12/2015 - INTRODUCED

02/12/2015 - INTRODUCED

04/29/2015 - From ASSEMBLY
Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES without further action
pursuant to JR 62(a).

05/14/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
***¥¥To SENATE.

05/19/2015 - From ASSEMBLY
Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES without further action
pursuant to JR 62(a).



Bill No.
Author

AB 341
Achadjian (R)

AB 349

Gonzalez (D)

AB 356

Williams (D)

AB 401
Dodd (D)

AB 402
Dodd (D)

Title IRWD

Position

Financial Affairs: Reports

Common Interest
Developments: Property Use

Oil and Gas: Groundwater

Monitoring

Low-Income Water Rate
Assistance Program

Local Agency Services:
Contracts

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX

Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

Exempts such districts from these provisions if the districts have a
similar program in effect as of a specified date.

Amends existing law requiring the officer of each local agency, who
has charge of the financial records of the local agency, to furnish to
the Controller a report of all such transactions of the local agency
during the preceding fiscal year. Requires the report to contain
underlying data from audited financial statements if this data is
available. Requires such information to be submitted to the
Controller by a specified date each calendar year. Provides the due
date for Controller publishing the reports.

Amends the Davis-Stirling Common Interest Development Act.
Makes void and unenforceable any provision of the governing
documents or architectural or landscaping guidelines or policies that
prohibits the use of artificial turf or any other synthetic surface that
resembles grass.

Authorizes the State Oil and Gas Supervisor to require a well
operator to implement a monitoring program for below ground oil
production tanks and facilities, and disposal and injection wells.
Requires the annual review of underground injection or disposal
projects that use Class II wells. Requires the submission of a related
groundwater monitoring plan. Requires submission of certain data
for inclusion in the State's geotracker database. Provides procedures
for an aquifer exemption.

Requires the Department of Community Services and Development
to develop a plan for the funding and implementation of the Low-
Income Water Rate Assistance Program, which would include
specified elements. Requires the Department to report to the
Legislature on its findings regarding the feasibility, financial
stabilitv. and desired structure of the program.

Revises the circumstances under which a local agency formation
commission may authorize a city or district to provide new or
extended services. Establishes a pilot program for the Napa,
Sonoma, and San Bernardino commissions that would the
commissions to authority a city or district to provide new or

A-5

Status

05/22/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
wkk#+To SENATE.

05/22/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time and amended. To third
reading.

05/20/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

04/15/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

05/19/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
second time. To third reading.



Bill No.
Author

AB 434
Garcia E (D)

AB 452
Bigelow (R)

AB 453
Bigelow (R)

AB 454
Bigelow (R)

AB 455
Bigelow (R)

AB 472

Title

Drinking Water: Point-of-
Entry: Point-of-Use
Treatment

Water Rights Fund:

Groundwater Regulation

Groundwater Management

Sustainable Groundwater
Management

Groundwater Sustainability
Plans

Public Works: Prevailing

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

extended services outside both its jurisdictional boundaries and its
sphere of influence under specified circumstances.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board to adopt
regulations governing the use of point-of-entry and point-of-use
treatment by a public water system in licu of centralized treatment
where it can be demonstrated that centralized treatment is not
immediately economically feasible. Provides limitations. Prohibits
the use of point-of-entry treatment absent a Board determination of
no community opposition. Deletes the limitation on permit duration.
Amends existing law that establishes groundwater reporting
requirements for a person extracting groundwater in an area within a
basin that is not within the management area of a groundwater
sustainability agency or that is a probationary basin. Prohibits water
rights fees from being available for expenditure by the Water
Resources Control Board for the purposes of Board enforcement of
the provisions of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act and
the eroundwater reporting requirements.

Authorizes, until a groundwater sustainability plan is adopted, a
local agency to amend an existing groundwater management plan in
furtherance of, and consistent with, the groundwater management
plan's objectives.

Relates to groundwater basins. Requires a high- or medium-priority
basin that is not subject to critical conditions of overdraft to be
managed under a groundwater sustainability plan or coordinated
groundwater sustainability plan. Provides for the designation of
basins as probationary basins.

Amends the California Environmental Quality Act. Requires the
Judicial Council to adopt a rule of court to establish procedures
applicable to actions or proceedings brought to attack, review, set
aside, void, or annul the certification of an environmental impact
report for certain projects covered by a groundwater sustainability
plan. Prohibits the court from staying or enjoying the construction or
operation of the proiject unless the court makes a certain finding.
Makes a nonsubstantive, technical change by deleting an obsolete

A-6

Status

05/14/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY.

04/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS
AND WILDLIFE: Not heard.

05/07/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER.

04/14/2015 - From ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS
AND WILDLIFE: Do pass to
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS

04/14/2015 - In ASSEMBLY

Committee on WATER, PARKS
AND WILDLIFE: Not heard.

02/23/2015 - INTRODUCED.



Bill No.
Author

Harper (R)

AB 478
Harper (R)

AB 501
Levine (D)

AB 537
Allen T (R)
AB 577

Bonilla (D)

AB 585

Title

Wage: Volunteers

Desalination

Resources: Delta Research

Public Employees' Benefits

Biomethane: Grant Program

Outdoor Water Efficiency:

IRWD
Position

Support

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

provision in existing law that generally requires the payment of not
less than the prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar
character in the locality in which the public work is performed by
workers employed on public works projects, except work performed
by a volunteer, a volunteer coordinator, or member of the State
Conservation Corps, or a community conservation corps.

Makes a nonsubstantive change to the Cobey-Porter Saline Water
Conversion Law that states the policy of this state that desalination
projects developed by or for public water entities be given the same
opportunities for state assistance and funding as other water supply
and reliability projects, and that desalination be consistent with all
applicable environmental protection policies in the state.

Relates to the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009.
Requires a person conducting State-funded Delta Research to take
specified actions with regard to the sharing of the primary data,
samples, physical collections, and other supporting materials created
or gathered in the course of that research. Relates to ineligibility.
Authorizes the Delta Independent Science Board to adopt guidelines.
Suspends State funding for improper reporting. Provides research
property rights remain with the researcher.

Prohibits a public agency, state employer, employee organization, or
public employee from entering into a memorandum of understanding
that provides postemployment health care benefits without a strategy
for permanently prefunding members' postemployment healthcare
benefits.

Allocates an specified amount of funds from the Greenhouse Gas
Reduction Fund to the State Energy Resources Conservation and
Development Commission for the implementation of a biomethane
collection and purification grant program. Requires the Commission
to develop and implement the grant program to award moneys for
projects that build or develop collection, purification technology,
infrastructure, and projects that upgrade existing biomethane
facilities.

Relates to the Outdoor Water Efficiency Act. Allows a credit, under

A-7

Status

02/23/2015 - INTRODUCED.

04/29/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

03/05/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on PUBLIC
EMPLOYEES, RETIREMENT AND
SOCIAL SECURITY.

05/13/2015 - In ASSEMBLY

Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

05/04/2015 - In ASSEMBLY



Bill No.
Author

Melendez (R)

AB 590
Dahle (R)

AB 603
Salas (D)

AB 606
Levine (D)

AB 617
Perea (D)

AB 639

Title IRWD
Position
Personal Income Tax Credits
Greenhouse Gas Reduction
Fund
Income Taxes: Every Drop Support
Counts Tax Credit
Water Conservation Support and
Seek
Amendments

Groundwater

Water Quality: Membership

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX

Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

the Personal Income Tax Law, for a specified percentage of the
amount paid or incurred by a qualified taxpayer for water-efficiency
improvements made to outdoor landscapes on real property in the
State.

Creates the Biomass State Cost Share Account within the
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund. Provides that moneys in the
account would be available for expenditure by the State Energy
Resources Conservation and Development Commission for the
purposes of maintaining the current level of biomass power
generation in the State and revitalizing currently idle facilities in
strategically located regions. Establishes requirements for an
applicant to receive funding for a facility's eligible electrical
generation.

Allows a credit under the Personal Income Tax and the Corporation
Tax laws to a taxpayer participating in a lawn replacement rebate
program.

Requires the Department of General Services, when the Department
replaces landscaping and irrigation on public property or when new
property is added to the Department's inventory, to reduce water
consumption and increase water efficiencies for that property
through replacement of landscaping, irrigation timers, or spray
sprinkler heads, implementation of recycled water irrigation, or any
combination thereof. Imposes similar water conservation
requirements of the Department of Transportation.

Authorizes a minimum combination of local agency and mutual
water companies to enter into an agreement to form a groundwater
sustainability agency. Authorizes such agency to enter into
agreements and funding with private parties that assist in or facilitate
the implementation of groundwater sustainability plans or elements
of a plan. Requires the Water Resources Control Board to direct a
State agency's cooperation with the plan. Relates to the designation
of probationary basins. Relates to plan extensions.

Makes nonsubstantive changes to provisions of existing law which

A-8

Status

Committee on REVENUE AND
TAXATION: To Suspense File.

05/13/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

05/21/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
second time and amended. Re-referred
to Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS.

05/26/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
**k+%*¥To SENATE.

05/06/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

02/24/2015 - INTRODUCED.



Bill No.
Author

Dahle (R)

AB 647
Eggman (D)

AB 723
Rendon (D)

AB 725
Wagner (R)

AB 852
Burke (D)

Title IRWD

Position

of Regional Boards

Beneficial Use: Storing of
Water Underground

Plumbing Fixtures:
WaterSense Standards

Water Quality: Recycled
Water: Storm-Induced
Overflow

Sponsor

Public Works: Prevailing
Wages

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

requires the State Water Resources Control Board and the regional
water quality control boards to prescribe waste discharge
requirements in accordance with the federal national pollutant
discharge elimination system permit program established by the
federal Clean Water Act and the Porter-Cologne Water Quality
Control Act.

Declares that the storing of water underground constitutes a
beneficial use of water if the diverted water is used while it is in
underground storage for specified purposes. States the intent of the
Legislature that this storage of water not injure any legal user of the
water involved. Provides that the period for the reversion of a water
right does not include any period when the water is being used in the
aquifer or storage area or is being held in storage for later application
to beneficial use.

Requires the State Energy Commission, when setting plumbing
fixture water efficiency standards, to consider the performance
requirements established by the WaterSense standards set by the
federal Environmental Protection Agency.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board to adopt a policy
to address the potential for a storm-induced overflow from an
impoundment in which recycled water is stored for subsequent
beneficial use or aesthetic purposes.

Expands the definition of public works for the purposes of
provisions relating to the prevailing rate of per diem wages, to also
include any construction, alteration, demolition, installation, ot
repair work done under private contract on a general acute care
hospital, when the project is paid for, in whole or in part, with the
proceeds of conduit revenue bonds.

A-9

Status

05/06/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
second time. To third reading.

04/30/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
second time and amended. Re-referred
to Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS.

03/26/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS
AND WILDLIFE.;03/26/2015 - From
ASSEMBLY Committee on WATER,
PARKS AND WILDLIFE with
author's amendments.;03/26/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee
on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE.

05/07/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL
RELATIONS.



Bill No.
Author

AB 856
Calderon I (D)

AB 876
McCarty (D)

:

Bloom (D)

AB 935
Salas (D)

AB 936
Salas (D)

AB 937
Salas (D)

Title

Invasion of Privacy

Compostable Organics

Waste Management: Plastic
Microbeads

Integrated Regional Water
Management Plans: Grants

Groundwater Monitoring

Groundwater Planning:
Disadvantaged Communities

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

Expands liability for physical invasion of privacy to additionally
include a person knowingly entering into the airspace above the land
of another person without permission.

Requires each countywide siting element to provide an estimate of
the total organics processing capacity that will be needed over a
specified time period to safely handle organic wastes generated with
the county and to identify areas for the location of organics
processing facilities, if needed or desired.

Prohibits a person from selling or offering for promotional purposes
in this state a personal care product containing plastic microbeads
that are used to exfoliate or cleanse in a rinse-off product. Provides
an exception. Makes a violator liable for a civil penaity to be
assessed and recovered in a civil action brought in any court of
competent jurisdiction by the Attorney General or local officials.
Requires the civil penalties collected to be retained by the office that
brought the action.

Requires the Department of Water Resources to provide grants and
expenditures for the planning, design and construction of local and
regional conveyance projects supporting regional and interregional
connectivity and water management. Requires a regional
management group awarded a grant to provide a specified a cost
share of the total project costs from nonstate resources. Authorizes
the Department to waiver or reduce this requirements for projects
that benefit a disadvantaged community or distressed area.

Amends existing law which provides that certain entities with
authority to assume groundwater monitoring functions with regard to
a basin or subbasin for which the Department of Water Resources
has assumed those functions are not eligible for a water grant or loan
awarded or administered by the state. Authorizes an exemption for
the eligibility restriction if the entity submits specified
documentation that provides that there are special circumstances
justifying noncompliance.

Requires the Department of Water Resources to provide technical
assistance to disadvantaged communities so that they may participate

A-10

Status

05/14/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
**k%%¥To SENATE.

04/29/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

05/22/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.."
#k#x4To SENATE.

05/06/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

04/22/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

05/06/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS



Bill No.
Author

AB 938
Salas (D)

AB 939
Salas (D)

AB 952
Garcia (D)

AB 954
Mathis (R)

AB 957
Mathis (R)

AB 977
Mayes (R)

Title

Groundwater: Basin
Reprioritization

Groundwater Sustainability
Agency: Financial Authority

Local Government:
Vacancies

Water and Wastewater Loan
and Grant Pilot Program

Water Quality, Supply,
Infrastructure Improvement

State Water Pollution
Control Revolving Fund

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

in groundwater planning, including planning for regional
eroundwater banking, with any county or other local agency
Imposes the requirement to establish a groundwater sustainability
agency on a local agency or combination of local agencies overlying
a groundwater basin.

Requires a groundwater sustainability agency to make the data upon
which a proposed fee is based available prior to a public meeting to
impose or increase a fee.

Provides updated procedures for the filling of a vacancy in an
elective office by a city council for a vacancy that occurs in the first
half or the second half of the term of office and at least a specified
number of days prior to the next general municipal election, the
person appointed to fill the vacancy holds office until the next
general municipal election at which a person is elected to fill that
vacancy, and thereafter, until the person elected is qualified.

Creates the Water and Wastewater Loan and Grant Pilot Program.
Require the State Water Resources Control Board to establish a pilot
program to provide low-interest loans and grants to local agencies
for grants to eligible individual homeowners for purposes relating to
drinking water and wastewater treatment. Creates a related fund for
use under the program. Transfers a specified amount of funds from
the General Fund to the fund.

Relates to grants under the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure
Improvement Act of 2014 for water supply reliability improvement
to include in that improvement criterion whether the project is
proposed by a community that is dependent on groundwater from a
basin in overdraft, and would include in the public health benefits
criterion whether the project is proposed by a community that has
extended, or is in the process of extending, its water service
deliveries to specified groundwater entities.

Amends existing law that requires loans under the State Water
Pollution Control Revolving Fund to meet specified criteria,
including requiring full amortization not later than a specified
number of years after project completion. Requires full amortization

A-11

Status

To Suspense File

05/07/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER.

05/07/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER.

05/22/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
*+*¥**¥To SENATE.

05/20/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

04/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS
AND WILDLIFE: Not heard.

03/26/2015 - From ASSEMBLY
Committee on ENVIRONMENTAL
SAFETY AND TOXIC MATERIALS
with author's amendments.;03/26/2015



Bill No.
Author

AB 1019
Garcia E (D)

AB 1030
Ridley-
Thomas S (D)

AB 1068
Allen T (R)

AB 1095
Garcia E (D)

AB 1128
Jones-Sawyer
(D)

Title

Metal Theft and Related
Recycling Crimes

Global Warming Solutions
Act of 2006: Greenhouse
Gas

California Environmental
Quality Act: Priority
Projects

Restoration Funding: Salton
Sea

Water Conservation

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

not later than another specified number of years after project
completion.

Requires the Department of Justice to establish a Metal Theft Task
Force Program designed to enhance the capacity of the department to
serve as the lead law enforcement agency in the investigation and
prosecution of illegal recycling operations, and metal theft and
related recycling crimes. Authorizes the department to enter into
partnerships with local law enforcement agencies.

Amends existing law that relates to the Greenhouse Gas Reduction
Fund. Requires, for greenhouse gas emission reduction projects
involving hiring, priority be given to projects that include
partnerships with training entities that have a proven track record of
placing disadvantaged workers in career-track jobs.

Authorizes each Member of the Legislature to nominate one project
within his or her respective district each year, and the Governor to
designate those projects as priority projects if the projects meet
specified requirements. Requires the Governor to provide a notice of
the designation to the appropriate lead agency and to the Office of
Planning and Research. Requires an environmental impact report for
each project. Authorizes tiering from previously prepared reports.
Relates to court stavs of proiects.

Appropriates an unspecified sum from funds of the Water Quality,
Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014, that provides
funding relating to multiparty water quantification settlement
agreement provisions relating to the Salton Sea, to the Natural
Resources Agency to be used for restoration projects that fulfill
obligations of the State in complying with those quantification
settlement agreement provisions.

Makes nonsubstantive changes to existing law that declares the
intent of the Legislature to, among other things, promote urban water
conservation standards that are consistent with the California Urban

A-12

Status

-In ASSEMBLY. Read second time
and amended. Re-referred to
Committee on ENVIRONMENTAL
SAFETY AND TOXIC
MATERIALS.

04/22/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

05/22/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
**+*+*¥To SENATE.

03/19/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committees on NATURAL
RESOURCES and JUDICIARY

05/13/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

02/27/2015 - INTRODUCED.



Bill No.
Author

AB 1139
Campos (D)

AB 1144
Rendon (D)

AB 1201

Salas (D)

AB 1242

Gray (D)

AB 1243
Gray (D)

Title

Personal Income Tax:
Credit: Turf Removal

Renewables Portfolio
Standard Program: Credits

Delta: Predation by
Nonnative Species

Water Quality: Impacts on
Groundwater: Instream
Flows

Groundwater Recharge:
Grants

IRWD
Position

Support

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX

Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

Water Conservation Council's adopted best management practices
and specified requirements for demand management.

Allows a taxpayer, under the Personal Income Tax Law, a credit for
participation in a lawn replacement program.

Provides that unbundled renewable energy credits may be used to
meet the first category of the portfolio content requirements if the
credits are earned by electricity that is generated by an entity that, if
it were a person or corporation, would be excluded from the
definition of an electrical corporation by operation of the exclusions
for a corporation or person employing landfill gas technology or
digester gas technology, and the entity has specified first points of
interconnection.

Requires the State Department of Fish and Wildlife to develop and
initiate a science-based approach that addresses predation by
nonnative species upon species of fish listed pursuant to the State
Endangered Species Act that reside all or a portion of their lives in
the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board to take into
consideration any applicable groundwater sustainability plan or
alternative in formulating state policy for water quality control and
adopting or approving a water quality control plan that affects a
groundwater basin. Requires the Board to identify projects for fish
recovery that may be undertaken in lieu of instream flows before
adopting or approving quality objectives or a program of
implementation that requires such flows for beneficial uses.
Establishes the Groundwater Recharge Grant Fund. Provides that
moneys in the fund are available to the State Water Resources

A-13

Status

03/26/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on REVENUE AND
TAXATION.;03/26/2015 - From
ASSEMBLY Committee on
REVENUE AND TAXATION with
author's amendments.;03/26/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee
on REVENUE AND TAXATION.
05/22/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
**k***¥To SENATE.

05/06/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

05/20/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

04/14/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS



Bill No.
Author

AB 1315
Alejo (D)

AB 1325
Salas (D)

AB 1362

Gordon (D)

AB 1390

Alejo (D)

AB 1454
Wagner (R)

Title

Public Contracts Water
Pollution Prevention Plans

Delta Smelt

Local Government
Assessments Fees and
Charges

Groundwater: Adjudication

Water Quality: Trash:
Single-Use Carryout Bags

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

Control Board to provide grants to local governments and water
districts for groundwater recharge infrastructure projects.

Prohibits a public entity, charter city, or charter county from
delegating to a contractor the development of a plan used to prevent
or reduce water pollution or runoff on a public works contract.
Provides exceptions. Prohibits those same entities from requiring a
contractor on a public works contract that includes compliance with
a plan to assume responsibility for the completeness and accuracy of
a plan developed by that entity.

Enacts the Delta Smelt Preservation and Restoration Act of 2016.
Requires the development of a deltas smelt hatchery program to
preserve and restore the delta smelt. Requires entering into
mitigation banking agreements with banking partners of the
Department of Fish and Wildlife for the purpose of providing take
authorizations to those partners and to obtain funding from banking
agreements. Appropriates an unspecified amount of money from an
unspecified source to implement these provisions.

Defines stormwater for purposes of the Proposition 218 Omnibus
Implementation Act to mean any system of public improvements or
service intended to provide for the quality, conservation, control, or
conveyance of waters that land on or drain across the natural or man-
made landscape.

Establishes special procedures for an adjudication action to
determine the rights to extract groundwater within a basin or store
water from a basin. Authorizes the court to determine all rights to
groundwater in a basin whether based on appropriation, overlying
right, or other basis of right. Requires a complaint filed in an action
to name certain defendants, including counties or cities that provide
water service and overlie a basin in whole or in part, and to be
served and published in a specified manner.

Suspends the operation of certain amendments to water quality
control plans relating to the total maximum daily load for trash
unless and until specified provisions inoperative due to a pending
referendum election become effective. Requires the State Water

A-14

Status

AND WILDLIFE: Not heard.

05/20/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

04/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS
AND WILDLIFE: Failed
passage.;04/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS
AND WILDLIFE: Reconsideration
granted.

03/23/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on LOCAL
GOVERNMENT.

05/26/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
*#%x+%To SENATE.

04/23/2015 - Re-referred to
ASSEMBLY Committee on RULES



Bill No.
Author

AB 1463
Gatto (D)

AB 1532
Local
Government
Cmt

AB 1534

Ting (D)

SB 7
Wolk (D)

SB 13
Pavley (D)

Title

Onsite Recycled Water

Local Government: Omnibus

Assessment Analyst:
Certification

Housing: Water Meters:
Multi-unit Structures

Groundwater

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX

Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

Resources Control Board to revisit and revise the water quality
control plans to address impaired water quality due to trash if the law
pending referendum is defeated.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board to establish water
quality standards and distribution, monitoring, and reporting
requirements for onsite water recycling systems prior to authorizing
the use of onsite recycled water in internal plumbing of residential
and commercial buildings.

Amends provisions regarding local governments to include the
revision of existing law regarding local agency formation
commissions. Revises provisions regarding hospital districts, conflict
of interest rules for a commission appointed legal counsel, the
annexation of inhabited territory, and the issuance of a certificate of
completion or termination regarding the consolidation of cities or
districts.

Prohibits an assessor or any person employed by the Office of the
County Assessor from making decisions with regard to change in
ownership, or with regard to property tax exemptions, except a
homeowners' exemption claim, unless he or she is the holder of a
valid assessment analyst certificate issued by the State Board of
Equalization. Requires prescribed annual training for certification.
Provides for advanced certification. Provide failure to complete
training would be grounds for revocation.

Encourages the conservation of water in multifamily residential
rental buildings through means within the landlord's or the tenant's
control, and to ensure that the practices involving the submetering of
dwelling units for water service are just and reasonable, and
including appropriate safeguards for both tenants and landlords.
Authorizes building standards that require the installation of water
submeters in multiunit residential buildings. Defines the term
submeter for the Water Measurement Law.

Authorizes the State Water Resource Control Board to designate a
basin as a probationary basin and to develop an interim plan. Relates
deficiency remedies by a local agency or groundwater sustainability

A-15

Status

05/20/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
To Suspense File.

05/22/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time and amended. To third
reading.

05/13/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To Suspense File.

05/22/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committees on HOUSING AND
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
and WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE.

05/21/2015 - From ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS
AND WILDLIFE with author's



Bill No.
Author

SB 20
Pavley (D)

SB 32
Pavley (D)

SB 47

Hill (D)

SB 113
Galgiani (D)

SB 119
Hill (D)

Title IRWD

Position

Wells: Reports: Public
Availability

Global Warning Solutions
Act of 2006: Emissions
Limit

Environmental Health:
Synthetic Turf

Disaster Preparedness and
Flood Prevention Bond Act

Protection of Subsurface
Installations

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

agency. Relates to the designation of a basin as probationary. Relates
to establishing a groundwater sustainability plan. Authorizes a
mutual water company to participate in such agency. Provides a
water corporation or mutual water company may participate.
Extends the deadline for basins to be under a plan.

Amends an existing law which requires a person who digs, bores, or
drills a water well, cathodic protection well, or a monitoring well to
file a report of completion with the Department of Water Resources.
Requires the Department to make reports available to the public.
Requires the Department to redact from the report specified
information pertaining to the well owner.

Requires the State Air Resources Board to approve a specified
statewide greenhouse gas emission limit that is equivalent to a
specified percentage below the 1990 level to be achieved by 2050.
Authorizes the Board to adopt interim emissions level targets to be
achieve by specified years. Makes conforming changes.

Requires the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, in
consultation with the Department of Resources Recycling and
Recovery, the State Department of Public Health, and the
Department of Toxic Substances Control, to prepare and provide to
the Legislature and post on the office's Internet Web site a study
analyzing synthetic turf, for potential adverse health impacts.
Provides the information to be included in the study. Authorizes
grant to crumb rubber businesses to find alternative markets.
Specifies that the Disaster Preparedness and Flood Prevention Bond
Act of 2006 funds provided by the act are only available for
appropriation until a specified date and at that time the amount of
indebtedness authorized by the act is reduced by the amount of funds
that have not been appropriated. Removes the restriction that the
funds are available for appropriation only until that specified date.
Relates to excavation. Provides for certain training requirements,
fines, and license suspension. Makes changes relating to a regional
notification center and subsurface installations. Provides for
delineation of areas to be excavated, preservation of certain plans,

A-16

Status

amendments.;05/21/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee
on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE.

04/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

05/18/2015 - In SENATE Comumittee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

04/13/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

03/24/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER: Not heard.

05/26/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.



Bill No.
Author

SB 122
Jackson (D)

SB 127
Vidak (R)

SB 142
Jackson (D)

SB 143
Stone (R)

SB 173
Nielsen (R)

Title IRWD

Position

Environmental Quality Act:
Record of Proceedings

Water Quality, Supply, and
Infrastructure Improvement

Civil law: Unmanned Aerial
Vehicles

Diamond Valley Reservoir:
Recreational Use

Oppose

Groundwater: De Minimis
Extractors

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

damages, pipeline safety, an exemption for certain residential
property owners, occupational safety and health standards for
excavators, and the use of moneys collected as a result of the
issuance of citations. Creates a complaint authority.

Amends the Environmental Quality Act. Relates to a database for the
collection, storage, retrieval, and dissemination of environmental
documents, notices of exemption, notices of preparation, notices of
determination, and notices of completion provided to the office that
shall be available online to the public through the internet. Provides
for the phase-in of electronic documents. Requires the lead agency to
submit to the State Clearinghouse a sufficient number of
environmental documents for review.

Relates to the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure
Improvement Act of 2014. Requires the public agency, in certifying
the environmental impact report and in granting approvals for
projects funded, in whole or in part, by Proposition 1, including the
concurrent preparation of the record of proceedings and the
certification of the record of proceeding within 5 days of the filing of
a specified notice, to comply with specified procedures.

Defines knowing entry upon the land of another to include the
operation of an unmanned aerial vehicle below the navigable
airspace overlaying the real property. Extends liability for wrongful
occupation of real property and damages to a person who without
permission operates an unmanned aerial vehicle below the navigable
airspace overlaying the real property or operation of an unmanned
aerial vehicle less than a specified number of feed above ground
level with the airspace overlaying the real property.

Amends existing law that prohibits recreational use in which there is
bodily contact with water, in a reservoir in which water is stored for
domestic use.

Amends existing law that generally excepts a de minimis extractor
from the requirement that a person who extracts groundwater from a
probational basin or extracts groundwater on or after July 1, 2017, in
an area within a basin that is not within the management area of a

A-17

Status

05/04/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

02/05/2015 - To SENATE
Committees on ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY and JUDICIARY.

05/22/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committees on PRIVACY AND
CONSUMER PROTECTION and
JUDICIARY.

02/05/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY.

03/24/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER: Failed passage.;03/24/2015
- In SENATE Committee on



Bill No.
Author

SB 179
Berryhill (R)

SB 184
Hertzberg (D)

SB 185
De Leon (D)

SB 208

Lara (D)

SB 216
Pan (D)

Title

Secondhand Goods: Junk
Dealers

Local Government: Omnibus
Bill

Public Retirement Systems:
Divestiture of Thermal Coal

Integrated Regional Water

Management Plans: Grants

Public Employees
Retirement Svstem

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

groundwater sustainability agency and where the county does not
assume responsibility to be the groundwater sustainability agency
has to file a report of groundwater extraction. Defines a de minimis
extractor.

Makes nonsubstantive changes to existing law that prohibits a junk
dealer or recycler from possessing a reasonably recognizable,
disassembled, or inoperative fire hydrant or fire department
connection, a manhole cover or lid, or a backflow device, that was
owned by an agency, without a written certification on the agency's
letterhead that the agency either has sold the material described or is
offering the material for sale.

Clarifies that provisions in existing law relating to the authority of
the duties of the auditor apply only to the county auditor. Authorizes
marginal notations on recorded records. Repeals keeping an index of
separate property of married women. Authorizes general grantor-
grantee index in computerized of electronic format. Deletes certain
endorsement requirements. Deletes certain name and address posting
on records requirement. Updates government contract cost
accounting. Relates to local contract bidding.

Prohibits the boards of the Public Employees’ Retirement System
and the State Teachers' Retirement System from making new
investments or renewing existing investments of funds in a thermal
coal company. Requires the boards to liquidate investments and to
engage with such companies to ascertain if they are transitioning to
clean energy generation business models. Requires the boards to
make a comprehensive assessment on divesting in natural gas and
petroleum investments.

Requires a regional water management group to provide the state
entity administering the regional water management grant with a list
of projects to be funded by the grant funds where the project
proponent is a nonprofit organization or a disadvantaged community,
or the project benefits a disadvantaged community.

Amends the Public Employees Retirement System. Repeals the
provisions regarding investing in residential realty on the system's

A-18

Status

NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER: Reconsideration granted.

02/19/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

05/18/2015 - In SENATE. Read third
time. Passed SENATE. *****Tq
ASSEMBLY.

04/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

04/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

05/14/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on PUBLIC



Bill No.
Author

SB 223
Galgiani (D)

SB 226
Pavley (D)

SB 228
Cannella (R)

SB 248
Pavley (D)

Title IRWD

Position

Division of Boating and
Waterways: Oversight
Committee

Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act

Groundwater Storage:
Beneficial Use

Oil and Gas

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

investment portfolio. Changes the frequency of a specified report to
eliminate the requirement to report on the investments on a cost
basis. Makes other changes to the content of the report. Specifies
that the option to purchase service credit shall be elected prior to
retirement, that the member be returning to State service.

Requires the Division of Boating and Waterways to establish an
advisory and oversight committee to evaluate and monitor the
activities of the Division relating to the management and control or
eradication of invasive aquatic plants. Provides the expertise of
members of the committee. Requires the committee to meet a
specified amount of times per year and to communicate any findings
or recommendations to the Division.

Provides for a comprehensive method for determining groundwater
rights. Provides that a court shall use the Code of Civil Procedure for
determining rights to groundwater. Requires the rights determination
process to be available to specified courts. Provides for applicability
to Indian tribes and the federal government. Requires the boundaries
of a basin to be identified in Bulletin 118. Authorizes certain
departments to intervene in specified actions. Provides for expert
witness disclosures.

Declares that the recharging of a groundwater basin by a local
groundwater management agency or a local groundwater
sustainability agency for the purposes of repelling saline intrusion
and recovering basin groundwater levels constitutes a beneficial use
of water if the recharge is consistent with the local agency's
groundwater management plan or sroundwater sustainability plan.
Provides for an inspection protocol and schedule of activities
regulated pursuant to provisions concerning drilling, operation,
maintenance, and abandonment of oil and gas wells and certain tanks
and facilities. Requires information on inspections to be reported.
Requires the recording of information in a well history, including
fluid injection, chemical composition, and waste disposal injection.
Provides conditions for shutdown. Relates to Class II wells regulated
under the Safe Drinking Water Act.

A-19

Status

EMPLOYEES, RETIREMENT AND
SOCIAL SECURITY.

05/11/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

05/26/2015 - In SENATE. Read third
time. Passed SENATE. *****To
ASSEMBLY.

02/26/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER.

05/11/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.



Bill No.
Author

SB 258
Bates (R)

SB 272
Hertzberg (D)

SB 317
De Leon (D)

SB 350
De Leon (D)

SB 360
Cannella (R)

SB 385
Hueso (D)

Title IRWD

Position

Local Government

State Public Records Act:
Local Agencies: Inventory

Safe Neighborhood Parks,
Rivers, and Coastal
Protection

Clean Energy and Pollution
Reduction Act of 2015

Biomethane

Primary Drinking Water
Standards: Hexavalent
Chromium

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX

Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

States the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation that would
protect the right of the public to participate in open deliberations of
the legislative bodies of local agencies by clarifying the appropriate
use of special meetings.

Requires each local agency, in implementing the State Public
Records Act, to create a catalog of enterprise systems, to make the
catalog publicly available upon request in the office of the clerk of
the agency's legislative body, and to post the catalog on the local
agency's Internet Web site. Requires the catalog to disclose a list of
the systems utilized by the agency and, among other things, the
current system vendor and product.

Enacts the Safe Neighborhood Parks, Rivers, and Coastal Protection
Bond Act of 2016, which, if adopted by the voters, would authorize
the issuance of bonds in a specified amount pursuant to the State
General Obligation Bond Law to finance a safe neighborhood parks,
rivers, and coastal protection program.

Establishes the quantity of electricity products from eligible
renewable energy resources be procured by each retail seller for
specified periods. Requires the boards of local publicly owned
electric utilities to ensure that specified quantities of such products
be procured to achieve a specified percentage by a specified date.
Excludes combustion from municipal waste as eligible renewable
energy sources. Requires submission of renewable energy
procurement plans. Relates to reducing motor vehicle emissions.
Authorizes the Public Utilities Commission to consider providing the
option to all corporations to engage in competitive bidding and direct
investment in ratepavyer financed biomethane collection equipment.
Authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board to grant a
period of time to achieve compliance with the primary drinking
water standard for hexavalent chromium by approving the
compliance plan. Requires a public water system to provide
specified notice regarding the plan to its customers and to send status
reports to the Board. Authorizes the Board to direct revisions to the
plan and to implement, interpret, or make specific provisions by

A-20

Status

02/26/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

05/22/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committees on JUDICIARY and
LOCAL GOVERNMENT.

05/18/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

05/18/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

03/05/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on ENERGY, UTILITIES AND
COMMUNICATIONS.

05/26/2015 - From SENATE
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
To second reading without further
hearing pursuant to Senate Rule 28.8.



Bill No.
Author

SB 454
Allen (D)

SB 471

Pavley (D)

SB 485
Hernandez (D)

SB 487
Nielsen (R)

SB 551
Wolk (D)

Title

Water Quality: Oil and Gas:
Exempt Aquifer

Water, Energy, Reduction of
Greenhouse Gas

County of Los Angeles:
Sanitation Districts

Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act:
Exemptions

State Water Policy: Water
and Energy Efficiency

IRWD
Position

Seek
Amendments

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

means of criteria, published on its Internet Web site.

Relates to water quality, oil and gas wells and exempt aquifers.
Prohibits the Division of Qil, Gas, and Geothermal Resources from
submitting a proposal for an aquifer exemption to the United States
Environmental Protection Agency unless the division and the State
Water Resources Control Board concur in writing that the aquifer
meets specified conditions. Relates to the Clean Water Act. Relates
to an aquifer that is hydrocarbon bearing. Provides for injection
zones separated from beneficial waters.

Requires the development of an emissions inventory of greenhouse
gas emissions from the water system in the State. Includes reduction
of greenhouse gas emissions associated with water treatment among
the investments that are eligible for funding from the Greenhouse
Gas Reduction Fund.

Authorizes specified sanitation districts in the County of Los
Angeles, to acquire, construct, operate, maintain, and furnish
facilities for the diversion, management, and treatment of stormwater
and dry weather runoff, the discharge of the water to the stormwater
drainage system, and the beneficial use of the water. Makes
legislative findings and declarations as to the necessity of a special
statute for the County of Los Angeles.

Relates to the California Environmental Act (CEQA). Exempts from
the requirements of CEQA the formation of a groundwater
sustainability agency, the amendment of a groundwater sustainability
plan or coordinated groundwater sustainability plan, and the
implementation of those plans, except to the extent that the
implementation requires the construction or installation of a new
facility.

Declares the policy of the state that water use and water treatment
shall be as energy efficient as in feasible and energy use and
generation shall be as water efficient as is feasible. Requires all
relevant state agencies to consider this state policy when revising, or
establishing policies, regulations, and grant criteria when pertinent to
these uses of water and energy

A-21

Status

05/11/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

05/18/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

05/18/2015 - In SENATE. Read third
time. Passed SENATE. *****Tg
ASSEMBLY.

03/12/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY.

05/11/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.



Bill No.
Author

SB 552
Wolk (D)

SB 553
Wolk (D)

SB 554
Wolk (D)

SB 555
Wolk (D)

SB 556
De Leon (D)

SB 568

Title IRWD

Position

Disadvantaged Communities
Drinking Water Standards

Water Conservation

Water Commission
Disqualifying Financial
Interest

Urban Retail Water
Suppliers: Water Loss
Management

Victims of Crime:
Indemnification:
Applications

Groundwater Management

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

Requires the State Water Resources Control to develop a report
identifying specific funding and enforcement mechanisms necessary
ensure that disadvantaged communities have water systems that are
in compliance with state and federal drinking water standards.
Requires the report to identify specific legislative and administrative
actions necessary to bring disadvantaged communities into
compliance with safe drinking water standards.

Requires the Department of General Services to identify each public
property in the department's state property inventory where it is
feasible for water consumption to be reduces and water efficiencies
to be achieved through implementation of the relevant
recommendations made in the model water efficient landscape
ordinance and would require the department to implement the
relevant recommendation where feasible.

Removes a member of the California Water Commission from office
if after trial a court finds that the commission member has
knowingly participated in any commission decision in which the
member has a disqualifying financial interest in the decision.
Require each urban retail water supplier to submit a completed and
validated water loss audit report for the previous calendar year.
Requires the Department of Water Resources of post a reports on its
Internet Web site and to develop metrics for reporting year-over-year
progress on water loss reduction. Requires rules requiring urban
retail water suppliers to meet performance standards for the volume
of water losses.

Relates to indemnification of victims of crime. Defines the time of
processing applications. Requires the Victim Compensation and
Government Claims Board to post on its Internet Web site its
progress and current average time of processing applications, the
number of applications approved and denied, and incomplete
applications received. Relates to the period of time, including all
calendar days, that begins when the board first receives an
application and ends when a check is mailed to an eligible victim.
Relates to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.

A-22

Status

05/11/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

05/11/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File. *

04/21/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on ELECTIONS AND
CONSTITUTIONAL
AMENDMENTS: Not heard.
04/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

05/26/2015 - In SENATE. Read third
time. Passed SENATE. **¥*¥*To
ASSEMBLY.

03/12/2015 - To SENATE Committee



Bill No.
Author

Fuller (R)

SB 615
Berryhill (R)

SB 625
Galgiani (D)

SB 687
Allen (D)

SB 704
Gaines T (R)

SB 758
Block (D)

Title

Waste Discharge: Waivers:
Managed Wetlands

Water Management:
Synthetic Plastic Microbeads

Renewable Gas Standard

Public Officers and
Employees: Conflicts of
Interest

Atmospheric Rivers
Research and Mitigation
Program

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

Authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board to designate a
basin as a probationary basin if the state board makes a certain
determination and authorizes the state board to develop an interim
plan for the probationary basin.

Relates to waste discharge requirements, waivers and managed
wetlands. Requires each regional board to prescribe waste discharge
requirements that implement relevant water quality control plans.
Provides for waivers. Amends monitoring of wetlands unless results
of downstream monitoring demonstrate a violation of water quality
discharge standards.

Prohibits the selling, or offering for promotional purposes a person
care product containing synthetic plastic microbeads. Exempts from
this prohibition the sale or promotional offer of a product containing
a specified amount of such microbeads. Makes a violator liable for a
civil penalty for each violation. Authorizes the penalty to be
recovered in a civil action brought by the Attorney General.
Prohibits any local ordinance, resolution, or rule relating to the sale
of such microbeads.

Requires the State Air Resources Board to adopt a carbon-based
renewable gas standard that requires all gas sellers to provide
specified percentages of renewable gas meeting certain deliverability
requirements, to retail end-use customers for use in the state that
increases over specified compliance periods, and to issue an analysis
of the lifecycle emissions of greenhouse gases and reductions for
different biogas types and end uses. Requires a renewable gas
assessment.

Relates to conflicts of interest of public officers and employees.
Provides for an updated definition of remote interest when dealing
with seeking and awarding public entity contracts.

Establishes the Atmospheric Rivers Research and Mitigation
Program in the State Department of Water Resources to research the
causes and effects of such rivers, and to take actions to capture water
generated by such rivers to increase the water supply and reliability
of water resources in the State and to operate reservoirs in a manner

A-23

Status

on RULES

04/29/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY:
Not heard.

04/22/2015 - Re-referred to SENATE
Committees on ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY and JUDICIARY.

05/18/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.

05/22/2015 - In SENATE. Read third
time. Passed SENATE. *****To
ASSEMBLY.

05/11/2015 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense
File.



Bill No.
Author

SB 768
Wieckowski

(D)

SB 772
Stone (R)
SB 798
Pavley (D)

SJR 1
Beall (D)

Title

Water-Conserving Plumbing
Fixtures

Bay Delta Conservation
Plan; Judicial Review
Natural Resources

Social Security: Retirement
Benefits: Public Employees

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2015 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated May 27, 2015

Summary/Effects

that improves flood protection in the State. Establishes a related fund
for funding the program.

Makes technical, nonsubstantive changes to existing law that
requires the replacement of plumbing fixtures that are not water
conserving in residential and commercial real property built and
available for use on or before a specified date.

States the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation establishing
judicial review procedures for the Bay Delta Conservation Plan.
Provides provisions regarding natural resources to include sport
fishing regulations, the automated fishing and hunting license data
system, the retrocession of jurisdiction by the United States over
land within the State, the conveyance of certain State lands to the
United States for a lighthouse, membership of the Range
Management Advisory Committee, membership on the Coastal
Commission, violations of water use and diversion provisions,
temporary water diversion permits, and small irrigation water usage.
Requests the President and the Congress of the United States to pass
legislation repealing the Government Pension Offset and the
Windfall Elimination Provisions from the Social Security Act.

A-24

Status

03/19/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

03/19/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

05/22/2015 - In SENATE. Read third
time. Passed SENATE. *#¥***Tg
ASSEMBLY.

04/16/2015 - In SENATE. Read third
time. Adopted by SENATE.
*kx4¥To ASSEMBLY.



EXHIBIT "B"

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MAY 18, 2015
AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 30, 2015
AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MARCH 26, 2015

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE—2015—16 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL No. 1390

Introduced by Assembly Members Alejo, Gomez, and Perea
(Principal coauthors: Assembly Members Bigelow, Gray, Olsen,
and Salas)

(Principal coauthors: Senators Cannella, Hueso, and Vidak)
(Coauthors: Assembly Members Cooley, Cooper, Eggman, Frazier,
Gallagher, Ridley-Thomas,and-Witk Wilk, and Wood)
(Coauthors: Senators Fuller, Galgiani, and Nielsen)

February 27, 2015

An act to add Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 830) to Title 10
of Part 2 of the Code of Civil Procedure, relating to groundwater.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL’S DIGEST

AB 1390, as amended, Alejo. Groundwater: adjudication.

The California Constitution requires that the water resources of the
State be put to beneficial use to the fullest extent of which they are
capable. Under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, which
applies to all groundwater basins in the state, all basins designated as
high- or medium-priority basins by the Department of Water Resources
as basins that are subject to critical conditions of overdraft, as specified,
are required to be managed under a groundwater sustainability plan or
coordinated groundwater sustainability plans by January 31, 2020.

This bill would establish special procedures for an adjudication action,
which is defined as an action filed in superior court to determine the

96

B-1



AB 1390 —2—

rights to extract groundwater within a basin or store water from a basin,
as specified. The bill would authorize the court to determine all rights
to groundwater in a basin whether based on appropriation, overlying
right, or other basis of right. The bill would require these special
procedures to govern all adjudication actions except in specified cases
not involving allocation of a basin’s groundwater supply.

This bill would require a complaint filed in an adjudication action to
name certain defendants, including all counties or cities that provide
water service and overlie the basin in whole or in part, and to be served
and published in a specified manner. The bill would require the
complaint to be accompanied by a draft notice and draft form answer,
as specified, and would require the court to hold a preliminary hearing
within 180 days of the filing of the complaint to determine if the action
should proceed to comprehensively determine groundwater rights in
the basin in accordance with the special procedures for adjudication
actions. If the court makes that determination, based on a finding that
at least one of 4 specified conditions is met, the bill would require the
court to issue an order declaring the case an adjudication action and
authorizing the service of the landowners of the basin. After the court
order authorizing service of the landowners of the basin, the bill would
require the plaintiff to file an ex parte application seeking court approval
of the draft notice and draft form answer filed with the complaint. If
the court approves the draft notice and draft form answer, the bill would
require the assessor or assessors of the county or counties in which the
basin to be adjudicated lies to include the court-approved notice and
form answer with the next property tax bill sent to each landowner in
the basin. The bill would require the plaintiff to reimburse the assessor
or assessors for the costs of including the court-approved notice and
form answer with the property tax bills and, after those materials have
been included with the property tax bills, would require the plaintiff to
file a declaration under penalty of perjury with the court attesting to the
completion of the mailing. By expanding the scope of an existing crime,
the bill would impose a state-mandated local program. The bill would
deem fulfillment of the service and publication provisions as effective
service of process of the complaint and notice on all interested parties
of the adjudication action for purposes of establishing in rem jurisdiction
and the comprehensive effect of the adjudication action.

This bill would authorize the court to convene an initial case
management conference within 60 days of completion of service of the
complaint and notice, as described above, after which the court could

96

B-2



—3— AB 1390

divide the adjudication action into phases. The bill would require the
court to define the scope of any phase of the adjudication action by
written order and would provide that the court’s discretion is not limited
in ordering as many phases as the court deems appropriate for the
expeditious and appropriate resolution of competing claims to the
groundwater basin. In a phase of an adjudication action, the bill would
require discovery to be strictly limited to the scope of the phase and
would authorize the court to issue a written statement of decision at the
completion of each phase. In addition, the bill would require each party
to make, under penalty of perjury, specified initial disclosures within
60 days after the initial case management conference, except a plaintiff
would be required to make the initial disclosures at the time it files the
complaint. By expanding the scope of an existing crime, the bill would
impose a state-mandated local program. The bill would authorize the
court to appoint a special master in an adjudication action, and would
provide that the special master’s duties could include, among other
things, initiating a technical committee to conduct joint factfinding
regarding the basin and would require the special master to compile a
technical report of the findings, as specified. On or before January 1,
2017, the bill would require the Department of Water Resources to
establish and maintain a list of individuals who may serve as special
masters in adjudication actions and would prescribe the experience
needed for an individual to be placed on the list.

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local
agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state.
Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act
for a specified reason.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes.
State-mandated local program: yes.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 830) is
2 added to Title 10 of Part 2 of the Code of Civil Procedure, to read:

96

B-3



AB 1390 —4—

OO0~ BN -

CHAPTER 7. AcTioNs RELATING TO GROUNDWATER RIGHTS
Article 1. General Provisions

830. (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:

(1) Diverse economic, environmental, and social interests are
implicated by sustainable groundwater management.

(2) Efficient resolution of conflicts concerning the right to use
and manage groundwater will promote beneficial use of the waters
of the state consistent with Section 2 of Article X of the California
Constitution, the state water policies mandated in Chapter 1
(commencing with Section 100) of Division 1 of the Water Code,
and as intended by the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
(Part 2.74 (commencing with Section 10720) of Division 6 of the
Water Code).

(3) Previous groundwater adjudication actions have taken more
than a decade before issuance of a final judgment by the court in
an adjudication action.

(4) In light of the scope and complexities of groundwater
adjudication actions, the state’s welfare will be promoted by the
development of specially tailored legal procedures to efficiently
process groundwater adjudication actions.

(b) It is the intent of the Legislature to do all of the following:

(1) Develop procedures to provide a more streamlined and
expeditious groundwater adjudication process, while at the same
time fully respecting established principles of water rights law and
providing participants appropriate due process.

(2) Establish procedures by which courts may conduct
comprehensive determinations of all rights to groundwater in a
basin.

(3) Encourage early resolution of groundwater rights disputes.

(4) Substantially reduce the time and expense of groundwater
adjudications, while ensuring fair procedures to protect all parties’
rights to groundwater.

(5) Ensure the judicial process is not used to unnecessarily delay
or thwart the goal of managing groundwater in a sustainable
manner.

(6) Reduce the burdens placed on the judiciary under the current
adjudication process.

96

B-4



—
SN0 IO\ =

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39

5 AB 1390

830.5. For purposes of this chapter, the following definitions
apply:

(a) “Adjudication action” means an action filed in superior court
to determine the rights to extract groundwater within a basin or
store water from a basin, including, but not limited to,-aetiens an
action to quiet title respecting rights to extract or store groundwater
or an action brought to impose a physical solution on a basin.

(b) “Basin” means a groundwater basin or subbasin identified
pursuant to Section 839.

(c) “Bulletin 118” means the department’s report entitled
“California’s Groundwater: Bulletin 118” updated in 2003, as it
may be subsequently updated or revised.

(d) “Complaint” means a complaint filed in superior court to
determine rights to extract groundwater and includes any
cross-complaint that initiates an adjudication action in response
to a plaintiff’s complaint or other cross-complaint.

(e) “Department” means the Department of Water Resources.

(® “Groundwater” means water beneath the surface of the earth
within the zone below the water table in which the soil is
completely saturated with water, but does not include water that
flows in known and definite channels.

(g) “Groundwater extraction facility” means a device or method
for extracting groundwater from within a basin.

(h) “Groundwater recharge” means the augmentation of
groundwater, by natural or artificial means.

(i) “Person” includes, but is not limited to, counties, local
agencies, state agencies, federal agencies, tribes, business entities,
and individuals.

() “Plaintiff” means the person filing the complaint initiating
an adjudication action and includes a cross-complainant who
initiates an adjudication action by cross-complaint.

(k) “Sustainable Groundwater Management Act” means the
provisions of Part 2.74 (commencing with Section 10720) of
Division 6 of the Water Code.

831. (a) This chapter establishes special procedures for an
adjudication action. This chapter shall not alter groundwater rights
or the law concerning groundwater rights. The other provisions of
this code apply to procedures in an adjudication action to the extent
they do not conflict with the provisions of this chapter.

96

B-5



AB 1390 6

O 0 ~IAN W b —

(b) In an adjudication action subject to this chapter, the court
may determine, in the proceedings provided for in this chapter, all
rights to groundwater in a basin whether based on appropriation,
overlying right, or other basis of right.

(c) The court’s final judgment in an adjudication action, as to
the right to groundwater of each party, may declare the priority,
amount, purposes of use, extraction location, and place of use of
the water, together with appropriate injunctive relief, subject to
terms adopted by the court to implement a physical solution in the
adjudication action.

(d) The procedures of this chapter shall govern all adjudication
actions, unless the court finds either of the following, in which
case the action shall proceed in accordance with other provisions
of law:

(1) The action concerns only claims that the operation of a
party’s groundwater extraction facility is interfering with the
physical availability of groundwater to one or more other parties’
groundwater extraction facility or facilities and does not involve
an allocation of the basin’s groundwater supply.

(2) The action concerns only claims to extract, or to prevent
interference with extractions of;, a specific source of groundwater
recharge and does not involve an allocation of the basin’s
groundwater supply.

() In implementing this chapter and applying the other
provisions of this code in an adjudication action, the court should
expedite resolution of the adjudication action and, where a
groundwater sustainability plan is required pursuant to the
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, the court should
encourage the parties to cooperatively develop a groundwater
sustainability plan that may serve as the basis of a stipulated
judgment setting forth a physical solution for management of the
basin.

Article 2. Commencement of Action
832. (a) Unless a court orders otherwise for good cause, the
complaint in an adjudication action shall name all of the following
persons as defendants:

(1) All counties or cities that provide water service and overlie
the basin in whole or in part.

96

B-6



7 AB 1390

(2) All general or special districts empowered to manage or
replenish groundwater resources of the basin in whole or in part.

(3) The operator of a public water system that uses groundwater
from the basin to supply water service.

(4) The operator of a state small water system that uses
groundwater from the basin to supply water service.

(b) Within 30 days of the filing of the complaint, all of the
following shall occur:

(1) The plaintiff shall serve the complaint on all persons named
as defendants pursuant to subdivision (a) in the manner prescribed
by Article 3 (commencing with Section 415.10) of Chapter 4 of
Title 5.

(2) The plaintiff shall publish notice of the complaint pursuant
to Section 6066 of the Government Code.

(3) The plaintiff, or its representative, shall personally appear
at a meeting of the board of supervisors of each county overlying
the basin at least in part, and announce that the plaintiff has filed
the adjudication action and where copies of the complaint may be
obtained.

(4) The court shall allow any person to intervene in the
adjudication action upon an ex parte application that demonstrates
that the person holds fee simple ownership in a parcel in the basin.
A person filing the ex parte application shall give notice to the
plaintiff consistent with the California Rules of Court.

832.5. (a) Within 180 days of the filing of a complaint to
adjudicate groundwater rights, the court shall conduct a preliminary
hearing to determine if the action should proceed to
comprehensively determine groundwater rights in the basin in
accordance with this chapter. At the preliminary hearing the court
may hear expert or lay testimony and the plaintiff shall demonstrate
one of the following:

(1) There is substantial evidence that declining groundwater
levels may cause an undesirable result in the basin.

(2) The court cannot provide adequate relief among the potential
claimants to a groundwater right in the basin subject to the
adjudication action unless the adjudication action is completed.

(3) The parties sufficient to comply with Section 847 have
agreed to a proposed judgment in the adjudication action.

(4) Consistent with Section 2 of Article X of the California
Constitution, the interests of groundwater rights holders will be

96

B-7



AB 1390

OO~ NN RN

expeditiously and effectively served by the completion of the
adjudication action.

(b) If, after the preliminary hearing, the court finds that any
condition described in paragraphs (1) to (4), inclusive, of
subdivision (a) is met, the court shall issue an order declaring that
the case is an adjudication action subject to this chapter and
authorizing service of landowners in accordance with Section 833.

(c) If, after the preliminary hearing, the court finds that no
condition described in paragraph (1) to (4), inclusive, of
subdivision (a) is met, the court shall either dismiss the adjudication
action without prejudice, or find that the action is not subject to
this chapter under Section 831 and permit the action to proceed
pursuant to the other provisions of this code.

(d) Before the preliminary hearing the court may allow expedited
discovery consistent with this chapter. The court shall actively
manage the expedited discovery to prevent delays in order to
enable, to the greatest extent possible and pursuant to Section 833,
service of landowners through the next mailing of property tax
bills within the basin.

833. (a) Together with the filing of the complaint, the plaintiff
shall file both of the following;:

(1) A draftnotice titled “NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT OF
GROUNDWATER BASIN ADJUDICATION” in no less than
20-point font and the following text printed immediately below
the draft notice title in no less than 14-point font:

“THIS NOTICE IS IMPORTANT.ANY RIGHTS YOU CLAIM
TO PUMP OR STORE GROUNDWATER FROM THE BASIN
IDENTIFIED IN THIS NOTICE MAY BE AFFECTED BY A
LAWSUIT INITIATED BY THE COMPLAINT SUMMARIZED
BELOW.

A copy of the complaint may be obtained by contacting the
plaintiff or the plaintiff’s attorney identified in this notice. If you
claim rights to pump or store groundwater within the basin, either
now or in the future, you may become a party to this lawsuit by
filing an answer to the lawsuit on or before the deadline specified
in this notice by completing the attached form answer and filing
it with the court indicated in this notice and by sending a copy of
the form answer to the plaintiff or the plaintiff’s attorney.

Failing to participate in this lawsuit could have a significant
adverse effect on any right to pump or store groundwater that you

96

B-8



O 0 ~IAN WU Wk —

9 AB 1390

may have. You may seek the advice of an attorney in relation to
this lawsuit. Such attorney should be consulted promptly. A case
management conference in this groundwater basin adjudication
proceeding shall occur on the date specified in this notice. If you
intend to participate in the groundwater adjudication proceeding
to which this notice applies, you are advised to attend the initial
case management conference in person or have an attorney
represent you at the initial case management conference.

Participation requires the production of all information regarding
your groundwater use. You must provide this information by the
date identified in this notice.

A form answer is provided for your convenience. You may fill
out the form answer and file it with the court. Should you choose
to file the form answer, it will serve as an answer to all complaints
and cross-complaints filed in this case.”

(@) (A) A draft form answer titled “ANSWER TO
ADJUDICATION COMPLAINT” in no less than 20-point font
and the following text printed immediately below the draft form
answer title in no less than 14-point font:

“The undersigned denies all material allegations in the complaint
or cross-complaint in this action that seeks to adjudicate rights in
the groundwater basin and asserts all applicable affirmative
defenses to that complaint.”

(B) Notwithstanding any other law, the filing of an answer in
the form described in subparagraph (A) in an adjudication action
is sufficient to put at issue all material allegations and applicable
affirmative defenses to the complaint in the adjudication action.
If a party intends to seek adjustment of the basin’s boundaries, it
shall disclose that intention in the form answer described in
subparagraph (A).

(b) The draft notice described in paragraph (1) of subdivision
(a) shall include the following information immediately following
the text described in paragraph (1) of subdivision (a):

(1) The name of the basin that is the subject of the adjudication
action.

(2) A space to be completed with the case number assigned to
the adjudication action, and the name and address of the court and
department to which the action is assigned.

96

B-9



AB 1390 —10—

(3) The name, address, telephone number, and email address of
the plaintiff, or plaintiff’s attorney, from which the complaint may
be obtained.

(4) A space to be completed with a date upon which the court
will hold a case management conference. The court shall determine
the date for the case management conference.

(5) The date an answer must be filed with the court.

(6) A summary of the causes of action alleged in the complaint
and the relief sought. The summary shall not exceed 25 lines.

(c) Within 15 days of a court order authorizing service of
landowners pursuant to this section, the plaintiff shall file an ex
parte application that seeks the court’s approval of plaintiff’s draft
notice and draft form answer filed pursuant to subdivision (a). The
plaintiff shall give at least 24 hours’ notice of the hearing on the
ex parte application to all parties identified in subdivision (a) of
Section 832 and any other party the plaintiff has served. The
plaintiff”s notice of the ex parte application shall include a copy
of the draft notice and draft form answer filed pursuant to
subdivision (a).

(d) Once the court approves the draft notice, the draft notice
shall substitute for the summons otherwise provided for in civil
actions pursuant to Section 412.20.

(e) Following a court order authorizing service of landowners
pursuant to this section, the plaintiff shall identify, as expeditiously
as possible and using the records of the assessor or assessors of
the county or counties in which the basin to be adjudicated lies,
the names and addresses of all holders of fee title to real property
within the basin. The plaintiff shall provide the court and all parties
notice of its acquisition of, or sufficient access to, this information.
Upon receipt of the court order authorizing service of landowners
pursuant to this section and the plaintiff’s draft notice and draft
form answer, as approved by an order of the court, the assessor or
assessors shall include the court-approved notice and form answer
with the next property tax bill sent to each landowner in the basin.
The plaintiff shall reimburse the assessor or assessors for the costs
of including the court-approved notice and form answer, unless
otherwise ordered by the court. The assessor or assessors may
appear at any court proceeding concerning the costs associated
with including the court-approved notice and form answer with
the property tax bills.

96

B-10



OO0 ~IN WU AW —

— 11— AB 1390

(f) After the assessor or assessors include the court-approved
notice and form answer with the property tax bills pursuant to
subdivision (e), the plaintiff shall file with the court a declaration

and notice provisions of this chapter shall be deemed effective
service of process of the complaint and notice on all interested
parties of the adjudication action for purposes of establishing in
rem jurisdiction and the comprehensive effect of the adjudication
action.

834. Within 15 days of the service of a complaint against or

county to hear the adjudication action for all purposes. For purposes
of this section, “local agency” has the same definition as that term
is defined in subdivision (m) of Section 10721 of the Water Code.

835. In an adjudication action there may only be two
disqualifications of judges pursuant to Section 170.6,
notwithstanding the provisions of Section 170.6 concerning sides
in an action. A request or motion to disqualify a judge under
Section 170.6 shall be filed within 30 days of completion of service
pursuant to Section 833, or within 30 days of a transfer or
assignment pursuant to Section 834. ‘

836. An adjudication action is presumed to be a complex case
within the meaning of Rule 3.400 of the California Rules of Court
unless a party demonstrates that the adjudication action is not
complex.

837. Service of pleadings in an adjudication action, other than
the complaint initiating an adjudication action, shall occur
electronically to the greatest extent possible. If available, service
shall occur through a court-provided electronic service system. If
a court-provided electronic service system is unavailable, the
parties shall serve documents by email or other equivalent
electronic means to the greatest extent possible. To enable
electronic service of pleadings, the attorneys of record or parties

96

B-11



AB 1390 12

OO0~ AN N —

representing themselves shall include their email address in the
captions of pleadings they file in the adjudication action.

Article 3. Conduct of Action

838. (a) In managing an adjudication action, the court may,
notwithstanding any other law, convene a case management
conference within 60 days after service is completed pursuant to
Section 833.

(b) After the initial case management conference the court may
divide the adjudication action into phases. This section shall not
limit the court’s discretion to order as many phases as the court
deems appropriate for the expeditious and appropriate resolution
of competing claims to the groundwater basin. The court shall
define the scope of any phase of the adjudication action by written
order and shall revisit that definition only upon a demonstration
that continuing with the phase as previously defined would
substantially impede the expeditious resolution of the adjudication
action.

(c) In a phase of an adjudication action, discovery shall be
strictly limited to the scope of the phase, as defined in the court’s
written order. The court may make any appropriate orders to ensure
that discovery during a phase remains within the scope of the phase
and, unless an injustice would otherwise result, shall impose
monetary sanctions on parties, attorneys, or both parties and
attorneys, who, during the phase, propound discovery outside the
scope of the phase.

(d) Pursuant to Section 632, a court may issue a written
statement of decision at the completion of each phase of the
adjudication action. If the court issues a written statement of
decision, that written statement of decision shall be considered a
resolution of the phase and shall be binding for the remainder of
the adjudication action unless reversed or modified by an appellate
court. Appellate review of a court’s written statement of decision
that concludes a phase of the adjudication action may be by writ
only and a party may only appeal the court’s final judgment.

(e) A court may facilitate the formation of a class or classes of
overlying groundwater rights holders pursuant to the criteria
specified in Section 382.

96

B-12



OO ~IANWN B W —

10

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39

13 AB 1390

839. (a) Subject to subdivision (b), the initial basin boundaries
for an adjudication action shall be the basin boundaries identified
in Bulletin 118 as of the date the complaint initiating the
adjudication action is filed. Based on these boundaries, the court
and the parties shall initiate the procedures to serve the complaint
in an adjudication action in accordance with Section 833.

(b) The court may consider adjusting a basin’s boundaries at
the initial phase of an adjudication action. The court may refer
consideration of adjustment of a basin’s boundaries to the
department for recommendations in accordance with the procedures
described in Section 10722.2 of the Water Code. The court may
stay any proceedings in the adjudication action pending the
department’s resolution of any boundary adjustments, except the
court shall not stay the parties’ initial disclosures made pursuant
to Section 840.

(c) If a court, based on department recommendations, adjusts
the basin’s boundaries after completion of the initial phase of an
adjudication action, the basin’s boundaries, as determined by the
court, shall be the basin’s boundaries for all purposes in all
subsequent phases of the adjudication action. Appellate review of
a court’s determination of the basin’s boundaries after completion
of the initial phase of the adjudication action may be by writ only
and shall not be subject to any later writ or appeal.

840. (a) Except as otherwise stipulated by the parties or ordered
by the court, and without waiting for a discovery request, a party
shall provide the court or special master initial disclosures that
include all of the following information:

(1) The name, address, telephone number, and email address of
the party completing the form developed pursuant to subdivision
(b).

(2) The quantity of any groundwater extraction from the basin
by the party, or the party’s representative or agent, during each of
the 10 calendar years immediately preceding the filing of the
complaint.

(3) The beneficial purpose of any use of groundwater from the
basin or the beneficial use of any alternative water use that the
party claims as its use of groundwater.

(4) The location of any extraction of groundwater from the basin
by the party, or the party’s representative or agent.

96

B-13



AB 1390 — 14—

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40

(5) The location of any beneficial use of groundwater from the
basin or beneficial use of any alternative water use that the party
claims as its use of groundwater.

(6) The quantity of any beneficial use of any alternative water
use that the party claims as its use of groundwater under any
applicable law, including, but not limited to, Section 1005.1,
1005.2, or 1005.4 of the Water Code.

(7) Identification of all surface water rights and contracts that
the party claims provides the basis for its water right claims in the
adjudication action.

(8) The quantity of any replenishment of water to the basin that
augmented the basin’s native water supply, resulting from the
intentional storage of imported or non-native water in the basin,
managed recharge of surface water, or return flows resulting from
the use of imported water or non-native water on lands overlying
the basin by the party, or the party’s representative or agent, during
each of the 10 calendar years immediately preceding the filing of
the complaint.

(9) The names, addresses, telephone numbers, and email
addresses of all persons possessing information that supports the
party’s disclosures.

(10) Any other information deemed appropriate by the court
for initial disclosure in an adjudication action.

(b) The Judicial Council shall develop a form for initial
disclosures made pursuant to subdivision (a) to facilitate the
congistent, independent, impartial, and accessible administration
of adjudication actions.

(c) (1) Unless otherwise stipulated by the parties or ordered by
the court, and not including the plaintiff that initiates the
adjudication action, a party shall make the initial disclosures
described in subdivision (a) within 60 days after the initial case
management conference in the adjudication action.

(2) A plaintiff that initiates the adjudication action shall make
the initial disclosures described in subdivision (a) at the time it
files the complaint by lodging the required information with the
court in an electronic format. The plaintiff shall serve the required
information on the defendants or cross-defendants that it names
when it serves the complaint.

(3) The court may order, after the initial case management
conference, any supplemental disclosures, other than those

96

B-14



O 0 ~1TAN WP Wk —

—15— AB 1390

described in subdivision (a), that may expedite resolution of the
adjudication action.

(d) Unless otherwise ordered by the court, a party that is first
served, or otherwise joined to the adjudication action, after the
initial case management conference shall make the disclosures
described in subdivision (a) within 30 days after being served or
joined, unless a different time is set by stipulation of the parties
or an order of the court. The court shall liberally consider any
motions or applications to extend the time for a newly-served or
-joined party to make the disclosures described in subdivision (a).

(¢) A party shall make its initial disclosures based on the
information then reasonably available to it. A party is not excused
from making its initial disclosures because it has not fully
investigated the case, because it challenges the sufficiency of
another party’s disclosures, or because another party has not made
its disclosures.

(D A party that has made its initial disclosures, as described in
subdivision (a), or that has responded to another party’s discovery
request, shall supplement or correct a disclosure or response in
either of the following situations:

(1) In a timely manner if the party learns that in some material
respect the disclosure or response is incomplete or incorrect and
the additional or corrective information has not otherwise been
made known to the other parties during the disclosure or discovery
process.

(2) As ordered by the court.

(g) To the greatest extent possible, a party shall serve his or her
initial disclosures electronically through a court-provided electronic
service system, email, or another method of electronic transmission.
If it is not possible for the party to serve his or her disclosures
electronically, he or she shall serve the disclosures in an electronic
format saved on a portable storage media device such as a compact
disc or flash drive.

(h) A party’s obligations under this section may be enforced by
a court on its own motion or the motion of a party pursuant to
Section 2030.300.

(i) A party’s disclosures under this section shall be verified
under penalty of perjury as being true and correct to the best of
the party’s knowledge.

96

B-15



AB 1390 — 16—

—
SOOIV B WN—

W W WWLWWWWLWWNNMNINDNDNDNDNDDNDN e
RO ~ITAN NP WNNRLPOOVWREITANEWN—=OOVWOIAN WA WN —

841. (a) In addition to all other disclosures required by this
chapter, a party shall disclose to the other parties the identity of
any expert witness it may use at trial to present evidence. For
purposes of this chapter, “expert witness” means a witness qualified
pursuant to Section 720 of the Evidence Code.

(b) Unless otherwise stipulated by the parties or ordered by the
court, the disclosure made pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be
accompanied by a written report prepared and signed by the expert
witness if the witness is retained or specially employed by the
party offering the expert witness to testify as an expert in the action,
or if the expert witness’s duties as the party’s employee regularly
involves giving expert testimony. The report shall include all of
the following:

(1) A complete statement of all opinions the witness will express
and the basis and reasons for those opinions.

(2) The facts or data considered by the witness in forming his
or her opinions.

(3) Any exhibits the witness will use to summarize or support
his or her opinions.

(4) The witness’s qualifications, including a list of all
publications authored by the witness in the previous 10 years.

(5) A list of all other cases in which the witness testified as an
expert at trial or by deposition in the last five years.

(6) A statement of the compensation to be paid for the witness’s
work and testimony in the adjudication action.

(¢) Ifsubdivision (b) does not apply to an expert witness because
of a stipulation by the parties or an order of the court, the witness’s
disclosure shall include both of the following:

(1) The subject matter on which the witness is expected to
present evidence.

(2) A summary of the witness’s opinions, and the facts or data
considered by the witness in forming his or her opinions.

(d) Unless otherwise stipulated by the parties, a party shall make
the disclosures of any expert witness it intends to present at trial,
except for an expert witness presented solely for purposes of
impeachment or rebuttal, at the times and in the sequence ordered
by the court. If there is no stipulation or court order, the disclosures
of an expert witness shall be made as follows:

96

B-16



—17— AB 1390

(1) At least 30 days after the court’s entry of an order
establishing the scope of the relevant phase of the adjudication
action.

(2) Except for a supplemental expert witness described in
paragraph (3), at least 60 days before the date set for trial of the
relevant phase of the adjudication action.

(3) For a supplemental expert witness who will express an
opinion on a subject to be covered by another expert witness
designated by an adverse party that was not among the subjects
covered by an expert witness initially disclosed by the party
offering the supplemental expert witness, no more than 20 days
after the initial expert witness disclosure date.

(¢) The court may modify the disclosure requirements of
subdivisions (b) to (d), inclusive, for expert witnesses presented
solely for purposes of impeachment or rebuttal. In modifying the
disclosure requirements, the court shall adopt disclosure
requirements that expedite the court’s consideration of the issues
presented and shall ensure that expert testimony presented solely
for purposes of impeachment or rebuttal is strictly limited to the
scope of the testimony that it intends to impeach or rebut.

(f) (1) A party whose expert witness has made a disclosure
pursuant to this section shall promptly supplement or correct the
expert witness’s disclosure in either of the following instances:

(A) In atimely manner if the party learns that in some material
respect the disclosure is incomplete or incorrect, if the additional
or corrective information has not otherwise been made known to
the other parties during the disclosure or discovery process.

(B) As ordered by the court.

(2) A party’s duty to supplement or correct its expert witness’s
disclosure includes the information included in the report and the
information given during the expert witness’s deposition. Unless
otherwise stipulated by the parties or ordered by the court, any
supplementation or correction shall occur at least 14 days before
trial of the applicable phase of the adjudication action.

(3) The court may authorize a supplemental deposition of an
expert witness based on a supplemental disclosure made pursuant
to this subdivision. The court shall a;‘ppropriately condition the
authorization of a supplemental deposition of an expert witness to
ensure the expeditious completion of the applicable phase of the
adjudication action. The court may require the party whose expert

96

B-17



AB 1390 18

OO ~INWN PN —

makes the supplemental disclosure to pay some or all of the costs
associated with the supplemental deposition.

(g) To the greatest extent possible, the parties shall serve expert
witness disclosures electronically through a court-provided
electronic service system, email, or another method of electronic
transmission. If it is not possible for the party to serve his or her
expert witness disclosures electronically, he or she shall serve the
expert witness disclosures in an electronic format saved on a
portable storage media device such as a compact disc or flash
drive.

(h) If a party or its expert witness fails to comply with this
section, the court may exclude the expert witness’s testimony from
trial, authorize additional depositions of the expert witness at the
party’s expense, or take other appropriate action upon the noticed
motion, or ex parte application, of a party.

842. (a) A court in an adjudication action may require the
parties to submit written testimony of relevant witnesses in the
forms of affidavits or declarations under penalty or perjury in lieu
of presenting live testimony. The required written testimony may
include, but is not limited to, expert witness opinions and testimony
that authenticates documentary evidence. The court may order that
the written testimony constitutes the entirety of the witness’s direct
testimony, require the written testimony to include any exhibits
offered in support of the written testimony, and, in the case of
written testimony of an expert witness, require a statement of the
witness’s qualifications.

(b) If the court requires the submission of written testimony
pursuant to subdivision (a), a complete copy of the direct testimony
shall be served at least 21 days before trial of the applicable phase
of the adjudication action. A complete copy of any rebuttal
testimony shall be served no later than the first day of trial of the
applicable phase of the adjudication action. The court shall ensure
the rebuttal testimony is strictly limited to the scope of the direct
testimony to which it responds.

(c) If the contents of the written testimony would have been
admissible if the witness testified orally, the written testimony
shall be received by the court as a documentary exhibit if, at the
trial of the applicable phase of the adjudication action, the witness
whose written testimony is being offered is made available for
cross-examination by all parties.

96

B-18



—19— AB 1390

843. (a) In an adjudication action, the court may appoint a
special master whose duties may include the following:

(1) Initiating a technical committee consisting of the parties,
the parties’ designated representatives, or both, to conduct joint
factfinding as to the basin’s safe yield of groundwater, water
demand, and any other technical issues, as directed by the court.
The special master shall compile a technical report of the findings
in accordance with Section 844.

(2) Conducting or facilitating mediation or settlement
discussions.

(3) Performing other tasks the court may deem appropriate.

(b) The special master may be employed by the court as a
full-time or part-time employee, or retained as an independent
contractor. A special master’s compensation and other expenses
related to the conduct of an adjudication action shall be fixed by
the court, apportioned pro rata to the extent reasonably feasible to
do so, and paid by all parties unless the parties agree to another
allocation or the court determines that, in the interests of justice,
another allocation is necessary. The court may provide for the
collection and disbursement of special master fees as it deems
appropriate.

(¢) (1) To assist trial courts in selecting special masters the
department shall, on or before January 1, 2017, establish and
maintain a list of individuals who may serve as special masters in
adjudication actions. To be placed on the list an individual shall
have at least 10 years experience as either of the following:

(A) A licensed professional engineer, professional hydrologist,
or professional geologist.

(B) An attorney licensed to practice law in the state.

(2) The department shall establish any other qualifications that
may be appropriate to ensure that individuals placed on the list are
qualified to assist a court in an adjudication action.

844. (a) If a technical committee is established pursuant to
Section 843, the special master shall provide all parties with a copy
of a draft technical report he or she prepares and a notice setting
a day at least 60 days after the draft technical report has been
provided to all parties before which the parties may submit to the
special master written objections to the draft technical report.

(b) An objection to the draft technical report shall identify the
specific grounds and evidence on which the objection is based.

96

B-19



AB 1390 20

OO ~IANWN R WN -

Within 10 days after the close of the period for filing objections,
the special master shall provide copies of the objections to all
parties.

(¢) The special master may notice and hold hearings, as he or
she deems appropriate, to gather information or address issues
raised in the objections to the draft technical report.

(d) The special master shall consider the objections to the draft
technical report and develop a final certified copy of the technical
report that shall be filed with the court, together with a certified
copy of all evidence considered by the special master in preparing
the draft technical report, all evidence identified in the objections
to the draft technical report, and all evidence considered by the
special master in preparing the final technical report.

845. Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 1115) of Division
9 of the Evidence Code shall apply to all mediations, settlement
conferences, and other similar out-of-court negotiations in
adjudications actions subject to this chapter.

846. (a) It is the policy of the state to encourage the
compromise and settlement of adjudication actions.

(b) Upon the motion of any party to an adjudication action, a
court may do any of the following:

(1) Stay an adjudication action for a period of up to one year,
subject to renewal in the court’s discretion upon a showing of good
cause, in order to facilitate any of the following:

(A) (i) Timely development of a groundwater sustainability
plan under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act that
may serve as the basis of a stipulated judgment setting forth a
physical solution for management of the basin.

(i) If the court stays an adjudication action for purposes of
facilitating timely progress on a groundwater sustainability plan,
the court may direct the parties to provide the court with regular
updates on the progress in developing the groundwater
sustainability plan.

(B) Technical studies that may be useful to the parties in
developing a stipulated judgment or physical solution.

(C) Voluntary mediation on all, or a portion of, the subject
matters or legal questions identified in the adjudication action or
any phase of the adjudication action.

96

B-20



—21— AB 1390

(D) Compromise and settlement of the adjudication action, a
phase of the adjudication action, or any subject matter of the
adjudication action or a phase of the adjudication action.

(2) Schedule mandatory mediation and appointment of a neutral
mediator concerning the adjudication action, a phase of the
adjudication action, or any subject matter of the adjudication action
or a phase of the adjudication action.

(3) Schedule phases of trial in combination with mandatory
mediation for purposes of fostering compromise concerning the
adjudication action, a phase of the adjudication action, or any
subject matter of the adjudication action or a phase of the
adjudication action.

(c) A stay may be extended for up to one year at a time. If a
party opposes an extension of a stay, a stay may only be granted
after a showing that there is good progress being made on the
issues that were identified as the reasons for the stay. The total
time period an adjudication action may be stayed shall not exceed
3 years.

(d) A stay pursuant to this section shall not stay, or otherwise
delay, the parties’ obligations to provide initial disclosures pursuant
to Section 840 unless the court determines the initial disclosures
will not benefit resolution of the adjudication action.

847. (a) If a party, or a group of parties, submits a proposed
stipulated judgment that is supported by (1) more than 50 percent
of all named parties in the adjudication action and (2) groundwater
rights holders holding title to at least 75 percent of the groundwater
production during the past 10 years in the basin, the court shall
impose any physical solution that is part of the stipulated judgment
as a component of the final judgment in the adjudication action if
the physical solution satisfies all of the following criteria:

(1) It furthers the interests of the state in ensuring that the water
resources of the state are put to beneficial use to the fullest extent
that they are capable, as required by Section 2 of Article X of the
California Constitution.

(2) Itis consistent with all water right priorities in the basin.

(3) It treats all objecting parties equitably as compared to the
stipulating parties.

(b) A party objecting to a proposed stipulated judgment shall
demonstrate, by a preponderance of the evidence, that the proposed
stipulated judgment does not satisfy the criteria described in

96

B-21



AB 1390 —22—

OO0~ W P WN—

paragraphs (1) to (3), inclusive, of subdivision (a). If the objecting
party is unable to make this showing, the court may impose the
proposed stipulated judgment on all parties.

SEC. 2. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to
Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because
the only costs that may be incurred by a local agency or school
district will be incurred because this act creates a new crime or
infraction, eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penalty
for a crime or infraction, within the meaning of Section 17556 of
the Government Code, or changes the definition of a crime within
the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIIIB of the California
Constitution.

96

B-22



EXHIBIT "C"

AMENDED IN SENATE MAY 5, 2015
AMENDED IN SENATE APRIL 6, 2015

SENATE BILL No. 226

Introduced by Senator Pavley

February 13, 2015

An act to amend Sections 10721 and-+8735-8; 10735.8 of, and to add
Chapter 12 (commencing with Section 10737) to Part 2.74 of Division
6;-of 6 of, the Water Code, relating to groundwater.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL’S DIGEST

SB 226, as amended, Pavley. Sustainable Groundwater Management

groundwater sustainability plans by January 31, 2022, except as
specified.

Existing law specifies the jurisdiction of the courts. Under existing
law, courts may adjudicate rights to produce groundwater and exercise
other powers relating to the supervision of a groundwater basin.

This bill would find and declare that it establishes a timely and

d for determining rights bill
court shall use the Cod for
groundwater, except as cial

97

C-1



SB 226 2

procedures established in the bill. This bill would require the process
for determining rights to groundwater to be available to any court of
competent jurisdiction. The bill would provide that it applies to Indian
tribes and the federal government. The bill would require the boundaries
of a basin to be as identified in Bulletin 118, unless other basin
boundaries are established, as specified. The bill would authorize the
Department of Water Resources and the Department of Fish and Wildlife
to intervene in an action or proceeding if they claim an interest relating
to the action or proceeding, as provided. The bill would specify service
and notice procedures. The bill would require a party to provide
specified initial disclosures to the other parties, including, among other
disclosures, information relating to expert witnesses.
Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes.

State-mandated local program: no.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. Section 10721 of the Water Code is amended to
2 read:
3 10721. Unless the context otherwise requires, the following
4  definitions govern the construction of this part:
5 (a) “Adjudication action” means an action filed in the superior
6 or federal district court to determine the rights to extract
7 groundwater from a basin or store water within a basin, including,
8 but not limited to, actions to quiet title respecting rights to extract
9 or store groundwater or an action brought to impose a physical
10 solution on a basin.
11 (b) “Basin” means a groundwater basin or subbasin identified
12 and defined in Bulletin 118 or as modified pursuant to Chapter 3
13 (commencing with Section 10722).
14 (c) “Bulletin 118” means the department’s report entitled
15 “California’s Groundwater: Bulletin 118" updated in 2003, as it
16 may be subsequently updated or revised in accordance with Section
17 12924.
18 (d) “Coordination agreement” means a legal agreement adopted
19 between two or more groundwater sustainability agencies that
20 provides the basis for coordinating multiple agencies or
21 groundwater sustainability plans within a basin pursuant to this
22 part.

97

C-2



O o0 ~ION WV W —

—3— SB 226

(¢) “De minimis extractor” means a person who extracts, for
domestic purposes, two acre-feet or less per year.

(H “Expert witness” means a witness qualified pursuant to
Section 720 of the Evidence Code.

(g) “Governing body” means the legislative body of a
groundwater sustainability agency.

(h) “Groundwater” means water beneath the surface of the earth
within the zone below the water table in which the soil is
completely saturated with water, but does not include water that
flows in known and definite channels.

(i) “Groundwater extraction facility” means a device or method
for extracting groundwater from within a basin.

() “Groundwater recharge” means the augmentation of
groundwater, by natural or artificial means.

(k) “Groundwater sustainability agency” means one or more
local agencies that implement the provisions of this part. For
purposes of imposing fees pursuant to Chapter 8 (commencing
with Section 10730) or taking action to enforce a groundwater
sustainability plan, “groundwater sustainability agency” also means
each local agency comprising the groundwater sustainability
agency if the plan authorizes separate agency action.

(D) “Groundwater sustainability plan” or “plan” means a plan
of a groundwater sustainability agency proposed or adopted
pursuant to this part.

(m) “Groundwater sustainability program” means a coordinated
and ongoing activity undertaken to benefit a basin, pursuant to a
groundwater sustainability plan.

(n) “Local agency” means a local public agency that has water
supply, water management, or land use responsibilities within a
groundwater basin.

(o) “Operator” means a person operating a groundwater
extraction facility. The owner of a groundwater extraction facility
shall be conclusively presumed to be the operator unless a
satisfactory showing is made to the governing body of the
groundwater sustainability agency that the groundwater extraction
facility actually is operated by some other person.

(p) “Owner” means a person owning a groundwater extraction
facility or an interest in a groundwater extraction facility other
than a lien to secure the payment of a debt or other obligation.

97

C-3



SB 226 4

O 0 ~I N WL BN —

(q) “Personal information” has the same meaning as defined in
Section 1798.3 of the Civil Code.

(r) “Planning and implementation horizon” means a 50-year
time period over which a groundwater sustainability agency
determines that plans and measures will be implemented in a basin
to ensure that the basin is operated within its sustainable yield.

(s) “Public water system” has the same meaning as defined in
Section 116275 of the Health and Safety Code.

(t) “Recharge area” means the area that supplies water to an
aquifer in a groundwater basin.

(u) “Sustainability goal” means the existence and
implementation of one or more groundwater sustainability plans
that achieve sustainable groundwater management by identifying
and causing the implementation of measures targeted to ensure
that the applicable basin is operated within its sustainable yield.

(v) “Sustainable groundwater management” means the
management and use of groundwater in a manner that can be
maintained during the planning and implementation horizon
without causing undesirable results.

(w) “Sustainable yield” means the maximum quantity of water,
calculated over a base period representative of long-term conditions
in the basin and including any temporary surplus, that can be
withdrawn annually from a groundwater supply without causing
an undesirable result.

(x) “Undesirable result” means one or more of the following
effects caused by groundwater conditions occurring throughout
the basin:

(1) Chronic lowering of groundwater levels indicating a
significant and unreasonable depletion of supply if continued over
the planning and implementation horizon. Overdraft during a period
of drought is not sufficient to establish a chronic lowering of
groundwater levels if extractions and recharge are managed as
necessary to ensure that reductions in groundwater levels or storage
during a period of drought are offset by increases in groundwater
levels or storage during other periods.

(2) Significant and unreasonable reduction of groundwater
storage.

(3) Significant and unreasonable seawater intrusion.

97

C-4



5 SB 226

(4) Significant and unreasonable degraded water quality,
including the migration of contaminant plumes that impair water
supplies.

(5) Significant and unreasonable land subsidence that
substantially interferes with surface land uses.

(6) Depletions of interconnected surface water that have
significant and unreasonable adverse impacts on beneficial uses
of the surface water.

(y) “Water budget” means an accounting of the total
groundwater and surface water entering and leaving a basin
including the changes in the amount of water stored.

(z) “Watermaster” means a watermaster appointed by a court
or pursuant to other law.

(aa) “Water year” means the period from October 1 through the
following September 30, inclusive.

(ab) “Wellhead protection area” means the surface and
subsurface area surrounding a water well or well field that supplies
a public water system through which contaminants are reasonably
likely to migrate toward the water well or well field.

SEC.2. Section 10735.8 of the Water Code is amended to read:

10735.8. (a) The board, after notice and a public hearing, may
adopt an interim plan for a probationary basin.

(b) The interim plan shall include all of the following:

(1) Identification of the actions that are necessary to correct a
condition of long-term overdraft or a condition where groundwater
extractions result in significant depletions of interconnected surface
waters, including recommendations for appropriate action by any
person.

(2) A time schedule for the actions to be taken.

(3) A description of the monitoring to be undertaken to
determine effectiveness of the plan.

(¢) The interim plan may include the following:

(1) Restrictions on groundwater extraction.

(2) A physical solution.

(3) Principles and guidelines for the administration of rights to
surface waters that are connected to the basin.

(d) Exceptas provided in subdivision (e), the interim plan shall
be consistent with water right priorities, subject to Section 2 of
Article X of the California Constitution.

97



SB 226 —6—

(e) The board shall include in its interim plan a groundwater
sustainability plan, or any element of a plan, that the board finds
complies with the sustainability goal for that portion of the basin
or would help meet the sustainability goal for the basin. Where,
in the judgment of the board, an adjudication action can be relied
on as part of the interim plan, either throughout the basin or in an
area within the basin, the board may rely on, or incorporate
elements of, that adjudication into the interim plan adopted by the
board.

(f) In carrying out activities that may affect the probationary
basin, state entities shall comply with an interim plan adopted by
the board pursuant to this section unless otherwise directed or
authorized by statute and the state entity shall indicate to the board
in writing the authority for not complying with the interim plan.

(g) (1) After the board adopts an interim plan under this section,
the board shall determine if a groundwater sustainability plan or
an adjudication action is adequate to eliminate the condition of
long-term overdraft or condition where groundwater extractions
result in significant depletions of interconnected surface waters,
upon petition of either of the following:

(A) A groundwater sustainability agency that has adopted a
groundwater sustainability plan for the probationary basin or a
portion thereof.

(B) A person authorized to file the petition by a judicial order
or decree entered in an adjudication action in the probationary
basin.

(2) The board shall act on a petition filed pursuant to paragraph
(1) within 90 days after the petition is complete. If the board, in
consultation with the department, determines that the groundwater
sustainability plan or adjudication action is adequate, the board
shall rescind the interim plan adopted by the board for the
probationary basin, except as provided in paragraphs (3) and (4).

(3) Upon request of the petitioner, the board may amend an
interim plan adopted under this section to eliminate portions of
the interim plan, while allowing other portions of the interim plan
to continue in effect.

(4) The board may decline to rescind an interim plan adopted
pursuant to this section if the board determines that the petitioner
has not provided adequate assurances that the groundwater
sustainability plan or judicial order or decree will be implemented.

97

C-6



7 SB 226

(5) This subdivision is not a limitation on the authority of the
board to stay its proceedings under this section or to rescind or
amend an interim plan adopted pursuant to this section based on
the progress made by a groundwater sustainability agency or in
an adjudication action pursuant to Chapter 12 (commencing with
Section 10737), even if the board cannot make a determination of
adequacy in accordance with paragraph (1).

(h) Before January 1, 2025, the state board shall not establish
an interim plan under this section to remedy a condition where the
groundwater extractions result in significant depletions of
interconnected surface waters.

(i) The board’s authority to adopt an interim plan under this
section does not alter the law establishing water rights priorities
or any other authority of the board.

SEC. 3. Chapter 12 (commencing with Section 10737) is added
to Part 2.74 of Division 6 of the Water Code, to read:

CHAPTER 12. DETERMINATION OF RIGHTS TO GROUNDWATER
Article 1. General Provisions

10737. (a) The Legislature finds and declares that this chapter
establishes a timely and comprehensive method for determining
rights to groundwater in furtherance of the objectives of this part.

(b) This chapter establishes special procedures for court use in
determining rights to groundwater. Unless otherwise provided in
this chapter, a court shall determine rights to groundwater using
the procedures codified in the Code of Civil Procedure.

(c) Nothing contained in this chapter shall be deemed to repeal
or preclude an action to determine rights to groundwater in
accordance with the common law.

10737.2. Inmaking its determination of rights to groundwater,
a court shall avoid an undesirable—results result as defined in
Section 10721.

Article 2. Application

10738. The process defined in this chapter shall be available
to any court of competent jurisdiction.

97

C-7



SB 226 —8—

10738.2. (a) Consistent with subdivision (b) of Section
10720.3, this chapter applies to an Indian tribe and to the federal
government, to the extent authorized under federal law.

(b) Section 389 of the Code of Civil Procedure shall not apply
to any failure to join an Indian tribe or the United States to an
action or proceeding brought under this chapter.

10738.4. An action requesting a court to determine water rights
under this chapter shall be deemed provisionally complex within
the meaning provided in Rule 3.400 of Title 3 of the California
Rules of Court.

Article 3. Basin Boundaries

10739. Unless other basin boundaries are established pursuant
to Section 10722.2 or subdivision (b) of Section 12924, the
boundaries of a basin shall be as identified in Bulletin 118.

Article 4. Parties

10740. Upon timely motion, the court shall permit the
department or the Department of Fish and Wildlife, or both, to
intervene in an action or proceeding brought under this chapter if
the movant claims an interest relating to the action or proceeding
and is so situated that disposing of the action or proceeding may,
as a practical matter, impair or impede the movant’s ability to
protect its interest.

Article 5. Service and Notice

10741. (a) Allknown defendants shall be served in the manner
provided in Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 413.10) of Title
5 of Part 2 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

(b) (1) All unknown defendants shall be served by publication
as provided in Section 415.50 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

(2) In addition to other requirements of Section 415.50 of the
Code of Civil Procedure, the publication shall describe the
groundwater basin that is the subject of the action. The publication
shall describe the groundwater basin as identified pursuant to
Section 10739, the Internet address for a map depicting the basin,

97

C-8



ORI AN A WN =

—9— SB 226

and any other identifying information that the court deems
appropriate.

Article 6. Discovery

10742. (a) Except as otherwise stipulated or ordered by the
court, a party shall, without awaiting a discovery request, provide
to the other parties all of the following:

(1) The name and, if known, the address and telephone number
of each individual likely to have discoverable information, along
with the subjects of that information, who the disclosing party may
use to support its claims or defenses, unless the use would be solely
for impeachment.

(2) A copy or a description by category and location, of all
documents, electronically stored information, and tangible things
that the disclosing party has in its possession, custody, or control
that it may use to support its claims or defenses, unless the use
would be solely for impeachment.

(3) A quantification of claims to water in the basin by the
disclosing party. The disclosing party shall also make available
for inspection and copying any documents or other evidentiary
material, unless privileged or protected from disclosure, on which
each claim is based, including materials bearing on the nature and
extent of those claims.

(b) A party shall make all disclosures required by this article at
or within 14 days after the parties’ initial case management
conference unless a different time is set by stipulation or court
order, or unless a party objects during the conference that initial
disclosures are not appropriate in this action and states the objection
in a proposed discovery plan. In ruling on the objection, the court
shall determine what disclosures, if any, are to be made and shall
set the time for disclosure.

(c) A party that is first served or otherwise joined after the initial
case management conference shall make its initial disclosures
within 30 days after being served or joined, unless a different time
is set by stipulation or court order.

(d) A party shall make its initial disclosures based on the
information then reasonably available to it. A party is not excused
from making its disclosures because it has not fully investigated

97

C-9



SB 226 10

O 00 ~I N WU BN

the case or because it challenges the sufficiency of another party’s
disclosures or because another party has not made its disclosures.

Article 7. Expert Witnesses

10743. (a) Inaddition to the other disclosures required by this
chapter, a party shall disclose to the other parties the identity of
any expert witness it may use at trial to present evidence.

(b) Unless otherwise stipulated or ordered by the court, this
disclosure shall be accompanied by a written report, prepared and
signed by the expert witness, if the expert witness is retained or
specially employed to provide expert testimony in the case or
whose duties as the party’s employee regularly involve giving
expert testimony. The report shall contain all of the following:

(1) A complete statement of all opinions the expert witness will
express and the basis and reasons for them.

(2) The facts or data considered by the expert witness in forming
his or her opinions.

(3) Any exhibits that will be used to summarize or support the
opinions of the expert witness.

(4) The expert witness’ qualifications, including a list of all
publications authored in the previous 10 years.

(5) A list of all other cases in which, during the previous four
years, the expert witness testified as an expert at trial or by
deposition.

(6) A statement of the compensation to be paid to the expert
witness for the study and testimony in the case.

(c) Unless otherwise stipulated or ordered by the court, if the
expert witness is not required to provide a written report, the
disclosure shall state both of the following:

(1) The subject matter on which the expert witness is expected
to present evidence.

(2) A summary of the facts and opinions to which the expert
witness is expected to testify.

(d) A party shall make the required disclosures at the times and
in the sequence that the court orders. Absent a stipulation or a court
order, the disclosures shall be made at either of the following times:

(1) At least 90 days before the date set for trial or for the case
to be ready for trial.

97

C-10



—11— SB 226

1 (2) If the evidence is intended solely to contradict or rebut
2 evidence on the same subject matter identified by another party,
3 within 30 days after the other party’s disclosure.

97

C-11






EXHIBIT "D"

May 2015

CONCEPT PAPER

Califernia Environmental Protaction Agenty

Air BHesources Board




This page is intentionally left blank.

D-2



Preface

California must achieve deep reductions in short-lived climate pollutant (SLCP)
emissions by 2030 to meet future greenhouse gas emission targets and air quality
goals. In addition, intensified, global action to reduce these emissions is the only way to
immediately slow global warming and is necessary to keep warming below 2°C through
at least 2050, which is a critical threshold to manage the damaging effects of climate
change. Short-lived climate pollutants, which include methane, fluorinated gases
(F-gases), black carbon, and tropospheric ozone, are among the most harmful to both
human health and global climate.

Significant reductions in SLCP emissions can be achieved globally using cost-effective
technologies and strategies, some of which have already been demonstrated effectively
in California. Over the past several decades, the State’s efforts in controlling harmful
emissions have prevented thousands of premature deaths in California, saved the State
many tens of billions of dollars in energy and health costs, and have occurred alongside
strong economic growth throughout our diverse economy. Applying California’s
experiences to reduce SLCPs globally would help prevent millions of premature deaths;
boost agricultural productivity; limit disruption of historic rainfall patterns; slow the
melting of glaciers, snowpack, and sea ice; reduce sea level rise; and provide frillions of
dollars in economic benefit each year.

California has taken significant steps in reducing SLCP emissions, especially black
carbon from transportation, methane from oil and gas operations and landfill emissions,
and F-gas emissions from refrigerants, insulating foams, and aerosol propellants. Still,
more remains to be done to reduce emissions from these and other sources in the
State, including methane from waste management and dairies, black carbon from
fossil-fuel combustion and biomass burning, and F-gas emissions from refrigeration and
air conditioning systems. The State is committed to further reducing SLCP emissions.

The Legislature recognized the critical role that SLCPs must play in the State’s climate
efforts with the passage of Senate Bill 605 (Lara, Chapter 523, Statutes of 2014), which
requires the Air Resources Board (ARB) to develop a strategy by the end of 2015 to
further reduce SLCP emissions. In his 2015 Inaugural Address, Governor Brown
reinforced this commitment and called on California to show the world the path to
limiting global warming below 2°C through 2050, while highlighting the role that action to
cut SLCPs must play in this effort. In April, the Governor set a target for reducing
greenhouse gas emissions to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030, which the actions
identified in the Strategy will support.

This Concept Paper presents initial ideas that will be considered and evaluated in the
coming months by ARB, in coordination with other agencies, as it develops a SLCP
Strategy pursuant to SB 605. The Concept Paper will be discussed at a May 27, 2015,
public workshop. Comments received on the Concept Paper will inform the
development of a draft Strategy that ARB expects to release later this summer for public
review. ARB welcomes broad participation among stakeholders, experts and interested

1 May 7, 2015

D-3



parties throughout this process, which will be important to the development of an
effective Strategy. The workshop notice, along with any other additional material
related to the development of the Strategy, will be posted on ARB’s SLCP website at:
http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/shortlived/shortlived.htm.

2 May 7, 2015



Table of Contents

Significant Benefits from Accelerated Action on Short-Lived Climate Pollution............... 4
Strengthening California Climate Leadership...........cccocoiiiiiiiiiiniiiiii, 5
Foster International Action to Significantly Reduce SLCP Emissions and Impacts......... 7
Process for Developing a Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Strategy...............ccccccooeinni 8
Y (11 (=10) RS 17 o] oL 3OO RO R rr R TR RRR RO e A ORUSSSIPIOR 10
Framing the Strategy...........ccco oo L s s s e s s s s S i3 e e e e e e e 12
Achieve Scientific-Based Targets ...........cccoeiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisseieiiseeneerereeeaens 12
Prioritize Actions with Diverse Benefits............ccoooeiiiiiiiiiiiii i 13
Put Organic Waste to Its Most Beneficial Use ...............ccccoviiiiiviiiiciiiniins 13
Identify Practical Solutions to Overcome Barriers.............ccoceeiviiiiiiiiiiiiien e 14
Advance the Science of SLCP Sources and EMISSIONS ...............covevieiiiinnniiinniiinnnes 15
Invest in SLCP Emission Reductions..............cooiii v 16
Methane Emission Reduction Concepts..........couuviieriiiiiiiiiiiiie i 17
Minimize Fugitive Methane Emissions from all Infrastructure and Equipment........... 18
Effectively Eliminate Disposal of Organic Materials at Landfills.................................. 19
Significantly Cut Methane Emissions from Dairies...........c.ccoocoiiiiiiii 21
Maximize Resource Recovery from Wastewater Treatment Facilities...................... 22
Black Carbon Emission Reduction Concepts...........cccoivvviviriiniiiiiiiiiciniiiiciecccvnivinnannan, 22
Continue to Lead on Reducing Diesel Black Carbon Emissions..............cccceveeeiennnn. 24
Reduce Black Carbon Emissions from Biomass Burning ..............ccccccoceeieiiiiniiinnnnn, 24
F-Gas Emission Reduction Concepts..........coovveuiiiiniiiiimiie e 26
Reduce the Use of HFCs in New Refrigeration and Air-Conditioning Equipment by At
Least 80 Percent by 2030........ccooi oo s 27
Remove High Global Warming Potential Gases from Foams, Aerosols, and
QI = 10T oo = 1 (o] 4 PP 27
Reduce Leaks from Existing Equipment and at End-of-Life....................c.c.ceeen. 28
Target Early Action to Significantly Reduce F-gas Emissions from Commercial
RefrIgeration .... s sovisvssssisiie oms o s s e s o s e s b asamsasaes 28
Showing the Way t0 2°C .i;ssssssssesssisiscsissiimiiieisissii i sisasismsssmsisie 29
R EIENCES ., ncsnusrsnssusnsmsnssnssssansasnsssssssseitsss s sasvons aoassvovs Sev e a5 TR0 5h a8 SRR o0 PR i 30
3 May 7, 2015

D-5



Significant Benefits from Accelerated Action on Short-Lived Climate Pollution

Short-lived climate pollutants (SLCPs) include methane (CHa), tropospheric ozone (O3),
black carbon (soot), and fluorinated gases (F-gases, including hydrofluorocarbons, or
HFCs). They are powerful climate forcers that remain in the atmosphere for a much
shorter period of time than longer-lived climate pollutants, including carbon dioxide
(CO,), which is the primary pollutant regulated under AB 32. Their relative potency,
when measured in terms of how they heat the atmosphere, can be tens, hundreds, or
even thousands of times greater than that of CO,. SLCPs maay be responsible for about
40 percent or more of global warming experienced to date.”#>*

Cutting emissions of these pollutants is the only way to immediately slow global
warming and reduce the impacts of climate change. While CO; is the most abundant
well-mixed greenhouse gas (GHG) and primarily responsible for global warming, it has
an average lifetime of 100 years or more, and CO, emissions today will continue to
warm the planet for decades to come. On the other hand, about 90 percent of the
decrease in the global mean temperature that would accrue from cutting emissions of
SLCPs would occur within about a decade.® Ultimately, immediate and significant cuts
in emissions of both short-lived and long-lived climate pollutants, especially COo, are
needed to keep average warming below 2°C this century.

Cutting emissions of SLCPs can also often be accomplished quickly and effectively, by
putting emission control devices on existing equipment and infrastructure. Therefore, it
is within our grasp to significantly cut emissions of SLCPs from worldwide sources by
2030.

While some sources will remain difficult to control over the next 15 years — especially
natural sources — existing strategies can cost-effectively reduce global methane
emissions an estimated 40 percent and black carbon an estimated 80 percent below
reference levels in 2030.° Additionally, a new global phase-down of HFCs under the
Montreal Protocol and other efforts could cut the expected use of F-gases by more than
50 percent in 2030.7'8

Achieving these levels of global reductions would deliver significant climate benefits. It
would cut the expected rate of global warming in half by 2050, or by about 0.6°C %1
which is about four times more than the reductions in warming that may come by 2050
from action on CO, alone."! It would also increase the probability of staying below the
2°C threshold to more than 90 percent through 2050."%13

The benefits could be even greater in the Arctic, which is especially vulnerable to black
carbon emissions and is warming twice as ‘ast as the rest of the world.™ The current
rate of warming there could be slowed by two-thirds by 2040, or 0.7°C, due to these
levels of emission reductions.'® This could e critically important for stabilizing climate
change and its impacts, as the Arctic is an important driver of sea level rise and weather
patterns throughout the Northern Hemisphere, with changes there potentially affecting
drought in California and extreme snow and cold in the upper Midwest and New
England, although such links have not been definitively proven.'®'" Accelerated

4 May 7, 2015

D-6



warming in the Arctic could also lead to irreversible climate “tipping points,” such as
release of vast quantities of CO, and methane from melting permafrost.

Global mean sea level will continue to rise during the twenty-first century, and the rate
of sea level rise will exceed that observed during 1971 to 2010 due to increased ocean
warming and increased loss of mass from glaciers and ice sheets. Sea level rise is an
important impact of climate change on California due to the long coastline and large
population that lives near coastal waters. A recent study shows that SLCP mitigation
can have significant benefits for limiting sea level rise. It can slow down the rate of sea
level rise by roughly 25-50 percent this century.™

Black carbon is a component of fine particulate matter (PM2.5) resulting from
combustion sources such as biomass burning and diesel emissions; diesel emissions
are also carcinogenic. Recent studies suggest that deploying existing, cost-effective
technologies to reduce SLCP emissions can also cut global emissions of PM2.5 by
50 percent, oxides of nitrogen gNOX) emissions by 35 percent, and carbon monoxide
(CO) emissions by 60 percent. 0 If these measures were fully in place by 2030, an
estimated 2.4 million premature deaths and 53 million metric tons of crop losses could
be avoided globally, per year. The economic value of these climate, crop, and health
benefits is estimated to be about $5.9 trillion annually.?!

In addition to its climate and health impacts, black carbon (as a component of PM)
disrupts cloud formation, precipitation patterns, water storage in snowpack and glaciers,
and agricultural productivity.?? In California, State and international action to reduce
emissions of SLCPs can improve air quality and reduce related health risks,
hospitalizations and medical expenses, especially in disadvantaged communities.
Other benefits to California include reducing damage to forests and crops, reducing
background ozone and particulate levels to help meet federal air quality standards, and
reducing disruption of historic rainfall patterns. California is working with a set of
national and subnational partners throughout the world to fight air pollution and climate
change, which will help deliver these benefits to our State while providing significant
benefits where emission reductions occur.

Strengthening California Climate Leadership

Prompt global action to reduce emissions of SLCPs offers tremendous global climate,
economic, food security, and health benefits, and will help us achieve our international
goal of stabilizing global warming at or below 2°C this century. Modeling results
suggest that delaying global efforts to cut methane emissions until 2030 or black carbon
emissions until 2040 would lead to crossing the 2°C threshold by 2050.2%24

California is already a leader on reducing emissions of SLCPs

Black carbon: California has cut anthropogenic sources of black carbon
emissions by more than 90 percent since the 1960s, and will cut them in half
again by 2020. These efforts prevent an estimated 5,000 premature deaths in
the State each year, and deliver important climate benefits. If the world

5 May 7, 2015

D-7



replicated this success, it would slow global warming by an estimated
15 percent,® essentially offsetting one to two decades’ worth of CO,
emissions.?®

e Methane: California has the nation's strongest standards for limiting methane
emissions from landfills, has existing or proposed offset protocols under our
Cap-and-Trade program to reduce methane emissions from dairies, coal mines,
and rice cultivation, and has rules under development and being implemented
that should create a comprehensive approach to limit methane leaks from the oil
and gas sectors.

e F-gases: California is the only subnational jurisdiction in the world with an
inventory for F-gas emissions, a Cap-and-Trade offset protocol incentivizing the
capture and destruction of ozone depleting substances (which are also F-gases),
and regulations in place that will cut emissions of F-gases by 25 percent below
projected levels in 2020.

Still, more remains to be done. California is home to some of the highest levels of air
pollution in the country, and although the State has substantially reduced particulate
matter and black carbon emissions from on-road transportation, vehicles still pollute the
air in our communities and harm the lungs of some of our most vulnerable populations.
Methane is responsible for about 25 percent of current global warming, and its
emissions continue to increase in California and globally. F-gases, specifically HFCs,
are the fastest growing source of GHG emissions in California and globally. California
is committed to expanding upon its leading climate and air quality policies with a
targeted effort to significantly cut emissions of SLCPs.

The Legislature and Governor Brown further solidified the State’s commitment to
addressing short-lived climate pollution by passing and signing Senate Bill 605 (Lara,
Chapter 523, Statutes of 2014). Accordingly, ARB will develop a plan in 2015, in
coordination with other state and local agencies, to integrate planning, ongoing efforts,
and identify new measures to help overcome obstacles and significantly cut SLCP
emissions through 2030.

Many of the benefits of cutting SLCP emissions in California will accrue in the most
disadvantaged parts of the State, where pollution levels and their health impacts are
often highest, and where further economic development may be most needed. For
example:

e Further cutting black carbon emissions from the transportation sector and
building a sustainable freight system would have health and economic benefits
for communities in Southern California and the Inland Empire along freight
corridors and near ports and railyards where diesel particulate matter
concentrations are high;

¢ Investments to cut methane and black carbon emissions as part of an integrated
strategy to reduce emissions from agriculture and waste and support healthy
soils and a resilient and competitive agricultural sector, can support jobs and
economic growth, and improved public health throughout the Central Valley;

6 May 7, 2015

D-8



¢ Improving management and health of forests and rural landscapes to mitigate
black carbon emissions from wildfires and biomass burning can help bring
investment, economic, and climate resiliency benefits throughout the Sierra and
other rural parts of California; and

¢ Switching to low-global warming potential (GWP) refrigerants in air conditioning
systems can also improve their energy efficiency, which can help to cut
transportation fuel consumption and electricity bills throughout the State,
especially in the hottest climate zones, including the Central Valley and San
Bernardino, Imperial, Inyo, and Riverside counties.

By highlighting the critical role that SLCPs play in addressing climate change, the
significant benefits associated with strong action to reduce them, and committing to
strong action to reduce emissions of both SLCPs and CO; in 2020, 2030, and beyond,
California can strengthen its climate leadership and accelerate global progress to limit
global warming and the impacts of climate change.

Foster International Action to Significantly Reduce SLCP Emissions and Impacts

California is already fostering broad action to reduce SLCP emissions. California is
actively engaged with national and subnational governments in China, India, Mexico,
U.S. states, Canadian provinces, and elsewhere in efforts to reduce GHG emissions
and air pollution. Many of these efforts will help reduce emissions of black carbon from
the transportation sector and emissions of other SLCPs, including activities with Mexico
pursuant to a Memorandum of Understanding signed in 2014. Additionally, last
September at the United Nations (UN) Climate Summit, ARB became the first
state-level entity to sign onto action statements of the Climate and Clean Air Coalition to
Reduce Short-Lived Climate Pollutants. At the UN climate negotiations in Lima,
California co-sponsored an event with Mexico on SLCPs and their role in an
international framework to contribute to national commitments to reduce emissions. We
continue to be committed to acting both bilaterally and multilaterally to cooperate with
other jurisdictions to cut SLCP emissions.

Building on leadership around SLCPs can provide an important example for action in
other countries and jurisdictions, and is one of the most significant opportunities to
accelerate international progress to fight climate change. California is in a unique
position to serve as a model for action for other countries and jurisdictions to accelerate
their progress to reduce emissions of both SLCPs and CO;, based on our demonstrated
leadership on air quality and climate change, commitments to set stringent,
science-based targets to reduce emissions of both CO; and SLCPs, and integrated
planning efforts like this one to develop comprehensive policy frameworks to achieve
those goals. As we have done for decades already, California’s actions on SLCPs can
demonstrate win-win opportunities for both the most developed countries, where
reducing SLCP emissions is an important element of broad efforts to cut GHG
emissions, as well as for the least developed countries, where SLCP reductions have
tremendous benefits for air quality and human health.

7 May 7, 2015

D-9



“At national and sub-national scales many of the identified [SLCP] measures could be
implemented under existing policies designed to address air quality and development
concerns. Improved cooperation within and between regions would enhance
widespread implementation and address transboundary climate and air quality issues.”
— UNEP (2011) Integrated Assessment of Black Carbon and Tropospheric Ozone

In developing the Strategy, California will look to build on its international leadership
position on climate change and air quality. The Strategy will identify and prioritize
opportunities to expand action on SLCPs beyond our borders, and look to learn from
others who are implementing programs new to us, including landfill diversion and
anaerobic digestion. The State will also explore additional opportunities to further
reduce air pollution, greenhouse gas, and SLCP emissions through its existing
partnerships, perhaps including collaborative pilot programs or other efforts to
collectively reduce emissions.

Ultimately, each state, region, or country has its own mix of SLCP sources, needs, and
opportunities to reduce emissions. While we are developing a Strategy to address our
own, we will also look to highlight the critical role that this type of planning and goal
setting plays in helping to successfully reduce emissions and maximize local and global
benefits. We will share this planning effort with others, and encourage them to adopt
specific SLCP reduction targets and plans to achieve them. A few already have —
President Obama has set specific targets to cut methane emissions from the oil and gas
sector, Mexico has included targets to cut black carbon emissions in its Intended
Nationally Determined Contribution to the United Nations Framework Convention on
Climate Change, and Norway has developed an SLCP action plan of its own.?” But
these types of commitments and planning efforts need to be adopted much more
broadly, and by developing a comprehensive plan to achieve necessary SLCP
reductions in an effective and beneficial way, California will continue to foster broader
action beyond its borders, and demonstrate effective processes and strategies to
address climate change.

Process for Developing a Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Strategy

The 2014 Scoping Plan Update identified SLCPs as an important aspect of a
comprehensive approach to addressing climate change. It committed ARB to develop a
short-lived climate pollutant strategy in 2015 as part of a broad effort to reduce
emissions of all GHGs from all sources — including CO, from energy-related activities,
as well as emissions from natural and working lands, and N,O.

Senate Bill 605 reaffirmed and codified that commitment. The bill requires ARB to
“develop a comprehensive strategy to reduce emissions of SLCPs in the state” by
January 1, 2016, and in developing the strategy to:

e Complete an inventory of sources and emissions of SLCPs in the State based on
available data;
¢ Identify research needs to address any data gaps;

8 May 7, 2015

D-10



Identify existing and potential new control measures to reduce emissions;
Prioritize the development of new measures for SLCPs that offer co-benefits by
improving water quality or reducing other air pollutants that impact community
health and benefit disadvantaged communities, as identified pursuant to Section
39711,
e Coordinate with other state agencies and districts to develop and implement
measures identified as part of the comprehensive strategy;
e Consult with experts in academia, industry, and the community on SLCPs. The
topics shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following:
o Assessment of the current status of controls that directly or indirectly
reduce emissions of SLCPs in the State.
o I|dentification of opportunities and challenges for controlling emissions.
o Recommendations to further reduce emissions.
e Hold at least one public workshop during the development of the strategy.

Pursuant to these requirements, ARB will develop a Short-Lived Climate Pollutant
Strategy (Strategy), in coordination with other state agencies and local air districts,
which will be presented to the Board in the fall of 2015. An estimated timeline for
development of the Strategy and public engagement is provided in Table 1. Public
engagement will include public workshops and Board meetings, as well as input and
review by climate science, industry experts, and other interested stakeholders.

Table 1: Estimated Timeline and Process for Developing a Short-Lived Climate
Pollutant Strategy.

Release SLCP Concept Paper / Public

May
workshop
Summer Release initial draft of Strategy / Public
workshop
Fall Release draft proposed Strategy
Fall Present draft proposed Strategy to Board
Spring 2016 Present final Strategy to Board for approval

This Concept Paper describes initial ideas that will be explored over the next several
months as the Strategy is developed. The concepts included in this discussion draft do
not represent commitments at this time, nor do they comprise an exhaustive list of
elements or considerations that may be included in the Strategy or shape its
development.

Indeed, the intention of this paper — and the public process that follows — is to elicit new
ideas and refine strategies to reduce emissions of SLCPs throughout the State. ARB

welcomes broad participation among stakeholders, experts, and interested parties
throughout this process.

9 May 7, 2015

D-11



Strategy Scope

The Strategy will explore opportunities to reduce emissions from all major sources of
methane, black carbon, and F-gases. Regarding F-gases, the Strategy will primarily
focus on reducing emission of HFCs, but may explore opportunities and research needs
to reduce emissions of some other F-gases. Tropospheric ozone will not be considered
independently, as it is not directly emitted.

The Strategy will aim to identify and develop systems-level solutions that move beyond
individual projects and enable deep, sector-wide emission reductions. For example,
developing a comprehensive approach for utilizing organic waste from a number of
sources for energy, soil amendment, or other purposes will require coordinating a broad
array of tools — including regulatory measures, incentives, and public investment —- that
work across sectors to address various economic, institutional, or technological issues.

For some sectors, further research efforts are critical to understanding costs and
benefits associated with reducing SLCP emissions. The Strategy will identify ongoing
research and additional research needs to further advance the science regarding
inventory methods and reduction measures, determine expected reductions from
mitigation strategies, and account for the climate impacts of SLCPs in California.

In accounting for the climate impacts of SLCP emissions, ARB will evaluate inventories
based on 20-year and 100-year GWP values (see Table 2). Global warming potentials
account for the lifetime of different greenhouse gases in the atmosphere, and the
amount of energy they absorb on a per-kilogram basis, relative to CO,, to represent the
relative climate forcing of a kilogram of emissions when averaged over a time period of
interest (for example, 20 years or 100 years). Current practice in most of the world for
developing GHG emission inventories, including California's inventory, is to use
100-year GWP values from the 4™ Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel
on Climate Change, which was released in 2007. The 4" Assessment did not include
GWP values for black carbon, however, so values from the 2013 5™ Assessment Report
are used here.

The latest scientific consensus, as reflected by GWPs included in the 5" Assessment
Report, suggests that methane emissions have an even greater impact on climate
change than previously understood. While developing the Strategy, including in
consultations with experts and stakeholders, ARB will consider the best methods to
account for the costs and benefits associated with proposed measures to reduce
emissions of SLCPs.

10 May 7, 2015

D-12



Table 2: Global Warming Potential for SLCPs to be used in the Strategy

GWP time horizon

Pollutant Lifetime
(years)
20 years 100 years
Carbon dioxide 100 1 1
Methane 12 72 25
F-Gases (Hydrofluorocarbons)* 1.4-52 437 — 6350 124 - 4470
Black carbon Days to weeks 3,200 900

* Does not include two long-lived HFCs with negligible emissions

Figure 1 presents California’s greenhouse gas inventory, using 100-year and 20-year
GWPs. The impact of SLCPs on global warming more than doubles, to just over

40 percent of California’s inventory, when GWPs are computed over 20 years, rather
than 100 years.

Figure 1: California’s 2013 Greenhouse Gas Inventory Using
(a) 100-year and (b) 20-Year Global Warming Potential Values

2013 {2} 2043 (b
2% Hirous Oalds

1Y% Rethane
Y, Blsok Carbon

559% Sarbon Rovide

In addition to minimizing climate risks, immediate action to reduce emissions of SLCPs
can deliver a broad array of benefits throughout California. A wide range of benefits will
be accounted for when considering potential measures related to short-lived climate
pollution, and as called for in Senate Bill 605, the Strategy will identify and prioritize
measures that complement and accelerate progress to meet other economic, health,
social equity, and environmental objectives.

The Strategy fits within a wide range of ongoing planning efforts throughout the State to
advance economic and environmental priorities. Integrated planning to achieve multiple
objectives requires coordination among planning agencies and across sectors, systems,
and government jurisdictions. Development of the Strategy will be closely coordinated
with other relevant planning efforts. For example, new SLCP emission reduction
concepts for California's freight system will align with strategies identified in the
Sustainable Freight Strategy. That plan is currently being developed by ARB and other
state agencies, and will identify strategies that will further reduce black carbon
emissions throughout the freight sector. Other concurrent planning efforts in the State

11 May 7, 2015

D-13



could also identify additional
activities that may serve to
reduce SLCP emissions. For
example, CEC's Integrated
Energy Policy Report, the
State Implementation Plan,
the Healthy Soils Initiative,
and the Forest Carbon Plan
are all ongoing efforts that
intersect with many of the
concepts described in this
paper. ARB will collaborate
with other agencies
developing those plans to
identify and prioritize activities
to reduce SLCP emissions
that would also support other
State priorities and integrated
planning efforts. Climate
action planning efforts by city,
county, and other local
government entities will also
play a role in reducing SLCP
emissions.

Framing the Strategy

v

v

State Plans that Will Assist the State in
Meeting the SLCP Emission Reduction Goals

Sustainable Freight
Strategy

2014 Scoping Plan
Update

Additional Scoping
Plan Updates

Three Year Auction
Proceeds Investment
Plan

Funding Plan for the
Air Quality
Improvement Program
(AQIP) and Low
Carbon Transportation
Greenhouse Gas
Reduction Fund
Investments

v

<

AN

2016 State
Implementation
Plan

ARB's Annual
Research Plan

CAT Climate
Change Research
Plan for California

Water Action Plan

DWR's Climate
Action Plan

Caltrans Strategic
Management Plan
for 2015-2020

Forest Carbon Plan

Healthy Soils
Initiative

A number of overarching concepts will frame the development of the Strategy, which

are described below.

Achieve Scientific-Based Targels

The Strategy will identify and recommend measures to achieve SLCP emission
reductions that scientific studies suggest are necessary — globally, and in conjunction
with immediate and significant reductions in CO2 emissions — to limit global warming to
less than 2°C, as well as to support Governor Brown's new climate goal of reducing
California's GHG emissions to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030.  Specifically, the

Strategy will:

e Describe ongoing and developing efforts (e.g., Sustainable Freight Strategy,
Diesel Risk Reduction Plan, State Implementation Plan, Forest Carbon Plan)
that have achieved significant black carbon reductions already or seek to reduce
black carbon emissions further; these efforts and others that will be identified, are

Executive Order B-30-15

12

D-14

May 7, 2015



expected to reduce black carbon emissions by at least 50 percent below 2012
levels from transportation sources by 2020, and from all sources by 2030;

¢ Identify existing and potential new measures to reduce methane emissions by at
least 20 percent by 2020 and 40 percent by 2030, below forecasted emission
levels; and

¢ Identify existing and potential new measures to reduce F-gas emissions by at
least 25 percent in 2020 and 50 percent in 2030, below forecasted emission
levels.

Prioritize Actions with Diverse Benefits

The direct benefits of cutting SLCP emissions will be immediately tangible, and can be
substantial. As part of an integrated strategy to not only reduce emissions of SLCPs,
but also to develop renewable sources of energy and strengthen the competitiveness
and resiliency of our agricultural, forestry, freight and other sectors, they can deliver
even greater benefits, including:

¢ Reduced asthma risk, hospitalization, premature death, and associated medical
costs from air pollution;

¢ Reduced global and localized climate change impacts, including sea level rise
and disrupted precipitation patterns, and associated costs;

¢ Reduced crop losses from air pollution;

o Healthier forests, wildlife habitats, and watersheds;

e Healthier soils that are more sustainable and resilient to climate change,
sequester GHGs, require less synthetic amendments, and improve water
retention;

e Increased availability of renewable fuels and energy, to stabilize energy costs
and reduce emissions from buildings, industry, power plants, and transportation;
and

e Stronger agricultural and freight sectors that are well positioned to continue
competing globally and growing as a source of jobs and economic development
in California.

Clearly, there are a number of drivers and benefits to reducing SLCP emissions that
extend beyond mitigating the impacts of climate change. The Strategy will frame these
broad benefits and identify priority measures to provide a wide array of climate, health,
and economic benefits throughout the State.

Put Organic Waste to Its Most Beneficial Use

In most cases, organic material can be a potential resource, not a waste stream. By
treating and utilizing organic waste streams in better ways, we can significantly cut
methane emissions from existing or new landfill, dairy, wastewater treatment, or other
waste management operations, as well as black carbon emissions from agricultural
burning or prescribed burns and wildfires. We can also create new sources of jobs and
economic activity, renewable power or natural gas, clean transportation fuels, and

13 May 7, 2015

D-15



expand the production and use of compost and other beneficial soil amendments in the
State. Many renewable fuels from organic waste streams have the lowest carbon
intensity in the Low Carbon Fuel Standard, which provides an economic incentive for
utilizing those resources for expanded fuel production. Soil amendments may improve
soil health and water retention and reduce the use of synthetic amendments in
agriculture. Indeed, strategies to improve management and utilization of organic waste
throughout the State may have the ability to help reduce emissions throughout the
agricultural sector, from avoided methane emissions from manure, CO; emissions from
fuel use, and N,O emissions (a very potent, but long-lived, GHG) from fertilizer use and
soils.

Wherever possible, and as soon as possible, we should be utilizing organic waste in
order to both reduce SLCP emissions and produce maximum value from the energy and
nutrients that remain in these sources. Toward those ends, in developing the Strategy,
the State will work with researchers and stakeholders to identify the cost, feasibility, and
potential funding mechanisms, incentives, regulations and other strategies — on the
supply and demand side — to maximize the beneficial use of organic waste.

Identify Practical Solutions to Overcome Barriers

Achieving the SLCP emission reduction targets identified above will require overcoming
stubborn barriers, and in some cases, modifying operations and updating best
practices, to significantly reduce SLCP emissions from sources that may have been
difficult to control in the past. For example, cheap and abundant landfill capacity makes
organics diversion and utilization difficult. Developing projects that not only generate
renewable energy, but also improve air quality and protect water quality may require
additional investments in the cleanest technology and management practices, while
navigating through various permitting processes. Collection and utilization of dispersed
woody biomass resources, such as agricultural wastes or forest thinnings, may suffer
from poor economies of scale, which limit the feasibility of extracting energy from these
resources. Utility engagement and interconnection — getting electricity onto the grid or
renewable gas into the pipeline — remains an unnecessarily long and costly process in
many parts of the State. Technology or market barriers also remain in some sectors,
such as developing cleaner engine and fuel options for off-road equipment and other
vehicles and operations throughout the goods movement supply chain. In other
sectors, such as those using refrigerants, cleaner, low-GWP options are just beginning
to emerge, and markets for these options need to be supported and scaled.

These barriers are not insurmountable. Through coordinated planning to align priorities
and streamline permitting, targeted investment and incentives to overcome cost barriers
to clean technologies and practices, and direct engagement with farmers and ranchers,
landfill operators, waste haulers, and other stakeholders, we can overcome these
barriers and significantly cut SLCP emissions and improve the health and vibrancy of
communities throughout California.

For example, the Strategy will identify strategies and funding mechanisms to encourage
and streamline the use of the cleanest technologies to advance the State’s air quality,

14 May 7, 2015

D-16



water quality, climate change, and other environmental objectives. Such technologies
or strategies may include fuel conditioning of biogas to remove contaminants before
vehicle use, injection into the natural gas pipeline, or fuel cells for electric generation.
Several existing programs already provide potentially significant incentives to convert
waste streams to various forms of energy, but others will be considered to further
encourage the use of energy from organic waste, including potential mechanisms that
could increase the share of renewable natural gas used in California buildings, industry,
and transportation.

Efforts to increase composting and anaerobic digestion should be accompanied by
efforts to promote and account for the benefits of utilizing compost, manure, and other
soil amendments that come from these processes. Increasing demand for compost and
other soil amendments may be key to financing projects to utilize organic waste and cut
emissions of SLCPs. ARB will coordinate with the California Department of Food and
Agriculture (CDFA) and other agencies working on the Healthy Soils Initiative to identify
additional research needs to inform the science and accounting methods necessary to
quantify the various benefits of using compost and other soil amendments and address
any potential problems such as buildup of salts or heavy metals in soil. Collaboration
among state agencies, water districts, and local governments will help improve
quantification of benefits and impacts that could enable greater use of compost in urban
storm water management, remediation of fire-degraded lands, water conservation
measures, and other beneficial uses. Agencies will also consider potential mechanisms
to encourage the use of compost and other soil amendments in agriculture and various
other applications in California, in ways that protect air quality, water supplies, and
provide other benefits.

Finally, the State already has a number of research projects and multi-agency working
group efforts underway to overcome barriers to accelerating deployment of compost
and anaerobic digestion facilities, scrape systems and digesters at dairies, renewable
natural gas generation at wastewater treatment facilities, and other technologies and
strategies to reduce SLCP emissions. The Strategy will pull from all of these efforts and
suggest measures to overcome barriers that may exist throughout the supply chain —
including feedstock, technology, market/economics, permitting, technical feasibility,
infrastructure/logistics, and user behavior.

Advance the Science of SLCP Sources and Emissions

Data related to SLCPs and their sources is often less available or of lower quality than it
is for CO,. One reason is that energy-related emissions of CO; are often easier to
quantify than emissions of other GHGs, which may form through complex biological or
other processes where existing reporting guidelines and procedures may not apply. But
there has also been less of a focus on collecting additional data that could help to
quantify GHG emissions from some non-CO; sources. While improving data access
and quality is not prerequisite for many actions to reduce emissions of SLCPs, it is
important for informing ongoing efforts to reduce emissions to necessary levels from
these sources.

15 May 7, 2015

D-17



In addition to identifying current research efforts underway to advance the
understanding of sources and emissions of SLCPs in California, the Strategy will
explore potential reporting methods and requirements that could improve understanding
of SLCP emissions and impacts in California. This may include activities to improve
understanding of methane emissions from natural gas and oil supplied to California,
dairy operations, landfills, as well as various sources of F-gas and black carbon
emissions. Additionally, research needs to further understanding around the climate
forcing impact of light-absorbing particles known as “brown carbon” (which mostly come
from biomass burning), its sources in California, and potential mitigation options will be
explored.

Invest in SLCP Emission Reductions

Achieving significant reductions in SLCPs will require substantial investments to provide
incentives and direct funding for priority sectors, sources, and technologies. Significant
investments of private capital, supported by targeted, priority investments of public
funding, are necessary to scale deployment of technologies and strategies to
significantly cut emissions of SLCPs throughout California and to maximize the benefits
of doing so. Public investments should be smart and strategic, to leverage private
investment and accelerate market transitions to cleaner technologies that foster
significant, system-wide solutions to cut emissions of SLCPs, maximize resource
recovery from organic waste streams, and provide economic and health benefits in
agricultural, disadvantaged, and rural parts of the State. Examples may include
targeted support to reduce emissions of SLCPs and CO; through integrated strategies
at dairies, landfills and in organic waste management; throughout the freight system; in
commercial refrigeration applications; and from the management of woody waste
materials in the agricultural and forestry sectors.

The State will need to continue coordinating and utilizing funding sources such as the
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (Cap-and-Trade auction proceeds),? the Alternative
and Renewable Fuel and Vehicle Technology Program (AB 118), Electric Program
Investment Charge (EPIC) Program, Carl Moyer program, Air Quality Improvement
Program, and the Proposition 39: Clean Energy Job Creation Fund to expand
investments in California’s clean economy and further reductions in SLCPs and other
GHG emissions. Strategies identified during the development of the SLCP Strategy will
help inform the recommendations in the Cap and Trade Auction Proceeds three-year
Investment Plan that is currently being updated.

Potential new funding mechanisms and incentive structures will also be considered
during the course of developing the Strategy. These could include adjusting the tipping
fee structure to account for the true cost of managing organic materials and landfills,
state procurement contracts for renewable natural gas and other fuels in buildings or
vehicles, or labeling programs to recognize leading companies in the market place,
including those producing milk with low levels of dairy methane emissions.

16 May 7, 2015

D-18



Methane Emission Reduction Concepts

Methane is the second largest, and a growing, component of GHG emissions in
California (see Figure 2 for California's methane emission sources). The State has
taken important steps to reduce methane emissions from all of its major sources, but
more needs to be done to more fully control methane emissions, especially from organic
waste streams going to landfills and at dairies.

Figure 2: California 2013 Methane Emission Sources

e Rive
0% Laruifilis
26% HMnnurs Managamant % Yiastewater
$%  Pipshines
9% Frderie Farmentation 8% O & Gas Progustion

U 3 dndustrial & Misc

Methane is the principal component of natural gas and is also produced biologically
under anaerobic conditions in ruminant animals, landfills and waste handling. Since
methane emissions come from many sources, including complex biological processes, it
can be difficult to measure emissions from major sources. Coordinated research efforts
between ARB and the California Energy Commission to refine emission estimates have
led to the development of the only subnational methane monitoring network in the world.
In addition, researchers at ARB and at NASA’s Jet Propulsion Laboratory are currently
collaborating to identify large "hot spot" methane sources in the San Joaquin Valley.
This research will aid in future control and regulatory plans to reduce GHG emissions in
California. The Strategy will catalog ongoing research efforts related to methane
emission detection and highlight remaining research gaps.

Methane also contributes to global background levels of ozone in the lower atmosphere
(troposphere). Ozone itself is a powerful SLCP as well as a regional ground level air
pollutant. Ozone negatively impacts human health, and can lead to asthma attacks,
hospitalizations, and even premature death. It impairs the ability of plants to absorb
CO,, thereby suppressing crop yields and harming ecosystems. Ozone also affects
evaporation rates, cloud formation, and precipitation levels. In addition to the direct
climate benefits of cutting methane emissions, it can also reduce global background
levels of ozone pollution and provide additional climate, health, and other

benefits. 293031

Regional ozone concentrations reflect contributions from ozone formed from emissions
(oxides of nitrogen (NOx), and volatile organic compounds (VOCs)) on a regional scale,
as well as ozone transported on hemispheric scales (global background levels of
ozone). Due to its low reactivity, methane emissions do not affect regional scale ozone
production that occurs over hours to days. However, regional methane emissions which
are fairly well-mixed in the atmosphere contribute to the global abundance of methane,

17 May 7, 2015

D-19



which in turn contributes to global background levels of ozone. About two-thirds of the
rise in global levels of tropospheric background ozone can be attributed to methane
emissions. Studies have also shown that the global background ozone concentrations
can approach 40 ppb and have been increasing in recent years. Increases in
background ozone raise the baseline upon which local-to-regional ozone builds.

Over the past 50 years, ARB and local air districts have implemented a comprehensive
regulatory control strategy to continually reduce regional ozone formation in order to
comply with health-based ambient air quality standards set under the federal Clean Air
Act. Many rules and amendments have been adopted, which have more than cut in half
the emissions of VOCs and NOx, and significantly reduced ozone concentrations
throughout California. Because the regulatory definition of VOCs does not include
methane due to its relatively low reactivity and lack of impact on regional ozone
production, methane emissions have not fallen at similar rates as VOCs over the past
decades.

In California, agriculture and landfills are the primary sources of methane emissions.
Including manure from agricultural operations, organic waste is responsible for more
than half of the State’s methane emissions. The Strategy will explore potential methane
emission reductions from all sources, but will specifically look to significantly reduce
emissions from the waste and agricultural sectors in the State, through integrated
strategies that fully utilize organic waste streams to recover their maximum value.

Minimize Fugqitive Methane Emissions from all Infrastructure and Equipment

Natural gas is currently California’s largest source of electricity generation, energy for
industrial operations, and GHG emissions from residential and commercial buildings.
Its use in the transportation sector is also increasing, and it could potentially play an
important role in helping many parts of the State comply with federal air quality
standards over the next 20 years, especially if “ultra-low NO,” natural gas engines
become commercially available for heavy-duty trucks within the next few years.

As California continues to rely on natural gas for a large fraction of its energy supply, it
is critical to increase supplies of renewable natural gas and minimize fugitive emissions
of methane from natural gas infrastructure. Renewable natural gas can be captured at
landfills, wastewater treatment plants, commercial food waste facilities, agricultural
operations, or other sources, treated, and used as a renewable energy source to
displace fossil fuel consumption. Due to its high global warming potential, relatively
small levels of methane emissions throughout the supply chain can overwhelm any
reduction in CO, emissions from the use of fossil or renewable natural gas, compared to
oil or coal. In California, which uses little coal, the important comparison is to diesel fuel
used in transportation. As we increase the number of facilities producing and using
renewable supplies of natural gas, hydrogen, or any other potential source of methane
emissions in a cleaner energy economy, we must also take steps to minimize potential
methane leaks from those facilities.

18 May 7, 2015

D-20



Based on existing models and accounting frameworks, the use of conventional natural
gas in the transportation and other sectors is reducing emissions in California,
compared to the use of oil or coal. California also has ongoing efforts to further reduce
fugitive methane emissions from oil and gas production. ARB is developing a regulation
to reduce methane emissions from oil and gas production, processing, and storage
operations, and the California Public Utilities Commission is developing rules, per

SB 1371 (Leno, Chapter 525, Statutes of 2014), to reduce emissions from gas
transmission and distribution pipeline leaks throughout the State. Together, these rules
should create a comprehensive approach to limit methane leaks from oil and gas
operations. However, about 90 percent of our natural gas comes from out-of-state
suppliers, so the State will continue to advocate for strong national methane standards
to ensure potential climate benefits from our use of gas in the State.

In developing the Strategy, ARB and other state agencies will consider additional data,
measurement, and reporting needs and tools in order to improve the characterization of
fugitive methane emissions from natural gas supplies to California. The Strategy will
also consider potential measures to ensure climate benefits associated with the use of
natural gas in all sectors of California’s economy. To the extent that ultra-low NOy
natural gas trucks enter the market in the next few years and play an important role in
the State’s approach to meet future air quality and climate goals, it will be important to
already have these potential reporting requirements and measures in place.

Ultimately, a key driver of fugitive emissions is our demand for oil and natural gas,
which will likely have to decline significantly to meet our climate and air quality targets.
As state policies continue pushing our evolution away from conventional oil and natural
gas, they will also help to reduce emissions of methane from the production and
distribution of fossil fuels. In particular, efforts to improve efficiency or electrify
appliances, buildings, and vehicles will not only reduce energy use and CO, emissions,
but also serve to reduce or avoid fugitive methane emissions from the production, and
potentially transmission and distribution, of natural gas. In developing the Strategy,
ARB and other agencies will consider whether fugitive methane emissions should be
accounted for in cost/benefit calculations for various state energy and efficiency
programs, and appropriate methods for potentially doing so.

Effectivelv Eliminate Disposal of Oraanic Materials at Landfills

Organic waste constitutes more than one-third of California’s waste stream. Food
waste alone accounts for about five million tons of landfilled organics each year. Efforts
to divert organics from landfills, and to develop an organics infrastructure that makes
best use of the material, are a key element of integrated strategies to increase
production and access to renewable energy, reduce air pollution, improve agricultural
soil health, and reduce GHG emissions from a broad array of sources throughout
California.

California has clear goals to reduce waste, and to divert organic material from landfills
and put it to beneficial use. The State has a target to reduce landfilling of solid waste by
75 percent in 2020 through the use of recycling, composting, and source reduction.

19 May 7, 2015

D-21



Additionally, the 2014 Scoping Plan Update called for eliminating disposal of organic
materials at landfills, which has the potential to virtually eliminate methane emissions
from landfills over time, once existing organic “waste-in-place” has decomposed. The
Legislature has taken steps to increase organics diversion from landfills, through

AB 1826 (Chesbro, Chapter 727, Statutes of 2014) and AB 1594 (Williams, Chapter
719, Statutes of 2014). This legislation represents important steps forward.

Building on this foundation, the Strategy will explore additional measures to accelerate
organics diversion and GHG emission reductions to meet an initial goal of diverting

75 percent of organics from landfills through source reduction and organics recycling by
2020. This amounts to a 50 percent additional reduction from current levels, and is in
line with existing goals set forth in AB 341 (Chesbro, Chapter 476, Statutes of 2011).
Further, the Strategy will consider measures to meet a goal of diverting 90 percent of
organics from landfills through source reduction and organics recycling by 2025

(80 percent reduction from current levels). Achieving these levels of diversion would
effectively eliminate the disposal of organic materials in landfills in California, as called
for in the Scoping Plan Update, by the middle of the next decade.

An important step, and an effective way to meet these targets, is to avoid wasting food
or other organic material in the first place. The Strategy will explore research
opportunities and potential approaches to reduce food waste. In addition to reducing
GHG emissions, avoiding food waste saves money, effectively conserves the amount of
energy and water that would have been used to produce the food, and conserves fuel in
delivery and removal of waste.

The next step is to support the development of infrastructure for utilizing the additional
organic waste. Achieving these targets will likely require at least 100 new or expanded
facilities for utilizing diverted organic waste from landfills — through composting,
anaerobic digestion, or other methods that advanced the State goals related to air
quality, climate, energy, and soil sustainability. The Strategy will explore funding
mechanisms, incentives, and other measures to expedite these facilities and phasing
out organic disposal at landfills. One mechanism that will be considered is reforming
CalRecycle’s solid waste tipping fee to incentivize the diversion of organic material
away from landfills and support the development of compost and anaerobic digestion
facilities.

Finally, additional regulatory measures may be necessary to achieve these levels or
complement potential state incentives or funding for organic waste infrastructure. In
developing the Strategy, agencies will consider potential regulatory measures as an
element of a comprehensive approach to effectively eliminate organics from landfills.

Even if we eliminate new organics in landfills, existing organic waste in landfills will
remain a source of methane emissions for years to come. In developing the Strategy,
ARB will work with CalRecycle, stakeholders, and experts to identify research needs
and other efforts to develop potential measures to expand the use of best management
practices and further reduce methane emissions from landfills by 2020 and through

20 May 7, 2015

D-22



2030. These measures could include upgrading landfill gas collection systems,
improved post-closure maintenance, improved monitoring, and phased closure

Significantly Cut Methane Emissions from Dairies

Agriculture, primarily dairies, is responsible for about 60 percent of California’s methane
emissions.” About equal levels of emissions come from manure management (primarily
in flushwater lagoon systems at dairies) and the digestive processes of cows and other
ruminant animals (enteric fermentation). Any potential strategies to reduce agricuitural
methane emissions should be based on a whole-system perspective in the California
context, taking into account the lifecycle of emissions, energy and water use,
economics, animal health/welfare, soil health, and water quality.

Methane emissions from manure management can be significantly reduced by
capturing and destroying or utilizing methane from lagoons, switching from lagoon
systems to solid manure management “scrape” systems (to avoid generating methane
in the first place), and/or converting manure into renewable energy in anaerobic
digesters. Anaerobic digesters can be used with manure from lagoons or scrape
systems and may provide renewable electricity or natural gas that can be used to power
farm equipment and vehicles, including milk trucks, which would further reduce air
pollution and GHG emissions. Dairy manure can also be mixed with other organic
materials — diverted from landfills or at wastewater treatment facilities, for example —
and “co-digested,” which may improve the performance or economics of anaerobic
digestion projects in certain cases. Switching to scrape systems could potentially
deliver significant water savings, along with improvements in water quality and soil
health.

In developing the Strategy, ARB will work with CDFA, stakeholders, and experts to
better understand the potential costs or environmental tradeoffs and broad array of
benefits associated with various options to reduce methane emissions at dairies. The
Strategy will identify necessary investments and other strategies to control manure
methane emissions from the largest sources as quickly as possible — and no later than
2025. Those measures will likely include developing a methane capture or abatement
standard, as called for in the Scoping Plan Update, as well as incentives and state
funding to bring as many projects as possible online ahead of any potential regulation
on existing sources.

Methane is also produced by the microorganisms involved in the digestive processes in
the stomachs of ruminants, such as sheep, goats, buffalo and cattle — which is referred
to as “enteric fermentation.” Achieving the methane targets identified in this Concept
Paper may be difficult or infeasible if emissions from enteric fermentation increase.
Research on strategies to reduce methane emissions from enteric fermentation has

T The Animal Legal Defense Fund has petitioned ARB to measure and control animal agriculture methane
emissions via ARB's Mandatory Reporting Rule and Cap-and-Trade Regulation. ARB continues to
investigate this option and welcomes feedback on it as the planning process moves forward.

21 May 7, 2015

D-23



increased significantly in the past few years. Potential strategies may include breeding
for lower methane-producing animals, microbial interventions, and nutrition and animal
management.®? The Strategy will describe existing research in this area and remaining

gaps.
Maximize Resource Recovery from Wastewaler Treatment Facilities

Wastewater treatment plants are used to treat or reclaim sewage or liquid waste
streams from residential, commercial and industrial sources. These plants represent a
relatively small amount of California’s methane inventory (four percent). Most
wastewater treatment plants already use anaerobic digestion in their processing, and
many have large amounts of spare capacity to potentially take in new sources of waste
As such, wastewater treatment presents a tremendous opportunity to divert organics
from landfills and utilize them for producing energy and soil amendments. Many of the
treatment plants are located fairly close to population centers and could utilize
potentially significant amounts of food and other organic waste streams that come from
cities and towns.

Existing barriers limit or discourage wastewater treatment facilities from more fully
recovering the energy and nutrient value that remains in organic waste. The Strategy
will build on existing efforts to overcome these barriers and identify opportunities to
expand the role that wastewater treatment plants can play in diverting organic waste
from landfills and putting it to beneficial use while minimizing methane emissions.

Additionally, much of California’s wastewater infrastructure is aging and vulnerable to
climate change impacts, and due for renewal, retooling, and/or replacement before
2030. Many tens of billions of dollars will be invested in new infrastructure over that
time frame, which could transform the wastewater sector and its business model into
one that focuses not only on water quality, but also on maximum resource recovery
from a wide array of waste streams and potential end products. ARB will work with the
Water Resources Control Board to identify potential options to increase the role that
wastewater treatment can play in reducing emissions of SLCPs.

Black Carbon Emission Reduction Concepts

Black carbon emissions are the State’s third largest component of GHG emissions (see
Figure 3 for California's black carbon emission sources), and as a component of diesel
particulate matter, is among the most toxic and harmful air pollutants affecting health in
our communities. Globally, black carbon emissions are responsible for millions of
premature deaths each year. In California, health impacts are valued at tens of billions
of dollars from smog-forming emissions such as NOx, black carbon and diesel
particulate matter, every year.

22 May 7, 2015

D-24



Figure 3: California 2013 Black Carbon Emission Sources

45, ey 7 1 TS B
&% Fireplaces s )
’ ¥ 4% Cooking

) 5 . §% tndusivial Fugd Combustion
3% Prescribed Burning W, Ag. Buraing

) o 8% 3n-Roud Transportation
Q8% Wiidlivy

TS O Fromt Tranaporiation
VAL

California has done more than any other jurisdiction to reduce the emissions of
particulate matter (PM) and black carbon. ARB and local air districts have developed
programs to comply with federal air quality standards for PM. These include mandatory
and voluntary rules to restrict residential wood-burning in fireplaces and wood stoves,
as well as incentive programs to switch to cleaner burning devices. Additionally, district
rules regulating commercial cooking and smoke management programs addressing
agricultural, forest, and rangeland burning operations have reduced PM emissions.
California has achieved significant emission reductions from diesel-fueled engines and
vehicles through the implementation of the Diesel Risk Reduction Plan. California's
clean fuel and in-use vehicle requirements for on- and off-road sources and
complementary incentive programs have accelerated the switch to cleaner diesel
equipment and cleaner vehicles, directly contributed to diesel PM emission

reductions. As a result, ambient levels of black carbon in California are now 90 percent
lower than in the early 1960s, despite the use of diesel fuel more than tripling over the
same time period. Existing rules will cut them in half again by 2020.

If the rest of the world achieved similar levels of reductions, it would prevent millions of
premature deaths each year and slow global warming by 15 percent. But the State still
suffers from the nation’s worst air quality, and many regions remain out of compliance
with federal health-based ambient air quality standards. Complying with federal air
quality standards and protecting public health in our State will require virtually
eliminating smog-forming and particulate matter emissions from mobile sources in
Southern California and the Central Valley by 2031.

Non-anthropogenic black carbon emissions (wildfires) account for more than half of the
State’s total black carbon emissions. While this source is difficult to control, it is critical
to address as part of integrated climate and forest planning.

The impacts of black carbon on climate change vary by location and source, which
complicates climate modeling and understanding of the climate forcing role that black
carbon plays. Particulate matter emissions that include black carbon also inevitably
include “brown carbon” (the light absorbing component of organic carbon, which is
abundant in biomass burning), sulfur, and other particles that have varying impacts on
regional climate. ARB is sponsoring research to advance the science on black carbon,
as well as brown carbon. Results from this research will improve our understanding of

23 May 7, 2015

D-25



its impact on the climate, and inform ongoing efforts to further reduce emissions,
address climate change, and improve public health.

In developing the Strategy, ARB will provide information on current research efforts, and
lay out a research agenda that will identify additional actions to advance the science on
black and brown carbon and incorporate this into our efforts to address SLCPs, as
appropriate.

lo Lead on Diesel Black

California has done more than any jurisdiction in the world to reduce diesel emissions,

but many areas in the State still suffer from poor air quality. According to the American
Lung Association, California cities still rank as the top five in the country for ozone and

particle pollution.*

State and local efforts will continue reducing diesel particulate matter emissions to
comply with federal air quality standards and further protect public health, which will
further reduce black carbon emissions, as well. ARB is working with the State’s
transportation and energy agencies, as well as its economic development office, local
partners, and stakeholders to develop a comprehensive, integrated plan — the California
Sustainable Freight Strategy — that will enhance system efficiency; deploy zero and
near-zero emission freight equipment powered by renewable energy sources; provide
reliable velocity while increasing safety, mobility and capacity; and improve the
competitiveness of our logistics system. Additionally, ARB continues to update the
State Implementation Plan, including a plan in 2016 that will outline actions to achieve
federal air quality standards by 2032. Emission reduction measures identified in these
ongoing processes will be incorporated in the SLCP Strategy.

In developing the Strategy, ARB will work with other agencies to align efforts to improve
air quality and reduce black carbon emissions, and identify any additional diesel black
carbon-specific measures that may not otherwise be captured through existing efforts.
While existing policies and processes effectively target particulate matter and black
carbon emissions from on-road sources, additional efforts are needed to drive
reductions from off-road sources, including farm and construction equipment, trains and
railroad operations, cargo handling equipment, and shipping.

Reduce Black Carbon Emissions from Biomass Burning

The State and local air districts have a number of measures in place to reduce
particulate matter emissions from biomass burning, which have also resulted in
significant reductions of black carbon. State law restricts agriculture burning in specific
parts of California. All large air districts in the State have adopted mandatory and
voluntary rules restricting wood-burning in residential fireplaces and heaters. In fact, the
Bay Area Air Quality Management District is considering a new rule to ban all wood
burning devices in new construction and restrict the sale of buildings with old fireplaces,
stoves or other wood-burning devices that fail to meet United States Environmental

24 May 7, 2015

D-26



Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) emission standards. Air districts also administer
incentive programs for residents to replace their old wood burning devices with new,
cleaner options. ARB will coordinate with local agencies and identify potential options
to further reduce particulate matter and black carbon emissions from biomass burning
from major sources, including wildfire, agricultural burning, open pile burning, and
commercial and residential cooking and fireplaces, among others. ARB will explore
research related to how we can most effectively prioritize areas where the use of
prescribed fire will have the greatest reduction in wildfire risk, and associated net black
carbon impacts, at the lowest cost, and with the least impact to residents at the urban-
wildland interface.

Wildfires account for the majority of black carbon emissions in California. No single
wildfire may be preventable, but improved management can reduce the incidence and
severity of wildfires in California, which can offer climate benefits by both strengthening
our forests as carbon stocks and sinks, and reducing black carbon (and brown carbon)
emissions from wildfires. Additionally, the impacts of climate change are expected to
make wildfires more frequent and severe, and our forests need to increasingly be
managed with climate change impacts in mind.

The Scoping Plan Update called for developing a “Forest Carbon Plan” in 2016 to set
quantitative greenhouse gas planning targets for the State’s forests and identify actions
to meet them. ARB is part of an inter-agency working group of Federal and State
agencies that is currently developing the Plan. The working group is reviewing forest
practice regulations and recommendations for best management practices and potential
additional regulatory actions to minimize GHG emissions and enhance carbon storage
associated with silvicultural treatments. Potential management practices to minimize
GHG emissions could include measures that would enhance wild land fire prevention
and suppression, resulting in avoidance of direct black carbon emissions.

Improved management of woody biomass in general — from forest residues, agricultural
waste, or other sources — can reduce black carbon emissions and provides an
opportunity to generate renewable energy and economic development in rural parts of
the State. As for other organic waste streams, the Strategy will explore options to put
woody biomass to beneficial use and avoid black carbon emissions that would
otherwise result from burning. One option may be pyrolysis of woody biomass, which
generates energy and biochar, and which can be used to sequester carbon in soils and
improve soil fertility. 33533 Current analyses suggest that biochar could be used to
sequester significant volumes of CO; globally,®® but the benefits of large-scale projects
have not been demonstrated or quantified, and several research gaps remain. Despite
the uncertainty, several carbon trading entities have developed or are developing
protocols for biochar projects.®**° The potential benefits from these projects will be
investigated, and additional research or demonstration projects will be identified to
improve our understanding of the potential role biochar may play in addressing an
integrated set of air pollution, climate, energy, soil and resource issues.

25 May 7, 2015

D-27



F-Gas Emission Reduction Concepts

Fluorinated gases are the fastest growing source of GHG emissions both globally and in
California (see Figure 4 for California's F-gas emission sources). They include ozone-
depleting substances that are being phased out under the Montreal Protocol, and their
primary substitute, hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs). Most F-gas emissions come from leaks
of these gases in refrigeration and air-conditioning systems. F-gases are also emitted
when used in aerosol propellants and fire suppressants at the time of application, and
slowly emitted from polyurethane foam insulation when used as foam-expanding
agents.

Figure 4: California 2013 F-gas (Hydrofluorocarbons)* Emission Sources

Retrigerant - Tranaponiaiion 19% 5% Asesesnt - Reskiondial
Hefrigerant - Beeideatial 2% 3% Berossd ~ Sonwearsiznl indusirial, Transporizgtion
&% Fowin

Refrigmyant — fesdostrin 12% ser e e e .
4 e 1% Selvents & Fire Suppressing

Rafrigoragrg Oornmpeig 43%

* Does not include two long-lived HFCs with negligible emissions

Many F-gases are hundreds, or thousands, of times more potent than CO,. For an
increasing number of them, low-GWP alternatives are entering the market and
becoming more cost-effective. Many of them can be easily captured or destroyed at the
end-of-life, and are even required to be, but due to the lack of incentive and difficulty of
enforcement, they often are not. Reducing F-gas emissions from many sources are
among the most cost-effective opportunities to reduce GHG emissions.

California is among the leaders in reducing F-gas emissions. It is the only subnational
entity with an inventory of F-gas emissions, and early action measures adopted under
AB 32, including the Refrigerant Management Program for stationary sources, will
reduce F-gas emissions by an estimated six million metric tonnes of CO,-equivalent
(MMTCO.-e) by 2020.

California’s efforts to reduce emissions of F-gases are part of a broader set of national
and international commitments to phase down the production and use of HFCs.
President Obama, China President Xi Jinping, and leaders of the G-20 countries have
agreed to work together and through the Montreal Protocol to phase down the
production and consumption of HFCs. The U.S. EPA can impose federal bans on
F-gases under the Significant New Alternatives Policy (SNAP) Program. The agency
has proposed, but not yet adopted, bans on specific HFCs with very high GWPs used in
new commercial refrigeration systems, the manufacture of polyurethane foam, and in
new light-duty motor vehicle AC systems. The European Union has adopted leading
F-gas regulations that will phase down the production and import of HFCs by almost
80 percent from 2015 levels in 2030.4+42

26 May 7, 2015

D-28



Given this national and international context, California can accelerate broader action
on F-gas emissions by continuing to build on its leading efforts. New measures
developed in California can grow markets for low-GWP alternatives, and can provide an
important national and international signal to build the case for action. The Strategy will
consider several additional efforts to reduce the use and emissions of high-GWP
F-gases from several sources.

Reduce the Use of HFCs in New Refrigeration and Air-Conditioning Equipment by At
Least 80 Percent by 2030

The Scoping Plan Update called for California to work with the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency and other partners to develop programs to phase-down HFC
production and import by about 80 percent by 2030. This aligns with commitments by
the U.S., Mexico, Canada, China, European Union, India, and others to phase-down the
production of HFCs under the Montreal Protocol. Proposed amendments to the
Montreal Protocol are currently under negotiation. 4344

A global phase-down under the Montreal Protocol is necessary to alleviate much of the
burden that the use of these gases imposes on our climate, and California will support
international efforts to address the issue. Still, California can lead by taking its own
steps to reduce the use of HFCs in the State as quickly as possible. Existing measures
adopted under AB 32 are projected to reduce HFC emissions in California by 30 percent
below “business as usual” levels in 2030. Proposed federal rules would reduce HFC
emissions by another 10 percent in California in 2030.

The Strategy will explore additional steps that California can take to reduce the use of
HFCs in the State by at least 80 percent by 2030. HFC emission reductions could be
achieved through sector specific prohibitions, where feasible and cost effective
alternatives are available, by imposing a mitigation fee on sales of high-GWP HFCs, or
other potential options. (Note that F-gas emission reductions partially lag reductions in
their use, due to the long life of the existing stock of equipment that still contain
high-GWP F-gases. Therefore, an 80 percent reduction in the use of F-gases by 2030
would not reduce their emissions by as much as 80 percent in that same year.)

Remove High Global Warminq Potential Gases from Foams, Aerosols, and
Transportation

In particular, the use of HFCs in foams, aerosols, and transportation could be quickly
addressed. The majority of insulating foam and aerosol propellants that have
historically used high-GWP F-gases has already transitioned to low-GWP substitutes.
ARB regulations currently ban consumer product aerosol propellants with a GWP
greater than 150 in most products, and the U.S. EPA has proposed federal prohibitions
on the use of high-GWP HFCs in certain insulating foam applications and aerosol
propellants.

27 May 7, 2015

D-29



In developing the Strategy, ARB will consider measures, including bans, to transition the
remaining insulating foams and aerosol propellant consumer products using HFCs to
low-GWP alternatives as soon as possible. Additionally, ARB will consider developing
regulations to prohibit the use of high-GWP refrigerants in air conditioning and
refrigeration systems for heavy-duty motor vehicles, if such prohibitions are not enacted
at the federal level.

Reduce Leaks from Existing Equipment and at End-of-Life

Phasing out the use of these highly potent gases is necessary to reduce their
emissions, but even then, strong measures are needed to ensure best practices are
employed during the use and end-of-life of appliances, in order to prevent the release of
F-gases for decades to come. Leakier systems may have lower upfront capital costs,
but higher operating costs — due to the greater need for repairs and to replenish leaking
refrigerant. At the end of life, while requirements exist for scrappers to capture F-gases,
it is often easier to just “cut-the-line,” and vent the gas. These are problems that may
not be easily solved through regulation.

ARB will consider stronger regulations and enforcement as part of the Strategy to
reduce F-gas emissions, and will also consider additional incentives, funding, and
collaborative efforts that can be taken with the private sector to significantly reduce
emissions from F-gases during their use and end-of-life. This will include reviewing
utility-based incentive programs, and considering the costs and benefits of measures
that could be taken to strengthen them, expand them, link them with energy efficiency
programs in cases where the use of low-GWP refrigerants can also reduce energy use,
or otherwise adjust them to ensure that appliances with low-GWP gases are
incentivized, and gases from old and leaking appliances are increasingly captured,
recycled, or destroyed.

Tarqget Early Action to Significantly Reduce F-gas Emissions from Commercial
Refrigeration

Commercial refrigeration, which is the source of about 40 percent of California’s F-gas
emissions, may provide a ready test case for a productive, collaborative approach to
significantly reduce F-gas emissions. President Obama recently announced a
coordinated set of public and private sector commitments to reduce HFC emissions,*
mainly from the commercial sector, and cost-effective alternatives (including CO5) are
available for many applications in many lo :ations.*® Emission reductions in California
on the order of several MMTCO,-e per year may be available at a cost of a few dollars
per tonne.

But the requirements, incentives and funding mechanisms need to align with the
commitment of the private sector, in order to capture this opportunity. In developing the
Strategy, ARB will work with other agencies, stakeholders, experts, and others to
identify potential mechanisms to accelerate the transition to the use of recycled
refrigerant or low-GWP alternatives as quickly as possible. While commercial

28 May 7, 2015

D-30



refrigeration operations cover a wide array of businesses and applications, ARB will
look to identify collaborative approaches to overcome barriers and transition large
commercial refrigeration systems to low-GWP alternatives as soon as possible, and no
later than 2025.

ARB will consider developing regulatory requirements to use low-GWP refrigerants in
new commercial refrigeration systems by feasible effective dates, as well as potential
future bans or other regulatory requirements or programs for existing systems.
Additionally, the Strategy will explore the potential scope and cost-effectiveness of
potential incentives to:

e Remove high-GWP refrigerants from existing equipment and replace (retrofit)
with low-GWP refrigerants in the same equipment.

e Offset some or all of the higher cost that might be associated with replacing older
high-GWP refrigeration equipment with new, low-GWP refrigeration systems.

¢ Install low-GWP refrigeration systems at new facilities.

¢ Link with energy efficiency programs in cases where low-GWP refrigerants can
reduce energy use. For example, low-GWP refrigerants such as ammonia,
carbon dioxide, and hydrocarbons have been shown to reduce energy
consumption between 5 and 35 percent compared to HFC refrigerants, with a
corresponding decrease in electricity use and GHG emissions.*’

e Encourage the greater use of recycled refrigerants for air conditioning and
refrigeration buildings.

e Recover and destroy F-gas refrigerants no longer produced.

Showing the Way to 2°C

California is committed to building on its ongoing leadership to cut air pollution and
greenhouse gas emissions by developing a comprehensive, effective plan to
significantly reduce SLCP emissions in the State through 2030. Doing so, in
conjunction with strong action to immediately cut emissions of CO,, is the only way to
stabilize global warming below 2°C and provide near-term climate benefits that can help
reduce the disproportionate climate impacts that are likely to be felt in the developing
world. Accordingly, in his 2015 Inaugural Address, Governor Brown called for California
to “reduce the relentless release of methane, black carbon and other potent pollutants
across industries,” as a key part of his plan to show the world the path to limiting global
warming to no more than 2°C.*8

The concepts described in this paper represent an initial set of ideas that deserve
conversation and exploration, but it is not meant to be exhaustive. We welcome
comments that will advance California's goal of demonstrating that emission reductions
can be achieved in ways that are not only affordable, but also beneficial to the State
economy and the well-being of its residents.

29 May 7, 2015

D-31



References

' Ramanathan V, Xu Y. The Copenhagen Accord for limiting global warming: criteria, constraints, and
available avenues. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America.
2010;107 (18):8055-8062. [EMLC free aricle]

2 |GSD (2013) Primer on Short-Lived Climate Pollutants, Institute for Governance and Sustainable
Development, February 2013. http://igsd. org/documents/PrimeronShort-

an, Gary; Oguah, Samuel. 2013. Integration of short-lived climate
pollutants in World Bank activities: a report prepared at the request of the G8. Washington DC ; World
Bank.
pollutants-world-bank-activities-report-prepared-request-g8

educing abrupt climate
change risk using the Montreal Protocol and other regulatory actions to complement cuts in CO2
emissions. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America.
2009;106(49):20616-20621. doi:10.1073/pnas.0902568106.

ed Climate Forcers and Perfecting Deliberate
Carbon Removal Strategies Complement CO, Reductions, Institute for Governance and Sustainable
Development, October 25.

® UNEP (2014) Time to Act nd Clean Air
Coalition to Reduce Short-Lived Climate Pollutants, United Nations Environment Programme, Second
Edition, May.

"Velders et a
Proceedings of the National Academies 106 (27), 10949-10954.

ommitments from HFC banks and emissions”, G. J. M.

Velders, S. Solomon, and J. S. Daniel. Atmospheric Chemistry and Physics, 14, 45634572, 2014.
doi:10.5194/acp-14-4563-2014.
® Ramanathan V, Xu Y. The Cop : criteria, constraints, and
available avenues. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America.
2010;107 (18):8055-8062. [PMC free arlicle]
" UNEP (2014) Time to Act (To Reduce Short-Lived Climate Pollutants), The Climate and Clean Air
Coalition to Reduce Short-Lived Climate Pollutants, United Nations Environment Programme, Second
Edition, May.

Under a sc
concentrations of CO, to no more than 450 parts per million by the end of this century (equivalent to a
2°C scenario), average global warming is reduced by about 0.15°C by 2050.
UNEP and WMO (2011) Integrated Assessment of Black Carbon and Tropospheric Ozone, United
Nations Environment Programme and World Meteorological Association.

cord for Limiting Global Warming:
Criteria, Constraints, and Available Avenues, Proceedings of the National Academies of Sciences 107
418), pp.8055-8062.
*Xu, Y., D. Zaelke, 13

ct and possible mitigation strategies,
Atmospheric Chemistry and Physics 8, 1723-1735.
1723-2008 himl
>UNEP (2014) Time to Act (To Reduce Short-Lived Climate Pollutants), The Climate and Clean Air
Coalition to Reduce Short-Lived Climate Pollutants, United Nations Environment Programme, Second
Edition, May.

30 May 7, 2015

D-32



'® Francis, J. A. and S. J. Vavrus. 2012. Evidence linki ng Arctic amplification to extreme weather in mid-
latitudes. Geophysical Research Letters 39.
"7 Screen, J. A. and |. Simmonds. 2013. Exploring links between Arctic amplification and mid-latitude
weather. Geophysical Research Letters 40(5):959-964.
'® Ramanathan, V. and Yangyang Xu (2010) The Copenhagen Accord for Limiting Global Warming:
Criteria, Constraints, and Available Avenues, Proceedings of the National Academies of Sciences 107
S18)' pp.8055-8062.

o Hu, A, Y. Xu, C. athan (2013), Mitigation of short-lived

d
Nations Environment Programme and World Meteorological Association.

ate Change and Improving Human
Health and Food Security, Science 335, 183 (2012).
2 Ault AP, Williams CR, White AB, Neiman PJ, Crea
Detection of Asian Dust in California Orographic Precipitation. Journal of Geophysical Research -
Atmospheres (2011), 116, D16205
2 UNEP (2014) Time to Act (To Reduce Short-Lived Climate Pollutants), The Climate and Clean Air
Coalition to Reduce Short-Lived Climate Pollutants, United Nations Environment Programme, Second
Edition, Ma
Hu et al (
Change 3 730-734.
% Ramanathan et a to the California
Air Resources Board, Contract 08-323, April 15.

adran Ramanathan (2009) The Other Climate Changers: Why Black Carbon
and Ozone Also Matter, Foreign Affairs, September/October 2009, pp. 105-113.
eddon-wallack-and-veerabhadran-ramanathan/the-

of Proposed Action Plan for Norwegian Emissions of Shortlived Climate Forcers,
Norwegian Environment Agency, March.

t

Committee, Chapter 39) established the GHG Reduction Fund to receive Cap-and-Trade auction
roceeds.

® Fiore, A. M., J. J. West, L. W. Horowitz, V. Naik, and M. D. Schwarzkopf (2008) Characterizing the
tropospheric ozone response to methane emission controls and the benefits to climate and air quality, J.
Geophys. Res., 113, D08307, doi:10.1029/2007JD009162.
% West, J. J., A. M. Fiore, L. W. Horowitz, and D. L. Mauzerall (2006), Global health benefits of mitigating
ozone pollution with methane emission controls, Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. U.S.A., 103, 3988—-3993.
* Fiore, A. M., F. J. Dentener, O. Wild, C. Cuvelier, M. G. Schultz, P. Hess, C. Textor, M. Schulz, R. M.
Doherty, L. W. Horowitz, I. A. MacKenzie, M. G. Sanderson, D. Shindell, D. S. Stevenson, S. Szopa, R.
Van Dingenen, G. Zeng, C. Atherton, D. J. Bergmann, |. Bey, G. Carmichael, W. J. Collins, B. Duncan, G.
Faluvegi, G. Folberth, M. Gauss, S. Gong, D. Hauglustaine, T. Holloway, I. S. A. Isaksen, D. Jacob, J. E.
Jonson, J. W. Kaminski, T. J. Keating, A. Lupu, E. Marmer, V. Montanaro, R. J. Park, G. Pitari, K. J.
Pringle, J. A. Pyle, S. Schroeder, M. G. Vivanco, P. Wind, G. Wojcik, S. Wu, and A. Zuber (2009),
Multimodel estimates of intercontinental source-receptor relationships for ozone pollution, J. Geophys.
Res., 114, D04301, doi:10.1029/2008JD0108186.
32 Ripple, W.J., P. Smith, H. Haberl, S. A. Montzka, C. McAlpine and D.H. Boucher. 2014. Ruminants,
climate change and climate policy. Nature Climate Change
% ALA (2014) State of the Air, American Lung Association.
3 Lehmann, J., Gaunt, J., Rondon, M., 2005. Bio-char sequ tems- a review.
Mitigation and adaptation strategies for global change.

31 May 7, 2015

D-33



% Laird, A.D., 2008. The charcoal Vision: A win-win-win scenario for simultaneously producing bioenergy,

g)aermanently sequestering carbon, while improving soil and water quality. Agronomy Journal 100, 178-181.
Matthews, J.A., 2008. Carbon negative biofuels. Energy Policy 36, 940-945.

37 Woolf, D., 2008. Biochar as a soil amendment: A review of the environmental implications.In:

Swansea.

% Sohi, S1.Loez-Capel, E2., Krull, E3., Bol, R4., 2009. Biochar's roles in soil and climate change: A

review of research needs. CSIRO Land and Water Science Report 05/09, 64 pp..

% Koper, T. P. Weisberg, A. Lennie, K. Driver, H.Simons, M. Rodriguez, D. Reed, S. Jirka and J. Gaunt.

2010 Methodology for Biochar Projects V1.0. American Carbon Registry.

“ CAPCOA GHG Exchange. 2014. Biochar Production for Project Reporting Protocol: GHG Emission

reduction Accounting. Version 3.0.

1 EC (2014) European Commission (EC), April 16, 2014 “Regulation (EU) No 517/2014 of the European

Parliament and of the Council on fluorinated greenhouse gases and repealing Regulation (EC) No

842/2006 alternatives”.

“2 EC (2006) European 06 of

the European Parliament and of the Council on certain fluorinated greenhouse gases”.

osed amendment to the

Montreal Protocol submitted by Canada, Mexico and the United States of America”, June 24, 2013.
Available at:

accessed 28 January 2015).

EP), “Proposed amendment to the Montreal
Protocol submitted by India”, April 22, 2015. http://conf.montreal-protocol.org/meeting/oewg/oewg-
35/presession/default.aspx
“5 Executive Office of the President of the U.S., Council of Environmental Quality, Fact Sheet released
September 16, 2014, “FACT SHEET: Obama Administration Partners with Private Sector on New
Commitments to Slash Emissions of Potent Greenhouse Gases and Catalyze Global HFC Phase Down”.
https://www.whitehouse.gov/the-press-office/2014/09/16/fact-sheet-obama-administration-partners-
private-sector-new-commitments-
“ Operating costs for CO,-charged systems may be higher in hotter climates, due to the relatively low
boiling point of CO,. In cooler climates, CO,-based systems may cut energy and operating costs for
commercial facilities.
4 Wang, et al., 2009. “Review of secondary loop refrigeration systems”, Kai Wang, Magnus Eisele,
Yunho Hwang, and Reinhard Radermacher. International Journal of Refrigeration 33 (2010) 212-234.
Available at: doi;10.1016/j.ijrefrig.2009.09.018 and www.elsevier.com/locatef/ijrefrig
“8 Edmund G. Brown, Jr. Inaugural Address, Remarks as Prepared, January 5, 2015.

32 May 7, 2015

D-34



June 8, 2015
Prepared and
submitted by: P. Sheilds

Approved by: Paul Co M
CONSENT CALENDAR
4- GEC
SUMMARY:

The Orange County Grand Jury released a report, “Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for
Orange County” to the public on May 1, 2015. The Grand Jury was tasked with inventorying
the volume of secondary treated sewage from Orange County facilities currently being
discharged to the ocean, and evaluating the viability of how these flow streams could be recycled
for beneficial reuse. As part of the process, the Grand Jury interviewed staff from IRWD and
seven other water agencies. The Grand Jury report identified eight findings, one of which,
Finding F.4 requires a response from the IRWD Board of Directors.

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to respond to the Grand Jury that
the Board agrees with Finding F.4 in the report which states:

The Irvine Ranch Water District processes 21.9 million gallons per day of wastewater
and recycles 20.2 million gallons per day for purple pipe use.

BACKGROUND:

The Grand Jury was given an assignment to inventory the total amount of sewage collected and
treated in Orange County, determine the ultimate destination/use of the treated sewage (ocean
outfall, recycled water applications, indirect potable reuse, etc.), and assess the unit treatment
costs in dollars per million gallons. The stated reason for the study as outlined in the report is as

follows:

“Given the fact that California is facing a serious, extended drought, the guaranteed supply
of imported water and local groundwater is very vulnerable. The primary purpose of this
study was to compare the cost of recycling more water with the cost of buying imported
water. The Grand Jury needed to research each wastewater processor to determine the
volume of wastewater that might be available for recycling. Based on the possible
availability of more wastewater to recycle, what plans does Orange County have to do more
recycling of this precious resource rather than discharging it into the ocean?”

As part of the process, the Grand Jury interviewed staff from IRWD and several other agencies
including: Orange County Sanitation District, Orange County Water District, Metropolitan
Water District of Southern California, Santa Margarita Water District, South Orange County
Wastewater Authority, Trabuco Canyon Water District, and El Toro Water District as part of the
process which began in 2014.

The Grand Jury inventoried the volume of treated sewage currently discharged from Orange
County into the ocean that could be recycled for beneficial reuse. The amount of treated
discharges identified 147 million gallons per day of treated sewage going into the ocean. The

ps 2014-2015 OC Grand Jury Report Response

12



Consent Calendar: 2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Report Response
June 8, 2015
Page 2

results of the investigation by the Grand Jury were detailed in a report, “Increasing Water
Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County” which was released to the public on May 1, 2015. A
copy of the report is attached as Exhibit “A”.

Based on the investigation, the Grand Jury arrived at eight principle findings (F.1 through F.8),
and four recommendations (R.1 through R.4). In accordance with the California Penal Code
sections 933 and 933.05, the 2014-2015 Grand Jury requires responses from each agency
affected by the findings. The responses are to be submitted to the Presiding Judge of the
Superior Court. IRWD is required to respond to Finding F.4 which states:

The Irvine Ranch Water District processes 21.9 million gallons per day of wastewater
and recycles 20.2 million gallons per day for purple pipe use.

Staff has confirmed the accuracy of this finding and recommends that the Board agree with
Finding F.4 and authorize the General Manager to notify the Presiding Judge of the Superior
Court in writing acknowledging this agreement, in the form of Exhibit “B”, which is attached.

The report also contained the following commendation to IRWD:

“The 2014-2015 Grand Jury commends the Irvine Ranch Water District for the years of
recycling water for landscape irrigation leadership. Last year they recycled over 92% of
the wastewater they received.”

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Not applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was not reviewed by a Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AGREE WITH FINDING F.4 CONTAINED IN THE 2014-2015
ORANGE COUNTY GRAND JURY REPORT—"“INCREASING WATER RECYCLING: A
WIN-WIN FOR ORANGE COUNTY” AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO
NOTIFY THE PRESIDING JUDGE IN WRITING OF THE BOARD’S AGREEMENT.
LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — 2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Report—Increasing Water Recycling: A

Win-Win for Orange County
Exhibit “B” — Response Letter to Orange County Grand Jury



EXHIBIT "A"

Increasing Water Recycling:
A Win-Win for Orange County

A-1



Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ....coiioiiiuriremnmmesssssssssssssssastssssesssssssssssssssessssssnssssansassassssanensannnas 3
BACKGROUND. ......ccccerieeiierneressesssssssesssesasssnsass st sesaesansssssssssssssssansssnsssnesasssssssassasansnns 3
REASON FOR THE STUDY ...t snesnssssssssiinsssssssssnss s nsnsssssssssssannennes 4
METHODOLOGY ....ceeireeeerriermsssrssssssssssssesssssssasssssssssnsse s ssssssssssssassssasssssssnssnsnsassssnssannanss 4
INVESTIGATION AND ANALYSIS......cccciiiiimiiimmminimmamimiisiiss s ssssssssssssssssan 5
North & Central Orange County Wastewater Processing .........cccccceeviiciiunncnns 6

OC Sanitation District.........ccccocririiiin e 6

OC Water DistriCt cciiisssssssiissasnsssassssssesesssusuasssrasssssssnssasmasnassrsannssansuournos 6

South OC Wastewater Processing........cccceemrerrmniinninnnnnessessinennssssenns 7

Irvine Ranch Water District.......ccccccviviiiiiiniinniiinnierissssssssssss s, 7

Costs and MeasSUremMeNts ........ccccceeeeeimmsamisssssnssnssensmissssrsssssssssssssessssssssssnnssssans 7
FINDINGS ....ootiiieiieeiiiiisteeessssrrrnennsssss e nrnsasssssssssertsessassssssssmimeassssssessssemmmmananssssassssennnnnns 7
RECONMMENDATIONS ... i sss s e s easassss s s e n s sassssssssansannes 8
REQUIRED RESPONSES .......cccoiiiericrrmsssninnsnsnnstssssesse s ssnssssssnnssssssnassnsnsnssssssseannnas 9
o0 ] 1711 =1 -y f (] £ P 10
REFERENCES......cccocerrrrrrreeeesenesinnessssssessssssssese s ssn s snssssssss sesansssas ssassasassssnssssnnnsasssansas 10
APPENDIX: GLOSSARY ...ooiiicitrimrmsiisis e rrssssssssss s ssnmnssssss s s s s e sessssennssssnns 11

e ——

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 2
A-2



Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Given the series of droughts in California affecting both the Sierra Nevada water
supply and Orange County’s ground water supply, the 2014-2015 Grand Jury
inventoried the volume of treated wastewater currently discharged into the ocean that
could be recycled for beneficial use. Orange County has a long history of working to
recycle treated wastewater; however, the County still discharges 147 million gallons per
day of wastewater into the ocean (Table 1). This precious water has the potential to be
reused or recycled (replacing imported water) for irrigation and in some cases for
drinking water. The majority of the treated water costs less to produce than the cost of
imported water by 43.5% (Table 2).

The Santa Ana River Basin water is a blend of “free” water (treated wastewater
from Riverside and San Bernardino counties, rainfall water, and water runoff) with non-
“free” water (recycled Orange County wastewater and imported water). The Grand Jury
found that the blending of “free” water with expensive imported water and recycled
water resulted in groundwater costing 58% less than imported water (Table 2). The
County has wastewater available to recycle that would be cheaper than buying imported
water during these years of continuing drought conditions.

BACKGROUND

Southern California is a semi-desert region, where the historical average rainfall
is 12.8 inches a year (State of Water, 2013). In 2013, there were 3.6 inches of rainfall in
Southern California. Rainfall in 2014 was only 4.7 inches (State of Water, 2013). If 2015
continues to have a shortage of rainfall, the amount of water retrieved from certain
sources may need to be reduced or alternatives created. Water availability in Orange
County (OC) depends on a diversified water supply portfolio. OC water supply comes
from local and imported sources. Local water sources in OC include a mix of
groundwater and recycled wastewater. The Metropolitan Water District of Orange
County indicates that 45% of OC’s water is imported (State of Water, 2013). The
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MET) supplies imported water from
the Colorado River and from the northern Sierra Nevada Mountains (State of Water,
2013). Many water distribution and wastewater recycling terms used in this report can
be found in the Appendix.

As a result of the recent and drastic decreases in rainfall, water levels and
availability of these local sources are quickly falling. When rainfall is below average,
local water sources experience different impacts.

Groundwater comes from the local Santa Ana River groundwater basin (the
Basin). This local source is always available, but the amount that can be extracted
without adverse consequences is largely dependent on the annual rainfall received. The
less rainfall, the less groundwater is available for extraction.

Recycled water is a relatively stable source because the amount of available
recycled water remains fairly constant. When there is less rainfall, there is less
groundwater, which causes more of a demand for putting water back into the Basin to
resupply the ground water source. Groundwater recovery is the means by which

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 3
A-3



Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

groundwater is kept at an acceptable level. The water storage is adversely affected
because less rainfall results in less water to store. OC water is typically stored
underground in the Santa Ana River Basin or in above ground catch basins, lakes, or
ponds. Water storage is more limited in the southern portions of OC than in the northern
and central regions. The storage is drawn down to critical levels when the rainfall is too
low to replenish it.

Annual snowfall and rainfall also affect the two imported water sources. The
northern Sierra Nevada Mountains provide water to OC from the snow accumulated
during the winter months. The Colorado River Aqueduct System is one of the most
dependable sources but it also has limitations. The Colorado River upstream water
sources are also adversely affected by below- average rainfall. Even though it is less
affected, the reliability of this source could also be reduced if the drought continues for
years to come. Some areas in the southern part of the county depend as much as 95%
on imported water for their potable water needs (State of Water, 2013).

OC is extremely fortunate to have the Basin and the Groundwater Replenishment
System (GRS). The Basin and the GRS make OC less vulnerable to drought compared
to other California communities. The Basin is the most cost effective source of water
because most of the storage, some of the purification, and most of the replenishment
are done by nature with very little human intervention. Again, rainfall does affect how
much water can be pumped out of the Basin without replenishment. The GRS recycles
wastewater and injects it into the Basin using various methods.

Since recycled water is a local source of water, it is the one part of the system
that can be improved and provide economic savings. Recycled water is wastewater that
has been treated to remove solids and impurities. The resulting water can be further
processed and used to create potable water or used for sustainable landscape
irrigation. This irrigation water is called “purple pipe” water.

REASON FOR THE STUDY

Given the fact that California is facing a serious, extended drought, the
guaranteed supply of imported water and local groundwater is very vulnerable. The
primary purpose of this study was to compare the cost of recycling more water with the
cost of buying imported water. The Grand Jury needed to research each wastewater
processor to determine the volume of wastewater that might be available for recycling.
Based on the possible availability of more wastewater to recycle, what plans does
Orange County have to do more recycling of this precious resource rather than
discharging it into the ocean?

METHODOLOGY

The Grand Jury gathered information for this report from interviews, site visits,
district production reports, and research. On-site interviews were conducted at the
Orange County Sanitation District (OCSD), the Orange County Water District (OCWD),
the Irvine Ranch Water District, and the South OC Wastewater Authority. The Grand
Jury conducted telephone interviews with the remaining water districts. Each interview
was with the most senior executive, often followed up with an interview with the person

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 4
A-4



Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

in charge of production. Production data and information were submitted to the Grand
Jury by fax or email. Imported water rates came from the Municipal Water District of
Orange County (Municipal, 2014).

INVESTIGATION AND ANALYSIS

OC water supply comes from local water sources and imported water sources.
Local water sources in OC include a mix of groundwater and recycled wastewater.
These local sources provide about one-half of OC’s water. The other half is imported
and supplied to OC by the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California from the
Colorado River and from the northern Sierra Nevada Mountains. Assuming the drought
continues, OC will have to recycle more wastewater or buy more imported water, which
may be much more expensive if all sources are adversely affected by the drought. An
analysis of all the data shows that recycling more wastewater is less expensive and
more dependable.

The Grand Jury obtained all of the production data from the agencies and
analyzed and determined the amount of wastewater volumes and costs. A summary of
results are provided in the tables below, with details presented in the following
paragraphs.

Table 1: Wastewater Volume

District/Authority WW Volume In WW Volume Out
Total In Ocean Purple Pipe Potable
(mgod) | (%)  (mgpd)  (mepd)  (mepd)
El Toro Water District (ETWD) 3.7 1.4% 3.3 0.4
Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) 219 8.4% 17 20.2
Metropolitan Water District of SoCal (MET) 0 0.0%
Orange County Sanitation District (OCSD) *, ** 198.0 75.6% 1210
Orange County Water District (OCWD) *** 7 70
City of San Clemente (SC) 4.0 1.5% 3.0 1.0
Santa Margarita Water District {SMWD) 11.0 4.2% 3.2 7.8
South OC Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) 22.7 8.7% 14.7 8
Trabuco Canyon Water District (TCWD) 0.6 0.2% 0.6
TOTAL 261.9 100% 146.9 45.0 70

Notes:

mgpd = millions of gallons per day
* OCSD's Total In (198mgpd) = OCSD Plant 1 (96mgpd) + OCSD Plant 2 (102mgpd)
** OCSD's Total In (198mgpd) = OCSD ocean discharge (121mgpd) + OCWD purple pipe (7mgpd) + OCWD potable (70mgpd)

**¥* OCWD has 92mgpd (15mgpd + 7mgpd + 70mgpd) that is already accounted forin OCSD's throughput, including
15mgpd returned to OCSD for Ocean discharge

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 5
A-5



Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

Table 2: Water Costs ($/mg)

IRWD Purple Pipe $1,653 Cost to treat to purple pipe standards
OCSD Ocean Discharge $1,926 Cost to treat for ocean discharge

OCWD Groundwater $1,083 Cost of Santa Ana River Basin water
OCWD Purple Pipe $1,503 Cost to treat to purple pipe standards
OCWD Potable $1,468 Cost to treat to potable standards

SMWD Ocean Discharge $1,103  Cost to treat for ocean discharge

SMWD Purple Pipe $1,488 Cost to treat to purple pipe standards
SOCWA Ocean Discharge $2,655 Cost to treat for ocean discharge
SOCWA Purple Pipe $3,326  Cost to treat to purple pipe standards
MET Wholesale $2,601 Cost of imported water

North & Central Orange County Wastewater Processing

OC Sanitation District

OC Sanitation District (OCSD) receives and processes the wastewater for all of
the cities and unincorporated land in north and central OC, which represents 75.6% of
all of OC’s wastewater. Last year it processed an average of 198 million gallons per day
(mgpd) of wastewater. The OCSD’s treatment of wastewater results in a water product
that meets federal water safety and state water quality standards for ocean discharge.
OCSD also sends treated wastewater to the OC Water District (OCWD).

OC Water District

OCWD manages the Santa Ana River Basin Aquifer, which supplies groundwater
for most of the cities and unincorporated areas in north and central OC. The Aquifer
water comes from (1) rainfall captured in catch basins along the Santa Ana River, (2)
river water flowing from San Bernardino and Riverside, (3) treated wastewater from
outside of OC, (4) imported water, (5) recycled wastewater, and (6) a small amount of
incidental runoff. OCWD receives 92 mgpd of recycled wastewater from OCSD and
then further treats it for two valuable uses: irrigation (purple pipe water), or potable
water (drinking water). The amount recovered from this processing or recycling is 7
mgpd of purple pipe water, 70 mgpd of potable water for replenishing the basin aquifer,
and 15 mgpd as a byproduct of the treatment process. The majority of this byproduct is
returned to OCSD for ocean discharge. OCWD is currently in the process of increasing
their recycled potable water capacity from 70 mgpd to 100 mgpd. The capital cost of the
project is $142 million. The Grand Jury computed the amount of additional potable
water this project could produce over 30 years and amortized the capital costs over the
same period to find that recycled water would still cost far less than imported water.

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 6
A-6



Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

South OC Wastewater Processing

South OC wastewater is processed by the El Toro Water District, the City of San
Clemente, the Santa Margarita Water District, the South OC Wastewater Authority, and
the Trabuco Water District. These entities processed an average of 42 mgpd last year,
or 16% of OC’s daily wastewater volume. From those 42 mgpd, they produced 17.2
mgpd of purple pipe water and discharged the remainder into the ocean.

Irvine Ranch Water District

The Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) processes 21.9 mgpd of wastewater.
From those 21.9 mgpd, it produced 20.2 mgpd of purple pipe water and 1.7 mgpd of
byproduct. IRWD is unique because in addition to using purple pipe water for landscape
irrigation, it also uses it for industrial processes and toilet flushing via dual plumbing
systems.

Costs and Measurements

The Grand Jury reviewed the various costs of imported water, recycled water,
and groundwater. Since all wastewater must be treated before it can be discharged into
the ocean, that cost is considered fixed and, while it is noted in Table 2, it is not used in
this study. Water agencies and wastewater processors sometimes use different
measuring nomenclature. This study uses one common measurement of million gallons
(mg). Some production reports used Acre-Feet (AF). One AF equals 325,851 gallons.

FINDINGS

In accordance with California Penal Code sections 933 and 933.05, the 2014-
2015 Grand Jury requires (or, as noted, requests) responses from each agency affected
by the findings presented in this section. The responses are submitted to the Presiding
Judge of the Superior Court.

Based on its investigation of Wastewater Processing in Orange County, the
2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury has arrived at eight principal findings, as follows:

F.1. The Orange County Sanitation District processes an average of 198 million
gallons per day of wastewater and sends 121 million gallons per day of
secondary treated wastewater to the ocean.

F.2. The Orange County Water District receives an average of 92 million gallons per
day of treated wastewater from Orange County Sanitation District and recycles
70 million gallons per day of water treated to potable water standards that is then
returned to the groundwater basin aquifers.

F.3. From the 92 million gallons per day from Orange County Sanitation District the
Orange County Water District recycles 7 million gallons per day of water treated
to plant irrigation standards.

F.4. The Irvine Ranch Water District processes 21.9 million gallons per day of
wastewater and recycles 20.2 million gallons per day for purple pipe use.

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 7
A-7



F.5.

F.6.

F.7.

F.8.

Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

The South OC Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) processes 22.7 million gallons
per day of wastewater, treats 8 million gallons per day to purple pipe standards,
and sends 14.7 million gallons per day to the ocean.

The El Toro Water District, the City of San Clemente, the Santa Margarita Water
District and the Trabuco Canyon Water District process a combined average total
of 19.3 million gallons per day and send to the ocean 9.5 million gallons per day.
The remaining 9.8 million gallons per day are used for landscape irrigation.

In north and central Orange County, the cost to create potable recycled water is
$1,468 per million gallons or $1,133 less than the current cost per million gallons
of imported water.

The South OC Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) cost to recycle wastewater
currently exceeds the cost of imported water, however the Grand Jury believes
that the cost of imported water will increase.

RECOMMENDATIONS
In accordance with California Penal Code sections 933 and 933.05, the 2014-

2015 Grand Jury requires (or, as noted, requests) responses from each agency affected
by the recommendations presented in this section. The responses are submitted to the
Presiding Judge of the Superior Court.

Based on its investigation of Wastewater Processing in Orange County, the

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury makes the following four recommendations:

R.1.

R.2.

R.3.

R.4.

Orange County Sanitation District should conduct a study of possible methods of
increasing the amount of processed wastewater sent to Orange County Water
District, including timelines and noting any barriers that may prevent increasing
flow, and implement the most cost effective method to reduce the amount of
imported water to Orange County. (F.1.) (F.2.) (F.7.)

Orange County Water District should conduct a study of possible methods of
increasing the amount of processed wastewater and implement the most cost
effective method to reduce the amount of imported water to Orange County.
(F.2.)(F.3) (F.7.)

South Orange County Wastewater Authority should conduct a study of possible
methods of increasing the amount of processed wastewater and implement the
most cost effective method to reduce the amount of imported water to Orange
County. (F. 5.) (F. 8.)

The El Toro Water District, the City of San Clemente, the Santa Margarita Water
District, and the Trabuco Canyon Water District should conduct a study of
possible methods of increasing the amount of processed wastewater and
implement the most cost effective method to reduce the amount of imported
water to Orange County. (F.6.)

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 8
A-8



Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

REQUIRED RESPONSES

The California Penal Code section 933 requires the governing body of any public
agency which the Grand Jury has reviewed, and about which it has issued a final report,
to comment to the Presiding Judge of the Superior Court on the findings and
recommendations pertaining to matters under the control of the governing body. Such
comment shall be made no later than 90 days after the Grand Jury publishes its report
(filed with the Clerk of the Court). Additionally, in the case of a report containing findings
and recommendations pertaining to a department or agency headed by an elected
County official (e.g. District Attorney, Sheriff, etc.), such elected official shall comment
on the findings and recommendations pertaining to the matters under that elected
official’s control within 60 days to the Presiding Judge with an information copy sent to
the Board of Supervisors.

Furthermore, California Penal Code section 933.05 (a), (b), (c), details, as
follows, the manner in which such comment(s) are to be made:

(a) As to each Grand Jury finding, the responding person or entity shall indicate one of
the following:

(1) The respondent agrees with the finding

(2) The respondent disagrees wholly or partially with the finding, in which case
the response shall specify the portion of the finding that is disputed and shall include an
explanation of the reasons therefore.

(b) As to each Grand Jury recommendation, the responding person or entity shall report
one of the following actions:

(1) The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the
implemented action.

(2) The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be implemented
in the future, with a time frame for implementation.

(3) The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and the
scope and parameters of an analysis or study, and a time frame for the matter to be
prepared for discussion by the officer or head of the agency or department being
investigated or reviewed, including the governing body of the public agency when
applicable. This time frame shall not exceed six months from the date of publication of
the Grand Jury report.

(4) The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or
is not reasonable, with an explanation therefore.

(c) If a finding or recommendation of the Grand Jury addresses budgetary or personnel
matters of a county agency or department headed by an elected officer, both the
agency or department head and the Board of Supervisors shall respond if requested by
the Grand Jury, but the response of the Board of Supervisors shall address only those
budgetary /or personnel matters over which it has some decision making authority. The

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 9
A-9



Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

response of the elected agency or department head shall address all aspects of the
findings or recommendations affecting his or her agency or department.

Comments to the Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in compliance with Penal Code
section 933.05 are required from:

Responses Required:

1. Responses to Findings F.1., F.2. and Recommendation R.1. are required
from the Board of Directors of the Orange County Sanitation District.

2. Responses to Findings F.1., F.3., F.7., and Recommendation R.2. are
required from the Board of Directors of the Orange County Water District.

3. Responses to Findings F.5., F.8., and Recommendation R.3. are required
from the Board of Directors of the South Orange County Wastewater
Authority.

4. Responses to Findings F.6., and Recommendation R.4. are required from the
Board of Directors of the El Toro Water District.

5. Responses to Findings F.6., and Recommendation R.4. are required from the
Mayor of the City of San Clemente.

6. Responses to Findings F.6., and Recommendation R.4. are required from the
Board of Directors of the Santa Margarita Water District.

7. Responses to Findings F.6., and Recommendation R.4. are required from the
Board of Directors of the Trabuco Canyon Water District.

8. Response to Finding F.4. is required from the Board of Directors of the Irvine
Ranch Water District.

COMMENDATIONS

The 2014-2015 Grand Jury commends the OC Sanitation District and the OC
Water District for the partnership they developed to recycle wastewater for the beneficial
use of north and central OC residents. Last year’s average of 77 mgpd of recycled
water reduces dependence on more expensive imported water at a time when the
amounts of external water supplies are stressed by the State’s prolonged drought.

The 2014-2015 Grand Jury commends the Irvine Ranch Water District for the
years of recycling water for landscape irrigation leadership. Last year they recycled over
92% of the wastewater they received.

REFERENCES

State of water, summer 2013: A call for investing in reliability.[Pamphlet]. (2013)
Municipal Water District of Orange County.

Municipal Water District of Orange County (2014). Water rates and charges.
Retrieved from http://www.mwdoc.com/pages.php?id_pge=166

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 10
A-10



Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

APPENDIX:
GLOSSARY

AF. Acre-Foot. The amount of water needed to cover an acre (approximately a football
field) one foot deep, or 325,900 gallons. One acre-foot can support the annual indoor
and outdoor needs of between one and two households per year, and, on average,
three acre-feet are needed to irrigate one acre of farmland.

Aquifer. A geologic formation of sand, rock and gravel through which water can pass
and which can store, transmit, and yield significant quantities of water to wells and
springs.

Groundwater. Water that occurs beneath the land surface and fills partially or wholly
pore spaces of the alluvium, soil, or rock formation in which it is situated. Does not
include water which is being produced with oil in the production of oiland gas orin a
bona fide mining operation.

Groundwater basin. A groundwater reservoir defined by all the overlying land surface
and the underlying aquifers that contain water stored in the reservoir. Boundaries of
successively deeper aquifers may differ and make it difficult to define the limits of the
basin.

Groundwater Replenishment System (GRS). An OCWD/OCSD joint project being
developed to provide up to 100,000 acre-feet of reclaimed water annually for
groundwater replenishment. Treated wastewater will undergo further treatment at
OCWND-using the same technology as bottled water companies-before it is piped
northward along the Santa Ana River to replenish the groundwater basin in the inland
part of the county. Visit the GWR System website (http:/www.gwrsystem.com).

Imported water. Water that has originated from one hydrologic region and is
transferred to another hydrologic region. Metropolitan Water District of Southern
California(MET) imports water from the Colorado River and Northern California. MET’s
agency in OC is the Municipal Water District of OC (MWDOC).

Potable water. Suitable and safe for drinking.

Primary treated water. First major treatment in a wastewater treatment facility, usually
sedimentation removal but not biological oxidation.

Recycling. A type of reuse, usually involving running a supply of water through a closed
system again and again. Legislation in 1991 legally equates the term “recycled water” to
reclaimed water.

Santa Ana River Basin Aquifer. That portion of the Santa Ana River that is located
within OC.

Secondary Treatment. Generally, a level of treatment that produces 85 percent
removal efficiencies of biological oxygen demand and suspended solids. Usually carried
out through the use of trickling filters or by the activated sludge process.

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 11
A-11



Increasing Water Recycling: A Win-Win for Orange County

Tertiary treatment. The treatment of wastewater beyond the secondary or biological
stage. Normally implies the removal of nutrients, such as phosphorous and nitrogen,
and a high percentage of suspended solids.

Wastewater. Water that has been previously used by municipality/residences, industry
or agriculture and has suffered a loss of quality as a result of use.

2014-2015 Orange County Grand Jury Page 12
A-12



EXHIBIT “B”
(IRWD Letterhead)

June X, 2015

The Honorable Glenda Sanders
Presiding Judge of the Superior Court
700 Civic Center Drive West

Santa Ana, CA 92701

Dear Judge Sanders:

Pursuant to the letter from the Orange County Grand Jury dated April 24, 2015, a response to
Finding F.4 is required from the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District.

Finding F.4 states:  The Irvine Ranch Water District processes 21.9 million gallons per day of
wastewater and recycles 20.2 million gallons per day for purple pipe use.

This letter will confirm that the Irvine Ranch Water District Board of Directors agrees with
Finding F 4.

I trust this letter will satisfy your request. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact
M. Patrick Sheilds, Executive Director of Operations at (949-453-5720 — shields @irwd.com) or
me at (949) 453-5590 (cook@irwd.com).

Sincerely,

Paul Cook
General Manager

Separate copy mailed to:
Orange County Grand Jury
700 Civic Center Drive West
Santa Ana, CA 92701



June 8, 2015

Prepared by: Christopher Smithson
Submitted by: Cheryl Clary
Approved by: Paul Co

ACTION CALENDAR
COST OF SERVICE STUDY AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
SUMMARY:

The District’s consultant, Carollo Engineering, Inc., in consultation with staff and legal counsel,
has developed the Cost of Service Study. Carollo presented a draft of the Study to the IRWD
Board at its meeting on May 26, 2015. Input was requested so that changes could be
incorporated into the final report; comments have been received incorporated into the report.
Staff recommends the Board adopt a resolution receiving the Cost of Service Study subject to
non-substantive changes.

BACKGROUND:

The purpose of the Cost of Service Study is to evaluate the District’s rate-setting processes and
consider rate structure design components. The objectives of the District’s rate structure are as
follows:

e Provide water, sewer, and recycled service at rates that are fair and equitable;

e Charge rates that are consistent with industry accepted cost of service principles that
satisfy future revenue requirements and that meet all state law requirements (including
Proposition 218); and

e Provide these services while fairly and equitably allocating costs appropriately to those
customers benefitting from them.

While developing the scope of the study, the District determined to retain a consultant that would
provide the following:

Expertise: The District would benefit from a consultant’s experience in rate studies for
other agencies, and

e Independence: The District wanted to have an independent analysis to ensure the
appropriateness of the District’s rate structure and process.

The District retained Carollo Engineering, Inc. to develop the Cost of Service Study, which is
attached as Exhibit “A”. ’

Staff has received comments from the Board that have been incorporated into the final report.
Staff initially anticipated bringing the final report back to the Board on June 22, 2015 — the same
meeting when the Board will be considering the adoption of rates and charges for FY 2015-16.
As all comments have been received and incorporated, staff is recommending that the final study
be received at this time. Staff recommends that the Board adopt a resolution, which is attached as
Exhibit “B”, receiving the Cost of Service Study.

cs Cost of Service - Rate Study Policy Considerations.docx

13



Action Calendar: Cost of Service Study and Policy Considerations
June 8, 2015
Page 2

FISCAL IMPACTS:

There is no impact to the Fiscal Year 2014-15 Operating Budget. Impacts for the proposals have
been incorporated into the Proposed 2015-16 Operating Budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This item is not a project as defined in the California Environmental Quality Act Code of
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15378.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Finance and Personnel Committee on December 9, 2014; January
13, 2015; and February 21, 2015 and by the Board on May 26, 2015.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD ADOPT THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE SUBJECT TO
NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES ON THE COST OF SERVICE STUDY:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -___

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT RECEIVING THE
DISTRICT’S COST OF SERVICE STUDY

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Cost of Service Study
Exhibit “B” — Resolution Receiving the Cost of Service Study



A COPY OF
EXHIBIT “A” CAN BE
OBTAINED FROM THE
DISTRICT SECRETARY



EXHIBIT “B”
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT RECEIVING
COST OF SERVICE STUDY

WHEREAS, Irvine Ranch Water District (“IRWD”) has conducted a cost of service and
rate design study through its consultant, Carollo Engineers, and the Board of Directors has been
presented with the final study dated June 8, 2015 (the “Cost Study”); and

WHEREAS, the Cost Study was performed to provide an independent analysis and
evaluation of IRWD’s rate setting and methodology as to consistency with cost of service
standards; and

WHEREAS, the Cost Study contains recommendations for the achievement of the
objectives of encouraging conservation of water, maintaining equity across customer classes,
maintaining affordability at low usage, maintaining financial stability by accounting for
economic uncertainty, making reliable projections and maintaining sufficient revenue; and

WHEREAS, the proposed adjustments to property-related rates and charges and any
proposed new property-related rates and charges, as set forth in the notices which have been
given in accordance with the requirements of Article XIIID and implementing statutes, have
been evaluated in the Cost Study.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF IRVINE RANCH WATER
DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER THAT THE COST
STUDY BE, AND THE SAME HEREBY IS, RECEIVED.

ADOPTED, SIGNED and APPROVED this 8th day of June, 2015

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER
DISTRICT and of the Board of Directors
thereof

Secretary, IRVINE RANCH WATER
DISTRICT and of the Board of Directors

thereof
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
BOWIE, ARNESON, WILES & GIANNONE
IRWD Legal Counsel

100614



June 8, 2015
Prepared by: L. Stuvick/A. McNulty ﬁ"'/
Submitted by: F. Sanchez/P. Weghorst P

Approved by: Paul Coo ¢t

ACTION CALENDAR

WATERSMART SOFTWARE VARIANCE NO. 2

SUMMARY:

The District’s WaterSmart Program, developed and administered by WaterSmart Software Inc.,
provides enhanced water use information to over-allocation residential and commercial,
industrial, and institutional (CII) customers separately from their water bills. The program is an
effective tool that promotes water use efficiency and provides rate support outreach to customers.
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Variance No. 2 to
IRWD’s Professional Services Agreement with WaterSmart Software Inc. in the amount of
$215,693 to continue administering the WaterSmart Program through FY 2015-16.

BACKGROUND:

In 2012, the WaterSmart Program was first implemented in IRWD’s service area on a pilot basis to
1,000 customers. Based on the water savings and positive customer response, the pilot program
was expanded into a full-scale program targeting over-allocation, single-family customers
beginning in FY 2013-14. The program provides targeted customers with monthly reports on
IRWD’s programs and incentives for water efficiency, as well as customized ways to save water
based on each individual customer’s usage. The reports compare each customer’s water use with
the assigned allocation, as well as with the usage of similar customers. These reports help increase
customers’ awareness of their water usage. The user-friendly report content is modified each
billing cycle to encourage customers to participate in appropriate programs or events. A sample
report is provided as Exhibit “A”. Participants receive the WaterSmart Program reports for 12
consecutive monthly billing cycles.

Of the District’s total recipient list of over 14,481 over-allocation customers, 11,523 single-family
homes receive monthly electronic reports and an additional 2,958 receive hard copy reports through
direct mail. Customers who receive hard copy reports through direct mail are encouraged to sign
up for the monthly electronic water reports, as well as to schedule a home site survey with IRWD
staff.

Consultant Variance:

IRWD’s existing agreement with WaterSmart Software expires on June 30, 2015. Staff
recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Variance No. 2 with WaterSmart
for FY 2015-16, which is provided as Exhibit “B”. Variance No. 2 would continue and expand the
program as part of the District’s planned drought response plan to meet its 16 percent state-
mandated potable use reduction target by February 2016. The expanded program would provide
funding for up to 22,000 over-allocation accounts to receive home water reports. An open
enrollment feature will be added to allow single-family residence (SFR) and condominium
customers to opt in at any time. This will enable customers to sign up for the reports and for staff to
enroll customers during home site surveys.

am water smart program agreement.docx

14



Action Calendar;: WaterSmart Software Variance No. 2
June 8, 2015
Page 2

The proposed Variance No. 2 will also expand the program to include the development and
implementation of custom water use portals for up to 6,000 CII customer accounts. This expansion
will provide access to water usage data by CII building engineers, facility managers and
sustainability managers who otherwise often experience a time delay waiting for the data from their
accounts payable departments. The CII portal will provide a tool for this customer class to more
closely monitor and manage water use at their facilities.

Variance No. 2 with the expanded Scope of Work will extend the WaterSmart Program through
the end of FY 2015-16 at a cost of $215,693. The FY 2015-16 program will target over-
allocation SFR customers as well as CIT customers through direct mail and electronic mail
reports on a monthly basis for 12 months.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Funding for the WaterSmart Program is included in the FY 2015-16 Operating Budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This program is exempt from CEQA.
COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on June
4,2015.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE VARIANCE
NO. 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN IRWD AND
WATERSMART SOFTWARE INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $215,693.

LIST OF ITS

Exhibit “A” — Sample WaterSmart Report

Exhibit “B” — Variance No. 2 to IRWD’s Professional Services Agreement with WaterSmart
Software Inc.



EXHIBIT

Waterlnsight Program
15600 Sand Canyon Ave
Irvine, CA 92618

(% 949.453.5581 £ aws@irwd.com

Your WaterScore

JUN 18 TO JUL 18, 2014

You used more water than
most of your neighbors.

Gallons Per Day (GPD)
154 CCF = 3,715 GPD

. 728 crD
- 1,061 crp
vou | ;7’5 -

Efficient
Neighbors

Average
Nelghbors

Water-saving actions just for you

Selected assuming your home has 2 occupants and a more than 12,000 sa. ft. yard.

JJLog on to correct us!*

Potential annual savings if you:

4 vl
. 5
-

W el Upgrade to
rotating
nozzles

Raise
' lawnmower
mi blades

GALLONS
PER DAY

GALLONS
PER DAY

DOLLARS
PER YEAR

IIAII
YOUR HOME WATER REPORT

THIS IS AN INFORMATIONAL REPORT AND NOT A BILL.

SERVICE ADDRESS: 625 2nd Street, Suite 280
ACCOUNT NUMBER: 123-4567-89

SIGN UP TO GET THIS REPORT VIA EMAIL
irwd.waterinsight.com

A 0001 18334 V003 0000298 00000595 PDF-SEQ=28033
Peter Yolles

625 2nd Street, Suite 280

San Francisco, CA 94107-2014

o Seasonal irrigation tune-up

Remember to look for:
» Appropriate sprinkler run times
« Shrubs or fences blocking your sprinkler heads
« Sprinklers that are broken or clogged, spraying
sidewalks or not popping up
« Punctured hoses or leaky valves

@ Take action during the drought

Water conservation always has been important,
but this year no Californian can afford to waste
another drop.

As we near the end of summer, reduce your
outdoor water use and check your irrigation
system for broken or misdirected sprinklers.

@ Log On

Take the guesswork out of
saving water. See:

» Where you're using the most
o All actions relevant to you
« Step-by-step tips and rebates

Reduce irwd.waterinsight.com

shower to
5 minutes

GALLONS
PER DAY )
A free service offered by
DOLLARS
PER YEAR

your water utility and powered by
WaterSmart Software®

A-

* UPDATES TO THE WATERINSIGHT WEBSITE WILL IMPROVE THIS REPORT, BUT WILL NOT AFFECT YOUR IRWD ALLOCATION.



EXHIBIT “B”
EXHIBIT “C”

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES VARIANCE

in

Variance. The Variance shall be used to identify all changes to the original scope of work, budget, and
schedule for any study, design, or construction phases services.

action

action.

Variance Processing. Once a Variance is signed and submitted by the Engineer/Consultant, the IRWD
Project Manager shall:

1. Enter the Variance's details onto a Variance Register for the project,
2. Review, sign, and date the Variance, and
3. Obtain appropriate approvals.

Notice to Proceed. Work covered upon signing  the department Director
A copy of the Variance, signed by ) s Notice to Proceed
with the required work.

nt.

Financial Authorization. An approved Variance may require any of the following:

1. A

2. A zation,

3. A Purchase Order, and/or
4. A new Purchase Order.

It is the IRWD Project Manager's responsibility to process the necessary paperwork to grant the required
financial authorization.

am Water Smart Program Agreement Exhibit B.docx Rev. 09/14

B-1



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES VARIANCE

Project Title:
Project N
Purchase ariance No.: 2

Originator: [X] IRWD [ ] ENGINEER/CONSULTANT [ 1 Other (Explain

Description of Variance (attach any back-up material):

Engineering & Management Cost Impact:

Billing  Labor Direct Subcon. Total
Manhours  Rate $ Costs $ $
As per the above Scope of Work $215,693 $215,693
Total $ = $215,693
Schedule Impact:
ae Original Schedule New
~ Descri Schedule ~ Variance Schedule
1 Program Administration July 2012 - June 2015 1 year renewal July 2015-June 2016
Required Approval Determination:
Total Original Contract $90.000 [ ] Director: Cumulative total of Variances less than or equal to
$50,000.

Previous Variances $ 98.550
This Variance $215,693 [ ] Executive Director: Cumulative total of Variances less than
or equal to $75,000.

Total Sum of Variances $314.,243
New Contract Amount $404.243 [ 1 General Manager: Cumulative total of Variances less than or
equal to $100,000.
Percentage of Total Variances
to Original Contract 349 % [x] Board: Cumulative total of Variances greater than $100,000.

ENGINEER/CONSULTANT: WaterSmart Software Inc. IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Company Name

Project Engineer/Manager Date Department Director Date

Engineer’s/Consultant’s Management ~ Date General Manager/Board Date

B-2
am Water Smart Program Ageeement Exhibit B.docx Rev. 09/14



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES VARIANCE REGISTER

Project Title: Water Home Water se Reports
Project No.: Project Manager: Amv  Nultv
ariance ariance
No. Amount
$98,550
1 and addition of
Contract extension, 15 $215,693
2 expansion of print
reports and
inclusion of CII
customers.
B-3

am Water Smart Program Agreement Exhibit B.docx

Rev. 09/14



June 8, 2015

Prepared by: L. Stuvick/A. McNulty VJ
Submitted by: F. Sanchez/P. Weghorst |
Approved by: Paul Coo .

ACTION CALENDAR

WATER CONSERVATION PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

SUMMARY:

IRWD’s water use efficiency program includes a “Tactical Incentives” element to encourage
customers to install water conservation devices. Incentive payments are based on the water and
sewage collection and treatment system avoided costs for each device and are cost-effective for
IRWD. Staff has reviewed necessary funding levels and expected water savings and
recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with the
Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC) to provide incentives at the levels
specified per device, for a total funding amount of $1,060,000 in FY 2015-16.

BACKGROUND:

Tactical Incentives are one of the key elements of IRWD’s Water Use Efficiency Program. The
Tactical Incentives are cost-effective financial incentives provided by IRWD to supplement existing
regional rebate programs administered by either Metropolitan Water District of Southern California
and/or MWDOC. The incentives are based on IRWD’s calculated avoided costs resulting from the
installation of the various conservation devices. A new umbrella agreement with MWDOC has
been prepared to provide incentives for specified devices and programs for FY 2015-16. This
agreement is attached as Exhibit “A”.

Staff has reviewed the water savings and necessary funding levels for the various devices and
recommends the incentive levels shown in Table 1. Based on customer participation, staff is
proposing a total of $1,060,000 in total incentive funding of which $610,000 would be allocated to
residential programs and $450,000 to commercial programs.

Table 1: Proposed Device Funding Levels FY 2015-2016

) IRWD Rebate
Maximum . .
Program . Devices Funding Level
Funding .
Per Device
High Efficiency
Clothes Washer $165
(HECW)
SoCal Water$mart High Efficiency Toilet
Residential Program $610,000 (HET) $50
Residential Smart $75

Timer

am Tactical Incentive Funding FY15-16.docx

15



Action Calendar: Water Conservation Participation Agreement

June 8, 2015
Page 2
. IRWD Rebate
Maximum . )
Program . Devices Funding Level
Funding .
Per Device
Commercial High $50
Efficiency Toilet
Multi-Family High $50
Efficiency Toilet
Zero Water/Ultra Low
Water Urinals $100
Connectionless Food $485 Per
Steamer Compartment
SoCal Water$mart Commercial Ice
. $450,000 g i ]
Commercial Program Making Machine (Tier $250
110}
Hotel Connectionless $485 Per
Food Steamer Compartment
Hotel Commercial Ice
Making Machine (Tier $250
1I0)
Water Savings $3 Per 1,000
Incentive Program gallons/ 1 vear
Total Funding
for All Programs $1,060,000
FISCAL IMPACTS:

Funding from over-allocation revenues for tactical incentives in the amount of $1,060,000 is
included in the adopted FY 2015-16 Operating Budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:
Not applicable.
COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on June
4, 2015.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE
WATER CONSERVATION PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY AND IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT,
SUBJECT TO NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES, FOR SPECIFIED REBATE PROGRAMS
WITH $1,060,000 IN FUNDING FOR FY 2015-16.



Action Calendar: Water Conservation Participation Agreement
June 8, 2015
Page 3

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” ~Water Conservation Participation Agreement between the Municipal Water District
of Orange County and Irvine Ranch Water District



EXHIBIT "A"

Water Conservation Participation Agreement between
the Municipal Water District of Orange County and

This Water Conservation Participation Agreement (“Agreement”) is made between the
Municipal Water District of Orange County (“MWDOC”) and (“Participant™).
MWDOC and Participant may be collectively referred to as “Parties” and individually as
“Party.”

Recitals

A. The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (“Metropolltan ) provides
incentive funding to residential, commercial, and industrial water users in its service area
for a variety of water conservation activities, including, but not limited to, rebates for the
purchase and installation of water-saving devices (“M,etropolitan Base Incentives”).

B MWDOC is a member agency of Metropolitan and has agreements with Metropolltan
that enable residential, commercial, and mdustrlal water users in MWDOC’S service area,

of Metropolitan’s Base Incentives.

C Participant, as a MWDOC member agency or a direct Metropolitan member agency, may
elect to participate in Metropolitan’s program to replace non-conserving items within its
service area.

D The Metropolitan Base Incentives amounts for each ehglble device or program available
to MWDOC and- Metropolltan member agencies are listed in the attached Addendums 1A
establish funding for additional water
of the existing funding rates throughout the
ill be incorporated herein by amendment to

E Metropolitan and MWDOC each have fiscal responsibility to manage their individual
budgets, and hence may‘ have a need to limit availability of funds.

F MWDOC and Metropélitan member agencies may also choose to provide additional
supplemental funding of their own to augment the Metropolitan Base Incentives, as set
forth on Addendyms 2A, 2B, and 2C. Based on the terms and conditions of this
Agreement MWDOC will facilitate supplemental funding for MWDOC member
agencies through the Metropolitan rebate contractor (“Rebate Contractor”) or MWDOC
directly. Metropolitan member agencies will coordinate any supplemental funding
directly with Metropolitan.

G In addition to the Metropolitan Base Incentives, MWDOC has developed and arranged
additional local, state, and federal grant funding (“Grant Funding”) for eligible devices in
a number of water conservation programs (“MWDOC Administered Programs”) that
MWDOC offers to its member agencies and Metropolitan member agencies. This grant

Page | 1



funding may be used to enhance the Metropolitan Base Incentives. Granting agencies
include, but are not limited to, the Department of Water Resources and the United States
Bureau of Reclamation.

MWDOC member agencies may also operate customized, local water conservation
incentive programs in their respective service areas (“Participant Agency Administered
Programs) and may have access to the Metropolitan Base Incentives and Grant Funding
for such, subject to MWDOC and Metropolitan approval and the terms and conditions of
this Agreement and any MWDOC and/or Metropolitan agreements

The purpose of this Agreement is to create a master water conservatlon participation
agreement between MWDOC and Participant that combines: all of the conservation
programs and incentives into one agreement. Addendums to thi/s'Agreement will be
issued for changes involving Metropolitan approved items, MWDOC Board approved
items, Grant Funding, adding and subtracting MWDOC Administered Programs and
Participant Agency Administered Programs as identified in Section 2, and changes to

incentive programs, including funding and incentive levels.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants hereinafter set

forth, the Parties do agree as follows:

Section 1: Agreement Term and Administration -

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

This Agreement will be effective on July 1, 2015 or upon execution of this Agreement by
all Parties, whichever is later, and shall terminate on June 30, 2025 (*Term”).
Continuance of this Agreement will be sub_]ect to annual budget approval by MWDOC’s
Board of Directors. '

This Agreement mey be amended at any time by written mutual agreement of the Parties,
or by Addendums issued by MWDOC as set forth in Recital L.

: ;Thls Agreement may be termmated by either Party for any reason upon thirty (30) days

wrltten notice to the other Party.

All Addendums are erlforced for the duration of this Agreement unless the Addendums
are amended or terminated by either Party. —

In the event the Agreement is terminated early, Participant is responsible for payment of
any funding contributions required by this Agreement that that were initiated prior to the
effective date of the termination. For purposes of this Section 1.5, an application is
deemed initiated when an application has been received by Metropolitan’s rebate vendor,
EGIA, by MWDOC, or a reservation has been made within any of MWDOC’s online
application portals that is pursuant to any of the programs described within this
Agreement and the attached Addendums.

Page | 2



1.6

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, funds for all of the programs
described within this Agreement and the attached Addendums are conditioned upon the
availability of funds and MWDOC is under no obligation to provide funding for any of
the programs if MWDOC determines, in its own discretion, that such funding is
exhausted, reduced, eliminated, or unavailable from any funding source, for any reason.

Section 2: Program Funding

2.1

2.2

Supplemental Funding

2.1.1 In addition to the Metropolitan Base Incentives, Participant may provide
additional funding to augment the Metropolitan Base Incentives amounts for those
programs and devices that Participant identifies, and in the amounts indicated, in the
appropriate locations in Addendums 2A, 2B, and 2C (“Supplemental Funding”). The
Supplemental Funding listed in Addendums 2A through 2C shall specify the amount of
Supplemental Funding Participant will provide per device or program, as well as the total
maximum Supplemental Funding amount committed to each category of dev1ce or
program. If the Participant does not complete, sign, and return Addendums 2A through
2C to MWDOC within the expected timeframe, notwithstanding any other prov1s10n of
this Agreement, the Participant will not be bound by thls Sectlon or the provisions in
Addendums 2A through 2C. 2

2.1.2 If Participant elects to provide Supplementa] Funding or enhanced incentives
gram, Partlclpant 1s respons1ble for tracking
funds. MWDOC will assist, in every way
tracking all Participant funding is the

2.1.3 Any requests for changes or rev1310ns to Participant’s Supplemental Funding must
be submitted by Participant to MWDOC in the form of revised Addendum 2s listing the

new funding amounts/llmltss

2.1 4 The Partlclpant may elg:ct to partlclpate in the Supplemental Funding Program and

be bound by the provisions of this Section 2.1, Sections 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 of this
Agreement, and Addendum 2A through 2C by having its authorized representative
complete and 31gn Addendum 2a through 2c¢ in the spaces provided.

MWDOC Admmlstered Programs

2.2.1 With regard to the Smart Timer Rebate Program, Participant is eligible for
additional Grant Funding from MWDOC (“MWDOC Smart Timer Funding”), when
funding is available, only if Participant provides supplemental funding for the Smart
Timer Program pursuant to this Section 2.2 and Addendum 3A.

2.2.2 Participant may elect to take advantage of the MWDOC Administered Programs
by having its authorized representative complete and sign Addendums 3A through 3C in

Page | 3



23

2.4

the spaces provided. If Participant completes and signs Addendums 3A through 3C,
Participant agrees to be bound by the provisions of this Section 2.2, Sections 3, 4, 5, 6,
and 7 of this Agreement, and Addendums 3A through 3C. If the Participant does not
complete, sign, and return Addendums 3A through 3C within the expected timeframe,
notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Participant will not be bound
by this Section or the provisions in Addendums 3A through 3C.

Participant Agency Administered Programs

2.3.1 From time to time, funding may be made available for Participant to operate a
customized member agency administered local water conservation incentive program or
programs (“Participant Agency Administered” “PA” or “MAA Program”) in its service
area and access the Metropolitan Base Incentives for such, subject to MWDOC approval
of the program and the terms and conditions of this Agreement and Addendum 4. The
Participant Agency Administered Program(s) and requirements in connectlon with it are
described in more detail in Addendum 4.

2.3.2  Upon receipt of approval of a Participar'it’/Agency Administered Program by
MWDOC, Participant is bound by the provisions of Sections 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 of this
Agreement and Addendum 4.

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, MWDOC may terminate this
Agreement as it relates to this Section 2 at any time without prior notice in the event that
MWDOC determines that funding for any device or program on Addendums 2 through 4
or MWDOC Grant Fundmg is exhausted, reduced, eliminated, or unavailable from any
funding source, for any reaSOn

Section 3: Respon51b111tv and Ownershm

3.1

3.2

33

Partlclpant at its. sole dlscretlon may mdependently contract with its own agents under
separate agreements for program administration and management for any Partlclpant

- Agency Administered Program prov1ded that doing so does not compromise program

performance, create or present a conflict of interest, or violate the terms of this
Agreement.

Participant and/or its agent shall provide all necessary services and materials for such
Participant Agency Administered Programs including, but not limited to the following:
program administration, promotion, marketing materials, data collection, and analysis,
installation verification, and reporting.

All materials and supplies necessary to implement a Participant Agency Administered
Program shall be the exclusive property of Participant. MWDOC shall have no
ownership, right, title, security interest, or other interest in any Participant Agency
Administered Program materials or supplies, nor any rights duties, or responsibilities,
therefor.

Page | 4



34

3.5

3.6

3.7

Participant is responsible for assuring that any Participant Agency Administered Program
complies with all federal, state, and local requirements.

Participant agrees to cooperate with MWDOC’s data management activities related to
assessing device saturation and program success.

As part of any Participant Agency Administered Program, Participant shall use, maintain,
and submit to MWDOC within the designated timeframe an electronic database, to be
approved by MWDOC prior to use, for any conservation items installed, distributed, or
rebated by Participant or its agents to avoid duplicate distributions and to determine the
saturation rate of items by the appropriate geographic delineation.

Participant is solely responsible for the performance of its staff or representatives in
complying with the terms of this Agreement and for the proper allocation of funds
provided by Metropolitan and/or MWDOC for the purpose of achieving water
conservation savings under this Agreement.

Section 4 Marketing.

4.1

5.1

52

53

Participant agrees to assist in the marketing of programs it participates in under this
Agreement. With regard to Participant Participant will
be solely responsible for marketing its Program to
customers in its service area. /

ng installation verifications of items installed,
der Participant Agency Administered
ed with this verification. Installation
ust be designed to ensure that materials,
devices, and services meet requirements

“established by Metropolltan which requirements will be provided to Participant by

MWDOC

Partlclpant may be responsible for conducting installation verifications of items installed,
distributed, and/or rebated by Participant or MWDOC under MWDOC Administered
Programs, and/or for paying all costs associated with this verification. Installation
verification me#sures for program devices must be designed to ensure that materials,
installation verifications of eligible program devices, and services meet requirements
established by Metropolitan, which requirements will be provided to Participant by
MWDOC.

MWDOC reserves the right to conduct installation verification of items within
MWDOC’s service area.

Page | 5

A-5



54

5.5

Participant acknowledges that any device receiving funding from Metropolitan may be
subject to an installation verification to be performed by Metropolitan, or its agent(s), at
Metropolitan’s discretion.

Participant shall promptly refund to MWDOC any amounts paid under any Participant
Agency Administered Program or MWDOC Administered Program for installed or
distributed devices in the event MWDOC or Metropolitan establishes via installation
verification that the program devices were not installed.

Section 6: Reporting and Invoicing

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

For any and all Supplemental Funding provided by Participant and/or Participant
provided funding or inspection costs under the MWDOC Adm1n1stered Programs
pursuant to Section 2 of this Agreement and as more partlcularly described in
Addendums 2 and 3, MWDOC will invoice Participant on a monthly basis for the cost of
such funding, and Participant must pay the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30)
days of receipt of any such invoice.

For any and all Participant Agency Ad ‘ ce

MWDOC on a monthly basis, by the 1 and
costs associated with the Participant Ag in and

subject to the provisions of Addendum 4. MWDOC is under no responsibility to
reimburse Participant for any costs incurred by Participant that are not approved by
MWDOC consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and Addendum 4.
The invoice package shall include a fully completed, to the satisfaction of MWDOC,
Excel customer/appllcant spreadsheet showing program activity, and an Invoice, signed
by the General Manager or designee of Participant, certifying the information provided as
accurate. Participant shall use the Excel customer/applicant spreadsheet and Invoice
forms approved by MWDOC

Partlclpant shall malntam all Partlclpant Agency Administered Program information,

including participant ‘applications, water bills, and purchase receipts, for a period of seven

years from the end date of this Agreement.

Payment of Participarrt i’hvoices shall be in the form of either a credit on MWDOC’s
cipant or a check made payable to Participant. Method of payment shall
discretion.

Section 7: Confidentiality

7.1

MWDOC agrees to maintain the confidentiality of Participant’s customer names,
addresses, and other information gathered in connection with this Agreement. MWDOC
will not cause or permit the disclosure of such information expect as necessary to carry
out any of the MWDOC Administered or Participant Agency Administered programs
(“Programs™), or as required by law. To the extent that MWDOC contracts with third

Page | 6

A-6



7.2

party contractors to carry out all or any portion of any of the Programs, MWDOC will
require such contractors to maintain the confidentiality of such customer information.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Participant acknowledges
and agrees that MWDOC may request and use historical water consumption data for
purposes of satisfying any grant water use and water quality evaluation requirements of
any of the Programs. Participant also acknowledges and agrees that MWDOC may also
request to use Program applicant information, such as name, mailing address, site photos,
and email address to market other water use efficiency programs to past applicants. A
similar provision will be required of every individual applicant. -

Section 8. Indemnification.

8.1

8.2

9.1

The parties agree that each Party shall be responsible for its own actions, and the actions
of its officers, employees, and agents, in performing services under this Agreement.
Except as provided in this Agreement and its Addendums, each Party agrees to
indemnify and hold the other Party and its officers and agents harmless and agrees to
defend the other Party against any claim or asserted liability arising out of its actions,
either willful or negligent, or the actions of its officers, employees, and agents, in

The undersigned hereby certifies on behalf of Participant that no Federal appropriated
funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Participant, to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of

Page | 7



any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. If any funds other than
Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress
in connection with a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions. To the extent federal funds are
involved, the Participant shall require that the language of this certification be included
in the awards documents for any sub-awards by the Participant at all tiers (including
sub-contracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans and cooperative
agreements) and that sub-recipients, if any, shall certify accordlngly

Section 10. Other Terms

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Any alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement will not be valid unless made
in writing and signed by both Parties. i

This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be b1nd1ng upon the Partles and their
respective successors. g,

The partial or total invalidity of one or more parts of fhis Agreement will not affect the
intent or validity of this Agreement.

This agreement shall be deemed a contract made under the. laws of the State of California,
and for all purposes will be interpreted in accordance with such laws. The Parties hereby
agree and consent to the exclusive Jurlsdlctlon of the courts of the State of California, and
that the venue of any action brought hereunder will be in Orange County, California.

This Agreernent ccnstitutes ﬂle entire agreefneht between the Parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the partles hereto have executed this Agreement.

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Sy PARTICIPANT WATER AGENCY
OF ORANGE COUNTY - 3

By: ; 1 By:
Robert J. Hunter
General Manager

Page | 8



Addendum 1A FY 15-16

Metropolitan Base Incentive List - Residential (Pg. 1 of 1)

Regional Residential Program Metropolitan

Incentive*®
1 High Efficiency Clothes Washer (HECW) $85
2 High-Efficiency Toilet (HET) (Melded Rate)(single-family) $100
3 Rotating Nozzles! (For Pop-Up Spray Head Retrofits - Minimum 15 per home) $4
Weather Based Irrigation Controller (WBIC)
4 WBIC Less than one irrigated acre $S80
5 WBIC One irrigated acre or larger $35 per station
Soil Moisture Sensor System (SMSS)
6 SMSS Less than one irrigated acre $80
7 SMSS One irrigated acre or larger $35 per station
8 Rain Barrel $75 per barrel
2 per sq ft
9 $
Turf Removal (eff. 5/14/14)
Other Incentives Metropolitan
Eligible in MWD-Funded/Member Agency Administered Incentive Program Incentive*
Residential
10 $12.50
Member agency provides the customer the findings of
11 on improvements to the irrigation system and S8
provides a i
customer the findings o
12 u fi gs of $18
vements. Metropolitan $195

13;
based on project lifeand up  per acre-foot

Rotating Nozzles for Pop-up Spray Heads Retrofits
14 Minimur 15 per application. Payment will be up to the cost of the device plus appropriate $4 per nozzle
administrative costs, including third party costs billed to the agency.

Other Incentives Metropolitan
Grant-Funded/MWD-Matched Incentives™
H 1 ~ .
15 Rotating Nozzles! (For Pop-Up Spray Head Retrofits) $4 per nozzle
Incentive incorporates  per nozzle in funds from United States Department of the Interior Grant Agreement No.
12AP3535 Nozzle Incentive
Incentives are subject to the following:
° Effective July 1, 2015 (unless otherwise noted) Limited to the cost of the device when applicable
. Paid on a first come, first served basis Must be a Metropolitan-approved device
to available

A-9



10
11

12

13

14

15

16
17

18

19

20

Addendum 1B FY 15-16

Metropolitan Base Incentive List - Cll (Pg. 1 of 3)

Regional Cll Program

Plumbing Flow Control Valve
(Minimum 10 required)

Laminar Flow Restrictors
{Minimum 10 required)

Commercial High Efficiency Toilet {HET) — Tank Type
Rebates are for matching bowls & tanks.

Commercial High Efficiency Toilet (HET) — Flushometer

Rebates are for matching bowls and complete flushometer valves
Multi-Family High Efficiency Toilet (HET)

Multi-Family High Efficiency Toilet (4-Liter)

Zero Water Urinals (ZWU) )
ZWU units must replace existing urinals flushing at 1.5 gpf or greater.

Ultra Low Water Urinal (ULWU)
Rebates are for matching bowls and (valve “kits”
Must flush at < 0.125 gpf, and must replace

WBIC and CCIC: Upgrades to existing equipment that enable functionality as a
provided they meet program terms and conditions.

Weather-Based Irrigation Controller (WBIC)
Central Computer

Soil Moisture Sensor
Large Rotary
Minimum 8 site

Rotating Nozzles' for
Minimum 15 units per site

In-Stem r
(Minimum  un site)
Turf Removal

pH-Cooling Tower Cont

Cooling Tower Conductivity Controller (CTCC)

Dry Vacuum Pump
Maximum 2 Horsepower (HP) motor.

Connectionless Food Steamers

Ice-Making Machines

A-10

Metropolitan
Incentive*

S5 per valve3
$10 per restrictor
$100

$100
$100

$145

$200

$200
may qualify for incentives

$35 per station
$35 per station

$35 per station

$13 per set
S4 per nozzle

$1 per regulator

$2 per sq.ft.
(eff. 5/14/14)

$1,750
$625

$125 per 0.5 HP

$485 per
compartment

$1,000



21

22

23

24

25

Addendum 1B FY 15-16
Cll Incentive List (Pg. 2 of 3)

Other Incentives Metropolitan
Eligible in MWD-Funded/Member Agency Administered Program Incentives*

Large Landscape Surveys

Member Agency’s landscape survey program shall contain the following elements for each survey site:

1) Irrigation system evaluation; 2) Development of a water budget and irrigation schedule; and 3) $200
Survey report provided on-site to the recipient or customer. per acre
Incentives are limited to the full cost of the survey; no restriction on application for additional

landscape device rebates. Project information data is required.

Water Use Accountability Incentive

Applies to professional landscape irrigation training and management. ThIS mcentlve is available for a
maximum of five years and up to one-half of project cost. :

Large residential (lot sizes one acre or more) and Cll landscapes must be metered to be ehglble for $3.50
Water Use Accountability (WUA) funding, and new construction sites are ineligible. If a weather-

based irrigation controller (WBIC) is installed on a site, that site is not eligible for WUA funding. - per acre/month
Member agencies must report all direct and indirect program costs project acreage and acre-feet
usage (to the nearest one-tenth of a unit) to Metropolitan on a monthly basis, and shall certify that
Metropolitan Professional California Friendly landscape training or was provided.
Customized Projects
Projects that save is limited to $195
5195 per acre-foo of eligible per acre-foot
project costs.
Rotating Nozzles® for Pop-up Spray Heads Retrofits - ‘ .
S4

Payment will be up to the cost of the dewce plus approprlate admmlstratlve costs, including third
party costs billed to the agency : per nozzle

Incentives = Metropolitan

Incentives*

$4 per nozzle

in United States Department of the Interior Grant Agreement No.



Addendum 1B FY 15-16
Cll incentive List (Pg. 3 of 3)

Metropolitan

Additional Regional Programs *

Incentives
Public Agency Landscape Program

Up-front, enhanced incentives for public agencies to install water-efficient landscape devices. This program will run through June
30, 2016.

26 Weather-Based or Central Computer Irrigation Controller, Soil Moisture Sensor System $55 per station

Large Rotary Nozzles

27 L. L 13 t
Minimum 8 sets per application. >13 per se

Ro.ta!tmg Nozzles for pOp-l:lp spray head retrofits $6 per nozzle
Minimum 15 nozzles per site.

Targeted Fitness Center Incentive Program

HETs, ULWUs and ZWUs: Must be WaterSense labeled devices, where available. This program will run through June 30, 2016.

Incentive limited to cost of device plus installation. Rebates are for matching bowls & tanks or matching bowls and flushometer
valves.

29 Commercial High Efficiency Toilet (HET) —~ Tank Type or Flushometer $300 / HET
30 Zero Water Urinals (ZWU) and Ultra Low Water Urinal (ULWU) $500 / Urinal
*Incentives are subject to the following:

e Effective July 1, 2015 (unless otherwise noted) e ' Limited to the cost of the device when applicable

e Paid on a first come, first served basis e Must be a Metropolitan-approved device
e Subject to available funding

A-12



Addendum 2A FY 15-16

Residential Program
Participant Agency Supplemental Funding Authorization (Pg. 1 of 1)

. . Metropolitan Participant Agency Total Incentive
Regional Incentive Program . .
Incentive Incentive
High Efficiency Clothes Washer (HECW) no Grant  $85 S S
High-Efficiency Toilets (HET). Single-family $50 S S
Rotating Nozzles $4 S S
Rain Barrels $75 S S

Check here [ ] if the supplemental incentives are flat regardless of actual device cost

Select
one: Check here [ ] if the supplemental incentives are limited to the actual device cost

(Actual device cost is the retail price of the device excluding tax; shipping, labor or other charges)

If Participant Agency has complex or more detailed requirements or wishes to stop their funding, please check this box,
sign this form and attach a spreadsheet or other documentation showing funding details.

Participant Agency Name

Total Authorized Funding* $

Start Date
End Date:

1 This authorization represents}ihe Agehcyf’s total funding for the period indicated.

This the Participant Agency above, or until a new
auth Each form submitted shall include the total
auth be carried over from prior forms

Supplementalzfujridi‘ng forms received by MWDOC by the 15" of a month will be sent to Metropolitan by the 20th of a
month. Funding forms received by Metropolitan by the 20t of a month shall become effective on the first day of the
following month unless a later Start Date is specified. Incentives will not be applied retroactively.

Participant Agency is obligated to pay supplemental funding for any on-line commitments made while this authorization
is in effect. By signing, Participant Agency agrees to these terms.

Authorizing Signature General Manager /Designee Date
MWDOC Date received Approved by
Use Only:

Date sent to Metropolitan:

Comments:

A-13



Partici nt Agency Su

Regional Incentive Program
Plumbing Flow Control Valve
Laminar Flow Restrictors
Commercial HET — Tank Type
Commercial HET — Flushometer
Multi-Family HET
Multi-Family HET (4-Liter)
Zero Water Urinals (ZWU)
Ultra Low Water Urinal (ULWU)
Large Rotary Nozzles
Rotati Nozzles for S
In-Stem Flow Regulator
pH-Cooling Tower Controller (pH-CTC)ii .
Cooli Tower Cond
Dry Vacuum Pump -
Connectionless Food Ste,émers

lce-Making Machines

Public Agency Landscape WBIC, CC/I/C’,,/ and SMSS
Public Agency Landscape Large Rotary Nozzles
Public Agency Landscape Rotating Nozzles
Fitness Center HET Tank Type or Flushometer

Fitness Center Urinals ZWU and ULWU

Addendum 2B FY 15-16
Cll Program

lemental Funding Authorization 1 0of 2)
Metropolitan Participant Agency
Incentive Incentive
$5each

S 10 per Restrictor

$ 100

$ 100

$ 100

$ 145

$200

$200

Heads Retrofits!

$1,750

$ 125 per 0.5 HP
$ 485 per compartment

$1,000

$ 55 per Station
$ 13 Per Set

$ 6 per Nozzle
$ 300 per HET

$ 500 per Urinal

A-14

Total
Incentive



Addendum 2B FY 15-16
Cll Program
Participant Agency Supplemental Funding Authorization (Pg. 2 of 2)

Check here[] if the supplemental incentives are flat regardless of actual device cost

Selectone  Check here [ ] if the supplemental incentives are limited to the actual device cost
(Actual device cost is the retail price of the device excluding tax, shipping, labor or other charges)

If Participant Agency has complex or more detailed requirements, or wishes to stop their funding, please check

thic hav cian thic farm and attach a en

Participant Agency

Total Authorized Funding?  $
Start Date:
End Date:

1. Includes grant funding, when grant funds are available.
2. Thic authorization reoresents the Participant Aaencv’s total fundina for the period indicated.

authorization is in effect.

Participant

Authorizing Signature Date
/Designee

MWDOC

Use Only: Date received Approved by

Date sent to Metropolitan, if applicable:

Comments:

A-15



Addendum 2C FY 15-16
Participant Agency Supplemental Funding Authorization
for Water Savings Incentive Program

Participant Agency Incentive {per
1,000 gal/yr)

Supplement to Metropolitan’s funding $
for Water Savings Incentive Program

Participant Agency

Total Authorized Funding* $
Start Date:
End Date:

*This authorization represents the Participant for:the period.

This funding authorization is effective for only the period designated by the Participant Agency above or until
a new authorization is approved and implemented by Metropolitan. Each form submitted shall include the
total authorization of the Agency for the specified time period. No fu’nds, will be carried over from prior forms.
Incentives will not be applied retroactively

Water Savings Incentive Program projects are typically multi-year projects with incentives paid in subsequent
years. Participant Agency is reqmred to authorize the project prior to MWDOC and Metropolitan’s approvals.
Participant Agency is obligated to pay supplemental funding for any projects MWDOC and Metropolitan
approve while this authorization is in effect. MWDOC will invoice for the supplemental funding portion of

incentives when incentives are pa ting Agency shall reimburse MWDOC for any
supplemental funding that the Pa de as represented above and that MWDOC
and/or Metropolitan provided or on the Participant Agency’s behalf. The terms

of this authorization may ‘bé;quified only in writing by authorized representatives of Participant Agency
and MWDOC. By signing, Participant Agency agrees to these terms.

Authorizing Signature General Manbger /Designee Date
MWDOC Date received Approved by
Use Only:

Date sent to Metropolitan, if applicable

Comments:

A-16



Addendum 3A FY 15-16
Smart Timer Rebate Program
Participant Agency Funding Authorization

Participant Agency agrees to provide funding for the Smart Timer Rebate Program in the
amount specified in Table 1 below per residential weather based irrigation controller or soil
moisture sensor system (Res Smart Timer). Funding will be provided on a per device basis up
to the “Not to Exceed" funding limit:

Table 1
Category Participant Agency Not to Exceed Funding Limit
Funding Amount -For Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Res Smart Timer $75 per Res Smart Timer

If Participant Agency elects to provide additional funding for commercial weather based
irrigation controllers, central computer irrigation controller, or soil moisture sensor system (ClI
Smart Timer), Table 2 below shall list the Participant Agency’s funding amount per Cll Smart
Timer station. Cll Smart Timer rebates are calculated on the Cll Smart Timer's station capacity,
and Participant Agency’s funding amounts shall bein addltlon to the per station amount
provided by Metropolitan. :

Table 2
Category Part|C|pant Agency Not to Exceed Funding Limit For
Funding Amount Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Cll Smart Timer -~ $ $
Participant Agency
Authorizing Signature General Manager /Designee Date
Date received: Approved by

Date sent to Metropolitan, if applicable



Addendum 3B FY 15-16
Turf Removal Rebate Program
Participant Agency Funding Authorization (Page 1 of 3)

Site Inspection; Election by Participant. Participant Agency must either (1) conduct
pre- and post-turf removal site inspections for all Program Applications submitted to
MWDOC from within the Participant’s service area, or (2) provide funding to MWDOC,
as set forth below, for the cost of MWDOC's site installation inspection consultant,
Mission Resource Conservation District (MRCD), to conduct both pre- and post-turf
removal inspections.

if Participant Agency elects to perform the pre- and post-turf removal inspections,
Participant Agency shall be responsible for the activities described below:

For pre-turf removal inspections:

Schedule and conduct the pre- turf removal inspection,

Complete the pre-turf removal work order as provided by MWDOC W|th the
required data and site photographs

Establish that the applicant’s proposed pro;ect and site are conSIstent with the
intent of the Program.

Notify MWDOC If any site is being irrigated with recycled water.

Submit the completed work order and site photographs to MWDOC.

Recommend to approve or deny the application. If MWDOC staff agrees with the
recommendation, it shall approve the application, designate the site as an eligible
Program turf removal project, and issue a Notice to Proceed to the applicant, or
reject the appllcatlon and issue a Participation Denial Notice to the applicant. The
final decision on a Notice to Proceed lies with MWDOC.

For post-turf removal i’n’s;pectiori,s,;

Schedule and conduct the post-turf removal inspection

Complete the post- “turf removal work order, as provided by MWDOC, with the
required data, site photographs, and receipts

‘Establish that the applicant's completed project and site are consistent with the
intent and guidelines of the Program, including the following.

o The site’s precise turf removal area in square feet that was removed. This
shall be the basis for calculating the amount of each site’s rebate, not to
exceed initial pre-turf removal inspection measurements, and the total turf
removal project cost.

o The site’s turf removal area does not include any live turf or turf-looking
grasses.

o The project area must include some plants.

o The converted area’s irrigation system, if any, is a low flow system (drip,
bubblers, or low-precipitation high-efficiency rotating nozzles). If part of a
lawn is converted, the sprinkler system must be properly modified to provide
adequate coverage to the remaining lawn without spraying the converted
area.

o Allexposed soil in the converted area is covered with a 2-3” layer of mulch,
except in areas planted with creeping or rooting groundcovers.

A-18



Addendum 3B FY 15-16
Turf Removal Rebate Program
Participant Agency Funding Authorization (Page 2 of 3)

o Converted area is permeable to air and water. Weed barriers must be
permeable. Pavers must have sufficient spacing to allow water to permeate
project area. Concrete, plastic sheeting or other impermeable surfaces do
not qualify for incentives under the Program.

o Noinvasive plant species are used.

At the time of this Addendum, the residential turf removal inspection cost as charged to
MWDOC by MRCD is $105 per residential inspection. The total cost for both pre and
post-turf removal residential inspections is thus $210.00. The current commercial
inspection cost as charged to MWDOC by MRCD is approxmately $165.36 per
inspection, based on an average of four (4) hours for a small commercial site at $37.84
per hour, plus $28 per hour for inspection verification administration. -Again, two
commercial inspections are required, for a total estimated cost of $330.72. Should the
MRCD costs decrease or increase, MWDOC will pass these changes through to
Participant Agency /

By its initials below, P L hereby elects to
either:
Name of Participant Agency
(1) Conduct its own  pections:
Initials Here

or

(2) Provide funding to MWDOC to conduct

mspectlons L s Initials Here

Not’ to exceed fundmg amount to conduct $
Inspectlons :

Participant has the option to provide supplemental funding to customers in its service
area to further incentivize turf removal program participation. By completing Table 3
below, Participant Agency elects to provide supplemental funding for turf removal rebate
incentives

Table 3 -Turf Removal Supplemental Funding

Not To Exceed A Z:gticli:%ar:gin
Program Funding for Fiscal gAmoyunt per 9 Notes/Special Considerations
Year 15-16 Sauare Foot
Residential Turf $
Removal $
CllI Turf Removal $

A-19



Addendum 3B FY 15-16
Turf Removal Rebate Program
Participant Agency Funding Authorization (Page 3 of 3)

This funding authorization is effective only for the designated period or until a new authorization is received and approved
by MWDOC. Each form submitted shall include the total authorization of the Agency for the specified time period.

Supplemental funding forms received by MWDOC by the 15" of a month will be sent to Metropolitan by the 20th of a
month. Funding forms received by Metropolitan by the 20™ of a month shall become effective on the first day of the
following month unless a later Start Date is specified. Incentives will not be applied retroactively.

Participant Agency is obligated to pay supplemental funding for any on-line commitments made while this authorization is
in effect. By signing, Participant Agency agrees to these terms.

Participant Agency

Authorizing Signature General Manager /Designee Date

Date received: Approved by

Date sent to Metropolitan, if applicable:

A-20




Addendum 3C FY 15-16
Spray to Drip Irrigation Rebate Program
Participant Agency Funding Authorization (Page 1 of 2)

Site Inspection; Election by Participant. Participant Agency must either (1) post-drip
conversion site inspections for all Program Applications submitted to MWDOC from
within the Participant’s service area, or (2) provide funding to MWDOC, as set forth
below, for the cost of MWDOC's site installation inspection consultant, Mission
Resource Conservation District (MRCD), to conduct the post-drip conversion
inspections.

If Participant Agency elects to perform the post-drip conversion inspections, Participant
Agency shall be responsible for the activities described below: .

For post-turf removal inspections: :

e Schedule and conduct the post-drip conversnon mspectlon

e Complete the post-drip conversion work order, as provided by MWDOC with the
required data, site photographs, and receipts

o Establish that the applicant's completed project and site are con3|stent with the
intent and guidelines of the Program, including the following.
o Property type (residential/commercial) .
o Verified number of pressure regulatlon/flltratlon components
o Verified project area in square: footage /

By its initials below, S hereby elects to
either: ’ -
Name of Participant Agency

(1) Conduct its own inspections:

Initials Here
or
(2) Provide funding to MWDOC to conduct
inspections: Initials Here

Not to exceed funding amount to conduct
Inspections

A-21



Addendum 3C FY 15-16
Spray to Drip Irrigation Rebate Program
Participant Agency Funding Authorization (Page 2 of 2)

Participant has the option to provide supplemental funding to customers in its service
area to further incentivize spray to drip conversion program participation. By completing
Table 4 below, Participant Agency elects to provide supplemental funding for spray to
drip conversion rebate incentives

Table 4 — Spray to Drip Rebate Supplemental Funding

Not To Exceed A eP:gtlcllzp:ja:‘rcljtin IR
Program Funding for Fiscal gAmoyunt per g Notes/Special Considerations
Year 15-16 Square Foot
Residential Spray $ $
to Drip
Cll Sprayto Drip $ $

This funding authorization is effective only for the designated period or u'n,'t:,il a new authorization is received and approved
by MWDOC. Each form submitted shall include the total authorization of the Agency for the specified time period.

Supplemental funding forms received by MWDOC by th‘eylS""”of a month will be Sént to Metropolitan by the 20th of a
month. Funding forms received by Metropolitan by the 20™ of a month shall become effective on the first day of the
following month unless a later Start Date is specified. Incentives will not b,e,;gpplied retroactively.

Participant Agency is | funding for any on-line commitments made while this authorization is
in effect. By signing, these terms.

Participant Agency

Authorizing Date

Date received: Approved by

Date sent to Metropolitan, if applicable:

A-22



Addendum 4 FY 15-16

Participant Agency Administered Project Pre-Approval Request
MWD-Funded/Participant Agency Administered Incentive Program

Participant Agency must obtain Metropolitan’s written pre-approval for all projects
This form must be received by MWDOC by

Program Type: Residential Commercial, Industrial, Institutional

Project Type: ] Device-based Customized

Member Agency Agreement Number (Completed by MWDOC)
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY

Participant/Retail Agency Panicipant/Retail Agency ,Contact Name
Participant/Retail Agency Project Title/Name Participant/Retail Agency Contact E-Mail Address
Project Start Date Participant/Retail Agency Contact Phone Number
Project End Date (must be complete by May 31, 2016) Participant/Rétéil Agency Funding Request for Project

Detailed Project Description
Project description must include the following

1. Detailed Project narrative
2

N YA W

data collection form).

Project Description;

Please attach additional sheets, if necessary.

I certify that the information provided in this request is accurate and in accordance with guidelines provided above, and understand that
both MWDOC and Metropolitan ust approve this request prior to Participant/Retail Agency seeking reimbursement from MWDOC for
this project. | understand that funding is not guaranteed and that a lesser amount than requested may be awarded. | further understand
that signed invoices must be submitted electronically to MWDOC by the 5t of each month and that invoices must be submitted on the
MWDOC-approved invoice template and include a completed data collection table/spreadsheet. By signing, Participant/Retail
Agency agrees to these terms.

Authorizing Signature General Manager /Designee Date

MWDOC Date received:

A-23



Use Only

Addendum 4 FY 15-16
Requirements for Incentive Reimbursement

For MWDOC Participant/Retail Agencies
MWD-Funded/Member Agency Administered Incentive Program

Projects Eligible for Metropolitan Funding )
Metropolitan’s funding under the MWD-Funded/Member Agency Administered Incentive Program will be

provided for two types of Participant/Retail Agency administered projects.

1. Device-based and other incentive project: Eligible devices must be included in residential or commercial
incentive List. Metropolitan incentives will be available for PartiCip”ant/Retail’Agency projects that
retrofit, install or distribute devices independent of the regional rebate program A typical example is
direct installation or distribution of devices.

2. Customized project: For projects that result in water savmgs through customized site |mprovements
Metropolitan’s funding is limited to $195 per acre-foot of estimated water savings, based on project life
and up to one-half of eligible project costs. Metropolltan S vendor cannot be used for customlzed
projects. Restrictions may apply. :

Restrictions
Eligible project costs include the following:

° Equipment

° Plants

o Mulch

e Pervious hardscape 3t ‘

o Up to one year of |rr|gat|on management fees

Ineligible project costs mclude the followmg By

* Supplemental fundmg for Metropolltan device mcentlves

° Partlcmant/ Retail Agency stafﬁng costs
Project life is estimated at the followmg terms

/ 01";; Landscape |rr|gat|on system |mprovements 10 years
e Forother prOJects,,h,fe’estlmate,«determmed by Metropolitan or Member agency peer reviews of
supplied documentation, technical studies, etc.
Project Approval and Payment Process
The process for MWDOCf\Metropo/litan approval and reimbursement for MWD-Funded/Member Agency
Administered projects is‘as follows:
1. Participant/Retail Agency submits a signed project proposal by Request deadline. The proposal shall include a
project pre-approval request and any supporting documentation.

2. MWDOC/Metropolitan shall approve, reject, or convene a peer review panel to consider the request. The
participants in the peer review panel shall be determined by MWDOC/Metropolitan.

3. If approved, Participant/Retail Agency may implement its project.
4. Participant/Retail Agency shall only invoice MWDOC for funding within its total allocated amount.

5. Participant/Retail Agencies must submit monthly invoices. invoices may be submitted as a scanned invoice
signed by the Participant/Retail Agency’s General Manager or Designee prior to submittal, certifying the
incentive amount, verification method, and work performed for the period.

A-24



6. When submitting an invoice, Participant/Retail Agencies must also submit an excel database containing
supporting documentation.

Addendum 4 FY 15-16
Requirements for Incentive Reimbursement

For MWDOC Participant/Retail Agencies
MWD-Funded/Member Agency Administered Incentive Program

7. The excel database must include the data fields in the order shown below for the invoice to be processed.
MWDOC/Metropolitan will provide an example excel spreadsheet for Participant/Retail Agencies upon
request.

Required Database Fields for invoice payment: - (where applicable*)

Member agency
Retail agency *
Site, company, or organization name *
Customer first name
Customer last name
Site or installation street address
Apartment or Unit
City
Zip code
. Device
. Quantity
. Install date
. Number of WBIC stations * :
. Number of Acres (large landscape) *
. Total square feet of turf removed *
. Eligible square feet of turf removed *
. Water factor *
. Site description (Business, HOA, etc) *
. Customer phone number 7
. Customer email address.
. Contractor Name* :
. Contractor phone number*
. Contractor email*
. Device make
. Device model
. Retail cost per device
. Program Type (residential/commercial)

WO NOU A WDNE

=
= O

NRNNNNNNNRRRRRRBRR
NOUBWNROOURRNOTUN D WRN

8. Metropolitan shall provide payment to MWDOC by means of a credit on their monthly water bill from
Metropolitan. MWDOC shall then either credit the Participant/Retail Agency’s monthly water bill from
MWDOC or issue Participant/Retail Agency a check. Method of payment to be determined by MWDOC at its
discretion. Particpant/Retail Agency shall be solely responsible for any incentive payments to customers or
other applicable third parties.

A-25



A-26



	Agenda

	#5: Workshop-FY 2015-16 Capital Budget

	#6: Minutes of Board Meeting

	#7: Ratify/Approve Board of Directors' Attendance at Meetings and Events

	#8: Proposed Salary Changes for FY 2015-16

	#9: Baker Pipeline Cathodic Protection System Upgrades Project Final Acceptance

	#10: Bureau of Reclamation WaterSmart Drought Resiliency Project Grant Application

	#11: 2015 Legislative Update 
	#12: 2014-15 OC Grand Jury Report Response

	#13: Cost of Service Study and Policy Considerations

	#14: WaterSmart Software Variance No. 2

	#15: Water Conservation Participation Agreement




